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STATE oF MICHIGAN
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GOVERNOR LANSING
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March 28, 2002

The Honorable John Engler, Governor
Members of the Legislature
People of the State of Michigan

As required by Aricle 9, Seclion 21, of the Stale
Constitution and Section 494, Public Act 431 of 1984, as
amended, we are pleased to submit the Siate of Michigan
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (SOMCAFR) for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2001.

INTROBDUCTION TO THE REPORT

Responsibility: The Office of the State Budget, Office of
Financial Management, prepares the SOMCAFR and is
responsible for both the accuracy of the data and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including
disclosures. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the
information contained in the SOMCAFR is accurate in all
material respects and reported in a manner that fairly
presents the financial position and results of operations of
the Biate primary government and component units for which
it is financially accountable. All disclosures necessary to
enable the reader lo gain a reasonable understanding of the
State's financial affairs have been included,

Adherence to Generally Accepled Accounting Principles:

As required by State stalute, we have prepared the financial
slatements contained in the SOMCAFR in accordance with
generally accepled accounting principles (GAAP) applicable
to state and local governments, as promuigated by the
Governmenial Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The
State also voluntarily follows the recommendations of the
Government Finance Officers Association of the Uniled
States and Canada (GFOA) for the contents of government
financial reports, and participates in the GFQA's review
program for the Cerlificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting.

Reporl: The SOMCAFR is divided into three major
sections: introductory, financial, and statistical. The
introductory seclion includes this letter, the Stale’s
organization chart, and the list of principal officials. The
financial section includes: the independent auditors report
on the Basic Financial Statements; Management's
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) which provides an
introduction, overview and analysis to the “Basic Financial
Statements”; the Basic Financial Statements, which present
the govermnment-wide financial statements and fund financial
stalements for governmental funds, proprietary funds,
fiduciary funds, and component units, together with footnotes

to the Basic Financial Statements; Required Supplementary
Information other than MD&A, which presents budgetary
comparison schedules and information about infrastructure
assets; and the supplemental financial data which includes
the combining financial statements and schedules. The
statistical section includes such items as trend information,
information on debt levels, and other selected economic and
stalistical data.

Internal Control Structure: The Office of the State Budgel
is responsible for the overall operation of the State's central
accounting system and for establishing and maintaining the
State's inlernal control struclure, Al financial transactions of
ihe State primary government are recorded in the ceniral
accounting system, excepl for the Michigan Unemployment
Compensation Funds, the State Employees’ Deferred
Compensation Funds, and the State Employees’ Deiined
Contribution Retirement Fund. Many of the essential control
fealures are decentralized, such as the preparation and entry
of expenditure transactions inte the central accounting
syslem. Consequently, the Office of the State Budget relies
upeon the controls in place at the various Slate departiments
and agencies. The Management and Budget Act (Section
18.1483 - 18.1489 of the Michigan Compiled .aws) requires
that the head of each principal department shall establish
and maintain an internal accounting and administsative
conliol system. The Act also requires that the heads of each
principal department shall report biennially on any malerial
inadequacy or weakness discovered in connection with the
evaluation of their system. The “Evaluation of Internal
Controls ~ A General Framework and System of Reporting”,
developed in consultation with the Office of the Auditor
General, provides the required guidance associaied with the
evaluation of internal conirols in Michigan State government.
The framework for internal controls has been designed to
provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the
financiat stalements will be free from materiat misstaterent,

The Management and Budget Act requires each principal
depariment lo appoint an internal auditor and maintain
adequate internal contro) systems. Each department is also
required to periodically report to the Govemor on the
adequacy of its inleral accounting and administrative
control systems and, if any material weaknesses exist, 1o
provide corrective action plans and lime schedulas for
addressing such weaknesses. This reporting is required on
or before May 1 of each odd numbered year, effective as of
the preceding October 1.

v 111 5. CAPITOL « R.O. BOX 30026 « LANSING, MICHIGAN 48309
www.michigan.gov » {(517) 373-7560
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The discretely presented component units generally
operale outside the State's central accounting system and
are responsible for establishing and maintaining their own
separate internal control structures.

Independent Auditors; The Office of the Auditor General
(OAG) audiled the SOMCAFR with a goal to provide
reasonable assurance that the SOMCAFR for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2001, is free of material misstatement.
The OAG conducted the audit of the SOMCAFR in
accordance with generally accepted audiling standards
(GAAS), and ils independent auditor's report precedes the
Basic Financial Statements. The audit involved examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounis and
disclosures in the CAFR; assessing the accounting
principles used and evaluating the overall financial staiement
presentation. The OAG concluded, based upon the audit,
that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unqualified opinion that the SOMCAFR for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2001, is fairly presented in conformity
with GAAP.

In addition to the annual audit of the SOMCAFR, the OAG
also performs periodic financial and performance audits of
the various State departments, agencies, and instilutions of
higher education. The OAG engages outside public
accounting firms periodically, particularly for the audils of the
separately issued component unit financial statements (such
as the Michigan State Housing Development Authority), the
larger pension (and other employee benefit trust) funds, and
the Michigan Unemployment Compensation Funds, The
Auditor General also has primary responsibility for
conducling audits under the federal Single Audit Act of 1984,
Pursuant to Michigan Public Act 261 of 19886, these audits
are conducted biennially for applicable State departments,
agencies, and component unit authorities, and result in
separately issued audit reports. :

Management's Discussion and Analysis {MD8A); GASB

Statement No. 34 requires that management provide a
narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany
the Basic Financial Statements in the form of MD&A. This
letter of transmittal is intended to complement MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it. The MD&A can be
found immadiately following the Independen! Auditor's
Report.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENTY

Reporting Entity: The State of Michigan reporting enlity
reflected in the SOMCAFR, which is described more fully in
Note 1 to the basic financial statements, conforms with the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity. The accounting and reporling principles
contained in Statement No. 14 are based primarily on the
fundamental concept that publicly elected officials are
accountable to their constituents. Further, Statement No. 14
provides that the financial statements should emphasize the
primary government and permit financial statement users 1o
distinguish between the primary government and its
component units.  Consequently, the transmittal letter,
MD&A, and the financial stalements focus on the primary
government and its activities. Although information
pertaining to the discrefely presented component units is
provided, their separately issued financial statements should
be read to obtain a complete overview of their financial
position,

Budgetary_Reporting and Control: For the State primary
government operating funds {i.e., the General Fund and

annually appropriated special revenue and permanent
funds), Public Act 431 of 1984, as amended, requires the
State to adhere to GAAP in budgeting projected revenues
and expenditures and calculating fund batance for budgetary
purposes. The Act also prohibits the State from budgeting
for an ending fund balance deficit in an operating fund, If an
aclual deficit is incurred, the Constitution and Act 431 require
that it be addressed in the subsequent years budget. If
accounting principies change, Act 431 requires the State to
also implement such changes in its budgetary process.

The budgstary “basis of accounting” used by the Stale
primary government departs from GAAP only in ways that do
not affect unreserved fund balance, and that do not impact
most revenue and expenditure line items. Appropriations for
nearly all line items, therefore, are made on a basis
consistent with GAAP, which makes it possible for the State
to use the central accounting system for both budgetary
control and financial reporling purposes. The two variances
betwesn GAAP and the budgetary basis of accounting are:
1) the use of encumbrances for budgetary conlrol purposes
(which GAAP does not require}, and 2) the liming of
recording expenditures and liabilities for capital lease
commitments on a “pay as you go” basis for budgetary
purposes, rather than ai lease inceplion as required by
GAAP. Compliance with the final updated budget for the
annually budgeted operating funds of the State primary
government is demonstrated in the budget and actual
comparative schedules and notes in the SOMCAFR.

Revenue_and Spending Limitation Requirements: Under
the State Constitution, lotal State revenues are limited to a

percentage of total Michigan personal income. i the limit is
exceeded by an amount fess than 1%, the excess may be
transferred to the Budget Stabilization Fund. If revenues
excead the limit by 1% or more, the amount in excess must
be refunded to payers of personal income and single
business taxes. The calculations necessary to determine the
State's compliance with this requiremant for fiscal year 2000-
2001 are not final. For fiscal year 1999-2000, the most
recent year for which final calculations are available, total
State revenues subject to this limitation exceeded the limit by
$159.7 million. The State expects that total State revenues
subject to the limitation will not exceed the limit for fiscal year
2000-2001.

‘The State Constitution also requires that spending to local
units of government be maintained at not less than a
specified leve! of total State spending, originally determined
to be 41.61% for the base fiscal year 1978-79. The originally
determined percentage was racalculated, effective fiscal
year 1992-93, reflecling the terms of a legal settlement
agreemenl. The recalculated base year percenlage Is
48,97%. The calculations necessary to determine the
State's compliance with this requirement for fiscal year 2000-
2001 are not final. For fiscal year 1989-2000, the most
recent year for which final calculations are” available, -the
proporiion of tolal State spending paid to local unils of
government was determined fo be 61.68%, reflecting
payments that exceeded the minimum required by $3.0
biflion. The State expecis that payments to local units of
government will exceed the minimum requirement for fiscal
year 2000-2001. '

The State's élatus. with regard to these Constitutional
provisions, is discussed more fully in Note 3 io the basic
financial statements.



ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

Fiscal year 2001 began with conlinuing national and state
economic growth although at a much slower rate than the
previous fiscal year. However, economic indicators reflected
an overall leveling or temporary cooling in the economy.
America finds itself in the midst of an economic downturn,
predicted by analysts but exacerbated by the tragedies of
September 11", The last several months have forced the
nation to face the unimaginable. Beyond the human tragedy,
ihe September attacks and subsequent related events have
inflicted economic pain that conirasts sharply with the
preceding decade of prosperity and growth, Michigan has
not been immune to these recent events. The impact of the
recession is being widely observed. The U.S. economic
slowdown that began in March 2001 ended the fongest
recorded economic expansion of ten years. Aulomakers
made the most aggressive production cuts in a decade and
offered zero percent financing to boost car sales beginning
in Oclober 2001. Michigan's economy also slowed, causing
employment to decline. The unemployment rate averaged
5.0 percent in 2001, up from 3.6 percent a year ago. As a
resull, budgets for fiscal year 2001 and 2002 were adjusted
downward to reffect soflening revenues. In December 2001,
economic indicaters suggested the economy was tuming the
corner toward recovery. New claims for unemployment
benedits had fallen sharply, employment declines stowed and
consumer and business confidence improved, These
fundamentals indicate the underlying economy is sound and
the leng-term outlook for Michigan is positive.

Inftation, as measured by the Detroit CPI, is forecast to
be a moderate 2.4 percent in 2002 and 3.0 percent in 2003,
As a result, real Michigan personal income (inflation
adjusted) is expected to remain unchanged in 2002 before
rising to a solid 2.2 percent in 2003. Michigan wage and
salary employment is forecast to decline by 33,000 (0.7
percent) in 2002, and is forecast to rise by 79,000 (1.7
percent) in 2003, Personal income growth is forecast to slow
fo 2.4 parcent in 2002, and post solid growlh of 5.3 percent
in 2003.

MAJOR INITIATIVES AND FUTURE PROJECTS

Education_Remains a Top Priority: Education has been

and continues to be critically important to the State, More
than $14.7 billion, or 39 percent, of the State's overall budget
is devoted to education in fiscal year 2001-2002. This
includes funding for the K-12 system, universities,
community colleges and student financial aid. In fiscal year
2001, the State spent more on K-12 education than it spent
on expenditures financed by General Fund general puipose
revenues,

The Administration is committed to Increasing the
minimum foundation allowance to $6,700 per pupil in fiscal
year 2003. This $200 (3.1 percent) per pupll increase will
cost $337 miliion and will require a change in the State
education tax collection structure in fiscal year 2003,

Transportation Infrastructure Investments: The Build
Michigan 1, I, and Il financing programs have resulted in
record . investments in  Michigan's  transportation
infrastructure, In fiscal year 2001-2002, the Department of
Transportation will invest over $1.5 billion In the state
trunkline system, making it the fifth year in a row that the
Michigan transportation program has exceedad the billion-
dollar mark.

vi

Technology Consolidation; As part of a bold plan to keep
Michigan on the cutting edge of technological change, all
Iinformation technology management functions were moved
to the new Michigan Department of Information Technology,
effective October 2001. The department will eslablish a
long-term sirategy that allows for better management of
technology investments, improved information management
and more efficient services to citizens.

Central Electronic Payment Authorization System; The e-

Michigan Office conlinues to search for an enterprise-wide
elecironic payment modufe that provides flexibility to support
mulliple payment instruments and makes State government
more accessible to its cilizens. Citizens will access the
award-winning Web site “Michigan.gov”
{hitp://www.michigan.gov) and use major credit cards and
other electronic payment transactions to purchase the
diverse services provided by the state, such as license
renewal and camping reservations.

Child Support Enforcement System: The Family

Independence Agency implemenied a statewide integrated
child support network that coordinates all employer
withholdings for child and spousal support and
disbursements to custodial familiss. The use of electronic
funds transfer and efectronic data interchange contributes to
the effective processing and efficiencies gained from using a
single location. FIA processes approximately $80.0 million
per month to custodial families.

Einancial Management Reporting Improvements: The

Office of the State Budgel (OSB) continues to lead a
statewide effort to reduce the time and cost of the annual
bookclosing process that produces the SOMCAFR. OSB
has set a stalewide goal to produce the fiscal year 2002
SOMCAFR by December 31, 2002. This endsavor will
require the collective effort from ali accounting and financial
personnel throughout State government.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The MD&A provides an overview of the State’s financial
activities addressing both governmental and business-type
aclivities reported in the government-wide financial
statements. In addition, MD&A focuses on the State’s major
funds: the General Fund, Budget Stabilization Fund, Schooj
Aid Fund, State Lottery Fund, and the Michigan
Unemployment Compensation Funds. Fiduclary activilies
are excluded from the MD&A.

Cash Management and [nvestments: As discussed more

fully in Notes 5 and 8 to the basic financial statements, the
State Treasurer maintains the State's Common Cash pool,
which is used by most State funds for short-term investments
and to provide centralized control over disbursements. The
total amount of pooled cash, which is primarily invested in
prime commercial paper, amounted to $4.8 billion at
Seplember 30, 2001, a decrease of approximately $700
million from $5.5 billion at September 30, 2000. Total
investments amounted to $53.7 billion at September 30,
2001, a decrease of $7.2 billion from $60.9 billion at
September 30, 2000, Pension (and other employee benefits)
trust fund investments represent 91.3 percent of the total
investments held by the state, -

Debt Management: The State Constitution authorizes
general obligation long-term borrowing, subject to approval
by the Legislature and a majority of volers at a general
election. General obtligation bond issues fotaled $324.6
million during 2000-2001. The bonds provide financing for



the Clean Michigan Initiative Program and school district
loans.

Long-term bonds have been issued periodically for
specific purposes, with the stipulation that financing of debt
requirements is to come striclly from designated revenue
sources. Rsevenus dedicated bonded debt, including that of
the State Building Authority, increased by $603.8 million to
$3.4 billion duwring 2000-2001. The bonds provide financing
for building new state and university facilities and road and
bridge construction.

The State Constitution provides that the Legislature may
authorize the issuance of short-term general obligation notes
io assist in managing cash flows. Such borrowings are
fimited by the Constitulion to 15% of undedicated State
revenue received in the preceding year. The Consiilution
also requires that such borrowings be repaid before
year-end. No such borrowings occurred during the fiscal
year.

Additional disclosures about the State’s general long-term
obligations are provided in Note 14 to the basic financial

statements.

Pension Plans: The State Conslitution requires the State
to provide current funding of plan benefils for the State's
defined benefit pension plans. Statutes provide for the
amontization of unfunded prior service costs. In two of the
tour plans for which the Slate is responsible for providing
funding, the enabling statutes for the plans contain
provisions under which a shortfall in the legally required
contributions will be corrected in succeeding fiscal years.

The Stale Employeas’ Retirement System (SERS) is the
largest of the dsefined benefit plans for which the State is
responsible for providing funding. Total assets of SERS at
September 30, 2001 were $10.1 billion, with net assets held
in trust for pension and postemployment health-care benefits
totaling $9.6 billlon. Addilional disclosures relating to the
State's pension funds are provided in Note 11 o the financial

staternents.

Risk_Management; Risk managemenl was established
within the Department of Management and Budgst in 1987 to
improve the State’s risk control policies and procedures.
The unit's activities include analysis of and control over

insurance coverage and risk exposure, and planning and
implementing a statewide safety and health policy and
program. The State is self-insured for many types of general
fiabilty and property losses. Additional disclosures on the
Stale's risk management aclivities are provided in Note 27,

OTHER INFORMATION

Certificate__of Achievement: The GFOA awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reperling to the State of Michigan for its SOMCAFR for the
year ended Seplember 30, 2000, The Cerlificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award, recognizing
conformance with the highest standards for preparation of
staie and local government financial reports.

To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose
contents conform to program standards. Such reports must
salisfy both generally accepled accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Cerlificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one
year only. The Stale has received a Certificate of
Achievement for the last fourteen consecutive years. We
believe our currem report continuss to conform to the
Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we
are submitting it to the GFOA for review.

Acknowledgments: In any year, the preparalion of this
report requires the collective efforts of literally hundreds of
finance personnel throughout the State, both individually and
in teams from virlually all agencies and departments. We
sincerely appreciate the dedicated efforls of all of lhese
individuals, This year, we implemented several new GASB
standards, including Statement No. 34 requirements, one
year earlier than required, Achieving this is the result of the
dedicated management and staff of the Financial Control
Division, Office of Financial Management; the chief financial
officers, chief accountants, and their staffs; and the
management and staff of the Office of the Auditor General;
who continue to strive for improvements that will result in
Michigan being a nalional lsader in quality and efficiency for
financial reporting.

Sipgerely,
J)lh'\/\/\l
v
Don Gilmer

State Budget Director

5552221W’\ e fﬁéZVhfégi—f
"~ Leon E. Hank, CPA

Director, Office of Financial Management
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StaTe oF MICHIGAN

OFFICE OF THE AuDITOR GENERAL
201 N. WASHINGTON SQUARE
Lansivg, MicHican 48813

(517) 334-8050 THomas H. McTavisH, C.RPA.
Fax (517) 334-8079 Aupiror GENERAL

independent Auditor's Report

The Henorable John M. Engler, Governor March 29,2002
Members of the Legislature

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the State of Michigan, principally as of
September 30, 2001 and for the year then ended, listed in the foregoing table of contents. These basic financial
statements are the responsibility of the State’s management, Gur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
basic financial statements based on our audit, We did not audit the financial statements of the State Lottery
Fund, Michigan Unemployment Compensation Funds, Michigan Employment Security Act - Administration
Fund, State Building Authority - Debt Service Fund, State Building Authority - Capital Projects Fund, State
Sponsored Group Insurance Fund, State Employees’ Deferred Compensation Funds, State Police Retirement Fund,
State Employees’ Retirement Fund, Public School Employees’ Retirement Fund, Judges’ Retirement Fund, State
Employees’ Defined Contribution Retirement Fund, Michigan Education Savings Program, Michigan Education
Trust, Michigan State Housing Development Authority, Michigan Municipal Bond Authority, Michigan Higher
Education Facilities Authority, Mackinac Bridge Authority, Michigan State Hospital Finance Authority, Michigan
Higher Education Student Loan Authority, Mackinac Istand State Park Commission, State Bar of Michigan,
Central Michigan University, Western Michigan University, Eastern Michigan University, Ferris State University,
Grand Valley State University, Lake Superior State University, Michigan Technological University, Northern
Michigan University, Oakland University, and Saginaw Valley State University. Those financial statements
reflect total assets and revenues of the government-wide financial statements and total assets and revenues or
additions of the fund financial statements as follows:

Government-Wide Financial Statements: Percent of Assets Percent of Revenues
Primary Government - Governmental Activities LB% 1.3%
Primary Government - Business-Type Activities 98.8% 83.3%
Component Units 96.9% 85.0%
Percent of Revenues
Fund Financial Statements; Percent of Assets or Additions
Governmental Funds - Non-Major Funds 7.4% 3.4%
Proprietary Funds - Business-Type Activities -~ Enterprise
Funds - State Lottery Fund 100.0% i00.0%
Proprietary Funds - Business-Type Activities — Enterprise
Funds - Michigan Unemployment Compensation Funds 100.0% 100.0%
Proprietary Funds - Governmental Activities — Internal
Service Funds 61.9% 73.3%
Fiduciary Funds - Pension (and Other Employee Benefit)
Trust Funds 99.7% 99.7%
Fiduciary Funds - Private Purpose Funds . 45.6% 43.3%
Component Units 96.9% 85.0%

Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us,
and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those component units and funds, is based
solely upon the reports of the other auditors,
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THomas H. McTansH, C.RA,
AUDITOR (GENERAL

The Honorable John M. Engler, Governor
Members of the Legislature
Page 2

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
basic financial statements are free of material misstatement, An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall basic financial statement presentation. We believe our audit and the reports of other auditors
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our report and the reports of other auditors, the basic financial statements referred
to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the State of Michigan,
principally as of September 30, 2001, and the resuits of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary
fund types for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

As discussed in Note 4 to the basic financial statements, the State of Michigan adopted Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No.33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions; Statement
No.34,Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments;
Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for Public Colleges
and Universities; Statement No. 36, Recipient Reporting for Certain Shared Nonexchange Revenues; Statement
No.37, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments:
Omnibus; and Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
The combining and individual fund statements and schedutes - non-major funds listed in the foregoing tabte of
contents, which are also the responsibility of the State's management, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a reguired part of the basic financial statements of the State of Michigan. This information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and in the
audits performed by other auditors and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, is fairty
presented, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Themanagement's discussion and analysis on pages 5 through 12,budgetary comparison schedules and corresponding
notes on pages 86 through 89, and information about infrastructure assets reported using the modified approach
on pages 90 and 9i are notrequired parts of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required
by the Governmentat Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentationof the supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

The introductory and statistical sections listed in the foregoing table of contents were not audited by us and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them,
Sincerely,

R N

Thomas H, McTavish, C.P.A.
Auditor General
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following is a discussion and analysis of the State of Michigan's (the State's} financial performance, providing an
overview of the activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letier at
the front of this report and with the State's financial statements, which follow this seclion. Because fiscal year 2000-2001
represents the first year in which the State implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 34, this discussion and analysis provides few comparisons with the previous year. Future reporis are required to
include extensive comparisons.

HIGHLIGHTS

Government-wide:
+« The assets of the State exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $22.5 billion (reported as net assels), a
decrease of $74.2 million from the previous year. Component units reported net assets of $4.3 billien, an increase of

$219.0 million from the previous year.

Fund Level:
» As of the close of the fiscal year, the Stale’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $5.8
billion, with $2.6 billion reported as unreserved fund balance and the remaining amount of $3.2 billion reserved for
specific purposes, such as education and transportation. At the end of the fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the

General Fund was $28.1 million.

+ The proprietary funds reported net assets at year-end of $3.2 billion, a decrease of $159.3 million during the year.

Long-term Debt:
» The State’s total debt rose during the fiscal year to $5.2 billion, an increass of $956.4 miliion (or 22.6%), which
represents the net difference between new issuances, and payments and refundings of outstanding debt. During the
year the State issued bonds ($1.5 billion), notes ($400 million), and commercial paper ($653,8 million),

More detailed information regarding these activities and funds begins on page 7.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is an introduclion to the State's basic financial statements, which comprise three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.
This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financiat stataments.

For the first time, this report includes government-wide financial statements as required by GASB Statement No. 34,

Government-wide Statemenis {Reporting the State as a Whole)

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities are two financial statements that report information about the
State, as a whole, and about its activities that should help answer this question: [s the State, as a whole, better off or worse off
as a result of this year's activities? These statements include all non-fiduciary assets and liabililies using the accrual basis of
accounting. The current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The Statement of Net Assets {pages 14 and 15) presents all of the State's assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reporled as *net assets”. Over time, increases and decreases in net assels measure whether the State’s

financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities (pages 16 and 17) presents information showing how the State’s net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assels are reported as soon as the underlying events giving rise to the change
occur, regardless of the timing of related cash iflows. Therefere, revenues and expenses are reported in these statements for
some items that wili only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and eamed but unused vacation

leave).
Both statements report three activities:

» Govemmenial Aclivities ~ Most of the State’s basic services are reported under this category. Taxes and
intergovernmental revenues generally fund these services, The Legislature, the Judiciary, and the general operations
of the Executive departments fall within the governmental activities.

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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¢ Business-lype Aclivities — The State charges fees 1o customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of certain
services it provides. Loftery lickets, liquor purchases, and the Stale’s unemployment compensation services are
examples of business-type activities.

s Discrelely Presenled Component Units — Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected
officials of the primary governmenl are financially accountable. The State has 12 authorities and 10 universities that
are reporied as discretely presented compenent units of the Siate.

This report includes two schedules {pages 21 and 23) that reconcile the amounts reported on the governmental fund
financial statemenis {modified accrual accounling) with governmental activities (accrual accounting} on the appropriale
government-wide statements. The following summarizes the impact of transitioning from modified accrual lo accrual accounting:

+ Capilal assets used in governmental activities are not reporled on governmental fund statements.

+ Cerain tax revenuss that are earned, bul not available, are reported as governmental aclivities, but are reporied as
deferred revenue on the govemmental fund statements.

s  Other long-term asseis that are not available to pay for current pericd expenditures are deferred in governmental fund
statements, but not deferred on the government-wide statements.

« Internal service funds are reported as governmental activities, but reported as proprietary funds in the fund financiat
statements.

e Certain pension trust funds have been funded in excess of their annual required contribution. These assels are
recorded only in the government-wide statements.

« Deferred issue costs are capitalized and amortized as governmental activities, but reported as expenditures in the
governmental fund statements.

» Unless due and payable, long-term liabilities, such as capital lease cbligations, compensated absences, litigation,
bonds and notes payable, and others only appear as liabilities in the government-wide slatements.

« Capital outlay spending results in capital assets on the government-wide statements, but are reported as expenditures
on the governmental fund stalements.

» Bond and note proceeds result in liabilities on the government-wide statements, but are recorded as other {financing
sources on the governmental fund statements.

« Certain other outflows represent either increases cor decreases in liabifities on the government-wide statements, but are
reported as expenditures on the governmental fund statements.

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in the governiment-wide and fund financial statements. The notes can be found beginning on page 41 of this
report.

Fund Financial Statements (Reporting the State's Major Funds)

The fund financial statements begin on page 20 and provide detailed information aboul the major individual funds. A fund
is a fiscal and accounting enlity with a self-balancing set of accounts that the State uses to keep track of specific sources of
funding and spending for a particular purpose. In addition to the major funds, page 96 begins the Individua! fund data for the
non-major funds. The State's funds are divided into three categories — governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — and use
different accounting approaches.

*«  QGovernmental funds -- Most of the State's basic services are reported in the governmental funds, which focus on how
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for fulure spending. The
governmantal fund financial statements provide a detailed short-term view of the State’s general government operations and
the basic services it provides. Govarnmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the Slate's programs. Thesse funds are reported using modified
accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. Governmental
funds include the General Fund and special revenus, capital project, debt service, and permanent funds.

s  Propristary funds -- When the State charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside customers or to
other agencies within the State, these services are generally reported in propristary funds. Proprietary funds {enterprise and
internal service) utilize accrual accounting; the same method used by private seclor businesses. Enterprise funds report
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activities that provide supplies and services 1o the general public. An example is the State Lottery Fund. Intemal service
funds report activities that provide supplies and services for the State's other programs and activilies - such as the State’s
Vehicle and Travel Services. Internal service funds are reported as governmental activities on the government-wide

statements.

s Fiduciary funds -- The State acts as a trustee or fiduciary, for its employee pension plans. It is also responsible for other
assets that, because of a trust arrangement, can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The State's fiduciary activities are
reported in separate Stalements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net Assels beginning on page 32. These
funds, which include pension (and other employee benefit), private-purpose, and agency funds, are reported using accrual
accounting. The government-wide statements exclude fiduciary fund acliviies and balances because lhese assels are
restricted in purpose and do not represent discretionary assets of the State to finance ils operations.

Additional Required Supplementary Information

Following the basic financial statements is additional Required Supplementary Information that furlher explains and
supports the information in the financtal statements. The Required Supplementary Information includes budgetary comparison
schedules reconciling the statutory and generally accepted account principles (GAAP) fund balances at fiscal ysar-end, and
condition and mainlenance dala regarding certain porlions of the State’s infrastructure,

Other Supplementary Information

Other supplementary information includes combining financial statements for non-major governmental, proprielary, and
fiduciary funds, and non-major discretely presented component units, These funds are added together, by fund type, and
presented in single columns in the basic financial statements, bul are not reported individually, as with major funds, on the

governmental fund financial statements.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT AS A WHOLE

The State's combined net assets decreased $74.2 million over the course of this fiscal year's operations. The net assets
of the govemmental activities increased $135.4 million or .7% and business-type activities had a decrease of $209.6 million or

6.3%.

Net Assets as of September 30, 2001
(in millions of dollars)

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
Current and other non-
current assets $ 12,420.6 $ 4,219.9 $ 16,640.4
Capital assets 17,760.5 3 17,760.8
Total assets 30,171.1 4,220.1 34,301.2
Long-term liabilities 6,606.5 660.3 7,266.8
Other liabilities 4,180.8 431.8 4,612.56
Total liabilities 10,787.3 1,092.0 11,879.3
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 15,129.8 3 16,180.1
Restricted 2,849.2 3,121.4 5,970.6
Unrestricted 1,404.8 6.4 1,411.2
Total net assets $ 19,383.8 $ 3,128.1 $ 22,611.9

The largest component (67.2%) of the State’s net assets reflects its Investment in capital assets {(e.g. land, buildings,
equipment, infrastructure, and others), less any related debt! outstanding that was needed to acquire or construct the assetls,
Restricted net assels are the next largest component, comprising 26.5%. These represent resources thal are subject to external
restrictions, constitutional provisions, or enabling legistation on how they can be used. The remaining portion, unrestricted net
assets, may be used at the State’s discretion, but often have limitations on use based on State statules.
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The following condensed financial information was derived fram the government-wide Statement of Aclivities and reflects how
the State’s net assets changed during the fiscal year:

Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants
Capital grants
(General revenues
General taxes
Taxes restricted for
educational purposes
Taxes restricted for
transportation purposes
Interest and investment
earnings

Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenses

General government

Education

Family independence services

Public safety and corrections

Conservation, recreation, and
agrieulture

Labor, commerce, and
regulatory

Health services

Transportation

Tax expenditures

Intergovernmental — revenue
sharing

Interest on long-term debt

Liguor Purchase Revolving Fund

State Lottery Fund

Michigan Unemployment

Compensation Funds
Total expenses

Excess (deficiency} Before
Contributions and Transfers

Contributions to permanent
fund principal
Transfers
Increase (decrease) in
net assets
Net assets — beginning — restated
Net assefs — ending

Changes in Net Assets

for Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2001

(in millions of dollars)

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
$ 1,496.9 $ 3,297.9 3 4,794.8
10,255.3 313.6 10,669.0
667.4 - 667.4
11,425.7 10.4 11,436.2
9,500.3 - 9,500.3
1,936.3 . 1,936.3
155.2 4.2 163.4
669.0 - 669.0
36,110.1 3,828.2 39,736.3
1,736.2 - 1,735.2
14,108.6 - 14,109.6
3,627.8 - 3,627.8
2,098.6 - 2,098.6
682.9 - 682.9
884.1 - 884.1
8,636.0 - 8,636.0
2,766.7 - 2,766.7
532.8 - 6532.8
1,5665.8 - 1,655.8
221.3 - 221.3
- 479.4 479.4
- 1,132.8 1,132.8
- 1,485.9 1,485.9
36,750.8 3,098.1 39,848.9
{640.7) 528.1 (112.8)
38.4 - 38.4
737.6 {737.6} -
1356.4 (209.6) (74.2)
19,248.4 3,337.6 22 .586.0
$ 19,383.8 $ 3,128.1 $ 22,611.8
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Governmental Activities:

The following chari depicts revenues of the govemmental aciivities for the fiscal year:

Revenues - Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2001

Interest and Capital

Contributions to Investment p
rants
Permanent Farnings |86
Funds 0.4% e
General 0.1% Miscell
Taxes / scellaneous
31.6% T 19%

Charges for

T Services

4.1%
Taxes Restricied
for

) Transportation
Operating B.A%
_Grants Taxes Restricted
28.4% for Education
26.3%

Revenues for the State’s governmental aclivities are likely to decrease in the coming years as the personal income and
single business tax rates will experience gradua! declines, Starting on January 1, 1999, the single business tax rate has been
reduced by .1 percent each January 1 if the Budget Stabilization Fund has a fund balance greater than $250 million. Beginning
on January 1, 2000, the personal income tax wil be reduced by .1 percent per year uniil the rate reaches 3.9%. There were no
significant structural changes in the State’s sales taxes during fiscal year 2000-2001. Decreases in tax revenues during the
fiscal year resulted from these tax rollbacks, in addition to the slowdown in the economy.

The following chart depicts expenses of the govemmental activities for the fiscal year:

Expenses - Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2001

Conservation,
Interest on Tax Recreation &
Long-term Debt e Agric;iture Labeor,
L7 < c
Education 06% o e Commerce
28.4% & Regulatory
2.4%
Revenue
Sharing
4.2% General
Government
4.7%
Public Safety &
= Corrections
b5.7%
Health Services Family Transportation
23.2% Independence 7.6%
Services
9.9%
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Business-type Activities

Net assets of the business-type activities decreased by $209.5 million during the fiscal year. Factors contributing to these
results included:

e The State Lottery Fund's net assets increased by $44.8 million for the fiscal year, primarily from the increase in the
markset value of investments.

+ Due to increasing unemployment in the State, the Michigan Unemployment Compensation Funds’ payment of these
benefits increased from $305.9 million in fiscal year 1999-2000 to $1.5 billion during fiscal year 20600-2001. However
the impact on net assets was about half that amount, $254.3 million, because of increases in operating revenues
during the year.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE'S FUNDS

As the State completed the year, its governmental funds reported fund balances of $5.8 billion. Of this total amount, $2.6
billien, or 43.9% constilutes unreserved fund balance, which is availabie for appropriation for the general purposes of the funds.
The School Aid Fund, ($694.8 million), the Budge! Stabilization Fund {$994.2 million), and transporiaiion-related funds ($539.4
million) comprise a significant portion of the unreserved fund balance. The remainder of fund balance is reserved and is not
available for new spending because it has already been dedicated for various commilmenits, such as capital ouliay projects.

Generat Fund .

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the State. At the end of current fiscal year 2006-2001, unreserved fund
balance of the General Fund was $28.1 million and reserved fund balance was $1.9 billion. Total fund balance diminished
slightly during the fiscal year {$192.8 million}, primarily as a result of lower tax collections and siowing of the economy. By the
end of fiscal year 2000-2001, net General Fund revenues had declined 8.1 percent from the prior year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights:
Changes in the Stale’s projecied revenue mirrored the national economic condition. In May 2001, it became apparent that
state revenues were declining and fiscal year 2000-2001 budgets were adjusted downward to reflect the softening revenues.

As a result, the original budget was amended by various supplemental appropriations and appropriation revisions. The
following summarizes the differences between the original and final budget amounts:

» General purpose lax revenues of $8.7 billion were significantly less than the esfimated $9.4 billion.

» Restricled revenue inflows of $12.6 billion were slightly greater than the estimated $12.5 billion.

s Funding shifts for several major construction projects from the General Fund to ihe State Buitding Authority resulted in
a decrease of $211.2 million, of which $195.7 million related to appropriation revisions in fiscal year 2000-2001.

» Agencies controlled spending in an effort to creale budgetary savings of almost $24.4 million,

+ The Budget Stabilization Fund transferred $270.0 million to the General Fund to balance the budget.

Differences between the final budget and aciual spending result from spending authority lapses of $89.6 million, over-
expended appropriations of $31.9 million, and restricted revenue authorized but not spent of $9.3 million.

Overall, there were no net overexpendilures by General Fund departments. There were, however, the following line-item
overexpenditures of State funds incurred during the year;

Community Health $31.3 miillion
Career Development $ .6 million

Although it is anticipated that the General Fund will experience reduced revenues in the next fiscal year, corresbonding
reductions in spending and other measures wilt help ensure that the fund batance remains posilive.

School Aid Fund

Fund balance at September 30, 2001 totaled $704.1 million, a decrease of $281.5 million from the prior year. Although
revenues increased by $264.4 million, expenditures to school disticts and other cosls increased by nearly $900 million and
transfers to the fund decreased by $66.4 miflion.

Counter-cyclical Budget and Economic Stabilization Fund

Fund batance at September 30, 2001 decreased to $994.2 miilion, from $1.3 billion the previcus year. The downturn in the
economy required an increase in transfers from the fund to assist the State in balancing its budget. During fiscal year 2001-
2002, the State anlicipates that transfers from the fund will significantly reduce fund balance,

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets: At the end of the fiscal year 2000-2001, the Slate had invested $17.8 billion, net of accumulated
depreciation, in a broad range of capital asseis (see the table below). Depreciation charges for this fiscal year totaled $199.7

million.

Capital Assets as of September 30, 2001
(net of depreciation, in millions of dollars)

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government

Land $ 3,093.3 $ - 3 3,093.3
Land improvements 56.2 - 56.2
Buildings and improvements 1,714.6 - 1,714.6
Equipment 193.1 3 193.4
Infrastructure 11,8104 - 11,810.4
Other 20.7 - 20.7
Subtotal 16,888.2 3 16,888.5
Construction in progress 862.3 - 862.3
Toatal $ 17,750.5 $ 3 3 17,760.8

Although the most significant change in accounting for capital assets during the year
resulted from the inclusion of infrastructure assets, the State also purchased the Grand
Tower building, which houses the Family Independence Agency, for approximately $40
million and completed construction on a variety of projects at correctional facilities that
totaled approximately $100 million.

As allowed by GASB Statement No. 34, the Stale has adopted an alternative process for recording depreciation expense
on selected infrastructure assets. Under this alternative method, referred to as the modified approach, the State expenses
certain maintenance and preservalion costs and does not report depreciation expense. Assets accounted for under the
modified approach include approximately 27,300 lane miles of roads and approximately 5,700 bridges that the State is
responsible to maintain.

The State has consistently improved the assessed condition of roads over the past five years. The State’s goal is to have
no more than 30% of roads in “poor” or “very poor” condition. The most recent condition assessment, completed for calendar
year 2000, indicated that 22% of roads were considered poor or very poor.

The State’s bridges have assessed condilions which are befter than the established benchmarks, although the most recent
assessment (2000) indicated that the condilion of the bridges had deteriorated slightly from 1999,

The State’s fiscal year 2001-2002 capital outlay budget projects spending $486.2 million for new projecis at Michigan
colleges and universilies, and special maintenance projects at various state agency buildings, in addition to $329.1 million of
unspent capital oullay authorizations that existed at September 30, 2001. More detailed inforration about the State’s capital
assets is presented in Note 10 to the financial statements.

Long-term Deht: The State, along with the State Building Authority (SBA), a component unit of the State, are empowered
by law to authorize, issue, and sell debt obligations, General cbligation bonds, issued by the State, are backed by the full faith
and credit of the State. The State also issues revenue dedicated bonded debt, whose payment for principal and interest comes
solely out of funds that receive legally restricted revenues. SBA issues debt that is not backed by the State's full faith and credit.
SBA’s bonds generate revenue to finance the construction of facilities used by the State and universilies. Revenues derived
from leases on the facilities fund the debt service requirements, More detailed information regarding the State’s long-term
obligations is presented in Note 14 to the financial statements.

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report n
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Outstanding Bonded Debt as of September 30, 2001
{in millions of dollars}

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
General obligation bonds
(backed by the State) 3 1,081.8 $ - $ 1,031.8
Revenue bonds and notes
{backed by specific tax
and fee revenues) 3,433.3 - 3,433.3
Total 3 4,465.1 $ - 3 4,465.1

During fiscal year 2000-2001, the State issued general obligation | gond Ratings
debt totaling $324.6 million, including $183.3 million to pay off amounts | 114 State’s general obligations are rated
outstanding on previously issued bonds that carried higher interest | .. by Moody's and AAA by Standard &
costs, $60.0 million of bonds to fund conservation and recreation Poors
projects, and $81.3 million of bonds to provide funds to loan to school )
districts.

Limitations on Debt

The State Constitulion authorizes general obligation tong-
term borrowing, with approval of the Legislature and a
majority of the voters, and general obligation shori-term
notes, of which the principal may not exceed 15% of
undedicated revenues received in the preceding year. No
shont-term borrowing occurred in fiscal year 2000-2001.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Downtums in the U.S. economy that began in March 2001 had a simifar impact on the State. Michigan’s unemployment
rate averaged 6,0% in 2001, up from 3.6% the year before. In May 2001 it became apparent that State revenues were declining
and the budget for the 2000-2001 and 2001-2002 fiscal years were adjusted to reflect the softening revenues.

For fiscal year 2001-2002, spending reductions of nearly $460 million have been approved, in addition to the more than

$210 million in spending reductions contained within the originat fiscal 2001-2002 budgst. As previously mentioned, the Budget
Stabilization Fund will be utilized to soften the impact of the slowing economy.

CONTACTING THE STATE'S OFFICE OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our cilizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a general
overview of the Slale’s finances and o demonstrate the State’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have any
questions about this report or need additional financial informatien, contact the Office of the State Budget, Office of Financial

Management, Financial Reporting Section at (517) 373-3020.

The Stale’s component units issue their own separately issued audited financial statements. These statemenis may be
obtained by directly contacting the component uni!. To obtain their phone numbers, you may contact the Office of Financial
Management at {517) 373-3029. )
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Michigan

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
{In Thousands)

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTALS UNITS
ASSETS
Cuirent Assets;
Cash % 12,784 3 741 $ 13,525 $ 300,760
Equity in common cash {Note 5} 4,211,343 147,422 4,358,765 218,912
Taxes, interest, and penalties
receivable (Note 6) 3,963,798 - 3,963,798 -
Intemal balances 7,589 (7.589) - -
Amounts due from component unils 16,281 150 16,431 5,850
Amounts due from primary govemnment - - - 183,727
Amecunts due from federal govemment 1,052,857 538 1,063,396 16,647
Amounts due from focal units 213,319 11,802 225,122 752,264
Inventories 52,224 5,423 57.646 16,224
Investments (Note 8} 296,311 2,943,330 3,239,641 690,367
Securities lending collateral {Noie 8} - 203,945 203,945 -
Glher current assels 461,673 194,753 656,427 358,921
Fotal Current Assets 10,288,180 3,500,515 13,788,695 2,544,473
Reslricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalenis - - - 486,435
investments - - - 665,472
Taxes, interest, and penalties
receivable {Note 6} 830,000 - 830,000 -
Amounts due from federal govemment 889 - 889 -
Amounts due from focal units 539,427 - 538,427 1,727,411
Mortgages and loans receivable (Note 9} - - . - 2,685,972
Investments {Note 8} 523,320 709,321 1,232,640 2,084,413
Capital assets (Note 10):
Land and other non-depreciable assets 3,101,732 - 3,101,732 80,372
Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable assets 3,842,815 3,436 3,846,252 3,128,127
Less accumulated depreciation (1,651,305} {3,149) (1,654,454} (1,250,999)
infrastructure 11,594,889 - 11,594,889 154,523
Construction in progress 862,339 - 862,339 206,851
Total capital assets 17,750,471 287 17,750,758 2.321,874
Interest in joint ventures (Note 7} 25,000 - 25,600 -
Other nencurcent assets 213,781 10,016 223,797 248,568
Total Assets $ 30,171,067 $ 4,220,139 $ 34,391,206 $ 12,764,617
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Warrants outstanding $ 165,379 $ 1,704 $ 167,084 $ 182
Accounts payable and other liabilities 2,625,178 225,420 2,850,598 378,456
Income tax refunds payable {Nole 16) 618,030 - 618,030 -
Amounts due to component units 11,813 - 11,813 5,298
Amounts due to primary government - - - 5,431
Bonds and notes payable {Notes 14 and 15} 338,651 - 338,651 914,661
interest payable 93,653 - 93,653 88,464
Deterred revenue i 62,163 222 62,385 54,608
Obligations under security lending - 203,945 203,845 -
Current portion of other long-term
obligations {Note 14) 285,909 463 266,371 2,313
TFotal Current Liabilities 4,180,776 431,763 4,612,530 1,449,413
Prize awards payable {Note 17) - 616,647 615,647 -
Deferred revenus 18,643 - 19,643 1,699
Bonds and notes payable (Notes 14 and 15) 4,857,466 - 4,857,466 5,696,428
MNoncurrent portion of other long-term
obligations (Notes 14 and 18) 1,729,491 44,646 1,774,136 1,334,903
Total Liabiiities $ 10,787,277 $ 1,092,046 $ 11,879,323 $ 8,482,444

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the finaneiai statements.
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PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTALS UNITS
NET ASSETS
invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 15,129,844 $ 287 $ 15,130,131 $ 1,582,576
Restricted for:
Education 684,725 - 664,725 193,482
Conslruction and debt service 318,721 - 318,721 267,590
Public safety and corrections 16,513 - 16,613 -
Conservation, environment,
recreation, and agriculture 413,747 - 413,747
Health services 24,906 - 24,906
Transportation 526,552 - 526,552
Intergovermmental-revenue sharing 199,449 - 199,449
Unemployment compensalion - 3,025,712 3,025,712 -
Other purposes 201,085 05,7086 296,790 1,241,679
Funds held as permanent investments:
Expendable 87,313 - 87,313 -
Nonexpendable 396,161 - 396,161 -
Unrestricted 1,404,776 6,388 1,411,164 996,947
Total Net Assels $ 19,383,790 $ 3,128,093 $ 22511,883 $ 4,282,173
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
(In Thousands)

Eunclions/Programs
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
Generai government
Education
Family independence services
Public safety and corrections
Conservation, environment,
recreation, and agricuiture
Labor, commerce, and regulatory
Health services
Transportation
Tax expenditures {Note 16)
Intergovernmental-revenue sharing
Intarest on long-term dabt

Total governmaental activities

Business-type activitias:
Liquor Purchase Revolving Fund
Stlate Lottery Fund
Michigan Unemgployment
Compensation Funds

Total business-type activities
Total primary govemment

Component units:
Authoritles:
Michigan Education Trust
Michigan State Housing Development Authority
Michigan Municipal Bond Authority
Non-Major

State Universilies:
Central Michigan University
Western Michigan University
Non-Major
Total component units

PROGRAM REVENUES
OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND
EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS  CONTRIBUTIONS
s 1,735,152 % 612,104 $ 60,470 5 9,383
14,109,560 12,836 925,741 -
3,627,815 66,365 2,287,028 -
2,098,619 98,075 101,868 -
682,875 262,367 143,047 166
884,129 204,650 548,599 -
8,535,965 42,059 5,798,724 -
2,766,735 197,536 389,867 657,888
532,800 - - -
1,565,799 - - -
221,333 - . -
36,750,783 1,496,893 10,255,342 667,437
479,359 592,084 . -
1,132,767 1,655,683 119,297 -
1,485,947 1,050,123 194,332 -
3,008,072 3,257,891 313,629 -
$ 39,848,855 $ 4,794,784 $ 10,568,971 % 667,437
% 142,138 $ 199 % 79,260 $ -
305,320 159,936 172,450 -
151,626 105,938 169,087 -
580,603 114,956 314,743 -
252,062 144,340 24,663 3,213
381,847 200,483 26,403 151
1,099,492 532,053 136,231 62,756
$ 2,013,508 $ 1,258,808 $ 922,836 $ 86,120

General revenues:
Taxes:
General:
Sales and use
Personal income
Single business
Other
Restricted for educational purposes:
Sates and use
Personal income
Education, property, and real estate transfers
Other
Restricted for transportation purposes:
Sales and use
Gasoline and diesel fusl
Motor vehicle weight
Other
Unrestricted investment and interest eamings
Miscellaneous
Contributions 1o permanent fund principat
Payments from State of Michigan
Transfers
Total general and other revenus, payments, and transfers
Change in nel assets
Net assets-beginning - restated
Net assets-snding

1 6The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NET {EXPENSE) REVENUES AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES AGCTIVITIES TOTALS UNITS
$  (1,063,196) § - & (1,053,196) $ ;
(13,170,983) - {13,170,983) .
{1,274,422) - (1,274,422) -
(1,898,677) . (1,898,677) .
(277,295) - (277,295) -
{130,880) - (130,880} -
(2,694,282) - (2,694,282) -
(1,521,443} - (1.521,443) -
(532,800) - (532,800) -
{1,555,799) - {1,555,799) y
{221,333) - (221,333) -
(24,331,111) - (24,331,111) -
- 112,726 112,726 -
. 642,214 642,214 -
. (241,492) (241,492) -
- 513,448 513,448 .
(24,331,111) 513,448 (23,817,663) -
. . . (62,680}
- . - 27,057
- - . 123,399
- - - (150,904)
- - - (80,746)
- - - (154,810)
- - - (367,552)
- - - (666,236)
2,555,186 . 2,555,186 .
5,483,584 - 5,483,584 .
2,207,500 . 2,207,500 .
1,179,461 10,419 1,189,880 -
5,117,360 . 5,117,360 -
2,003,475 - 2,003,475 -
1,742,445 - 1,742,445 -
636,084 - 636,084 -
74,416 - 74,415 -
1,077,187 - 1,077,187 .
777,903 . 777,903 .
6,766 - 6,766 .
159,194 4,248 163,442 28,981
668,970 1 668,972 48,884
38,415 . 38,415 .
. . - 807,340
737,635 (737,635) - .
74,466,480 722967y — 23.743513 885,205
135,360 (209,519) (74,150} 218,960
19,248,421 3,337,612 22,586,033 4,063,204

$ 19,383,790 $ 3,128,003 $ 22,611,883 $ 4282173
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i

GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major Funds

GENERAL FUND

This fund is the State’s operating fund. It accounts for the
financial tesources and fransactions not accounted for in
other funds.

COUNTER - CYCLICAL BUDGET AND ECONOMIC
STABILIZATION FUND

This fund, commonly referred to as the "Budget Stabilization
Fund® or “Ralny Day Fund," was created by P.A. 76 of 1977
to assist in siabilizing revenus and employment during
periods of economic recession and high unemployment. In
general, transfers are made Iinto this fund from the General
Fund during improving economic times and funds flow from
this fund to the General Fund in times of declining economy.
Additional information regarding the fund is provided in Note
3.

SCHOOL AID FUND

An amendment to the 1908 State Constitulion created this
fund in 1955. The 1963 State Constitution provided for the
fund's continued existence. Ils purpose is to aid in the
support of the public schools and the intermediate school
districts of the State. School aid payments to school districts
are based on a statutory formula,

The fund receives State revenues restricted to local school
programs, Including: the constitutionally dedicated sixty
percent of the collections of sales tax imposed at a rate of 4%
and all of the collections of sales tax imposed at the
additional rate of 2%,; Slate LoYery Fund earnings; a
percentage of the adjusted gross recelpts from casino
gaming; the real estate transfer tax; and portions of the
personal income, cigarette, flquor, and industrial and
commercial facilities taxes, A constitutional amendment
approved by volers in 1994 made structural changes in the
method of financing local school districts. The amendment
authorized the levy of a statewide properly tax, which is
deposited in the School Ald Fund. Approprialed transfers are
also made from the General Fund.

Non-Major Funds

Non-major governmental funds are presenled, by fund typs,
beginning on page 96.

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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Michigan

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

(In Thousands)

COUNTER -
CYCLICAL
BUDGET AND TOTALS
ECONOMIC SCHOOL
GENERAL STABILIZATION AlD NON-MAJCR SEPTEMBER 30,
FUND FUND FUND FUNDS 2001
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash $ 7,420 ] - $ - $ 5,327 $ 12,746
Equity in common cash {Note 5) 1,059,633 994,187 - 2,019,983 4,074,102
Taxes, interest, and penallies
receivable {Nole 6) 2,680,738 - 1,162,203 120,856 3,963,798
Amounts due from other funds (Note 20) 208,628 - 9,009 192,161 499,798
Amounts due from component units 582 - 15,699 16,281
Amounts due from federal agencies 847,038 2,286 203,533 1,062,857
Amounts due from local units 112,040 48,630 52,649 213,319
Inventories 24,353 - 8,155 32,508
Investments {Note 8} - - 296,311 296,311
Other current assels 306,121 - 1,233 130,838 438,192
Total Current Assets 5,336,853 994,187 1,223,361 3,045,512 10,599,913
Taxes, interest, and penalties
receivable (Note 6} 693,432 130,221 6,347 830,000
Advances to other funds (Note 20} 7,210 - 26,442 33,652
Amounts due from federal agencies 889 - - 889
Amounts dug from local units 493,407 1,252 44,767 539,427
Investments (Note 8) - - 523,320 523,320
Gther noncurrent assels 3,287 - 8,683 11,981
Total Assels $ 6,535,078 $ 994,187 $ 1,354,835 $ 3,655,081 $ 12,639,181
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Current Liabilities:
Warrants outstanding $ 134,908 ko - % 304 $ 23,762 § 158,974
Accounis payable and other liabilities {Note 25} 1,601,998 - 125,217 847,715 2,674,930
Income tax refunds payable {Note 16) 618,030 - - - 618,030
Amounts due to other funds (Note 20} 27,641 - 117,304 375,916 520,861
Amounts due to component units 11,654 - - 159 11,813
Interest payable - - - 478 478
Deferred revenue 1,458,293 - 277,676 126,342 1,862,310
Total Current Liabilities 3,852,626 - 520,501 1,374,371 5,747,396
Long-Term Liabifities:
Advances from other funds (Note 20) - - - 26,442 26,442
Deferred revenue 774,029 - 130,221 25,169 929,419
Total Liabilities 4,626,553 - 650,722 1,425,982 6,703,257
Fund Balances:;
Reserved fund bafance (Note 24) 1,880,452 - 9,317 1,384,205 3,273,975
Unreserved fund balance reporied in:
Genarat fund 28,072 - - - 28,072
Speclal revenue funds - 994,187 694,796 773,050 2,462,033
Debt service funds - - - 318,721 318,721
Capital projects funds - - - {267,958) (287,958)
Permanent funds - - - 41,082 41,082
Total Furd Balances 1,908,525 094,187 704,113 2,229,100 5,835,924
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 6,535,078 $ 994,187 $ 1,354,835 $ 3,655,081 $ 12,639,181

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financlal statemenis,
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RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

(In Thousands}

Tolal fund balances for governmental funds $ 5,835924

Amounts reporied for governmental activities in the Statement of Nel Assels
are different because:

Capitat assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds. (Note 10}

Land and other non-depreciable assets 3,101,732
Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable assets 3,658,728
Infrastructure 11,594,889
Construction in progress 862,339
Interest in joint ventures 25,000
Accumulated depreciation {1,481,368} 17.661,320

Cerlain tax revenues are eamed but not available and therefore are
delerred in the funds. 2,546,248

Other fong-term assets are not available to pay for current pariod
expenditures and therefore are deferred In the funds. 169,106

Intemal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
cerlain aciivities, such as insurance and telecommunications, to
individual funds. The assets and ifabllities of the intemal service funds
are included in govermmental aclivitles In the Staternent of Net Assets. 118,286

Certain pension trust funds have been funded in excess of the annual
required contributions, creating a year-end asset. This assetis nota
current available resource and is not reported in the funds. {Nole 11) 103,879

Delerred issue costs are seported as cuirent expenditures in the funds.
However, deferred issue costs are amorlized over the life of the bonds
and are inciuded In the govemmentai activilies in the Statement of Net
Assels. 8,843

tong-term fiabitities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are nol reported in the funds, (Note 14}

Capital lease obligations (228,454)
Compensated absences (431,740)
Workers' Compensation (199,850}
Litigation {887,851}
Net pension obligations {19,536}
Arbitrage {6,417) (1,772,848)

Long-temm bonded debt is not due and payable In the current period and
therefore is not reported in the funds. Unamoriized premiums, loss on
refundings, and interest payable are not reported in the funds. Howaver,
these amounts are included In the Statement of Net Assets. This is the
net effect of these balances on the statement. {Note 14)

Bonds and notes payable (5,172,5623)
Unamortized premiums (43,942}
L ess deferred loss amount on refundings 20,348
Accrued interest payable (90,852) (5,286,969)
Net assets of govemmental activities $ 19,383,790

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Michigan

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
{In Thousands)

COUNTER -
CYCLICAL
BUBGET AND TOTALS
ECONOMIC SCHOOL
STABILIZATION AlD NON-MAJOR SEPTEMBER 30,
GENERAL FUND FUND FUNDS 2001
REVENUES
Taxes $ 11,013,083 % - 3 9,407,071 $ 1,984,890 $ 22,405,023
From federal agencies 8,310,763 - 148,627 1,113,507 9,572,898
From local agencles 106,676 - - 121,320 227,996
From services 114,645 - - 700 115,348
From licenses and permils 219,732 - - 171,923 391,655
Special Medicald reimbursements 1,155,374 - - - 1,155,374
Misceliansous 511,812 66,736 117,380 715,601 1,411,628
Total Revenues 21,432,185 66,736 9,673,078 4,107,942 35,279,920
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Gieneral government 1,126,062 - - 151,760 1,277,822
Education 2,930,894 - 10,955,944 289,222 14,176,060
Family independence services 3,598,001 - - 2,590 3,598,591
Public safety and corrections 2,155,711 - - 3,850 2,159,602
Conservation, environment,
recreation, and agriculture 362,546 - - 273,733 636,279
{ abor, commerce, and regulatory 684,164 - . 196,805 881,069
Health services 8,478,167 - - 47,268 8,625,435
Transporiation - - - 2,068,484 2,058,484
Tax expenditures {(Note 16} 532,800 - - - 532,800
Capital outlay 68,146 - - 1,463,998 1,532,145
Intergovermnmental-revenue sharing 1,655,799 - - - 1,655,799
Debt service:
8ond principal retiroment - - - 219,552 219,562
Bond interest and fiscal charges - - - 201,980 201,980
Capital lease payments 47,763 - - 1,057 48,820
Total Expenditures 21,538,055 - 10,955,944 4,910,440 37,404,438
Excess of Revenues over {under}
Expenditures {105,890) 66,736 (1,282,867) (802,498} {2,124,519)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bonds and notes issued - - - 1,223,549 1,223,549
Premium on bond issuance - - - 44,373 44,373
Refunding bonds issued - - - 630,812 630,812
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - - - (698,723) (698,723)
Extinguishment of commaercial paper - - - {40,680) {40,680)
Capital lease acquisitions 23,014 - - - 23,014
Transfers from other funds 627,049 - 1,004,237 1,654,629 3,185,915
Translers to other funds {736,981) (336,983} {2,889) {1,334,338) (2,411,191)
Total Gther Financing
Sources (Uses) (86,819) (336,083) 1,001,348 1,379,623 1,957,070
Excess of Revenues and Other
Sources over {under)
Expenditures Other Uses {192,808} (270,247} (281,518} 577,126 (167,449)
Fund Balances - Beginning of
fiscal year - restated 2,101,333 1,264,434 985,632 1,651,975 6,003,373
Fund Balances - End of fiscal year $ 1,908,525 3 994,187 3 704,113 $ 2,229,100 $ 5,835,924

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of the financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{in Thousands)

iNet change in fund balance - total governmental funds $ (167,449)

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the
Slatement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by
which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

{Note 10)
Land and other non-depreciable assets 77,088
Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable assets 232,900
Infrastructure 49,699
Consliuction in progress 418,383
Accumulated depreciation (161,508} 617,062

Revenues In the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenuss in the funds. 498,008

intemal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities, such as insurance and telecommunications, to individual
funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is
reported with governmentat activities. 50,243

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds
by issuing debt which increasss long-term bonded debt in the Statement
of Net Assets. Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the
govemmenta! funds, but the repayment reduces long-term bonded debt
in the Statement of Net Assets. This is the amount proceeds exceed
repayments. {Note 14) :

Bond proceeds and premiums received (1,898,698)
Repayment of bond principal : 219,552
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent 698,723
Extinguishment of commercial paper 40,680
Accrled interest 4,300
Deferred issue costs 8,843
Loss on refunding (20,709) {947,307)

Certain expenditures are reported in the funds. However, they either
increase or decrease long-term liabilities reported on the Statement of Net
Assels and have been eliminated from the Statement of Activities.

{Nota 14)
Excess confributions to pension funds 9,935
Capital lease payments 28,466
Compensated absences payments 30,570
Liligation payments 22,668
Workers' compensalion (4,824) 86,815
Change in net assets of govemmental activities $ 135,360

The accompanying notes are an integral patt of the financial statements.
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Michigan

PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major Funds

STATE LOTTERY FUND

Public Act 239 of 1972 established the State Loltery Fund and
created a Bureau of Stale Lottery under authority of Article 5,
Seclion 4, of the Stale Constitution. This authority expired on
August 1, 1974, at which time the Bureauy became an
organizational eniity in the Depariment of Management and
Budgst. The Bureau was transferred to the Department of
Treasury during fiscal year 1990-81. Net income of the fund
related 1o lottery operations is transferred o the Schoot Aid Fund
and the fund's net income related io bingo and charily games
regulation is transferred lo the Generat Fund. The remaining net
assets balance represents the unrealized cumulative gain or loss
on investments, as required by GASB Statement No. 31.

Reventies and related expenses are recognized in the period
during which the related drawings are held. Deferred prize
awards are recorded as expenses and liabilities at their
discounied present value. The Stale Treasurer invesis funds
equivalent to the discounted value of the instaliment payments
and the Lottery Fund Is credited with the inlerest eamings.

MICHIGAN UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION FUNDS

The columns for the Michigan Unemployment Compensation
Funds reflect the activity of two funds administered by the
Unemployment Agency within the Department of Consumer and
Industry Services: the Michigan Unemployment Compensation
Fund and the Michigan Employment Securily Act Contingent
Fund. The Michigan Unemployment Compensation Fund
receives conlributions from employers and provides for the
payment of benefits to eligible unemployed workers. The fund
also makes payments under certain federally funded programs.
Adminlistrative costs of the fund are accounted for in the Michigan
Employment Security Act - Administration Fund, a special
revenue fund,

Administered under the supervision of the Director of
Employment Security, the Michigan Employment Security Act
Contingent Fund was created by P.A. 535 of 1982 to receive a
special temporary unemployment tax surcharge, known as the
solvency tax. The fund also receives inlerest and penally
charges on late contributions. Public Act 224 of 1989 restricts
use of solvency taxes for payment of interest on the Michigan
Unemployment Compensation borrowings from the federal
govemment.

Non-Major Funds

LIQUOR PURCHASE REVOLVING FUND

Public Act 250 of 1941 authorized the creation of the Liquor
Purchase Revolving Fund. The Ligquor Control Commission,
within the Department of Consumer and Indusiry Services, Is
primarily responsible for the fund. Under State monopoly, liquor
Is sold at wholesale through a State controlled, privately operated
distribution system. The fund accounts for the sales of and the
replenishing and transporting of the liquor stock. Administrative,
warehousing, and delivery costs are pald for through the fund. Al
the end of each fiscal year, lhe "net income” of the fund Is
transferred to the General Fund in accordance with P.A, 431 of
1984,

Individual fund statements for the Intemal Service Funds, whose
combined tolals are presented on this statement, begin on page
166.
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Michigan

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

(in Thousands)

MAJOR NON-MAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL
MICHIGAN LIQUOR TOTALS ACTWITIES --
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT PURCHASE INTERNAL
LOTTERY COMPENSATION  REVOLVING SEPTEMBER 30, SERVICE
FUND FUNDS FUND 2001 FUNDS
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash $ 2 3 739 % 1 $ 741 $ 38
Equity in common cash {Note 5) 7,463 87,565 52,383 147,422 137,241
Amounts due from other funds {Note 20) - 4,386 - 4,386 40,163
Amounts due from component units - 150 - 150 -
Amounts due from federal agencies - 538 - 538
Amounts due from local units - 11,802 - 11,802 -
inventories 2,131 - 3.2¢ 5,423 19,716
Invasiments (Note 8) 108,783 2,834,547 - 2,943,330 -
Secuwrities lending collateral 203,945 - - 203,945 -
Other current assets 50,685 138,313 5,845 194,763 23,129
Total Current Assets 372,820 3,078,041 61,630 3,512,491 220,287
Invastments (Note 8) 709,321 - - 709,321 -
Capital Assets {Note 10):
Buildings and equipment 3,436 - - 3,436 284,087
Altowance for depreciation (3,149) - - (3,149) {169,9386)
Total capital assets 287 - - 287 114,151
Other noncurrent assets - 10,016 - 10,016 88,020
Total Assets $ 1,082,527 $ 3,088,058 % 61,630 $ 4,232,116 $ 423,458
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities;
Warrants outstanding $ 1,563 % - $ 142 $ 1,704 $ 6,405
Accounts payable and
other liabilities (Note 25} 154,773 17,292 53,354 225,420 35,122
Amounts due to other funds (Note 20) 9,069 2,828 79 11,976 26,422
Deferred ravenue - 222 - 222 5,138
Obligations under security lending 203,845 - - 203,945 -
Current poriion of other
long-term obligations (Note 14) 130 - 332 463 113,586
Total Cumrent Liabilities 369,481 20,342 53,907 443,729 186,672
Long-Term Liabilities:
Advances from other funds {Note 20} - - - 7,210
Prize awards payable {Note 17) 615,647 - - - 615,647 -
Noncurrent portion of other
long-term obligations (Note 14) 1,694 42,004 948 44,646 111,289
Total Liabilities 986,822 62,346 54,854 1,104,022 305,172
NET ASSETS
Invested in capila! assels, net of related debt $ 287 $ - $ - $ 287 $ 85,347
Restricted for:
Unemployment compensation - 3,025,712 - 3,025,712 -
Other purposes 85,706 - - 95,706 11,884
Unrestricted {287) - 6,676 6,388 21,055
Total Net Asssts $ 95,7068 $ 3,025,712 $ 6,676 $ 3,128,093 $ 118,286

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The accempanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Michigan

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
{In Thousands}

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -- ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Tolal net assets - End of fiscal year

The accompanying noles are an integral pan of the financial statements,

MAJOR NON-MAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL
MICHIGAN LIQUOR TOTALS ACTIVITIES --
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT PURCHASE INTERNAL
LOTTERY COMPENSATION REVOLVING SEPTEMBER 30, SERVICE
FUND FUNDS FUND 2001 FUNDS
OPERATING REVENUES
Operaling revenues $ 1,655,683 $ 1,060,123 $ 592,084 $ 3,207,891 $ 1,076,940
Total Operating Revenues 1,655,683 1,050,123 592,084 3,297,891 1,076,840
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages, and other administrative 195,442 - 46,825 242,267 168,084
Depreciation 242 - - 242 37,676
Purchases for resale - 431,737 431,737 46,185
Purchases for prison industries - - - - 15,528
Lottery prize awards 873,325 - - 873,325 -
Premiums and claims - - 1 1 704,712
Unamployment benefits - 1,458,848 - 1,458,848 -
Otner operating expenses - 27,099 798 27,895 61,566
Total Operating Expenses 1,069,008 1,485,947 479,359 3,034,314 1,033,651
Operating Income {Loss} 686,675 (435,824) 112,726 263,677 43,288
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Specific tax on spirils - - 10,419 10,419 -
Interest revenue 4,184 4,626 4,248 13,058 -
Investment revenue (expense) - net 115,113 189,706 - 304,819 -
Other nonoperaling revenues 1 - - 1 11,410
Amortization of prize award
obiigation discount {53,080} - {53,080) -
Interest expense {10,648) - - (10,648) (1,083)
Other nonoperating expense 31) - - {31) (3,130)
Total Nonoperating
Revenues (Expenses) 55,541 194,332 14,667 264,639 7,198
Income (Loss) Before Transfers 642,216 (241,492) 127,393 528,116 50,487
TRANSFERS
Transters to:
School Aid Fund {587,009) - - {587,009) -
Other funds {10,377} {12,856) {127,393) {150,626) (244)
Total iransfers to other funds (597,386) (12,856} {127,393} (737,635) (244)
Total Transfers In {Oul) (697,386) {12,856) {127,393) (737,635) {244)
Change in net assets 44,829 (254,348} - (209,519) 50,243
Tolal net assets - Beginning
of fiscat year - restated 80,877 3,280,059 6,676 3,337,612 68,043
$ 95,706 $ 3,025,712 $ 6,676 $ 3,128,093 $ 118,286
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Michigan

STATEMENT Of CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
{in Thousands})

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -- ENTERPRISE FUNDS

MAJOR NON-MAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL
MICHIGAN LIQUCR TOTALS ACTIWTIES --
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT PURCHASE INTERNAL
LOTTERY COMPENSATION REVOLVING SEPTEMBER 30, SERVICE
FUND FUNDS FUND 2001 FUNDS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from federal and local agencies $ - $ 27,770 $ - $ 27,770 $ -
Receipts from customers 1,631,473 11,263 592,082 2,234,818 1,074,760
Payments to employees {12,557) (2,694) {14,299) {29,551) {49,526}
Payments to suppliers {39,587) - {465,528) (505,115) {385,061}
Payments to prize winners {962,928} - - (962,928) -
Payments for commissions to retailers (143,259) - - (143,259) -
Claims paid - (1.468,890) - (1,468,890} (545,048)
Other receipts - 1,010,073 - 1,010,073 2,006
Other payments - - {1,517} (1,517 (16,482}
Net cash provided {used)
by operating activities $ 473,142 $ (422,478) $ 110,737 $ 161,401 $ 80,250

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loans of loan repayments from other funds  § - $ - $ - $ - $ 4,427

Leans or loan repayments to other funds - - - - {5,427)
Specific tax on spirits - - 10,419 10,419 -
Transfers to other funds {588,377) {12,856) (127.393) (728,626) {244)
Net cash provided (used)
by noncapital financing activities $ (588,377) $ {12,856) § (118,974) $ (718,207) $ {1,244)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets $ {109) $ - % - § (109) $ {31,384)
Principal paid on bond and loan maturities - - - - (6,881)
Interest pald - - - - (219)
Capital lease payments
{including imputed interest expense) - - - - {8,089)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 1 - - 1 541
Net cash provided {used) by capital
and related financing activities $ (108} $ - $ - $ {108) $ {46,041}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale and maturitles
of investment securities $ 110458 $ 245,660 $ - $ 356,118 $ -
Interest and dividends on nvestmenis 4,184 194,331 4,248 202,763 11,410
Income from securities lending activitias 11,406 - - 11,405 -
Expenses from securities lending activities (10,648) - - (10,648) -
Net cash provided (used)
by investing activities $ 115400 $ 438,01 $ 4,248 $ 559,638 $ 11,410
Net cash provided (used) - all activities $ 56 $ 4,657 $ {1,989) $ 2,725 $ 44,375
Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 5,846 83,647 54,240 143,734 86,499
Cash and cash equlvalents
at end of year $ 5,802 $ 88,304 $ 52,252 $ 146,458 $ 130,873

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of the financial statements.
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Michigan

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -- ENTERPRISE FUNDS

MAJOR NON-MAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL
MICHIGAN LIQUCR TOTALS ACTIVITIES --
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT PURCHASE INTERNAL
LOTTERY COMPENSATION REVOLVING SEPTEMBER 30, SERVICE
FUND FUNDS FUND 2001 FUNDS
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
{LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED)
BY OPERATING ACTWVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ 586,675 $ (435,824) $ 112,726 $ 263,677 $ 43,289
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided (used)
by opsrating activities:
Depreciation expense 242 - - 242 37,576
Amortization of pre-paid expense - - - - 93
Amortization of prize award
obligation discount {53,080) - - (53,080) -
Other reconciling items 103 - - 103 21
Net changes in assets and liabilities:
Inventories 180 - (383) {204) (1,302}
Other asssts {(net) (922) 9,375 (720) 7,733 {4,070}
Accounts payable and other {labilities (244) 4,036 (883} 2,809 4,644
Prize awards payable {69,812) - - {69,812) -
Deferred rovenue - (65) (2) (67) -
Net cash provided {used)
by operating activities $ 473,142 $  {422,478) $ 110,737 $ 161,401 $ 80,250
SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING,
CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cost of capital assets acquisitions
financed by capital leases $ - $ - ] - ] - $ 19,335
. Capital leass liabilitles entered
into during the year - - - - (19,335)
Increase (decrease) in falr value
of Investments 44,829 - - 44,829 -
Transfers to other funds (accrual) {9,009) - (9,009) -
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (31) - {31) (3,118}
Total noncash investing, capital,
and financing activities $ 35,789 3 - $ - % 35,789 $ {3,118}
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FIDUCIARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Individual fund descripltions and financial stalements begin on the
following pages:
Penslon (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust Funds, page 174
Private Purpose Trust Funds, page 180
Agency Funds, page 185

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
31




Michigan

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

(In Thousands)

PENSION
{AND OTHER
EMPLOYEE PRIVATE
BENEFIT) PURPOSE
TRUST TRUST AGENCY
FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash $ 565 $ 386 $ 7,935
Equity in commeon cash (Note 5) 157,568 47,51 4,425
Receivables:
From participants 92,772 -
From employers 357,437 -
Interest and dividends 166,355 376
Due from other funds {Note 20} 16,126 - -
Sale of investments 1,655 - -
Investments at fair value {Note 8):
Short term investments 3,641,279 164 17,174
Bonds, notes, mortgages, and preferred stock 9,259,610 14,289 103,421
Common stock 18,871,164 85 -
Real estate 4,241,169 - -
Altemative investmenis 6,906,286 - -
Intemational invesiments 2,987,682 - -
Mutual funds 1,625,622 51,319 -
Pooled investment funds 1,508,482 4,437 -
Money market funds 88,261 . -
Secuiities lending collateral (Note 8} 1,946,262 - -
Capital assets:
Bulldings and equipment 24 - -
Allowance for depreciation {24) - -
Total capital assels R - R
Other current assets - 5,130 4,329
Other noncurrent assels - - 349,587
Total assetls $ 51,767,096 $ 123,697 $ 486,872
LIABILITIES
Warrants outstanding $ 13,357 $ 2,202 $ 145
Accounts payable and other iiabilities 273,451 5,318 33,950
Amounts due to other funds (Note 20) 1 - 215
Obligations under security lending 1,846,262 - -
Other long-term liabilities - - 452,562
Total liabilities $ 2,233,072 $ 7,519 $ 486,872
NET ASSETS
Net assels held in trust for pension, postemployment
health-care, other employee benefits,
and other purposes $ 49,634,024 $ 116,178
Reconclliation of net assets held in trust:
Pension benefits (Note 11) $ 46,206,548 % -
Postemployment heaith-care benefits 238,714 -
Other employee benefits (Note 19) 3,088,761 -
Other purposes - 116,178
Totat net assels held in trust for benefits
and other purposes $ 49,534,024 $ 116,178

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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Michigan

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

(In Thousands)

ADDITIONS
Contribuiions:
From participants
From employers
From clients
From gifls, bequests, and endowments
From other plans

Investment income:
Net appreciation {depreciation) in fair vatue of investimenis
interest, dividends, and other
Securities lending income

Less invesiment expense:
investment aclivity expense
Securities lending expense
Net investment income (loss)

Escheated property

Miscellaneous income

Transfers from other funds

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits paid to participants or beneliciaries
Medical, dental, and life insurance for retirants
Refunds and transfers to other systems
Amounts distributed to clients or third parties
Administrative expense
Transfers to other funds

Total Deductions
Net increase (decrease)
Net assets - Beginning of fiscal year - resiated
Net assets - End of fiscal year {Note 11)
Reconciliation of net increase In assets:
Net increase (decrease} in assets held in trust for pension benefits
Net increase (decrease) in assets held in trust for postemployment benefits
Net increase (decrease) In assets held In trust for other employes benefits
Net increase (decrease} in assets held in trust for other purposes

Tofal net increase {decrease)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

PENSION
{AND OTHER
EMPLOYEE PRIVATE
BENEFIT) PURPOSE
TRUST TRUST
FUNDS FUNDS
$ 604,833 $ 62,849
1,614,243 _
- 37,304
- 177
2,873 .
(8,111,910) {6.649)
1,621,621 2,489
84,592 -
71,159 119
59,465 -
(6,556,321) {4,280)
- 43,492
3,134 1,145
- 740
{4,331,238) 131,428
2,624,308 888
730,890 .
21,455 i
- 37,887
71,041 8
- 37,585
3,447,794 76,369
{7.779,032) 55,059
57,313,056 61,119
$ 49,534,024 $ 116,178
$ (7400673} % -
87,773 -
(466,132) .
- 55,050
$ (7,779,032 $ 55,059
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Michigan
i

COMPONENT UNIT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A
o e

Major Funds

MICHIGAN EDUCATION TRUST

The Michigan Education Trust {(MET) operales a prepaid tuition
program. A purchaser enters into & contract with MET which
provides that in retum for a specified actuarially determined
payment, MET will provide a Michigan child's undergraduate
tuitlon at any Michigan public university or community college.
The amount the purchaser is required to pay is based on severai
factors, among them are tultion costs, the child's age and grade
in school, anticlpated investment eamings, tuitlon rate increases,
and the type of contract purchased.

Public Act 316 of 1986 created MET. MET is governed by a
nine-member board that consists of the State Treasurer and sight
other individuals appointed by the Govemor with the advice and
consent of the Senate. Although MET is administratively located
within the Michigan Depariment of Treasury, the Act provides its
assels are not to be considered assets of the State and are not to
be loaned or ctherwise transferred or used by the State for any
purpose other than the purposes specified in the Act. The Act
and contracts also specifically provide that the State is noi liable if
MET becomes actuarally unsound. In that event, the contracts
provide for refunds to participants.

MICHIGAN STATE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

Public Act 346 of 1966, as amended, created the Michigan Stale
Housing Development Authorily (MSHDA) to issue noles and
bonds to finance housing for sale or rental to familles with low or
moderate incomes and to finance home improvements. MSHDA
is also the administrator of various *Section 8* housing programs
in Michigan for the U.S. Depariment of Housing and Urban
Development. The Governor appoints MSHDA's board members.

MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL BOND AUTHORITY

Public Act 227 of 1985, as amended, created the Michigan
Municipal Bond Authority (MMBA) 1o assist local units of
govemment In reducing thelr financing costs for public
improvements, delicit reduction, and various other municipat
purposes. MMBA pools the borrowing needs of various units and
issues limited obligation debt; the proceeds of which are used to
purchase local unit obligations or to make loans to local units.

MMBA is governed by a board of rustess consisting of the State
Treasurer, two appointees of the Govemnor, and five state
residents appointed by the Govemnor, with the advice and consent
of the Senate.

MMBA and the Department of Environmental Quality serve as co-
administralors of a special State Revolving Fund, which is
reported as part of MMBA, The State Revolving Fund assists
govemnmental units in financing water quality projects. Federal
govemment and State matching provides financing for this
activity along with investment interest eamings and/or other
avallable funds. MMBA's separately Issued financial teporis
provide a separate accounting of this fund's aclivities.

CENTRAL MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY AND WESTERN
MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

Central Michigan University and Westermn Michigan University are
the two major universities of the ten included In this repori. They
are legally separate entities whose govemning boards are
appointed by the Governor and for which the State Is therefore,
defined as legally accountabls. Excluded from this repon are
three other universities {University of Michigan, Michigan State
University and Wayne State Universily) whose board members
are olecled by the voters and, therefore, consldered separate
special purpose governments.

Non-Major Funds

The non-major component unit - authorilies are presented
beginning on page 190.

The non-major comnponent unit - State universities are presented
beginning on page 194,

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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Michigan

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
COMPONENT UNITS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Thousands)

36

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash
Equity in commaon cash (Note 5)
Amounis due from cormponent units
Amounls due from primary government
Amounts due from federal govemmant
Amounts due from local units
Inventories
Invesimenis {Nole 8}
Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Restricted assels:
Cash and cash equivalents
investments
Amecunts due from local units
Mortgages and loans receivable
Investments {Note 8)
Capital assets:
Land and other non-depreciable assets

Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable assets -

Lass accumulated depreciation
Infrastructure
Construction in progress

Tolal capital assets
Other noncurrent assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Warrants cuistanding
Accounls payable and other liabllities
Amounts due to component units
Amounts due {o primary government
Bonds and notes payable (Note 15)
Interest payable
Deterred revenue
Current portion of other long-term obligations

Total Current Liabilities

Deferred revenue
Bonds and notes payable {Note 15)
Nencurrent portion of other long-term cbligations

Total LiabHities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of relaled debt
Restricted for:

Education

Construction and debt service

Other purposes
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

The accompanying noles are an integral par of the financial statements.

AUTHORITIES
MICHIGAN
STATE MICHIGAN
MICHIGAN HOUSING MUNICIPAL
EDUCATION  DEVELOPMENT BOND
TRUST AUTHORITY AUTHORITY NON-MAJOR
$ 135,764 $ - $ 141 $ 28,59
. . 19,627 200,384
. . - 5,298
906 - 609 11,007
i ; . 7,361
- 751,652 2
. . 520
. - 483,427 35,362
18,695 68,382 53,321 133,780
155,364 68,362 1,308,678 422,311
. 356,487 - 128,931
- 562,055 - 103,417
- . 1,727,411 .
- 1,855,219 - 762,068
684,707 - 1,000,953 83,982
. 843
. 43,230
- - . {11,582)
- - . 99,564
- . - 1,411
- - . 133,465
21,991 51,079 141,007 11,150
$ 862,062 $ 2,893,222 $ 4,178,048 § 1,845,324
$ - $ . $ - $ 182
60,008 14,405 8,889 65,701
- - . 5,208
. - 218 1,450
. 54,465 723,008 95,293
- 17,008 58,023 8,193
. - - 1,854
. - - 2,313
60,008 85,879 791,037 180,283
. 1,951,729 2,160,827 841,010
699,284 447,947 83,682 51,474
$ 750,202 $ 2485555 $ 3,035,446 $ 1,072,767
$ - $ - $ $ 128527
- 173,509 - 12,186
102,770 . 1,134,826 1,384
- 234,069 7,776 432,459
$ 102,770 S 407,667 $ 1,142,602 $ 572,557




Michigan

STATE UNIVERSITIES

TOTALS
CENTBAL WESTERN
MICHIGAN MICHIGAN SEPTEMBER 30,
UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY NON-MAJOR 2001

$ 19,377 3 8,917 $ 107,965 $ 300,760

- - 219,912

26 - 326 5,650
43,629 22,872 104,704 183,727
959 2,273 6,053 16,647
.. . 610 752,264
2,813 5,243 7,648 16,224

. 83,867 87,711 690,367
15,663 11,752 57,329 358,921
82,469 134,924 372,346 2,544,473
. - 1,016 486,435

. - - 665,472

- - - 1,727,411

7,633 7.622 53,429 2,685,972
103,815 35,604 175,352 2,084,413
9,734 9,495 60,301 80,372
333,226 653,771 2,097,899 3,128,127
(169,999) (261,395) (808,022) (1,260,099)
9,231 . 45,728 154,523
48,100 41,063 119,277 209,851
230,292 442,934 1,515,183 2,321,874
- 5,163 18,179 248,568

$ 424,209 $ 626,246 $ 2,135,505 $ 12,764,617

. .8 - s 182
40,683 60,215 128,554 378,456
- . . 5,208

597 11 3,166 5,431
3365 22,759 15,771 914,661
1,089 - 3,281 88,464
9,770 8,484 34,500 54,608
- - - 2,313
55,474 91,470 185,263 1,449,413
- . 1,699 1,609
91,354 217,786 433,721 5,696,428
15,100 . 37,516 1,334,903

$ 161,928 $ 309,256 $ 658,199 $ 8,482,444

$ 135,673 $ 216,668 $ 1,103,807 $ 1,582,576

27,3714 20,530 145,581 193,482
7,026 31,142 43,637 267,590
- - 2,698 1,241,579
92,311 48,650 181,683 996,947

% 262,281 $ 318,990 $ 1,477,308 § 4,282,173
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Michigan

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

COMPONENT UNITS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
{In Thousands)

PROGRAM REVENUES

OPERATING CAPITAL NET
CHARGES FOR GRANTS/ GRANTS/ (EXPENSE)
EUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTICONS CONTRIBUTIONS REVENUE
Authorities:
Michigan Education Trust $ 142,138 3 199 $ 79,280 $ - S {62,680)
Michigan State Housing
Development Authority 308,329 159,936 172,450 - 27,0587
Michigan Municipal Bond Authority 151,626 105,938 169,087 . 123,399
Non-Major 580,603 114,956 314,743 - (150,904}
State Universities:
Central Michigan University 252,962 144,340 24,663 3213 (80,7486}
Western Michigan University 381,847 200,483 26,403 181 (154.,810)
Non-Major 1,009,492 532,953 136,231 62,756 (367,552)
Total $ 2,913,998 $ 1,258,806 3 922,836 $ 86,120 $ (668,236}
General revenues:
Interest and investment earnings 28,981
Payments from State of Michigan 807,340
Other 48,884
Total general revenues ' 885,205
Change in net assets 218,969
Net assets -- beginning - restated 4,063,204
Net assets - ending $ 4,282,173

The accompanyling notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of the State conform in all
material respects to generally accepled accounting principles
(GAAP) as applicable to governments.  The Governmental
Accounling Standards Bdard {GASB) is the standard setling body for
establishing govemmental accounting and financiat reporting
principles, which are primarily set forth in the GASB’s Codlfication ot
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards (GASB
Codiication). Following is a summary ef the significant policies:

A. Reporiing Entity

Michigan was admiited to the Union as the twenty-sixth state in
1837. The State of Michigan is governed under the Constitution
of 1963, as amended. The legislative power Is vested in a 38-
member senate and a 110-member house of representatives;
executive power is vested in a govemor; and the judiclat power
is vested exclusively in one court of juslice.

For financial reporiing purposes, the State of Michigans
reporting entity Includes the “primary government” and its
“component units.” The primary government includes all funds,
departiments and agencies, bureaus, boards, commisslons, and
those authorities that are considered an integrat part of the
primary govemmenl. Component unils are legally separate
govemmental organizations for which the State’s elecled
officials are financlally accountable.

Financial accountability is delined in GASB Statement No. 14,
The Financial Reporing Entity. The State is financially
accountable for those enfities in which the State appoints a
voting malority of an organization’s goveming authority, and
either Is able to impose its will upon the entity or there exists a
financial berefit or burden relationship wilh the State. For those
entities in which the State doss not appoint a voting majority of
the goveming authority, GASS Statement No. 14 requires
inclusion in the reporting entity if they are fiscally dependent on
the State or if it would be misleading to exclude the authority.

Blended Component Units

The State Bullding Authority and the Michigan Underground
Storage Tank Financial Assurance Finance Authority are legally
separate organizations thal have boards appointed by the
primary govemnment and provide services primarily to benefit
the State. Therefore, they are reported as though they were
part of the primary govemment, using the blending method.

Discretely Presented Component Units

These types of component units are reporled in separate
columns or rows in the govemment-wide statemenis to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the government.

The State is able to impose is will upon lhese discretely
presented component units:

The Michigan Education Trust offers conlracts, which for
actuarially determined amounts, provide plan participants
with future tuition at institutions of higher education.

The Michigan State Housing Development Authority finances
loans for the construction of multi-family and single-family
housing and home improvements.

The Michigan Municipal Bond Authority assists local units by
pooling thelr borrowing activities. This authority is also
responsible for assisting local units with thelr financing of
water pollution conttol projects.

The Michigan Higher Education Facilities Authority accounts
for the administration of no-commitment debt issued for the
benefit of private Institutions of higher educalion.

The Mackinac Bridge Authority accounts for the operation of
the Mackinac Bridge.

The Michigan Strategic Fund provides business enterprises
with additional sources of financing.

The Michigan State Hospital Finance Authority accounts for
the administration of limited obligation debt issued for the
benefit of hospitals.

The Michigan Higher Education Student Loan Authority is a
financing authority that makes loans to students or their
parents.

The Michigan Higher Education Assistance Authority is the
Stale guaranty agency under the Stalford Loan Program, the
Supplemental Loans to Students Program, and the Parent
Loan for Undergraduate Students Program. This Authority
also administers schotarships and grants that are financed
with General Fund appropriations.

There is a financlal burden/benefil relationship between these
entities and the State:

The Mackinac Island State Park Commission operates the
Mackinac Island and Michilimackinac State Parks.

The Michigan Economic Development Corporation manages
programs to stimufate, coordinate, and advance economic
development in the Siate.

The following entity's relationship with the State would be
misleading if it were omitted from the State’s reporting enlity:

The State Bar of Michigan is a public body corporate whose
membership consisis of persons licensed 1o practice law.

Ten of the State's public universities are considered componsnt
units because they have boards appointed by the primary
govemment. Their balances and operating resuils are included
with the other discretely presented components units on the
govemnmment-wide stalements. The len universities included in
these statements are: Cenirai Michigan University, Eastemn
Michigan University, Ferris State University, Grand Valiey State
University, Lake Superior State University, Michigan
Technological University, Northem Michigan University,
Oakland University, Saginaw Valley State University, and
Westemn Michigan University. Michigan State University, the
University of Michigan, and Wayne State University are not
included In the State’s reporting entity because they have
separately elected goveming boards and are legally separate.
The State provides significant funding to support these
institutions; howsever, under GASB Slatement No. 14 criteria,
they are considered fiscally independent, speclal-purpose
govemments.

Avallability of Financlal Statements

The State's component units issue their own separately Issued
audited financlal statements. These slatemenis may be
obtalned by directly contacting the various component units. To
obtain their phone numbers, you may contact the Office of the
State Budget, Office of Financial Management, Financlal
Reporting Section at (517) 373-3029,

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

41




Michigan

Notes to the Financial Statements
-

Related Organizations

The State’s Insurance Commissioner is responsible for
appointing the members of the boards of the Michigan
Catastrophic Claims Association and the Michigan Property and
Casualty Guaranty Assocfation, but the State's accountability
for these organizations does nol exiend beyond making the
appointments,

Joint Ventures

As discussed In more detail in Note 7, the State participates in
one joint venture. lts financial aclivilies are not included in the
State’s financial statements, but the State's equily interest is
recorded as an asset in the Statement of Net Assels.

Jointly Governed Organizations

The Slate, the University of Michigan, Michigan Siate
University, and Wayne State University appoint members of the
board of the Michigan Public Health Institute (MPHI), a non-
profit corporation. MPHI was established to plan, promote, and
coordinale health services rasearch with a public university or a
consortium of public universities in the State. The State does
not appoint a majority of the board, has no rights to the assels,
and is not responsible for debts of MPHI, Therefors, the State's
accountabillity for MPHI does not extend beyond making the
appolntments. During fiscal year 2000-2001, the State awarded
contracts totaling $21.4 million to MPHLI.

In fiscal year 1999-2000, the Governor and St. Mary's River
Bridge Company of Ontario, Canada signed a 40-year
agreement crealing the Joinl International Bridge Authority
{JIBA), a non-profit organization. The State does not appoint a
majority of the board, has no rights to the assets, and is not
responsible for debls of JIBA,  Therefore, the State’s
accountability for JIBA does not extend beyond making the
appolntments.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial
Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Assets and Staternent of Aclivitles report
information on all nonfiduclary activities of the primary
govemment and its component units. Primary govemment
activilies are distinguished between govemmental and
business-type activitles. Governmental activities generaliy are
financed through taxes, intergovemmental revenues, and other
non-exchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed
in whole or In part by fees charged to external parlies for goods
or services.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the reporing entity’s
non-fiduclary assets and Hablfities, with the difference reported
as net assets. Nel assels are reported in three categories:

Invested In capltal assets, net of related debt consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced
by outstanding balances for bonds, notes, and other debt that
are attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement
of those assets.

Restricted net assets result when constraints placed on net
asset use are either extemally Imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, and the lke, or imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net assets consist of nat assets which do not
meet the definltion of the two preceding categories.
Unrestricted net assels often are designaled, to indicate that
management does not consider them to be available for
general operations. Unrestricted net assels often have

constraints on  resources which  are
managerment, but can be removed or modified.

imposed by

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which
the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by
program revenues, Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identiliable within a specific function. Program revenues
include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function and 2} granis and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular funclion. Taxes and other items
nol meeting the definition of program revenues are instead
reported as general revenue,

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statemenis are provided for governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the
latter are excluded from the govemment-wide statements.
Major individual govemmental funds and major individual
proprietary funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financlal statements, with non-major funds being combined into
a single column.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and
Financial Statement Presentation

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The govemment-wide slatements are reported wusing the
economic rescurces management focus and the accrual basis
of accounting, as are the proprietary and fiduciary fund financiat
statements.  Revenugs are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardiess of
the timing of cash flows, Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

As allowed by GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and OCther
Govemmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,
the State's proprietary funds follow all GASB pronouncements
and those Financlal Accounting Standards Board Statements
and interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and
Accounting Research Bulleting that were issued on or before
November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with a GASB
pronouncement.

Govemmental fund statements are reported using the current
financlal resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basls of accounting. Revenues are recognized as they
become susceplible to accrual, generally when they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be
avallable when they are collected within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the State generally considers tax revenues
and court setlements to be available If they are collected within
60 days of the end of the fiscal pericd. Revenues that the State
eams by incuming obligations are recognized in the same
period as when the obligations are recognized.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred,
as under accrual accounting. However, expenditures refated to
debt service, compensaled absences, and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when paymen! is due and
payable.
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Financial Statement Presentation
The State reporis the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the State's primary operating fund. It
accounis for all financial resources except those required to
be accounted for in another fund.

The Counter-Cyclical Budget and Eccnomic Slabilization
Fund, commonly referred to as the “Rainy Day Fund,” was
created lo assist in stabilizing revenue and employment
during periods of economic recession and high
unemployment.

The Scheol Aid Fund's pumpose {s to ald in the support of the
public schools and the intermediate school districls.

The State reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Stale Lottery Fund accounts for the operalions of the
State's lottery, bingo, and charitable game operations.

The Michigan Unemployment Compensation Funds receive
contributions from employers and provide benelfils to eligible
unemployed workers.

Additionally, the State reports the following fund types:

Governmental Fund Types:
Special Revenue Funds - include operating fund activities
financed by speclfic revenue sources that are legally
restricted for specified purposes. Examples Include
conservation, fransportation, regulatory, and other aclivitles.

Debt Service Funds - account for the accumulation of
rasources for, and the payment of, generat long-term debt
principat and interest,

Capital Projects Funds - account for the acgulsition or
construction of major State capital facilities financed by bond
proceeds and commercial paper notes.

Permanent Funds - report rescurces that are legally
restricted to the extent that only earnings, and not principal,
may be used for purposes that benefit the govemmenit or its
citizenry, such as veterans, child abuse and neglect
prevention, state park preservation, and others.

Proprietary Fund Types:
Enterprise Funds - report the activities for which fees are
charged to extemal users for goods or services. This fund
type is also used when the activity Is financed with debt that
is secured by a pledge of the net revenues from the fess.
The State’s liquor sales are reported in this type.

Internal Service Funds - provide goods or services primarily
to other agencies or funds of the Siate, rather than to the
general public. These goods and services include prisoner-
built office fumishings; motor pool services; printing,
repreduction and mailing services; information technology;
risk management; and health-related fringe benefits. In the
govemnment-wide statements, Intemal service funds are
included with govemmental activities,

Fiduclary Fund Types:
Pension (and other employee benefits) trust funds -
report resources that are required to be held in trust for the
members - arid beneficiaries of the State’s defined benefit
pension . plans, defined contibution plans, and other
postemployment benefit plans.

Private Purpose Trust Funds - report resources of all other
trust arrangements in which principal and income benelit
individuals, private organizations, or other governments,
Examples include the Siate's Escheats Fund, gifts to the
State, worker disability menies, and others.

Agency Funds — report assets and liabifities for deposits and
investiments entrusted lo the State as an agent for others.

D. Fiscal Year-Ends

All funds and discretely presented component unils are
reported using fiscal years which end on September 30, except
for the Michigan Slate Housing Development Authority and the
ten State universities, which utilize June 30 year-ends.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets/Fund
Balance

Cash and Cash Equivalents

On the Statement of Cash Flows, the amount reported as “Cash
and cash equivalenis” Is equal o the total of the amounts on
the Statement of Net Assets “Cash” and “Equity in Common
Cash,” fess the amount of “Warrants oulstanding.” :

Cash

Cash reported on the Statement of Nat Assels and the Balance
Sheet consists of petty cash, undeposited receipts, deposits in
transt to the Common Cash pool, and cash equivalents such as
short-term investments with original maturities of 1ess than three
months used for cash management rather than invesling
activilies,

Equity in Common Cash

The State Treasurer maintains cenliralized management of most
Slate cash resources (not including component units). From
the perspective of the various State funds, the poo! functions as
both a cash management pool and a demand deposit account.
The operations and investments of the Common Cash pool are
described in Note 5.

Taxes Receivable

Taxes receivable represeni amounis due fo the State at
September 30, which will be collected semetime In the fulure.
in the govemment-wide financial statements, a comesponding
amount is recorded as revenue. In the governmental fund
financial statements, the portion considered “available” (i.e.,
received by the State within approximately 80 days after year-
end} is recorded as revenue; the remainder is recorded as
deferred revenue.  Application of the measurability and
avaitability criteria regarding taxes Is described in Note 6.

Amounts Due From Federal Agencies

For most federally funded programs, revenue is accrued in the
same pericd as related obligations are recorded. In certain
programs financed entirely by the federal govemment,
expenditures and related revenues are recognized only to the
extent of bilings recelved by fiscal year-end. This treatment,
which Is generally limited to cerlain programs within the
Department of Education, understates both asseis and
liabilitles, and expenditures and revenues; however, there is no
impact on net assets or fund balance.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cosl, primarily using the first-in, first-
out flow method. Expenditures {govemmental funds) and
expenses (proprielary funds) are recognized using the
consumption method {i.e., when used or sold),
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Investments

Generally, Investments are reported al fair value, consistent
with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and
Financial Reporing for Certain Investments and for External
Investment_Pools. Short-term, highly liquid debt insfruments
including commercial paper, bankers acceptances, and U.S.
Treasury obligations are reported at amoriized cost.  Additional
disclosures describing investiments are provided in Note 8.

Security Lending Collateral

Securities on loan for cash collateral are reported in the
Statement of Net Assels. Liabilities resulting from the security
lending transactions are also reported. Addilional disclosures
describing security-lending transactions are provided in Note 8.

Other Assets
Other assets include receivables, amounts held in escrow, and
other types of assels not reported on other lines.

Capital Assets

Capital assets and certain improvements of govermmentat fund
types are recorded in the Statement of Net Asssts at historical
cost or, if donated, at the estimated fair market value at the date
of acquisition. In some Instances, capital assel historical cosis
were not availabte; thereiore, the costs of these assets at the
dates of acquisitions have been sstimated.

Infrastructure, such as roads and bridges, is capitafized for the
first time in fiscal year 2000-2001. Interest incuired during
construciion is only capilatized in proprielary funds. Most capital
assets are depreciated over thelr useful lives, using the straight-
line depreclation method. However, lhe State’s significant
infrastruclure assets utilize an altemative accounting treatment
in which cosis to maintain and preserve these assels are
expensed and no depreciation expense is recorded. This
approach s discussed further in the Required Supplementary
Information portion of this report.

Additional disclosures related to capital assels and assets
acquired through capilal leases are provided in Notes 10 and
13, respectively.

Warrants Outstanding

Warrants outstanding represent drafis issued against the State
Treasurer’s Common Cash pool, which have not yet cleared.
These are similar to outstanding checks; howaver, the issuing
funds’ balances in the pool are not reduced unlil warrants are
redeemed.

Income Tax Refunds Payable

The amount of collected or accrued personal income tax
ravenues that will be refunded Is estimated and accrued as a
General Fund liability. Note 16 more fully describes this fability.

Deferred Revenue

In the govemment-wide statemenis and proprietary fund
financial statements deferred revenue is recognized when cash,
receivables, or other assels are received prior to their being
eamed. In the governmental fund statements deferred revenue
is recognized when revenue is uneamed or unavaiiable.

Long-Term Liabllities

In the govemment-wide statemenis and proprietary fund
financial statements, long-term debt and fong-term liabilities are
reported as liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as
issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discounl. Bond
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amontized
over the term of the related debl.

———

In the fund financial statements, govermmental fund types
recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current pericd. The face amount of
the debt issued is reported as other financing sources,
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as olher financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or
not withheld from the actual debt proceeds, are reported as
debt service expenditures.

Long-term liabilities are more fully described in Notes 13, 14,
15, 17, and 18.

Net Assets/Fund Balance

The difference between fund assets and fiabilities is “Net
Assels” on the govemment-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund
statements, and ‘Fund Balance” on govemmental fund
statements.

Reservations

Fund balances for govemmental funds are classified as either
reserved or unreserved In the fund financial statements.
Reserved fund balances reflect either: 1) {unds legally
segregated for a specific use or 2) assets which, by their nature,
are not available for expenditure. Unreserved fund balances
reflect the balances available for appropriation for the general
purposes of the fund. Note 24 provides a disaggregation of
reserved fund balances.

Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

In the government-wide Statement of Activities, revenues and
expenses are segregated by activity {governmentat or business-
type), then further by tfunction (e.g. general govemment,
education, transportation, etc). Additionally, revenues are
classified belween program and general revenues. Program
revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operaling grants and
contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues, rather
than as program revenue. General revenues include all taxes.
Certain indirect costs are included in the program expenses
reported for individual functions.

In the governmental fund financial statements, revenues are
reporied by source. For budgetary control purposes, revenues
are further classified as either “general purpose” or “restricted.”
General purpose revenues are available to fund any activity
accounted for in the fund. Restricted revenues are, either by
State law or by outside restriction {e.g., federal grants),
available only for specified purposes. Unused restricted
revenues at year-end are racorded as reservailons of fund
batance. When bolh general purpose and restricted funds are
available for use, it is the State's policy fo use restricted
resources first.

in the govemmental {und financiat statements, expendilures are
reported by characterr “Cument,” “Capital outlay,”
“Intergovernmental-revenue sharing,” or “Debt service.” Current
expenditures are subclassified by function and are for items
such as salarles, grants, supplies, and services, Tax
expenditures, which represent Income tax credit programs that
are In subslance granis, are also reported as cumrent
expenditures. Thase are described In more detaii in Nole 16.

Capital outlay includes expendiures for real property or
infrastructure {e.g., highways)., Intergovemmental-revenue
sharing accounts for the distribulion of certain {ax revenues that
are shared with local units based upon constitutional and
statutory requirements. Debt service includes both interest and
principal outlays refated fo bends and payments on capitalized
leases.
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Revenues and expenses of proprietary funds are classified as
operaling or nonoperaling and are subclassified by object (e.g.,
salaries, depreciation, and purchases for resale). Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services
and producing and delivering goods. All other revenues and
expenses are reported as nonoperating.

Other Financing Sources

These additions to governmental fund balances in the fund
financial statements include resources and financing provided
by bond proceeds, capital leases, and transfers from other
funds.

Reimbursements

Reimbursements result when a fund orginally making a
disbursement receives resources from another fund to which
the expenditure/expense is more propery attributable. For
example, the State uses this melthod when the administrative
costs of proprietary funds, discretely presented component
unils, or pension {and other employee benefits) trust funds are
appropriated in the General Fund.

interfund Services Provided and Used

When a sale or purchase of program-related goods andfor
services batween funds occurs, for a price approximating their
external exchange value, the seller reports revenuve and the
purchaser expenditure or expense, depending upon the fund

type.

Transactions bsetween the primary goverament and a discretely
presented component unit are generally classilied as revenues
and expenses, unless thay represent repayments of loans or
similar activities.

Other Financing Uses

These reductions of governmental fund rescurces in fund
financial stalemenis normally result from transfers to other
funds.

o

G.

p—

Interfund Activity and Balances

Interfund Activity

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide statements. Exceplions
to this rule are: 1) aclivities between funds reported as
governmental acliviies and funds reported as business-lype
activities (examples include the transfers of profits from the
Liquor Purchase Revolving Fund to General Fund and the
Lottery Fund to the School Aid Fund) and 2} activilies between
funds that are reported in different functional categoties in
either the governmential or business-type activities column
(examples include activities between the Depariment of
Treasury {general government line} and the Department of
Education jeducation line)). Elimination of these activities woutd
distort the direct costs and program revenues for the functions
concemed.

In the fund financial statements, transfers represent flows of
assets (such as goods or cash) without equivalent fiows of
assets in retumn or a requirement for repayment. In addition,
transfers are recorded when a fund receiving revenue provides
it to the fund which expends the resources. An example is gas
laxes collected by the Department of Transportaiion but
expended by the Department of Natural Resources.

Interfund Balances

Interfund receivables and payables have been etiminated from
the Statement of Net Assets, except for the residual amounis
due between govemmental and business-type activities.
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NOTE 2 - FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS BY CLASSIFICATION

|

The following table lists all of the funds and component units whose
balances are reflected in this financial report.

identified by an **". For each fund or component unit listed, the
SOMCAFR page number of the first financial staternent for that fund
or component unit is shown in parenthesis.

Operating funds which are subject to annual appropriation and for

which budget and aclual schedules are included in his repert are

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:

MAJOR FUNDS

Governmental; Proprietary:

General Fund*® (p. 20} Siale Lottery Fund (p. 26)

Counter-Cyclical Budget and Economic Slabilization Fund* (p. 20) Michigan Unemployment Compensation Funds {p. 26)
School Aid Fund” (p. 20}

NON-MAJOR FUNDS

Governmental:

Speclal Revenue Funds:
Transportation Related:
State Aeronautics Fund® (p. 106)
State Trunkiine Fund® {p. 106}
Michigan Transportation Fund* (p. 108}
Comprehensive Transporiation Fund® (p. 106}
Combined State Trunkiine Bond Proceeds Fund (p. 107)
Combined Comprehensive Transporiation Bond
Proceeds Fund (p. 107)
Transportation Related Trust Funds (p. 107)

Conservation, Environment, and Recreation Related:
Game and Fish Protection Fund® (p. 116}
Michigan State Waterways Fund® (p. 116)
Marine Safety Fund* (p. 116)
Game and Fish Protection Trust Fund {p. 116)
State Park improvement Fund* (p. 117}
Combined Recreation Bond Fund - Local Projects (p. $17)
Combined Environmental Protection Bond Fund (p. 117)
Michigan Nongame Fish and Wildlife Fund® (p. 117)
Forest Development Fund” (p, 117)
Michigan Underground Storage Tank Financial
Assurance Fund (p. 117)
Bottie Deposits Fund (p. 118)
Michigan Underground Sforage Tank Financiat Assurance
Finance Authority {p. 118)

Regulatory and Administrative Related:

Michigan Employment Security Act — Administration
Fund® (p. 130)

Safety Education and Tralning Fund* (p. 130)

Uninsured Employers’ Security Fund (p. 130)

State Construction Code Fund® (p. 130)

Homeowner Gonstruction Lien Recovery Fund®* (p. 130)

State Casino Gaming Fund* (p. 131)

Second Injury Fund (p. 131)

Silicosis, Dust Disease, and Logging Industry
Compensation Fund {p. 131)

Self-Insurers’ Security Fund (p. 131)

Utility Consumer Representation Fund (p. 131)

Other State Funds:
School Bond Loan Fund {p. 140)
Tobacco Settlement Trust Fund* (p. 140}
Michigan Merit Award Trust Fund® (p. 140)
Assigned Claims Facllity and Plan Fund {p, 141)
Miscellaneous Special Revenus Funds (p. 141)

Debt Service Funds:

Combined State Trunkline Bond and Interest Redemption
Fund (p. 148)

Combined Comprehensive Transporiation Bond and Interest
Redemption Fund {p. 148)

Recreation and Environmental Protection Bond
Redemplion Fund {p. 148)

School Loan Bond Redemption Fund {p. 149)

Siate Building Authority {p. 149}

Michigan Underground Storage Tank Financial Assurance
Finance Authority {p. 149)

Capital Projects Funds:
Combined Recrealion Bond Fund - State Projects (p. 154)
Advance Financing Funds {p. 154)
State Building Authority (p. 154)

Permanent Funds:
Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund* {p, 158}
Michigan State Parks Endowment Fund* (p. 158)
Michigan Civillan Conservation Corps Endowment
Fund* (p. 158)
Michigan Veterans’ Trust Fund* (p. 159)
Chitdren's Trust Fund* {p. 159)

Proprietary:

Enterprise Funds:
Liquor Purchase Revelving Fund (p. 26)

internal Service Funds:
Correctional Industries Revolving Fund (p. 166)
Motor Transport Fund {p. 166)
Offlce Services Revolving Fund (p. 166)
Information Technology and Energy Fund {p. 167)
Risk Management Fund {p. 167}
State Sponsored Group Insurance Fund {p. 167)

Fiduciary:

Penslon (and other employee benefits) trust funds:
State Employees’ Deferred Compensation Funds (p. 174)
Legisiative Retirement Fund {p. 174)
State Police Retirement Fund (p. 174)
State Employees’ Retirement Fund (p. 175)
Public School Employees’ Retirement Fund (p. 175}
Judges' Retirement Fund (p. 175)
Slate Employees’ Defined Contribution Retirement
Fund (p. 175}
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Private Purpose Trust Funds:
Escheats Fund (p. 180)
Gifts, Bequests, and Deposits Invesiment Fund (p. 180}
Hospital Patients’ Trust Fund {p. 180}

Federal Housing Administration Mortgages Escrow Fund (p. 181)

Michigan Educalion Savings Program {p. 181)
Workers’ Disability Compensation Trust Funds {p. 181)

PISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS:

Authorities:

Major Funds:
Michigan Education Trust {p. 36}
Michigan State Housing Development Authority {p. 36)
Michigan Municipal Bond Authority {p. 36)

Non-Major Funds:
Michigan Higher Education Facilities Authority {p. 190}
Mackinagc Bridge Authority {p. 190)
Michigan Strategic Fund (p. 180}
Michigan State Hospital Finance Authority (p. 190)
Michigan Higher Education Student Loan Authority (p. 191)
Michigan Higher Education Assistance Authority {p. 191}
Mackinac Island State Park Commission (p. 191)
State Bar of Michigan (p. 191)
Michigan Economic Development Corporation (p. 191)

(1) Michigan State University, the University of Michigan, and
Wayne Slate University are not included in the Slale’s
reporting entity because they have separately elecled
goveming boards and are legally separate from the State.

Agency Funds:
Financlal Institutions Deposits Fund (p. 186)
Environmental Quality Deposits Fund (p. 185)
insurance Carrier Deposils Fund (p. 185}
State Freasurer’s Escrow and Paying Agent Fund (p. 185)
Child Support Collection Fund (p. 185}

State Universities (1):

Major Funds:
Gentral Michigan University {p. 37)
Westem Michigan University {p. 37)

Non-Major Funds:
Eastern Michigan University (p. 194)
Ferris State University (p. 194)
Grand Vallay State University (p. 194)
Lake Superior State University {p. 184}
Michigan Technological University {p. 195}
Northem Michigan University {p. 195}
Qakland University (p. 185)
Saginaw Valley State University {p. 195}

The State provides significant funding to support these
institutions; however, undear the GASB Statement No. 14 criteria,
they are considered fiscally independent special-purpose
govemments.

A. Major Constitutional and Statutory Provisions

Bafanced Budget Requirements

Article 5 of the State Constitution mandates that the executive
budget recommend spending limits for operating funds lo the
Leglslature that are within avaitable resources. Comphance
with this is demonstrated in the executive budget and budget
bilts for each fiscal year.

Article 4 of the State Conslitution mandates the Legislature to
enact appropriations for each operaling fund that does not
exceed that fund’s revenue estimates, including beglnning
unressrved fund balance.

Compliance with this requirernent is demonstrated in schedules
included in the annual appropriation acts, usually the “General
Govemment” appropriation act. When it appears that revenue
will fall below the estimates on which the appropriations are
based, the Govemor is required lo recommend spending
reductions as necessary to avold a year-end deficit.

Local Spending Requirements

Article 9, Section 30 of the State Constitution requires that Stale
spending to, or on behalf of, local units of government shalt not
fall below a specified percentage of total State spending. The
percentage, recalculated effective with fiscal year 1992-1993, is
48.97%.

Final calculations establishing the State’s compliance with this
constitutional provislon for fiscal year 2000-2001 are not yet
complete. For fiscal year 1999-2000, the most recent year for
which final calculations are available, the proportion of total
State spending paid to local unils of govemment was

NOTE 3 — BUDGETING, BUDGETARY CONTROL, AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE

determined to be 61.68%, reflecting payments that exceeded
the minimum required by $3.0 billion. The Slate expects that
payments to focal units of government will exceed the minimum
requirement for fiscal year 2000-2001.

Revenue Limits

Arlcle 9, Section 26, of the State Conslitulion restricts State
revenues to a ceiling that is based upon revenues as a
proportion of total personal income for the State, The base year
ratio, determined In fiscal year 1978-1979, in relation to
calendar year 1977 personal income, is 9.49%. Both the
constitutional language and Implementing statutes provide for
other adjustments to the revenue and personal income
calcutations. If revenues exceed the limit by 1% or more, the
amount In excess must be refunded to personal income tax
payers and payers of the State’s single business tax. [f the limit
is exceeded by an amount less than 1%, the excess may be
deposited into the Stale’s Budge! Stabilization Fund. The
calculations determining the State’s compliance with this
constitutional provision for {iscal year 2000-2001 are nol final.
For flscal year 1999-2000, the most recent year for which final
calculations are avallable, total State revenues subject to this
limitation exceeded the constitutiona! limit by $159.7 million.
The State expects that total State revenues subject to the
limitation wili not exceed the Amit for fiscal year 2000-2001.
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Budget Stabilization Fund

The Counter-Cyclical Budget and Economic Stabilization Fund
{*"Budgst Stabilization Fund”) was created by P.A. 76 of 1977 to
assist in stabilizing revenue and employment during periods of
economic recession. In general, the law requires payments into
the fund when real sconomic growth exceeds 2% and allows
withdrawals from the fund when real economic growth is less
than 0%. Funds can also be withdrawn when the State’s
unemployment rate exceeds 8% or upon appropriation o
finance capital oullay or other projects, or for other purposes
designated by the Legislature.

The following lable summarizes the transactions for the fund for
fiscal year 2000-2001 (in millions):

Beginning unteserved fund balance $ 12644
Interest incorme 66.7
Transfers to Generat Fund (270.0)
Transfers to School Aid Fund (32.0)
‘Transfers to State Trunkline Fund {35.0)

Ending unreserved fund balance $ 994.2

Transfers to the General Fund represent the transfer of $77.0
million pursuant to P.A. 112 of 2001, Section 353 (10}, and the
transfer of $193.0 million, pursuant to P.A, 161 of 2001, Section
353 {11). These transfers were made lo ensure a baflanced

General Fund budget. The transfer to the School Aid Fund is
for the purpose of making appropriations to schoo! districts and
intermediate schoo! districts as required by P.A. 431 of 1984, as
amended. The transfer to the State Trunkline Fund Is for the
purpose of funding a portion of the Build Michigan lil program,
pursuant to P.A. 189 of 2000, Section 358.

B. Budgetary Overexpenditures

In the event ihal expenditures exceed authorization during a
year, the department must request a supplemental
appropriation for the amount overspent, if that amount exceeds
their lapses or if they expect to make payments from prior year
authorization in the next fiscal year. There were no net
overexpenditures by General Fund departments. There were,
however, the folfowing line-item overexpenditures of State
funds incurred during the year, which represent non-compliance
with State budget laws (in millions):

General Fund;

Communily Health $ 3.3
Career Development .6
General Fund Total $ 31.9

NOTE 4 — ACCOUNTING CHANGES AND RESTATEMENTS

During fiscal year 2000-2001, the State implemented several new
accounting standards issued by GASB:

Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Bepoerting for Non-
exchange Transactions,

No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Govemments,

No. 35, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's
Discussion and Analysis ~ for Public Colleges and Universities,

No. 36, Becjpient Beporling for Certain Shared Non-exchange
Revenues,

No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's
Discussion and Analysis - for Slate and Local Governments:
Omnibus, and

No. 38, Cerain Financlal Statement Note Disclosures.

Staterment No. 33, as amended by Statement No. 36, establishes
standards for recording non-exchange transactions on the modified
accrual and accrual bases of accounting. - The State derives a
significant portion of its revenue from non-exchange transactions,
such as laxes and federal ald. The effect on the tax related non-
exchange fransactions recorded as revenue In the govemmental
funds was Insignificant. However, the State recorded laxes
recelvable of $2.5 billion in the governmental fund financlal
statements with a corresponding amount reported as deferred
revenug. These amounts represent deferred revenues from non-
exchange transactions during the fiscal year, which are not available
to finance expenditures of the current period. On the govemment-
wide financial slatemens reported on the accrual basis of

accounting, taxes receivablie are recorded as described in the
preceding sentence; however, corresponding amounts are reporied
as revenue insiead of delerred ravenue.

Statement No. 34, as amended by Statement MNo. 37, establishes
new financial reporting standards for state and local govemments.
This statement’s requirements represent a significant change in the
financial reporing model used by state governments, including
statement formats and changes in fund types and account groups.
In addition to fund financial statements, governments are required to
report govemnment-wide financial statements, prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting and the economic resouices
measurement focus. As a result, fund reclassifications and
adjustments to the fund equities reported in the prior financlal
statement balances were required.

Statement No. 35 establishes accounting and financlal reporiing
standards for public colleges and universities within the financial
reporting guidelines of Statement No. 34. The State universities,
reported as discrately presented component units, adopled the
requirements of Statemnent No, 35.

Slatement No. 38 requires cestain note disclosures when Statement
No. 34 is implemented.

The provisions of these new standards have been incomporated into
the financial statements and notes. The following tables summarize
{in miflions} changes to fund equilies as previously reporied on the
Combined Balance Sheet. The changes resulted primarily from
implementation of these GASB Statements, however, the Stats
Building Authority, a capital projects fund, restated its fund equity by
$348.1 million to propedy reflect commerclat paper as a long-term
liability.
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September 30,
2000 Prior September 30,
As Previously Fund Period 2000
Reporfed Reclassificalions Adjustments As Restated
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS AND ACTIVITIES
Major Funds:
General Fund $ 2,101.3 $ - $ - $ 2,101.3
Previously reported as Special Revenue Funds:
Budget Stabitization Fund - 1,264.4 - 1,264.4
School Aid Fund - 985.6 - 985.6
Non-major Funds:
Special Revenue Funds:
Transporialion Related:

Other Transportation related funds 51914 - - 519.1
Total Fund Balances 5191 - - 519.1
Conservation, Envirenment, and Recreation

Related:

Michigan Nalural Resources Trust Fund 2313 (231.3) - -

Michigan Slate Parks Endowment Fund 93.7 {93.7) - -

Michigan Civitian Conservation Corps

Endovment Fund 220 {22.0) -
Other Conservation, Environment, and
Recreallon Related funds 373.1 - - 373.1
Total Fund Balances 720.1 (347.0) - 3731
Regulatory and Administrative Related:
" Second Injury Fund - 2.0 - 9.0
Silicosls, Dust Disease, and Logging
Industry Compensation Fund - 4.5 - 4.5

Sell-Insurers’ Security Fund - 2.0 - 2.0

Uility Consumer Representation Fund - 1.8 - 1.8

Other Regulatory ang Administrative Funds 16.6 - - 16.6
Total Fund Balances 16.6 i7.2 - 338
Other State Funds:

Budge! Stabilization Fund 1,264.4 {1,264.4) - -

School Aid Fund 985.6 {985.6) - -

Michigan Veterans' Trust Fund 48.8 (48.8) - -

Chitdren’s Trust Fund 20.6 (20.6) - -

Miscellangous Other State Funds - 3.9 - 3.9

Other State Funds 168.0 - - 168.0
Total Fund Balances 2,487.5 (2,315.8) - 171.9

Total Special Revenue Funds: 3,743.3 {2,645.4) - 1,087.9

Debt Service Funds 2918 - - 2918

Capital Projects Fund:

State Building Authority (457.8) - 348.1 (109.8)
Other Capital Projects Funds {44.5) - . (44.5)

Tolal Capilal Projects Funds (502.3) . 348.1 {154.2)

Permmanent Funds:

- Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund - 231.3 - 2313
Michigan State Parks Endowment Fund - 93.7 - 93.7
Michigan Civillan Conservation Cormps

Endowment Fund - 22.0 - 22.0
Michigan Veterans' Trust Fund - 48.8 - 48.8
Children’s Trust fund - 20.6 - 20,6

Tolal Permanent Funds - 416.4 - 416.4

Total Non-major Funds: 3,632.8 {2,228.9) 348.1 1,652.0
Tolat Governmental Funds $ 5,634.1 $ 21.2 $ 3481 $ 6,003.4
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Adoption of GASB Statement No. 33 and 34

Revenue recognition

Capital assels, net of depreciation
Long-term bonds and notes payabie
Other liabilities and long-term obligations
Interest in joint venture

Net pension assels

Net pension liabilties

Internal service fund conversion

Adoption of GASB Statemeni No. 33 and 34

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS AND ACTIVITIES

PROPRIETARY FUNDS AND BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES

Major Funds:
Michigan Unemployment Compensation Funds
State Lottery Fund
Total nel assels

Non-major Funds:
Liguor Purchase Revolving Fund

Internal Service Funds

TOTAL PROPRIETARY FUNDS AND BUSINESS-
TYPE ACTIVITIES

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Pension (and other employee benefils) Trust Funds:
State Employees’ Deferred Compensalion Funds
Other Pension Trust Funds

Total Pension {and other employee benefits) Trust
Funds

Private Purpose Funds:
Escheals Fund
Gifts, Bequests, and Deposits Investment Fund
Hospital Patients’ Trust Fund
Federal Housing Administration Mortgages
Escrow Fund
Workers' Disability Compensation Funds
Tolal Private Purpose Trust Funds

Funds previously reported as Expendable Trust
Funds:
Michigan Unemployment Compensation Fund
Michigan Employment Securily Act Contingent

Fund

Second Injury Fund
State Employees’ Deferred Compensation Funds
Miscellaneous Trust Accounts Fund

Total Expendable Trust Funds

TOTAL FIDUCIARY FUNDS
ACCOUNT GROUPS

General Fixed Assels

General Long-term Obligalions
TOTAL ACCOUNTY GROUPS

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

September 30,

2000 Prior September 30,
As Previously Fund Period 2000
Reporled Reclassificalions Adjustments As Reslated

- $ - $ 22193 $ 2,219.3

- 36715 13,347.8 17,0193
- - {4.239.7) {4,239.7}
- - {1,921.3) (1,921.3)

- - 250 25.0

- - 94.9 94.9
- - (20.5) (20.5)

- 68.0 - 68.0

- 3,739.5 9,6505.5 13,245.0

5,634,1 $ 3,760.7 $ 98538 $ 19,2484

- $ 3.262.0 $ 1841 $ 3.280.1

50.8 - - 50.9

50.9 3,262.0 18.1 3,330.9

6.7 - - 6.7

68.0 {68.0) - -

3 125.6 % 3,193.9 3 18.1 3 3,337.6
$ - $ 3,654.9 $ - $ 3,554.9
53,7568.2 - - 53,768.2
53,758.2 3,554.9 - 57,3131

- - 2.7 21.7

- 35.6 - 35.6

- 8 . 8

- i.2 - 1.2

- 1.8 - 1.8

- 39.4 21.7 61.1

3,178.7 (3.178.7) - -

83.3 (83.3) - -

9.0 (2.0 . -

3,554.9 {3,554.9) - -

516 {51.6) - -

6,877.4 (6,877.4) - -

% 60,635.6 $ (3,283.1) $ 21.7 $ 57,374.2

$ 3,671.6 $ {3,671.5) $ - $ -

$ 3,671.5 $ (3,671.5) $ - 8 -

$ 70,066.8 $ - $ 90,8034 $ 79,960.2
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September 30,
2000 Prior September 30,
As Previously Fund Period 2000
Reported Reclassifications Adjusiments As Reslated
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS $ 4,021.7 $ - $ - $ 4,021.7
Adoption of GASB Statement Ne. 33, 34 and 35:
Revenue and expense recognition - - {1.3) (1.3)
Capital assels, ne! of depreciation - 914 9t.4
Fund reclassilication {57.0} - (57.0}
OCther - 8.4 8.4
Total Net Assets for Discrelely Presented
Component Units — restated $ 4,021.7 (57.0) $ 98.5 3 4,083.2

NOTE 5 - TREASURER’S COMMON CASH

A. General Accounting Policies the Treasurer did not use these agreements in managing the
pool in fiscal year 2000-2001.
The State Freasurer manages the State’s Common Cash pool, . . . .
which is used by most State funds. The pooling of cash atlows Statutes provide for cerlam‘spec;a! State investment programs
the Treasurer lo invest monies not needed to pay immedlate for which the General Fund is credited {charged) for eamings in
obligations so that Investment eamings on available cash are excess of (under) those achleved by regular pool investments.
maximized. Invesimenls of the pool are not segregated by There have been no principal losses bocause of these
fund; rather, each contributing fund’s balance is treated as programs to dale. The most significant program provides for
equily in the pool. Many funds, including pension (and other emergency loans to local unils of goverment. The Treasurer
employee benefits} trust funds, use their equity in the pool as a may loan not more than a combined total of $5 million in any
shortlerm investiment vehicle. The Treasurer separately one fiscal year to qualifying cities, villages, or townships in
publishes the “Annual Report of the State Treasurer” which amounts as approved by the Emergency Financial Assistance
includes audited schedules of Common Cash Assels and Loan Board.
Equities, Investment Portfolios of Specific Funds, and ] . \
Investment Eamings. in fiscal year 19989-2000 the Emergency Financial Assistance
Loan Board was authorized to approve the lending of up to
In this report, the Common Cash pool is nol reported as a $159.9 million to Wayne Counly lo finance the payment of
separate fund. instead, each Stale fund’s balance in the pool is certain obligations to the State. T"‘IE oulstanding balance at
presented as “Equity in Common Cash.” September 30, 2001 was $41.8 million. Loan repayments by
the County are supported by provisions of the loan agreement
Alf negalive balances in the pool are reclassified at year-end as and legislation that ptedge the County's share of a portion of the
interfund liabilities. i the negative balance Is considered long- State collected taxes on cigaretles. There were no repayments
term, the reclassification is recorded as an advance. on the foans in fiscal year 2000-2001.
Statute or administrative policy determines whether a particular Michigan Marina_Dredging Loan Progiam: Public Act 280 of
fund receives or pays interest on its balances in the pool. i a 2000 provides for a program under which financial institutions
fund doss nol receive or pay Interest, the General Fund may make low-interest loans to eligible marinas for dredging
fecelves or absorbs such amounts. Eamings on positive costs necessitated by low water levels to accommodale the use
balances and charges on negaftive balances are allocated of the marina by recreational watercraft.
quarterly based upon the average daily balances of the various ]
funds and the average investment eamings rate for the quarter, Under this program, the Department of Treasury and a financlal
Accrued eamings of the pool are recorded as assets, with the institution may enter Into an investment agreement under which
acerual aflocated to the various funds' equity in the pool. the Dapartment of Treasury will invest the State’s Common
Inlerest revenues on posilive balances and interest charges on Cash with the financial institution at an agreed upon inferest
negative balances are reflected as revenues  or rate (generally 1.5 percent per annum). The financial institution
expenditures/expenses of each of the particlpating funds. Wlll‘lhen use the principal to make a low-interest loan {o an
eligible marina,
B. Investments and Deposits

The investment authority for the Common Cash pool is found in
P.A. 105 of 1855, as amended. The State Treasurer may invest
surplus funds belonging to the State In the bonds, notes, and
other evidences of indebtedness of the Unlted Stales
Govemment, and its agencies; and in prime commercial paper.
Certificates of deposit are pemmitted in financial institutions
whose principat office Is located in the State.

The Treasurer invasts excess cash in short-term investments,
mosily prime commercial paper. The law does not prohibit the
Treasurer from entering into repurchase agreements; however,

The Act specifies that the maximum amount of a Michigan
marina-dredging {oan is $75 thousand per marina. The total
amount of outstanding loans is statutorily limited to $20 milllon.
The loans accrue at an interest rate of six percent, and the
loans' term may not exceed seven years, Other details about
the loans are available in the invesiment agreement. The total
amount loaned in fiscal year 2000-2001 was $.6 million;
repaymenits during the year were $71 thousand.
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Assels and equities of the Common Cash pool as of September
30 were as follows {in millions):

ASSETS
Cash on hand $ -
Demand deposits 128.1
Time deposits — regular 54.0
Time deposits — Marina Loan Programs &
Prime commercial paper — at cost 4,649.6
Interest receivable 13.8
Ernergency toans to local units — at cost S
Total assels $ 4,788.2
EQUITIES
Fund equities {net) in Common Cash (1}:
Governmental activities $ 42113
Business-type activities 147.4
Fiduciary funds 209.5
Discrelely presented component units 219.9
Net fund equities $ 4,788.2

{1} Negative equity balances in the pool are reclassified at
year-end as interfund receivables and liabilities, Current
balances are included with “Amounts due from other
funds” and “Amounts due to other funds” and long-term
amounts are classified as interfund advances. Note 20
summarizes interfund receivables and liabilifies.

The following paragraphs provide disclosures about deposits
and Investments of the Common Cash pool, as required by
GASB Statement No. 3. Please see Note 8 for a description of
the GASB custodial credit risk calegories and for information
about deposils and investments, which are not part of the
Common Gash pool.

Deposits

At September 30, 2001, the carrying amount of deposits,
including time and demand deposits, was $182.6 million. The
deposits were reffected in the accourts of the banks at $182.6
million. Of the bank batance, $7.1 million was covered by
federal depository insurance (GASB credit risk category 1),
$174.9 milion was collateralized with securities held by the
Siate's agent in the Stata’s name {GASB credit risk category 13,
and $.8 milllon of demand deposits which are uninsured and
uncollateralized (GASB credit risk category 3). Compensating
balances kept in demand deposit accounts to avoid service
charges totaled $198.5 million at Seplember 30, 2001.

Investments

Using the GASB categories of custodial credit risk, all of the
investments {including prime commaercial paper and emergency
municipal loans) are in category 1. The emergency municipal
loans are evidenced by notes held by the State in the State’s
name, so they fall in cuslodial credit risk category 1. At
Seplember 30, 2001, the fair value of prime commercial paper
was $4.6 billion.

NOTE 6 — TAXES RECEIVABLE

Taxes receivable represent amounts due to the State at Septernber
30, for revenues eamed in fiscal year 2000-2001, which will be
collected sometime in the fulure. Amounts expected to be collecied
in the next fiscal year are classified as “current” and amounts
axpected to be collected heyond the next fiscal year are classified as
“noncurrent.” The receivables have been recorded net of allowances
for uncollectibles. Sales, use, single business, and income taxes are
accrued to the extent that the related sales, wage, or aclivity being
faxed occurred prior to October 1. Property taxes receivable are
accrued when taxes are levied against the property owners.

In the government-wide financial statemenis, a corresponding
amount is recorded as revenue using the accrual basis of
accounting. In the governmental fund financial statements, revenue
s recorded using the modified accrual basis of accounting for
amounts due to the State at September 30 (as stated above) that are
considered “avallable” (e.g. received by the Slate within
approximately 60 days after that date}. The remainder is recorded
as deferred revenue. Annual fax payments {i.e., those paid with an
annual return, such as individual personal income taxes filed in April)

have not been accrued because they are neither reasonably
estimable nor available. The State accrues single business taxes
received prior to December 1 (i.e., quarterdy filings due November
30).

Local units of government, as agents for the State, assess the State
property tax. Taxes are due and payable at the same lime as local
unit taxes and are generally divided into a summer portion payable to
the focal units on the succeeding July 1 and a winter portion due
December 31. The Staie accrues revenues raceived by the State or
the local units, on its behalf, during Oclober and November, Since
the property taxes are levied and received by the locat units, it is not
feasible for the State to measwwe and record delinquent amounts
receivable and, therefore, no delinquent amounts are recorded or
reflecled in the table below. The accrued telephone and telegraph
taxes are due December 1 and were received at approximately that
time. Delinquent taxes are recognized to the extent that they will be
collected within 12 months.
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Tax

Sales & use

Individual income

Single business

State education {properly) tax

Telephone & telegraph

Motor fue!

Insurance - relatialory

Estate & inheritance

Tobacco producls

COther

Penaliies and interest
Gross taxes receivable
Less allowance for uncollectibles
Total taxes receivable (net}

As reported on the financial statemenls
Current taxes receivable

Noncurrent taxes receivable
Totat taxes receivable {net}

Taxes receivable as of September 30, consisted of the following {in millions):

Special
General Revenue
Fund Funds Total

$ 3201 $ 601.2 $ 921.2
1,783.5 29856.7 2,079.2
1,805.1 . 1,805.1

- 557.8 577.8

67.4 - 67.4

A4 240.0 240.1

56.4 - 56.4

39.1 - 394

23.9 43.7 67.6

304 57.0 87.4

909.8 2 910.0
5,035.7 1,815.6 6,851.3
{1,661.5) {396.0) {2,057.5}

$ 33742 $ 1,419.6 $ 4,793.8
$ 2,680.7 3 1,283.1 $ 3,963.8
693.4 136.6 830.0

$ 33742 $ 1,418.6 $ 4,793.8

The State is a participant in the jolnl venture described below.
Joint ventures are not reflected as component units within this
report because they do not meet the GAAP criteria for inclusion.
Their separately issued financial statements may be obtained
by directly contacting the applicable organizations. To obtain
thelr phone numbers, you may contact the Office of the State
Budgst, Office of Financial Management, Financlal Reporling
Section at (517) 373-3020.

Great Lakes Protection Fund

{GLPF) Is a not-for-profit corporation located in Chicago, lllinois.
Its purpose is to finance and support research with respect to
water quality of the Great Lakes. The eight states bordering the
Great Lakes are sligible 10 become members if they make a
required contribution to the endowment of GLPF.

Contribution requirements were established based upon water
consumption and usage. Contribulions to GLPF are
permanently restricted and are not available for disbursement.
Michigan is the largest contributor, having made a contribution
of $25 miflion, constituting approximately 31% of the total
Michigan made its required contribution by issuing GLPF a
general obligation bond authorized as part of the State's
environmental protection bond program. No  additional
contributions from Michigan will be required. - :

NOTE 7 — JOINT VENTURES AND AFFILIATED FOUNDATIONS

A. Joint Ventures - Primary Government

Two members on GLPF's board of directors represent each of
the participating seven member states. The slates’ respective
govemors select the board members. Directors control GLPF's
financing and budgeting cperations, within requirements
established by the Aricles of Incorporation. One-third of the net
eamings on total contributions (after operating expenses) Is
granted to the respective states in proportion to their
contiibutions to GLPF. Two-thirds of the net earmings are
avallable lo GLPF to make other grants. The State’s equity
interest in GLPF of $25 million is reflected as an asset in the
government-wide stalements,

Affiliated Foundations - Discretely Presented
Component Units

Several of the State university component units are affiliated
with independent corporate foundations that exist for the sole
purpose of soliciting, collecting, and investing donations for the
benefit of the universities. The operations and nel assets of
these foundations are not included in the financlal statemenls of
the universities duse to their independence. At June 30, 2001,
net assets held by these foundations totaled $316.5 miltion.
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NOTE 8 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

A.

General Information

This note provides information for all deposits and investments
except those of the Common Cash pool, which are described in
Nole 5. GASB Stalement No. 3 requires cenain disclosures
regarding policies and practices with respect to deposits,
investments, and the custodial credit risk associated with them.

Deposits
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 3, deposils are
classified into three calegories of custodial credi risk as follows:

Category 1: Insured or collateralized with securities hsld by
the entity or by its agent in the enlity's name,

Category 2;: Collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution’s trust department or agent in the enlily’s
name.

Category 3: \Uncollateratized (this includes any bank bafance
that Is collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial Institution, or by its trust department or agent, but not
in the entity’s name).

Investments

In accordance with GASB Slatement No. 3, investments are
also classified into three categories of custodial credit risk as
follows:

Category 1: insured or registered, or securities held by the
entity or its agent in the antity's name.

Category 2: Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held
by the counterparty’s trust departiment or agent In the entity's
name.

Category 3: Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held
by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent but not in
the entity’s name. (This includes the portion of the carrying
amount of any repurchase agreement that exceeds the fair
value of the underlying securities.)

Centain types of invesiments are not calegorized because they
are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book
entry form. Deposits classitied as investments on the balance
sheet are included in the invesitment tables following and are
categorized using the deposit risk category definitions,

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 28, Accounting and
Financlal Repotting for Securities Lending Transactions,
securities tent at year-end for cash coliateral have not been
categorized by custedial risk, while securities lent for securiliss
collateral have besn categonzed

'Deposits and Investments - Primary Government

Deposits

In addition 1o equity in the Common Cash pool, some State
funds maintain deposits with financial institutions. Al year-end,
the c¢arrying amount of such deposits, excluding those classlfied

.- as Investments, was negative $11.1 million, which was caused
.- primarily by & net book cash overdraft in an account maintalned

by the Michigan Unemployment Compensation Funds (MUCF).
The deposits were reflected in the accounts of the banks at
$12.6 million. Of the bank balances, $.2 million was covered by
federal depository Insurance or by collateral held by the Slate's
agents in the Slale's name (GASB credit risk category #1),
$11.3 million was covered by collateral held in the pledging

banks' trust depariments In the State’s name {(GASB credit risk
calegory #2), and $1.2 million was uninsured and
uncoliateralized (GASB credit risk category #3),

Investments

Investment authority for the State’s pension (and other
employee benefits) trust funds is found in P.A. 314 of 1965, as
amended. This act allows the State Treasurer, as Investment
fiduciary, to make diverse investments in stocks, corporate and
government bonds and notes, mortgages, real estale, venture
capifal, and other investments. The act has prudence
standards and requires that the assels of a retirement system
shall be invested solely in the inlerest of the participants and
beneficiaries and be made for the exclusive purpose of
providing benefits to the participanls and the padicipanis’
beneficiaries, and of defraying reasonable expenses of
investing the assets of the Slate system,

The State Treasurer is also authorized to invest a limited
amount of pension {and other employee benefits) trust funds in
futures contracts. At September 30, the pension (and other
employee benefits) trust funds had a total of $205.0 million
{market value) invested in such investments, which were made
in Slandard & Poers 500 and Standard & Poors Midcap Index
futures contracts during the year. Derivatives are used for a
small amount of the pension (and other employee benefits) trust
fund portfolios to provide additional diversification. However,
derivalives are not used for speculation and they are not used
to leverage the investment portfolios. Less than 7% of the total
pension (and other employee benefits) tust funds portfolio has
been invested from time io time in futures contracls and swap
agreemenis. The swap agreements provide that the retirement
systems will pay quarterly, over the term of the swap
agreements, interest indexed to the three month London
Interbank Offered Rate (Libor), adjusted for an intersst rate
spread, on the notional amount stated in the agreemenis.
United States domestic Libor-based floating rate notes were
purchased in the open market to correspond with the notional
amount of the swap agreements. The State Treasurer
maintains custody and control of these noles. Swap
agreemants represent the largest category of derivatives used
and total 6.4% of the total portfolio.

State stalutes atlow the pension (and other employee benefits)
trust funds or other State funds to participate in securities
lending transactions. The State Treasurer has authorized the
agent bank to fend pension (and other employee benefits) trust
lund or other State fund securities to broker-deaters and banks
pursuant to a form of loan agreement,

The investment authority for other State funds is found in their
enabling statules and/or their bond resolutions where
applicable. Except as noted below, the investments of the non-
pension (and other employee benefils) itrust funds are
comprised mostly of United States government securities.

The State Buliding Authority makes diverse investments as
allowad by State statute and/or bond resolutions.

Investments of MUCF represent their interest in a U.S. Treasury
trust fund managed by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant
to Title IX of the Soclal Security Act, which includes deposits
from the unemployment compensation funds of various slates,
MUCF is credited quarterly with trust fund lnvestment eamings,
as computed on a daily basls.
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The deferred compensation plans are invested in mutual funds,
U.S. Treasury stips, money market funds, and pooled
investment funds. During fiscal year 2000-2001, the deferred
compensation plans' invesiment activities were managed by a
private investment firm, which invests as direcled by memboers
of the plan. .

As a matter of administrative policy, the State Treasurer makes
only limited use of investments in repurchase agreements. No
such investments were oulstanding at year-end.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values
of investments of the primary government by investment type
and in total {In millions) at September 30:

GASB Category
Tolal
Not Carrying Fair
#1 #2 #3 Categorized Value Value

Prime commercial paper $ 30824 $ - $ 40.5 8 - $ 3,122.9 $ 31175
Short-term issues 2000 - - 100.0 300.0 3015
Money market funds - - - 244.3 244.3 244.3
Government securities 4,348.2 - 165.8 104.0 4,618.1 4,618.1
Investment agreements i7.5 - - - 17.56 17.5
Corporate bonds and notes 4,524.6 - - 4,524.6 45246
Equities 18,470.8 - - 18,470.8 18,470.8
Mortgages - - - 44.6 44.6 44.6
Real estate (1) 83.1 - - 4,148.1 4,241.2 4,241.2
Venture capital and leveraged

buyouts 283.4 - - 6,617.9 6,906.3 6,906.3
Intemational 2,987.7 - - - 2,987.7 2,987.7
U.S. Treasury {unemployment)

{rust fund - - - 2,834.5 2,834.5 2,834.5
Mutual funds - - - 1,576.8 1,576.8 1,576.8
Pooted investment funds - - - 1,714.0 1,714.0 1,714.0
Security Lending Transactions:

Government securities - - - 1,629.1 1,629.1 1,629.1

Corporate bonds and notes - - . 59.7 59.7 59.7

Equities - - - 400.4 400.4 400.4

Total Investments $ 34,0127 g - $ 206.3 $ 19,473.6 $ 53,692.6 $ 53,6887
As Reported on the Slalements of Net Assets and Statement of Fiduciary Net ots
Current Non-Current
Investments Investments Total
Governmental activities $ 296.3 $ 5233 $ 819.6
Business-type activitles 2,943.3 709.3 3,652.7
Fiduclary funds 3,658.6 45,561.7 49,220.3
$ 6,898.3 $46,794.4 $ 53,6026

(1) Category 1 real eslate represents Reat Estale Investment
Trusts (REITs) which are evidenced by secuiities,

The cash collateral received on security lending transactions
totated $2.2 billion.

Pension {and other employee benefits) trust fund invesiments
represent 91.3% of the total investmenis of the primary
govemnment. Other Jarge holders of investments were the State
Lottery Fund and MUCF.

S . 00
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The Slate Lottery Fund investments, $818.1 million, are all in
the form of zero coupon U.S. Treaswry bonds. As described
mors fully in Note 17, thess Investments are held to provide
funding for deferred prize awards.
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Securities Lending Transactions

Under the authority of P.A. 314 of 1965, the State lends
securities of the pension (and other employee benefits) irust
funds and the State Lottery Fund o broker-dealers and other
entities for collateral that will be retumed for the same securities
in the future. The custodian is not Hable for any lossas unless
there is negligence or williul misconduct on its part, State
statutes allow the Michigan Public School Employess, Michigan
State Employees, Michigan State Police, and Michigan Judges
Relirement Systems to participate in  securities fending
transactions, and the retirement systems havse, via a Securities
Lending Authorization Agreement, authorized the agent bank to
lend its securifies to broker-dealers and banks pursuant to a
form of loan agreemenl. During the fiscal year, the agent bank
lent, af the direction of the relirement systems, the retirement
systems’ securities and received: cash {United States and
foreign currency), securities issued or guaranteed by the United
States govemment, sovereign debt rated A or better,
convertible bonds, and irrevecable bank letters of credit issued
by a person other than the borrower or an affiliate of the
borrower as collateral. The agent bank did not have the abiltity
to pledge or sell collateral securities delivered absent a
borrower default, Bomrowers were required to deliver collateral
for each loan equal to: 1) in the case of loaned securities
denominalted in United States dollars or whose primary trading
market was located in the United Stales or sovereign debt
issued by foreign governments, 102% of the market value of the
loaned securities; and 2) in the case of loanad securities not
denominated in United Stafes dollars or whose primary trading
markel was not located In the United Stales, 105% of the
market value of the loaned securitiss.

The retirement systems did not impose any restrictions during
the fiscal year on the amount of the loans that the agent bank
made on its behalf. There were no fallures by any borrowers o
retumn loaned secuiities or pay distributions thereon during the
fiscal year. Moreover, there were no losses during the fiscal
year resulting from a default of the borrowers or the agent bank.

During the fiscal year, the refirement systems and the
borrowers maintained the right o terminate all securities lending
iransactions on demand. The cash collateral received on each
loan was invested, together with the cash collaterat of other
qualified tax-exempt plan lenders, in a collective invastment
pocl. As of September 30, 2001, the investment pool had an
average duration of 75 days and an average welghled maturity

of 661 days. Because the loans were lerminable at will, their
duration did not generally match the duration of the investments
made wilh cash collateral. On September 30, 2001, the
retirement systems had no credit risk exposure to borrowers.
The collateral held and the markel value of secuiities on loan
for the refirement systems as of September 30, 2001, were $2.1
billion and $2.0 billion respectively.

Deposits and Investments - Discretely
Presented Component Units

Deposits

At year-end, the carrying amount of discrelely presented
compenent units deposits, excluding those classified as
investments, was $224.9 million. The deposits were reflected in
the accounts of the banks at $258.0 milion, Of the bank
balances, $14.8 million was covered by federal depository
insurance or by collateral held by the component units’ agenis
in the component units’" names (GASB credit risk category #1),
$8.9 milllon was covered by collateral held in the pledging
banks' trust departments in the component units' names (GASB
credit risk category #2}, $182.1 million was uninsured and
uncoliateratized (GASB credit risk calegory #3), and $52.2
million was held in money market funds which arg not
categorized.

Investments

The invesiment authorty for most discrelely presented
component unils Is typlically found in their enabling statules
and/or their bond resolutions where applicable. Those
component units which are financing autheriies gensrally may
invest in government or govemment backed securities and
deposits. The Michigan Education Trust's investments are
subject to an investment agresment with the State Treasurer
which allows the Treasurer, acling as agent, to make diverse
investments including stocks, bonds, notes, and other
investments. Investment policies for the State universities are
typleally set forth by thelr govemning boards and include a broad
range of invesiment types.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets on the government-wide Statement of Nat
Assets, totaling $1.2 billion, represent amounts that are pledged
loward the payment of outstanding bonds and notes.
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deposits classified as investments on the balance sheet, by

The lollowing table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of
investment type and in totat (in millions):

investments of the discretely presented component units, including

GASB Category

Total
Not Carrying Fair
# #2 #3 Categorized Value Value
Deposits(t):
Time deposits $ 8.9 $ - $ 5.9 $ 5.3 $ 20.1 $ 201
Government monay market accounis - - 10.3 33.3 436 43.6
Investments:

Commerciat paper 166.8 110 12.2 - 189.2 189.2
Short-term notes - - b2.4 12.8 65.2 65.2
Repurchase agreements 35 - 8.9 - 123 12.3
Govemment securities 758.4 43.3 58.0 - 859.7 859.7
Insured mortgage backed securities 1243 - 13.7 - 138.0 138.0
Govemnment backed securities 2.2 - 164.2 - 166.4 166.4
Investment agreements - - - 317.7 317.7 377
Corporate bonds and notes 278.6 - 62.8 - 341.4 341.4
Preferred stock - - g g .9
Equities 8.4 2 259 16.8 513 51.3
Real eslate 2 A - .6 9 9
Venture capital and leveraged buyouls - - - 127 27 2.7
Govemment money market funds - - - 61.9 61.9 61.9
Mutual funds - - 12.5 160.2 172.6 i172.6
Guaranteed invesiment contracis 50.2 - 2.8 1,002.6 1,15286 1,152.6
Pooled Investment funds - - - 461.2 461.2 461.2
Other investments - - 6.1 - 6.1 6.1

Total Investments $ 1,4006 ° $ 54.6 3 442.6 $ 2176.0 4,073.8 $ 4,073.8
Less Investrnents Reported as

*Cash” on the Slatement of Net Assels (633.5)

TFotal Investmenis $ 3,440.2
As Reported on the Statement of Net Assets
Current investments $ 6904
Noncurrent restricled investments 6655
Norcurrent investments 2,084.4

Total Investments $ 3,440.2

{1) The deposils classilied as investments were reflected in
the accounts of the barks in amounts equal to thelr
carrying value and are categorized using the deposit risk
category definitlons.

Interest Rate Exchange Agreements

The Michigan Higher Education Student Loan Authority
{MHESLA)} has an outstanding interest rale exchange
agresment with an outside party for a notional amount of $11.0
million. The agreement converts MHESLA’s interest rate
exposure on $11.0 million of ils fixed rate bonds o a variable
rate allowing improved matching ylelds on variable rate student
loans. The agreement, which matures on September 1, 2002,

exposes MHESLA to credit ioss In the event of nonperformance
by the other party.

On January 2, 2002, Michigan State Housing Development
Aulhority entered Info a forward interest rate swap with outside
parties for a notional amount tolaling $60.0 million to hedge
variable rate bonds that will be sold in 2002.
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NOTE 9 — MORTGAGES AND LOANS RECEIVABLE - DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

Mortgages and loans receivable reported by the discretely
presented compenent unils consist of the following {in millions):

Unamortized
Mortgages Discount/ Mortgages
and Premium Allowance and
Loans and Deferred for Loans
Receivable Loan Origin- Possible Reacelvable
{Gross) ation Fees Losses {Net)
Authorities:
Michigan Higher Educaiion Student Loan Authority ~ $ 830.2 $ 3.9 3 (99 $ 833.1
Michigan State Housing Davelopmeni Authority 1,846.5 {11.7) (32.0) 1,902.8
Michigan Economic Development Corporation 49.1 - (23.1) 26.0
$ 2,825.8 $ {7.9) $ {66.0) $ 27619
The Michigan State Housing Development Authority had foan The loans made by the Michigan Municipal Bond Authority are to
commilments outstanding at June 30, 2001, of $98.5 million. The local units of government, so those loans of $2.5 billion are reported
Michigan Economic Development Corporation had loan and grant on the “Amounts due from local units” lings on Statement of Net
commitments outstanding at September 30, 2001, of $180.5 million. Assels,

NOTE 10 — CAPITAL ASSETS

A. Primary Government
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Methods used te value capital assets

Capital assels, which include property, plant, equipment, and
infrastructure items (e.g. roads, bridges, ramps, and simliar
items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type acllvity columns of the govemment-wide financial
statements. Such assels are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost If purchased or constructed. Donated
capilal assels are recorded al fair market value at the date of
donation.

Capitallzation policies

All land and non-depreclable land Improvemenis are
capitalized, regardless of cost. Equipment is capitalized when
the cost of individual items exceed $5 thousand, and all other
capital assets are capitalized when the cost of individual items
or projects exceed $100 thousand.

The cosls of normnal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
lhe value of assets or matenally extend asset fivas are not
capitalized.

items not capltalized and depreclated

The Siate possesses certain capital assets that have not been
capitalized and depreciated, because the assets cannol be
reasonably valued and/or the assets have Inexhaustible useful
lives. These assets Include works of art and historical
treasures, such as statues; monuments; historical documents;
paintings; forls and tighthouses; rare library books;
miscellaneous capitol-related artifacts and fumishings; and the
like.

Depreclation and useful lives

Applicable capilal assets are depreciated using the straight-line
method, with a half-year's depreciation charged in ihe year of
acquisition and In the year of disposal. Agencies assigned
useful lives that were most suilable for the particular assets.
Estimated useful lives generally were assigned as follows:

Asset Years
Equlpment 225
Buildings 3-50
Infrastiucture 15-40

Land Improvements 10-40

Modifled approach for infrastructure

The State has elected fo use the “modified approach” to
account for certain infrastruciure assets, as provided in GASB
Statement No. 34, Under thls process, the State does not
fecord depreciation expense nor are amounts capitalized in
connection with improvements to these assets, unless the
improvements expand the capacity or efficiency of an asset,
Ulilizatlon of this approach requires the State to: 1) commit to
maintaining and preserving afllected assels al or above a
condition leval established by the Siate, 2) maintaln an
inventory of the assels and perform periodic condition
assessments to ensure that the condiifon level is being
maintained, and 3) make annual estimates of the amounts that
must be expended to maintain and preserve assels at the
predeterminad condition levels.

Roads and bridges maintalned by the Depanment of
Transportation are accounted for using the modified approach,

Capital asset aclivities for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2001 were as follows {in millions):
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Adjustments
Beginning and Reclas- Ending
Governmenta! Activilies Balance Additions Deletions sifications Balance ~
Capital assels, not belng depreciated:
tand $ 3,015.8 $ 821§ (108) §$ 62 %  3,0933
{and improvements 7.9 .5 - - 8.4
Construction in progress 446.5 608.4 (193.2) ] 862.3
Infrastructure 11,5452 264.1 (214.4) - 11,594.9
Mineral rights 8.9 - - - 18.9
Tota! capital assets, not being depreciated 15,034.3 955.1 {418.4) 6.8 15,577.9
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 694 1.1 {7) 2.6 72.3
Equipment 562.2 2.1 {55.8) 7 617.9
Buildings 2,421.8 190.8 (63.9) 797 2,628.4
Vehicles 8.7 - (1.8) - 7.1
Infrastructure 490.8 45 - 3.0 488.3
Total capital assets, being depreciated 3,552.9 308.5 (122.0) 84.5 3,823.9
L.ess accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements (22.4) {1.8) 4 (.7} (24.5)
Equipment (380.0) (80.1) 34.2 1.0 {424.8)
Buildings (792.6) (61.4) 311 (91.0) {913.9)
Vehicles {6.4) (.3) 1.4 - (6.3)
Infrastructure (264.1) (18.6) - (&) 8 (282.8)
Total accumutated depreciation (1,465.5) (162.1) 67.1 {90.8) {1,651.3)
_ Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 2,087.4 146.4 {54.9) {6.3) 2,172.6
Govemmental activity capital assets, net $ 17,121.7 $ 1,101.5 $ (473.2) § 5 $ 17,7505
Adjustments
Beginning and Reclas- Ending
Business-type Activities Balance Additions Deletions sifications Balance
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 3 1.5 3 - $ - $ - $ 1.5
Equipment 2.7 2 (i.1) - 1.9
Total capital assets, being depreclated 43 2 (1.1) - 34
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings {1.5) - - . (1.5)
Equipment {2.3) (.2} 1.0 - {1.6)
Total accumulated depraciation {3.8) (.2) 1.0 - {3.1)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net b5 - (1) - 3
Business-typse activity capital assels, nel  § .5 $ - 3 (1) $ - $ .3
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary
government as follows:

Amount
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 184
Education 7
Family Independence Services 35.1
Public Safety and Corrections 49.8
Conservation, Recrealion, and Agricullure 9.4
Health Services 18.3
Transporiation 30.2
Dapreciation on capital assets held by the Stale’s intemnal
service funds is charged to the various functions based
on their use of the assets. 37.6
Total Depreciation Expense ~ Govermnmental Activities 8 199.5
Business-fype Aclivities:
Enterprise 2
Tolal Depreciation Expense -~ Business-type Activities $ 2
B. Discretely Presented Component Units
The following table summarizes net capilal assels reported by
the discretely presented compenent units {in millions):
Amount
State Universities:
Land and cther Non-dapreciable Assels 8 79.5
Bulldings, Equipment, and other Depreciable Assets 3,084.9
Infrastruciure 55.0
Constraction in Progress 208.4
Tolat 3,427.8
Less Accumulated Depreciation (1,239.4)
Capital Assets, net — State Universities 21884
Capital Assets, net — Authorities 133.5

Capital Assets, Total — Discretely Presented Componant Units $§ 23219

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

60




Michigan
Notes to the Financial Statements
e ———— i

NOTE 11 — PENSION BENEFITS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

A. Defined Benefit Pension Plans
The State of Michigan administers the following defined benelit pension plans:

L egislative Retirement Systemn (LRS) - single employer

State Police Retirement System {SPRS) - single employer

State Employees' Retirement System (SERS) - single employer

Public School Employees’ Retirement System (PSERS) - cost sharing mulli-employer
Judges' Retirernent System (JRS) - cost sharing muiti-employer

Mititary Retirement Plan (MRP) - single employer

Each plan provides retirement, disability, death benefits, and
annual cost-ol-living adjustmenis to plan members. Each plan,
except MRP, is accounted for in a separate pension trust fund
and also issues a publicly available financiat report that includes
financial statements and required supptementary information for
that plan. Those reports, except LRS, may be obtained by
wiiting to the Depariment of Management and Budget, Office of
Retirement Services, 7150 Harris Drive, P.O. Box 30171,
Lansing, MI 48909 or by calling (517} 322-6262. The LRS
reporl may be obtalned by wriling to lhe Michigan Legislative
Retirement Systern, House Office Building, Suite 809827, P.O.
Box 30014, Lansing, MI 48909 or by calling (517) 373-0575.

Plan Membership Data LRS

As mandated by legislation, all new State of Michigan
employees hired on or after March 31, 1997, are members of
the defined contribution retirement plan as opposed to the LRS,
SERS and JAS defined benefit plans. Employees hired before
that date were given the oplion of remaining in the defined
benefit plan or ransfering to the defined contribution plan. The
decision is lmevocable and transfers were completed by
September 30, 1998. This was a one-time opportunity. With the
passage of the lagislation pemitting the transfer, the LRS,
SERS and JRS defined benelit plans became closed systems.

SERS PSERS JRS MRP

Current active:
Vested
Nonvested

Retirees & beneficiaries receiving benefits 242

Terminated members with
vested deferred benslits

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND PLAN ASSETS MATTERS

Basis of Accounting

The financial statemenls are prepared using the accrual basis
of accounting. Employee and employer contributions are
recognized as revenues in the period in which employee
services are performed. Benefits and refunds are recognized
when due and payable In accordance with the lerms of each
plan.

Methods Used to Value Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments
are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities
traded on a national exchange are valued at the last reported
sales price. The fair value of real estate Investments is based
on independent appraisals. Investments that do not have an
established market are reported at estimated fair value,

Significant Investments

No investment of any of the pension plans comprises 6% or
more of the net assels available for benefits. There are no
significant investments made in securities Issued by the Stale,
nor are there any loans made from the pension plans to the
Slate. Additional disclosures concerning investments are
provided in Note 8 and, concerning State Treasurer's Common
Cash, in Note 5.

80

36,175 118,969 268 637
8,792 199,569 12 9,205
37,111 130,790 546 2,158
4,865 14,313 15 865

FUNDING POLICY

The Legislature establishes the extent to which the employer
and employees are required fo make contribulions and
establishes tha benefit provisions for each plan. Actual {otal
contributions for pensions met or exceeded the conlribulions
required by state law.

The Public School Employees’ Relirement System (PSERS)
is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, State-wide defined
benafit retirement system. Statute requires a recongiliation of
required contributions and actual contributions in the PSERS.
Public Act 158 of 1992 provides that any overage or shorlage
must be paid In installments over five years.

The contributions for judges in the Judges’ Retirement System
are nen-employer contributions to cost-sharing multipte-
employer defined benefil pension systems.

The conlributions to all other systems are employer
conlributions 1o single-employer defined bensfit systems.
However, the State doss not make actuarlally computed
contributions to the Military Retirement Plan (MRP). MRP
benefils, which are funded on the pay-as-you-go basis, are
paid from the General Fund.

Efiective in fiscal year 2000-200%, SPRS, SERS, and PSERS
use the valuatlon for the previous fiscal year for thelr
respective reports.  This approach [s consistent with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 25. Consistent with this approach the most recent
actuartal valuation was performed as of September 30, 2000.
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‘For MRP, information provided Is based on most recent
biennial actuarial valuation.

**For MRP, there is no underlying payroll of particlpants. Except
for five special duty members, retirants receive $600 in annual
pension benefits. Accordingly, the annual required contribution
from the State is determined as a dollar amount, not as a
percentage of payrolk.

A N T
ANNUAL PENSION COST AND OTHER RELATED INFORMATION
*Current year contribulion rates, annual pension cost, and
related information for the current year for the Stale's single
employer defined benefit plans are as follows:
LRS SPRS SERS MRP
Required contribution rates:
State - 18.87% 4,57% x*
Plan Members L - - .
{Amounts are In millions}
Annual Pension Cost and Net
Pension Obligation:
Annual required contribution 3 . $ 21.99 $ 102,09 2,95
Interest on net pension asset (.16) 1.18 {7.40) 48
Adjustment to annual required
contribution 29 {.75) 7.80 {.48)
Annual penslon cost .13 2242 103.19 2.94
Contributions made - 24.06 112.30 2.25
Change in net pension
assel/obligation 13 {1.64) {9.11) .69
Net pension (asset) obligation at
beginning of fiscal year {2.31) 14.70 (92.55) 5.79
Net pension (asset) obligation at
end of fiscal year 5 (2.21) $ 13.06 3 {101.66) 6.48
Significant Actuarial
Assumplions used include:
Lalest actuarial valuation date 9/30/01 9/30/00 9/30/00 9/30/01
Actuarial cost method Enlry Age Enlry Age Entry Aga Entry Age
. Level parcent
Amortization method Level percent Level percent of payroll Leve! dollar
of payroli closed closed closed
Remaining amertization period 12 years 36 yoars 36 years 35 years
Asset valuation method 5-year 5-year 5.year None,
smoothed smoothed smoocthed unfunded
market market market ptan
Actuarial assumption:
Investment rate of retum 7% 8% 8% 8%
Projected salary increases 4% 4.7 - 84% 4-16% 4%
Includes inflation at 4% 4% 4% 4%
Cost-ot-living adjustments 4% annual 2% annual non- 3% annual non- 4%
compounded for compounded with  compounded with for special
members hired maximum annual rnaximum annuat duty refirants
before 1/1/95 increase $500 increase $300

**For participanis prior {0 January 1, 1995, the required
contribution rate is 9.0%. For participanis after January 1,
1995, the required contribution rate is 7.0%. Ali coniributions
are made to the Health Insurance Fund, as described in Section
C.
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Contribution rates for the cumrent year for the State's cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plans are as follows:

PSERS JRS
Required contribufion rates:
State 6.15% a
Plan Members 3.9* 5.95
Number of participating
employers 716 172

*For those members who efect to participate in the “Member
investment Plan,” the rate is 3.9%. Members hired afler
December 31, 1889, are required to participate in the *“Member
Investment Plan,” and their contribution rate varies from 3.0 to

**The Slate is required to contribute annually the greater of
3.5% of the aggregate annual compensalion of State paid
based salaries or required amount. However, the plan in the
current year is fully funded; therefore, no contribution is

4.3% as salary increases. required.
THREE YEAR HISTORICAL TREND INFORMATION
The following table provides a schedula of hinding progress for
the Stata's defined benefit plans:
(Amounts In millions) {b} ({b-a}/c)
(a) Acluarial {b-a) UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded {a/h) (c) Percentage
Valuation Value Liability {Overfunded) Funded Covered of Covered
Date of Assels {AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
LRS
9/30/01 $ 1684 $ 1386 $  (29.8) 121.5% 8 4.3 {693.0)%
9/30/00 160.3 128.5 (31.8) 124.7 4.3 (739.5)
9/30/99 146.1 127.1 (19.0) 115.0 4.2 {452.4)
SPRS*™
9/30/00 1,113.1 1,040.7 {72.4) 107.0 116.6 {62.1)
9/30/99 1,036.8 1,006.5 {30.3} 103.0 116.8 {25.9)
9/30/98 974.4 962.5 {11.9) i01.2 108.2 (11.0)
SERS5™
8/30/00 10,336.8 9,473.8 (863.0) 109.1 2,253.8 (38.3)
9/30/99 9,648.3 9,028.6 (619.7) 106.8 2,213.8 (28.0}
9/30/98 9,109.0 8,497.0 {612.0) 107.2 2,108.0 {29.0)
PSERS**
9/30/00 36,893.0 37,139.0 246.0 99.3 8,985.0 27
9/30/99 34,095.0 34,348.0 253.0 99.3 8,644.0 29
9/30/98 31,870.0 32,863.0 993.0 97.0 8,265.0 2.0
JRS
9/30/01 291.0 2247 (66.3) 129.5 42,5 {155.7)
9/30/00 274.8 204.2 {70.6) 134.6 37.0 (190.7)
9/30/99 320.9 243.5 {77.4) 131.8 49.6 (155.9)
MRP*
9/30/01 - 34.4 344 . 5 7.,284.7
9/30/99 - 33.5 33.5 - 5 68,7714
9/30/97 - 30.3 30.3 - 4 7,875.0

*Actuarial valuation performed biennially.
**The most recent acluarial valuation was performed as of
September 30, 2000.

20040-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

03




Michigan

Notes to the Financial Statements
—

The following fable provides a schedule of annual pension cost
and net pension obligation for the State's single employer
defined benefit plans {amounts in millions);

Net Pension
Annual Percentage Obligation
Year Cost {APC) Contributed (Asset)
LRS
4998-99 - {2.5)
1999-00 - (2.3}
2000-01 . (2.2)
SPRS
1998-99 23.0 93.7 12.2
1999-00 24.6 89.8 14.7
2000-01 22.4 107.3 3.1
SERS
1998-99 1115 108.6 (91.8)
1999-00 121.14 100.6 {92.6)
2000-01 103.2 108.8 {101.7)
MRP
1998-99 2.5 84.4 5.0
1999-00 3.0 74.8 5.8
2000-01 3.0 765 6.5
The following table provides a schedule of annual required
contributions for the Slate’s cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit plans {amounts in millions):
Annual
Required Percentage
Fiscal Contribution of ARC
Year (ARC) Contributed
PSERS
1998-99 593.5 96.8
1999-00 572.6 114.4
2000-01 582.4 108.2
JRS
1998-99 1.3 4.6
1999-00 - -
2000-01 - -

REGQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

GASB Statement No, 25 requires the disclosure of certaln six-
year historical frend information. This information, except for
MRP, is available from the separately Issued financial reports of
the retirement systems. For MRP, this information Is presented

below.

Schedule of funding progress for MRP

Trend information Is intended to help users assess the funding
status on a golng-concemn basis, assess progress made In
accumulating assets to pay benefils when due, and make
comparisons with other public employee retirement systems.

UAAL asa

Actuarial Actuariat o Percentage of
Actluarial Value Accrued Unfunded Funded Covered Covered
Valuation of Assets Liability (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b)-{a) {a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
9/30/97 - 30.3 30.3 - A4 7.575.0
9/30/99 - 3.5 33.5 - 5 6,771.4
9/30/01 - 34.4 34.4 - 5 7.284.7

Actuarial valuation performed biennially; plans with blennial
valuations need not present duplicate information for the
Intervening years.
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Schedule of Employer Contributions for MRP:

Year Annual
ended required Percentage
September 30 contribution contributed
2001 3.0 76.1
2000 3.0 74.6
1999 25 84.7
1998 25 82.3
1997 23 85.0
1996 23 94.3

Actuarial information for MRP is provided in the annual pension
cost and other retated information section.

Defined Contribution Pension Plans

State Employees’ Defined Contribution

Retirement Plan

The Slate Employees’ Defined Contribution Retfirement Plan
{Plan) was established to pirovide benefits at refirement lo
employees of the State who were hired after March 31, 1997,
and to those members of the State Employees' Refirement
{defined bensfil) System, Judges’ Retirement System, and
Legislative Retirement System who elected to transfer to this
plan. The Plan is administered by the Department of
Managemenl and Budgel. The State is required to contribute
4% of annual covered payroll. The State is also required to
match employee contributions up to 3% of annual covered
payroll, Plan provisions and contribution requirements are
established and may be amended by the Leglslature. Employer
contributions to the plan for the year totaled $41.3 miflion.
Participant contributions to the plan were $15.2 million. The
reports may be oblained by wiiting to the Department of
Management and Budgat, Office of Retirement Services, 7150
Hamris Drive, P.O. Box 30171, Lansing, M| 48909 or by calling
(517) 322-6262.

The following Investments represent $% or more of net plan
assels at Seplember 30, 2001: SSGA Stable Value GIC Fund,
$29.5 million; Yleld Enhanced Short-Term Fund, $81.8 miilion;
S$SGA S&P 500 Index Fund, $21.6 million; Dodge & Cox Stock
Fund, $19.7 milion; Fidelity Magellan Fund, $29.6 million;
Putnam Voyager, $21.5 miition.

Effective September 30, 2000, the assets and coverage of
members of the Michigan Judges' Retfirement System were
transferred to the State Employees’ Defined Contribution
Retirement Plan.

Component Units

In addition io the Public Schoo! Employees’ Retirement System
(PSERS), the Stale university component units participate in the
Teachers’ Insurance and Annuily Association and College

Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA-CREF). The TIAA-CREF is a
defined contribution mufliple-employer pension plan. The State
universily component units are required 1o contribute between
4% and 15% of annual covared payroll, as detemmined by each
institution’s employment agreements. The tolal contribution to
the TIAA-CREF for all State university component units was
$59.4 million for the year ending June 30, 2001.

Additional plan informetion may be found in ihe separately
issued financlal reports of the State university component units.

Other Postemployment Benefits

In addition to the pension bensfits previously described in this
Note, State statutes require that the State provide certain
postemployment benefits (OPEB) to many of its retired
employees. Health, dental, and vislon benefits as well as life
insurance coverage are provided to retirees of all pension plans
except MRP. These benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-go
basis, except for LRS life insurance coverage, as explained
below.

The LRS life insurance benefits are paid on an advance-funded
basis. The actuarial cost method and actuarial assumptions are
ihe same as for the pension plan, as discussed in Section A. At
September 30, 2001, the actuarial accrued liability tor life
insurance premiums was $8.2 milllon with net assets available
for benefits of $12.5 million. The expense for life insurance
premiums was $.2 million in fiscal year 2000-2001.

The net asssts avallable for benefits relate to residual balances
from funding provided in prior fiscal years. There were no
material changes in the OPEB provisions during fiscal year
2000-2001.
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Following is a brief summary of the other postemployment
benefits as of September 30, 2001:

LRS SPRS SERS JRS PSERS JOTAL
Participants eligible for benefits 330 2,382 37,111 546 130,790 171,159
Contribution rates for current employees
(% of payroll) None None None 1.5% None
Percentage of pre-Medicare premiums
paid by panricipants None 5% 5% 5% 10%*
Expense for year (in millions) $3.0 $23.0 $248.2 $5 $456.3 $731.0
Net assets available for benefits {in millions) 5.7 (2.5) 23.0 {.5) 213.0 238.7
*The schools that employ the plan's members pay the employer Dental, vision, and hearing benefits are also extended to ali
share of health costs. PSERS retirees pay the same share of relireas and thelr beneficiaries, for which relirees pay 10% of
health care cosls required from Social Security retirees for part the health premiums.
B Medicare coverage untif Medicare coverage begins at age 85.
NOTE 12 — COMPENSATED ABSENCES
A. Primary Government
Plan Descriptions Accounting Pollcy
Employees accumulate annual leave (vacation) balances to a In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
maximum ranging from 256 to 316 hours. They receive a 100% slalements, the State accrues liabilites for compensated
termination payment upon separation based upon thelr final absences as required by GASB. Annual {eave Is valued at
rate of pay. Employee sick leave balances accumulate without 100% of the balance plus the State's share of soclal security
limit. Termination payments are made only upon separation and retirement contributions. Sick leave is valued, as explained
from State service and only to employees hired prior to October in the previous paragraph, at 0 to 50% plus the State's share of
1, 1980. Payments at retirement or death are based on 50% of soclal security contributions. The pay rates in effect as of
the employee’s sick leave accumulation tirnes their iast rate of September 30, 2001, are used.
pay. When separating for any other reason, employses are
paid a percentage of their unused sick leave which increases In the govemmental fund financial statements, liabilities for
from 0 to 50% depending upon the balance of their sick leave compensated absences are accrued when they are considered
hours., “due and payable” and recorded in the fund only for separations
or transfers that occur before year-end.
The following table summarizes liabilities for compensated
absences as of September 30 {in millions):
Annual Sick
Leave Leave Tolal

Governmental activities $ 23 $ 2085 § 4377

Business-type activilies 1.5 1.6 3.1

Total - pimary government $ 2328 $ 208.0 $ 4408

B. Discretely Presented Component Units

Compensated absences lHabllities of discretely presented
component units fotaled $48.5 milflon and are primarily related
1o State universities.

NOTE 13 - LEASES

Accounting Policy

The State leases various assels under noncancelable leasing
arangements.  Leases that conslitute rental agreemants are
classified as operating leases; the resulling expenditures are
recognized as Incurred over the lease term. Leases that are
comparable to purchases are classified as capital leases.

In the govemment-wide and propristary fund statements, assets and
liabilitiss resulting from capital leases are recorded at fease inception.

The principal portion of lease payments reduces the IlabI!lty. the
interest portion is expensed.

For capital leases In govemental funds, other financing sources
and expenditures are recorded at lease inception, Lease payments
are recorded as debt service expenditures. (As explained in Note 3,
for budgetary purposes, lease payments are only reported as
expenditures when paid.)
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Most leases have cancellation clauses with 1 lo 6 month nolice
requirements in the event that funding Is not available. For repoiting
purposes, such cancellation clauses are not considered in the
determination of whether a lease is cancelable, because the likelihood
that they will be exercised is considered remote. Some iease
agreements include renewal or purchase optiens. The effect of such
options Is reflected in the minimum lease payments only if it is
considered reasonably assured that an opfion will be exercised.
Some iease agreements include escalation clauses or other
contingent rentals.

The State has entered into a few Installment purchase agreements.
Because the amounts involved are immaterial, and the accounting
treatment is simllar, such agreemenis are reported together with
capita leases.

Leases that exist between the State and the State Building Authority
{SBA, a blended component unit} are not recorded as leases in this
report. In their separately issued financial statements, SBA records a

A summary of the cperating and noncancelable capital lease
commilmenls to matunity follows {in millions):

lease receivable from the State. Although payables and receivablas
technically exist between these parties, when combined for
govamment-wide reporting, they are elimipated. A long-term
liability exists on the govemment-wide statements for the bonds
issued by SBA to construct the assets associated with the leases.
Future paymenis to SBA are, therefore, nol included in the
schedules of lease commitments below. Note 14 provides
information on the amount of the Authority’s bonds outstanding and
a schedule of debt service requirements.

A. Primary Government - Governmental Activities
Rental expenditures incurred under operaling leases totaled
$84.4 miltion during the fiscal year. Payments for capital lease

principal, interest, and executory costs fotaled $33.7 miftion,
$28.0 million, and $13.5 million, respectively.

Capilal Leases

Year Ended Operating Executory
September 30 |eases Principal Intarest Costs Total

2002 % 44.7 $ 304 26.9 $ 12.4 $ 69.6
2003 35.6 28.0 24.3 12.3 64.5
2004 30.0 26.8 21.7 12.0 60.5
2005 23.4 21.8 19.2 11.6 52.6
2008 166 19.5 16.8 10.5 46.9
2007-20H 22.3 686.5 55.6 353 i57.5
2012-2016 1.8 37.6 26.4 17.5 81.3
2017-2021 - 225 6.9 7.6 37.0
Thereafter - 2.0 4 7 3.1

Total $ 173.3 $ 254.8 198.2 $ 120.0 $ 573.1

The above capital leases relate to governmental activities which
include the General Fund, special revenue funds, and the
intemna! service funds. A Hability of $254.8 miltion has been
racorded in the govemment-wide statements for the capital iease
principal. The historical cost of assets acquired under capital
leases and included in capital assets on the govemment-wide
stalements at September 30 follows (in millions):

Buildings $ 3048
Equipment 92.4
Tolal 397.2

Accumulated Depreciation (178.2)
Net Buildings and Equipment $ 219.1

B. Primary Government — Business-Type Activities

Rental expense incumed under operating leases totaled $.2
million during the fiscal year. There were no capital lease

obligations.
A summary of operating lease commitments to maturity follows

{in mitions):

Year Ended Operating

September 30 Leases

2002 $ 2

2003 A

2004 A

2005 A

$ 5

C. Discretely Presented Component Units

Operating lease commitments for universities and authorities
totaled $15.0 mition. Total capital lease obligations were
$21.5 million, $14.7 million, and $0 for principal, interest, and
execulory costs, respectively.
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NOTE 14 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

A. Bonded Debt

General Obligation Bonded Debt

Ardicle 9, Section 15, of the State Constitulion authorizes
general obligation long-term borrowing, subject to approval by
the Legislature and a malority of voters at a genaral election. In
addition, debt may be incurred without voler approvat for the
purpose of providing loans to school disticts.  General
obligation netes to provide temporary financing for such loans
are recorded as liabilities In the School Bond Loan Fund, a
special revenue fund, No such borrowing occurred in fiscal
year 2000-2001. General Fund appropriations are made to
finance debt principal and interest requirements for all general
cbligation issues. General obligation bonds arg backed by the
full faith and credit of the State.

The State Constitution provides that the Legislature may also
authorize the issuance of general obligation short-term notes,
the principal amount of which may not exceed 15% of
undedicated revenues raceived in the preceding year. The
State Constitution also provides that such notes must be repaid
within the fiscal year of the borrowing. No such borrowing
occurred in fiscal year 2000-2001,

Revenue Dedicated Bonded Debt

Long-term bonds have been issued periodically for specific
purposes, with the stipulation that financing of debt
requirements is to come sticlly from designated revenue
sources, The transportation related debt is payable solely out
of {unds restricted for .transportation purposes by Anicle 9,
Section 9, of the State Constilution. The State’s general credit
doses not support such Issues.

The Michigan Underground Storage Tank Financlal Assurance
Finance Authority issued revenue bonds to provide financing for
the aclivities of the Michigan Undaerground Storage Tank
Financial Assurance Fund {MUSTFA). The bonds and notes
are a limited obligation of the Authority payable solely from
dedicated revenues and do not represent a general obligation
of the finance authority or the State.

Revenue bonds have been issued by the State Building
Authority (SBA) to acquire andfor construct various facilitles for
use by the State or institutions of higher education. Revenue
bonds have also been issued to finance equipment capilal
lease refinancings and acquisitions. The $307.4 million of

commercial paper noles outstanding at year-end are not
recorded as liabilities in the Authority's statements, but are
included in the “long-term Habllity activity” schedule presented
later in this Note.

Subsequent to September 30, 2001, SBA issued an additionat
$146.1 million in commercial paper. However, a significant
portion of outstanding commercial paper has been paid by the
issuance of the 2001 Revenue Bonds Series Il in the amount of
$170.1 million. Stated coupon rates for these bonds range from
3.0 to 5.5 percent, which mature on Oclober 15, 2019. These
bonds and notes are limited obligations of SBA and do not
conslitute general obligations of SBA or the State. The debt
requirements of the bonds are financed through General Fund
appropriations, excess bond proceeds, and investment
samings.

Grant anticipation notes have been issued by the Department of
Transportation (MDOT) in the amount of $400.0 million. The
notes have variable rates that may bear interest at a daily
inlerest rate, a weekly rate, note interest term rate, long-term
interest rate, or an ARS interest rate.

The notes are issued in accordance with the authorization
provided in P.A, 51 of 1951, as amended, The proceads of the
sale of the notes logether with investment eamings on the
proceeds and other available monies will be used to pay a
portion of the costs to complete the Build Michigan Il highway
pregram, to pay capilalized interest on the notes, and to pay
note issuance costs.

The principal and interest on the notes are payable solely from
and are secured by an irrevocable pledge of the State share of
all federal grants received each year under the Federal-Aid
Highway Program. Payment of the principal and interest on the
notes from the State share shall be subject io an appropriation
each year by the Legislature in an amount sufficient to make
the payments. As of September 30, 2001, there were no
principal paymenis made on the notes. The amount
outstanding at September 30, 2001, is $400.0 million and is not
disclosed in the table below. Thesse notes mature in 2008.

Note 15 provides disclosures regarding the bonds and notes
payable of the discretely presented compenent units,

Bonds Issued and Gutstanding
General obligation and revenue dedicated bonds issued and

outstanding (excluding defeased bonds} at September 30 (in MATURITIES AVERAGE
millions) are as follows: INTEREST
AMOUNTS QOUTSTANDING FIRST LAST RATE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT ISSUED 9/30/2001 YEAR YEAR PERCENTAGE
General Cbligation Refunding Debt:
Series 2001 {Refunding) $ 1833 $ 183.3 2002 2016 4.76
Recreation and Environmental Protection:
Serles 1989 (1) 75,0 28.2 1691 2011 6.92
Series 1992 (1) 246.3 120.4 1993 2012 6.15
College Savings Bonds - Series 1992 Mini-bonds (1) 5 8 2012 2012 6.50
Series 1992 A {1)(2) 13.9 9.4 1994 2012 6.17
Serles 1993 (1)(2) 167 12.8 1995 2013 5.00
Series 1995 (1) 234.3 143.7 1996 2019 5.28
Series 1998 (1) 90.0 80.3 1998 2017 4.80
Series 1999 A (3) 818 81.8 2004 2020 557
Series 1999 B (3) 15.1 105 2001 2003 6.75
Series 2000 (1) 60.0 60.0 2002 2021 5.22
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MATURITIES AVERAGE
INTEREST
AMOUNTS QUTSTANDING FIRST LAST RATE
ISSUED 9/30/2001 YEAR YEAR PERCENTAGE
School Loan Bongds:
Serigs 1995 180.0 65.3 1996 2015 547
Series 1998 160.0 154.1 2000 2017 4.86
Series 2001 A 81.3 81.3 2005 2021 3.50
TOTAL GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT 1,438.2 1,031.8
REVENUE DEDICATED BONDED DEBT
MUSTFA Related:
Tax Dedicated Bonds:
19896 - Revenue Bonds - Series | 216.6 1525 1897 2010 5.67
TOTAL REVENUE DEDICATED BONDED DEBT -
MUSTFA RELATED 216.6 152.5
Transportation Related:
Tax Dedicated Bonds:
Michigan Gomprehensive Transpoitation:
Series 1992 (Series A and Series B Refunding) 165.0 104.7 1996 2022 5.96
Series 1996 (Series A Refunding) 22.7 22.4 1998 2014 542
Series 1998 {Series A Refunding) 38.6 38.6 2004 2010 4.66
Series 2001 (Series A Relunding) 27.8 27.8 2008 2022 5.01
State Trunkline Fund Bonds:
Sorias 1989 (Series A) 135.8 24.9 1894 2017 6.97
Series 1992 {Series A and Series B Refunding) 353.2 172.3 19992 2021 6.16
Series 1994 (Series A and Series B Refunding) 241.0 344 1984 . 2007 5.53
Series 1996 (Series A) 54.5 10.3 1987 2009 5.71
Series 1998 (Serigs A) 877.9 377.9 2005 2026 5.09
Series 2001 (Series A) 308.2 308.2 2003 2031 5.27
TOTAL REVENUE DEDICATED BONDED DEBT -
TRANSPORTATION RELATED 1,724.6 1Li216
Slaie Building Authority:
1893 Revenue Bonds - Refunding Series | 491,56 288.4 1994 2016 4.58
1994 Series | Bonds 39.8 25.8 1985 2012 5.07
1994 Seriss il Bonds 291 20.9 1886 2011 4,62
1998 Series | Bonds 109.9 76.8 1997 2010 5.04
1997 Series | Bonds 144.8 111.0 1997 2010 5.18
1997 Series A Bonds 34.3 23.0 1997 2006 4.76
1897 Series B Bonds 429 1.3 1997 2001 4.51
1997 Series il Bonds 3719 325.0 1997 2014 5.53
1998 Series | Bonds 102.5 98.5 1998 2014 4.84
1998 Series | Bonds Refunding 3304 315.3 1999 2021 4.75
1999 Series | 85.7 80.1 1999 2016 4.54
2000 Revenue Bonds 45.8 458 2002 2012 5.63
2000 Series | Bonds 147.9 147.9 2002 2022 5.24
2001 Series | Bonds 121.7 121.7 2002 2019 5.28
2001 Revenue Bonds 58.2 8.2 2002 2014 513
2001 Seriss | Refunding Bonds 419.7 419.7 2003 2026 5.31
TOTAL STATE BUILDING AUTHORITY BONDED DEBT 25831 2,159.3
TOTAL REVENUE DEDICATED BONDED DEBT 4,624.3 34333
TOTAL GENERAL OBLIGATION AND REVENUE
DEDICATED BONDED DEBT $ 5,962.56 $ 4,465.1

(1) Public Act 327 of 1988 and P.A. 451 of 1984 authorized the
issuance of bonds totaling $800 million, As of September 30,
2001, $676.6 million of such bonds had been issued, leaving
remalning authorization of $123.4 million. Sum of amounts
issued in table differs by amount of bonds refunded or redeemed.

{(2) The $13.9 million Series 1992A and the $16.7 million Series
1093, Recreation and Envircnmental Prolection General
Obligation Bonds, were used to provide a contribution of capital
to the Michigan Municipal Bond Authority (a discretely presented

)

component unit). An outside trustee for the Authority Is holding
the bonds as an investment of the Authority; no immediate cash
proceeds were provided. The trustee receives the debt service
payments on the bonds, which are negotiable instruments held to
subsidize waler pollution confrel financing provided by the
Authority.

Public Act 284 of 1938 authorized the issuance of bonds totaling
$675.0 million. As of September 30, 2001, $96.9 million of such
bonds had been issued, leaving remaining authorzation of
$578.1 milifon.
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Capital Appreciation Bonds
Capital appreciation and convertible capilal appreciation bonds accreted year-end book value. The tables which foliow
are recorded in the preceding table and section C at their summarize capital appreciation bonds {in millions):
ULTIMATE
ACCRETED MATURITY MATURITY
BOOK VALUE VALUE DATES
State Building Authority:
1994 Series I} $ 196 $ 24.2 2000-2012
1997 Series |l 29.3 425 2000-2012
General Obligation Bonds:
Series 1889 azs 44.4 2011
Series 1992 21.4 30.5 2012
College Savings Bonds - Series 1992 Mini-bonds 8 1.8 2012
Series 1995 22.4 29.4 2001-2010
Revenue Dedicated — Transporiation Related:
State Trunkline - Series 1989 A 24,9 35.7 2004-2009
State Trunkline - Serigs 1992 Aand B 61.1 97.7 2005-2012
Advance Refundings and Defeasances
The Stale has defeased certain bonds by placing the proceeds of and the liability for the defeased bonds are not recorded as
new bonds (.., the “refunding” bonds in the table of bonds issuad assets or liabilities in these statements and are not included in
and outstanding) in irrevocable trust 1o provide for all fulure debt the other debt tables in this note.
service on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets
The following table summarizes the defeased bonds outstanding
at September 30 (in millions):
AMOUNTS
) OUTSTANDING
Recreation and Environmental Protection:
Series 1989 $ 25
Serigs 1952 69.1
Series 1995 744
Total § 145.9
Schoeol Loan Bonds:
Series 1995 $ 84.5
Michigan Comprehensive Transportation:
Series 1592 A 3 32.4
State Trunkline Fund Bonds:
Series 1992 A (partial) $ 131.2
Series 1992 B (partial) 56.8
Series 1994 A (partial) 112.8
Series 1996 A (partial} 41.2
Tolat $ 342.0
State Building Authority;
1982 Series ili $ 19.3
1988 Serfes | 59
1988 Series Il 5.3
1989 Serles | 46.4
1990 Series || 124.3
1991 Series | Refunding 197.0
1991 Series || 131.6
1992 Series | 133.9
1992 Series i A 30.3
Total § 694.1
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Debt Service Requirements

The following lable summarizes debt service requirements for

outstanding bonds (in millions}:

MUSTFA AND '
TRANSPORTATION STATE BUILDING TOTAL
GENERAL OBLIGATION RELATED AUTHORITY, PRINCIPAL

FISCAL YEARS AND
ENDING PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST INTEREST
2002 $ 49.0 § 389 8 45.9 $ 58.7 $ 106.5 $ 103.0 $ 4029
2003 51.8 38.5 53.7 60.2 125.9 103.0 433.0
2004 54.4 43.3 56.6 57.4 132.2 96.3 4401
2005 56.7 40.9 604 54.5 138.9 89.0 440.4
2006 57.9 38.1 63.8 51.6 118.3 82.4 4121
2007-2011 318.8 183.7 3181 2161 624.3 332.9 1,963.9
2012-2016 316.7 75.3 214.0 160.0 497.9 178.9 1,442.9
2017-2021 148.7 15.6 257.1 99.0 288.2 66.7 875.4
2022-2026 - - 158.6 40.3 127.2 11.8 338.0
2027-2032 - - 93.3 12.4 - - 105.7

Total $ 11,0540 $ 4453 § 13215 $ 810.2 $ 2,159.3 $ 1,064.1 $ 6,854.3

Inferest to maturity for the State Bullding Authority will be
significantly smaller than the amount shown in the above table
because many of the bonds will be called prior to the final
scheduled matusty date. The retirement of these bonds varies
from project 1o project, as each bond lssus Is related to specific
projects and any excess borrowing and accrued investment
eamings are restricted to projects and debt service on the related
bonds. State Building Authority debt service fund unreserved
fund balances totaled $226.9 million at year-end, Most of this
represents investments related to completed projects that wil be
used for debt service on the projects’ bonds.

Some of the bonds of the State Building Authority cany variable
interest rates and interest on these has been prolected using an
average interest rate.

Other General Long-Term Obligations

Capltal Leases
This liability is deseribed in more detail in Note 13.

Compensated Absences
This liabliity is described in Note 12.

Claims and Judgments

In general, expenditures and fund liabilities are not recorded in
govemmental funds for claims and judgments until they are
considered “due and payable” at September 30 and the related
losses are cerain. Liabllities for materiat ¢clalms and judgment
losses are recorded In the government-wide and proprietary fund
financlal statements when the loss is considered probable,

Workers' Compensation

The gross amount of workers' compensation liabllity, $289.3
miflion- at September 30, 2001, has been recorded al its
discounted present value of $199.9 million, using a discount rate
of 8%. The present value of the cumrent portion of this liabllity is
$45.1 million. The Accident Fund Company billed State agencies
for aclual workers' compensation claims pald plus administrative
fees, totaling $51.1 million in fiscal year 2000-2001.

Other Claims & Judgments

The govermnmental activity estimated liability for litigation losses,
$632.56 million at September 30, 2001, includes amounts for
fitigation, such as damages In tort cases and refund claims in
cases Involving State taxes, transportation claims, naltural
resources and environmental quality clalms, and other clalms, in
which it is considered probable that a loss wil be incurred. Also
included is an estimated liabllity totating $5.4 million for arbitrage
payable to the federal govemment for interest eamed on bond
proceeds. Where a range of potentlal loss exists, the amount
recorded Is based upon the expected minimum amount that will
be lost if the State does, indeed, lose. The allowance also
includas projections for highway related negligence cases based
upon historical loss ratios. The State conlinues to vigorously
contest ail of ihese claims and the State may Incur no liability in
the individual cases involved. Therefore, the allowance for
fitigation losses may be overstated (to the exient that losses do
nol occur) or underslated (if the State losses exceed the
projected minimums which have been recorded). The maximum
potential loss on the allowance for estimated liligation losses is
not consldered reasonably measurable,

The liabllity recorded for other claims and judgments within
business-lype activities represents overpayments by employers
to the Michigan Unempioyment Compensation Fund tolaling
$42.0 million,

Durant Settlement )

The reported estimated liability for litigation losses includes the
Donald Durant, et al v State of Michigan, et al consolidated
cases, which totalad $451.0 million at September 30, 2001, This
amount will, over lime, be paid to each “non-Durant> school
district for its underfunded State mandated program cosls if
certain requirements are met. See Note 26 for additional
disclosure regarding the Durant case and other contingencies.

Fund expendilures for workers' compensation and settled
litlgation with long-term repayment provisions afe recognized on
the “due and payable® basis. Other losses are recognized as
fund liabilities in the year of setlement, except thal cases settled
shortly after year-end are recognized as fund Habllitles using a
sliding matariality scale that increases from recognizing all losses
In early October to recording only settlements in excess of $1.5
million after November 30,

Net Pension Obligation
This liability is described In Note 11.

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

7




Michigan
Notes to the Financial Statements

e ——
C. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
Changes in long-temm liabilities for the year ended September 30,
2001, are summarized as foltows {in millions);
Beginning Amounts Amounts
Balance Ending Due Within Due
Governmeantal Activities {Rostated) Additions Reductions Balance One Year Thereafter
Bonds Payable:
General obligation debt $ 9303 $ 3288 § 2273 § 10318 § 40 & 9828
Revenue bonds 1,003.6 3413 70.8 1,274.0 459 1,2281
State Building Aulhority 1.825.9 795.8 462.4 2,159.3 106.5 2,052.9
Notes Payable:
Transportation related - 400.0 - 400.0 - 400.0
State Building Authority 131.9 - 131.9 - - -
Deferred Loss on Refundings:
General obligation debt - {(11.7) 3 (11.5} - (11.5)
Revente dedicated debt - {7 - {7) - {.7)
State Building Authority - 8.2} A {8.2) - {(8.2)
Unamortized Premiums:
Genera! obligation debt - 4.4 3 14.0 - 14.0
Revenue dedicated debt - 4.5 . 4.5 - 4.5
State Building Autherity - 26.0 B 255 - 255
Other Debt:
Slate Building Authority
Commercial paper 348.1 653.8 694.5 307.4 137.3 1701
Total bonds and notes payable 4,23%.7 2,543.8 1,688.2 5,196.1 3387 4,857.5
Cther Long-term Liabilities:
Capital lease obligations 278.2 422 65.6 254.8 304 224.4
Compensated absences 468.3 227.0 257.6 437.7 20.6 4171
Workers' compensation 195.0 48,9 44.0 198.9 451 154.8
Net penslon obligations 20.5 i 1.6 19.5 - i9.5
Other clalms & judgments 596.4 612.8 576.6 632.5 109.9 522.6
Durant seftlement 509.6 - 58.7 451.0 60.0 391.0
Total other liabilities 2,088.1 931.6 1,004.2 1,995.4 265.9 1,729.5
Total Long-term Liabilities $ 63078 § 34754 $ 25924 & 71915 $ 6046 § 6,587.0
Business-type Activities
Other Long-termn Liabilities:
Lottery prize awards* $ 8238 § - $ 598 8§ 764.0 $ 148.4 $ 6156
Compensated absences 4.6 1.0 25 341 .5 2.6
Other claims & judgments - 42,0 - 42,0 - 42,0
Total Long-term Liabilities $ 8284 § 430 $ 623 § 809.1 $ 148.9 § 6603

salaries and wages of the related employees. The net pension
obfigations will be liquidated by the State’s govemmental and
internal service funds that contribute toward the pension funds,
based on the statutorily required contribution rates. The School

*The amounts due within one year are Included with
“Accounts payable and other liabilitles™ on the Statement of
Net Assets,

The General Fund, spectal revenue, and intemal service funds
in which the leases are recorded will liquidate the capital lease
obligations. The compensated absence and workers'
compensation liabiliies will be Hquidated by the applicable
govemmental and internal service funds that account for the

Aid Fund will liquidate the Durant settfement, Other claims and
judgments attributable to the govemmental activities will
generally be liquidated by the General Fund and transporiation
related special revenue funds.
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NOTE 15 - BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE - DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
A. Bonds and Notes Payable
Bonds Payable
Bonds payable of the discretely presented component unils are remaining discretely presented component units  have

legal obligations of the compenent units and are not general
chbligations of the State.

The State universities and the Michigan State Housing
Development Authority ulilize June 30 fiscal year-ends. The

September 30 fiscal year-ends. The foltowing table
summarizes debl service requirements of the discretely
presented component units as reported in their separalely
issued financial statements, utilizing their respective fiscal year-
ends {in millions):

Fisgal Years Ending In Principal interest Total
2002 3 289.4 $ 3087 $ 60861
2003 2562.1 286.7 548.8
2004 252.6 287.0 539.6
2005 246.8 276.3 523.2
2006 237.0 263.2 500.2
1,288.0 1,429.9 2,717.9
2007-2011 1,333.2 10728 2,408.0
2012-2016 1,165.3 740.8 1,906.1
2017-2021 1,038.1 438.3 1,476.4
2022-2026 543.1 205.4 748.4
2027-2031 403.4 88.2 491.6
2032-2036 193.4 19.7 213.1
2037-2042 5.8 3 6.1
4,682.2 2,565.4 7,247.7
$ 3,9953 $ 9,965.6
Less:
Unamortized discount {1
Total principal % 5,970.2
Included in fhe table above is $409 million of demand bonds Notes Payahle
comprised of the Michigan Higher Education Student Loan The Michigan Municlpal Bond Authority has short-term notes
Authority, $141.4 million, and the Michigan State Housing outstanding of $614.1 million as of September 30, 2001,
Development Authority, $267.6 million. Defeased bonds
outstanding of the Mackinac Island State Park Commission, B. Unrecorded Limited Obligation Debt

Michigan State Housing Development Authority, Michigan
Municipal Bond Authority, and nine of the State universities are
not reflected in the table above.

Subsequent 1o their respective year-ends, the following
discretely presented component units Issued bonds (in millions}:

Amount

Michigan State Housing Development Authority  $  24.4
Michigan State Hospital Finance Authority 91.3
Eastern Michigan University 41.4
Grand Valley State University 314
Northern Michigan University 30.0
Oakland University 48.0
Saginaw Valley State University 24.4

’ $ 2909

Disclosures Tegarding these bonds and transactions are
availabte in the separately issued reports of the various
organizations.

Subsequent o June 30, 2001, the Michigan State Houslng
Development Authority entered into a forward Interest rate swap
in the amount of $60 million. The swap Is in place to hedge
variable rate bonds that will be sold in July 2002, The bonds
are being issued to fund multi-family mortgage loans,

Certain State financing authorities have issued [imited
obligation revenue bonds which are not recorded as liabilities in
these statements because the borrowings are, in substance,
debls of other entilies. The State has no obligation for this
debt. Typically, these borowings are repayable only from the
repayment of loans, unfoaned proceeds and related interest
earnings, and any collateral which may be provided.

The Michigan Higher Education Facilities Authority (MHEFA}
issues limited obligation bonds to finance foans to privale
nonprofit institutions  of higher education for capital
improvements. As of Seplember 30, 2001, MHEFA had bonds
outstanding of $312.4 millon. Of the above amount, $20.6
million of bonds have been defeased In substance, leaving a
remaining undefeased balance of $291.8 million.

The Michigan Sirategic Fund (MSF} Issues Industrial
development revenue bonds ($5.8 billion for the periocd January
1, 1979 through September 30, 2001} which are not recorded
as liabilities. Total taxable bonds issued by MSF for the period
October 1, 1997 through September 30, 2001, was $8.3 million,
which are not recorded as liabilities. These borrowings are, in
substance, debts of other entities and financial transactions are
handled by culside trustees.
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The Michigan State Hospital Finance Authority (MSHFA) has
issued $4.8 billion of no commitment bonds as of September
30, 2001. Of the above amount, $1.1 bilion have besn
defeased in substance. Economic gains and accounting gains
and losses, resulting from substance defeasance, inure to the
benefit of the facility for which the bonds were issued, and
accordingly are not reflected in the Authority's financial
statements. Subsequent o September 30, 2001, the Authority
Issued similar limited obligation bonds totaling $81.3 million.

The Michigan State Housing Development Authority (MSHDA)
has been authorized to issue up to $800 million of limited
obligation bonds to finance multi-family housing projects. At
June 30, 2001, limited obligation bonds had been issued
fotaling $426.7 million, of which eight issues totaling $70.2
miliion had been retired.

NOTE 16 — INCOME TAX REFUNDS AND TAX EXPENDITURES

A. Income Tax Credits

The Michigan Income Tax Act provides for several types of tax
credits. Some credits are accounted for as revenue reductions for
financial reporting purposes while others are reporled as
expenditures. Revenue reductions are reporied for those income
tax credits that are limited by the amount of an individual's tax
liability before considering such credits. To the exlent these
nonrefundable credits will generate future year payments, they are
accrued as income lax refund liabllities together with estimated
overwithholdings.

Expenditures are reported for those credits which can be received
even if they exceed the individual's fax liability. For these
refundable credits, the substance of the transaction is that the
State is making a grant payment using the income tax system as
a filing and payment mechanism. The amount of credit received
is not a part of the determination of tax llability. The State’s
property tax, home heating, and senlor citizens’ preseription drugs
credits are the primary credits that fall into this category.
Expenditures for these credils are recognized in the year the lax
returns are filed and recipients claim the credits.

The following table summarizes the various credits, reported as
an oxpensefexpenditure on the “Tax credils” line in the
government-wide and fund financial statements (in millions).

Properiy tax credits:

General homestead $ 2559
Senlor citizens 220.4
Famniangd preservation 18.9
Other property tax credits 21.0
Subtotal — properiy tax credils 516.2
Home heating (excluding federat share) 1.8
Senior citizens' prescription drugs 14.8
Total tax expenditures $ 5328

B. Income Tax Refunds Payable

The $618.0 million reperted as a liability on the “Income tax
refunds payable” ling in the govermment-wide and fund financial
statements includes: projected refund estimales for
overwithholding and tax credits reported as revenue reductions,
actual refunds made in October and November, and accruals for
known income lax litigation losses.

NOTE 17 - LOTTERY PRIZE AWARDS PAYABLE

The State Lottery Fund makes long-term prize awards for certaln
games, most notably the lotto games. Liabilities related to these
deferred prize awards are recorded at their present value using
discount rates ranging from 5.5% to 8.5%. The liquidation of these
liabilities is provided for by investment in U.8., Treasury deep
discount bonds and in the State’s Common Cash pool.

Prize awards payable in future years are as follows {in millions}:

Fiscal year ending September 30:

2002 {net of unamorized discount) $ 148.4
2003 109.8
2004 109.5
2005 103.0
2008 94.2
2007 through 2011 333.8
2012 through 2016 130.2
Later years 49.4
Tolal 1,078.2
Less unamortized discount on long-term
portion - {314.2)
Total at present valus $ 764.0

Public Act 239 of 1972 required that, as nearly as practicable, 45%
of gross ticket ravenue shall be allocated for prizes awards.
Effective December 17, 1998, P.A. 393 of 1998 requires as nearly as
practicable until January 1, 2003, that not less than 45% of gross
ticket revenue shall be allocated for prize awards. On or after
January 1, 2003, 45% of gross licket revenues shalt be allocated for
piize awards.

Public Act 95 of 1996 aliows the State Lottery to participate in joint
enterprises (such as multi-state lotteries) with other soveraignties.
Prize awards from joint enterprises shall be the perceniage of totat
annual revenue accrued from that game as prescribed by the joint
enterprise parlicipation agreement. More detailed information on the
State Loftery Fund is available in the fund's separately issued
audited financial statements, which are prepared semiannually,
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NOTE 18 — OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Discretely Presented Component Units

Michigan Education Trust (MET)

MET offers contracls which, for actuarially determined amounts,
provide future tuilion at State institutions of higher education.
Confract provisions also allow the benefits to be used at privale or
out-of-state institutions, with the amount provided being based upon
rates charged by the State's public institutions of higher educalion,
The tuition payments are made by MET as a separate legal entity
and these contracts are not considered obligations of the State. The
Legislature is not obligated to provide appropriations should losses
occur. The statutes and contracts provide for refunds to the
participants if MET becomes actuarially unsound. Liabilities have
been recorded on the stalement of net assels for the actuarial
present vatue of future tuition benefit obligations.

The 1988, 1989, and 1880 enroliments are known as Plans B and C.
Enroliments after November 1895 are known as Plan D,

The actuarial report on the stalus of MET Plans B and C, as of
September 30, 2001, shows the actuarial present value of future
tuition obligations to be $635.6 miflion, as compared te the actuarially
determined market value of assets available of $734.7 million. The
actuarial assumptions used include: a projected tuition increase rale
of 5.71% for tha years through 2007 and 7.30% for subsequent
years; and a discount rate of 6.20%.

The actuarial report on the status of MET Plan D, as of Seplember
30, 2001, shows the actuarial preseni value of future tuition
obligations to be $123.6 million, as compared to the acluarially
determined market value of assels available of $127.3 milion. The
aciuarial assumptions used include: a projected tuition increase rate
of 5.71% for the years through 2007 and 7.30% for subsequent
years; and a discount rate of 7.00%.

COn November 8, 1994, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Sixth Gircuit
ruled that MET is an integral part of the State of Michigan and, thus,
the investment income realized by MET is not currently subject to
federal income tax. On August 20, 1996, the Small Business Job
Protection Act of 1996 (the “1896 Tax Act’) was signed into faw
which included a provision adding a new seclion o the Intemal
Revenue Code of 1986 defining “qualified state tuition programs.” A
qualified state iuition program is gensrally exempt from income tax,
but is subject lo unrelated business income tax. MET has no
unrelated business Income. Distributions made in excess of
conliibutlons (whether to the refund designee, beneficiary, or to a
college on behalf of the beneficiary) are taxable income to the
beneficiary or the refund designes. The Intemal Revenue Service
{IRS) was expected lo release regulations in 2000, which would have
clarified the 1996 federal legislation for qualified state tuition
programs. [n May 1997, MET submitted a request for ruling to the
IRS for verification that MET is in compliance with the 1896 Tax Act.
On December 23, 1997, the |IRS issued a favorable ruling which
confirms that MET is in compliance with the Act.

NOTE 19 —- DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS

The State offers its employees {excluding university employees) two
deferred compsnsation plans to allow a portion of their salary to be
defeired until future years. Executive Order 1989-7 transferred
adminisirative oversight of the plans, labeled 457 and 401k after
seclions of the Intemal Revenue Code, to the Depariment of
Management and Budget. Day-to-day operations of the plans have
been contracted to a third-party; howsver, the State Treasurer
oversess investment options. The 457 plan and the 401k plan are
combined for reporting purposes under the heading of “State
Employees’ Delerred Compensation Funds.”

The State makes no contribution to the 457 plan, but makes
matching contributions to the 401k plan as part of certain employees’
compensation packages. To expand investmant oplions, three

investmenl tiers were developed and made available to participants
on July 1, 1957. Participants invest thelr contributions and
accumulated eamings by selecting mutuat funds in one or more of
the investment tiers. Employees may, at any time, transfer
accumilated balances and future contributions among mutual funds
in the investment tiers. Investment eamings, net of administrative
charges, are credited to the participants proporiionally, based upon
thelr balances in the plan,

The 401k plan includes loan provisions. Loans to participants are
recorded as assets. The 457 plan does not include loan provisions.

Net assets available for plan benefits for the 457 plan and the 401k
plan at September 30, 2001, were $2.0 and $1.1 billion, respectively.
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NOTE 20 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
A, Primary Government
The balances of current interfund receivables and payables as of
September 30 were {in millions):
Due To
School Non-major Unemployment internal
General Aid Governmental Compensation Service Fiduclary
Due From Fund Fund Funds Funds Funds Funds Total

General Fund $ - $ - $ - 5 1.6 $ 125 $ 136 $27.6
School Ald Fund 117.3 - - - - - 117.3
Non-major

Governmental Funds 181.4 - 192.2 - 1.3 1.3 3759
State Lottery Fund - 9.0 - - - - 941
Unemptoyment

Compensation Funds - - - 2.8 - - 2.8
Non-major Enterprise

Funds - - - - - - A
internal Service Funds - - - - 26.3 .1 26.4
Fiduciary Funds 2 - - - - - 2

Total $ 298.6 $ 9.0 $ 192.2 $ 4.4 $ 402 $ 151 $ 559.5

Interiund receivables and payables are recorded for 1) B. Discretely Presented Component Units

borrowings to efiminate negative balances in the Common Cash

pool, as described in Note 5, 2) payioll liabilities for group
insurance and retirement, and 3) tax accrual distibutions for
taxes collected In the following fiscal year.

Receivables and relaled liablliies between the primary
govemment and the discretely presented component unils, do
not agree because the Michigan State Housing Development

Authority and the ten ties h

Not included in the table above are the following interfund yea,.en?,'_ ten State universi ave a June 30 fiscal
advances, which are not expected to be repaid within one year;

$7.2 million due from the Correctional Industries Revolving Fund

(an intemmal sernvice fund) to the General Fund for amounts

loaned for capltal construction and $26.4 million due from the

Blue Water Bridge Fund to the State Trunkline Fund (both

reporied as part of the State Trunkline Fund, a special revenue

fund) for federal funds loaned for bridge construction.
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NOTE 21 — INTERFUND COMMITMENTS
A. Mackinac Bridge Authority

are contingent upon future net revenues, there is no repayment
schedule, and the repayment commitment is long-term and
budgetary in nature.  Repayments may be authorized by the
Authority, after consideration of the Autherity’s annual needs for
its operations and ptanned repairs and improvements.

The Mackinac Bridge Authority, & discretely presented
component unit, has over the years recelved $75.3 million of
subsidies, including $12.3 million for operations and $63.0 million
for debt service. These subsidles were provided by the State
Trunkline and Michigan Transporlation funds, respeclively, bolh

of which are special revenue funds.
As of September 30, 2001, the Authority has repaid a tolal of

$9.5 milllon of the advance from the Michigan Transportation
Fund, leaving a balance of $53.5 million. No repayments have
been made on the advance from the State Trunkline Fund.

Slate statutes require that the Authority continue charging bridge
iolls and begin repaying the Slate funds for the subsidies
provided. These repayments are to continue untll such time as
the subsidies have been completely returned. The Authority has
not recorded a liabllity and the State funds have not recorded
receivables for these subsidies because: the reimbursemenls

NOTE 22 — INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers for the year ended Seplember 30, 2001,
consisted of the following {in milifons):

Transferred To

Non-major
General Schoot Ald Govemnmental Fiduciary
Transferred From Fund Fund Funds Funds Total
General Fund $ - $ 3852 $ 351.0 $ 7 $ 737.0
Budget Stabilization Fund 270.0 32.0 35.0 - 337.0
School Ald Fund 2.9 - - - 29
Non-major Govemmental Funds 176.6 - 1,187.7 - 1,334.3
State Lottery Fund 104 587.0 - - 597.4
Unemployment Compensation Funds 2.6 - 10.3 2.9
Non-major Enterprise Funds 127.4 - 127.4
Internal Service Funds 2 - 2
Fiduciary Funds 37.0 - .6 - 37.6
Total $ 627.0 $  1,004.2 3 1,654.6 $ 7 $ 3,186.7

and Economic Stabilization Fund or transfer accumulated
surpluses from the Counter-Cyclical Budge! and Economic
Stabilization Fund to other funds when necessary,

Translers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund thal stalute
requires to collect them to the fund that stalute requires to expend
them, 2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds
collecting the receipls 1o the debt service fund as debl service

paymenis become due, 3) use unrestricted revenues collected in
the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in
other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, 4) move
profits from the Liquor Purchase Revolving Fund and the Slale
Loltery Fund as required by law, and 5) transfer budgelary
surpluses from the General Fund to the Counter-Cyclical Budget

In the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001, the State recorded
transfers for $270.0 million from the Counter-Cyclical Budget and
Economic Stabilization Fund to the General Fund to subsidize
lower than expected revenues. These transfers were made In
accordance with statutory authority granted by the Legislature.
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NOTE 23 — FUND DEFICITS

A. Primary Government

Governmental Funds

The Combined Recreation Bond Fund — Local Projects, a special
revenue fund, had a fund batance deficit of $13.5 miflion. The
deficit was caused by expenditures for projects for which bonds
have not yet been issued.

The Combined Recreation Bond Fund — State Projects, a capital
projects fund, had a fund balance deficit of $1.6 million. The
deficlt was caused by expenditures for projecis for which bonds
have not yet been issued,

The Advance Financing Funds, a capital projects fund, had a
fund balance deficit of $175.5 million. The deficit was caused by
expenditures for projects for which bonds have not yet been

issued and for expenditures incurred to improve State-owned
sites that have not been sold.

The State Building Aulhority, a capital projects fund, had a
fund balance deficit of $95.4 million. The deficit was caused
by amounts due 1o the Advance Fipancing Funds for
reimbursable expenditures for which bend or commerciai
paper proceeds have not yet been received.

B. Discretely Presented Component Units

All discretely presented component units have positive net
asset balances as of September 30, 2001.

NOTE 24 — FUND BALANCES

A. Reservations - Primary Government

The line entitled "Reserved fund balance” on the Governmental
Funds Batance Sheet at September 30 consists of the following
{in millions}:

Other
Schoot Special Capilal
General Aid Revenue Projects Permanent Tolat
Budgstary carry-forwards:

Encumbrances $ 137.6 $ 3 $ 123 $ - $ 16.9 $ 267.1
Restricted revenues 1,006.6 7.7 358.2 - - 13725

Muiti-year projects {capital
outlay and work projects) 308.1 - 261.6 - 30.8 580.4
Construction and debt service - - 35.9 15.5 - 514
Revolving loan programs 5.0 - 43.6 - - 48.6
Funds held as permanent invesiments - - 109.5 - 3829 492.4
Noncurrent assels 423.1 1.3 271 - - 451.5
Total Resorved Fund Balances $ 1,880.5 8 9.3 $ 9381 $ 155 $ 4308 $ 3.274.0

Budgetary carry-forwards  represent  unused  spending Repayments on such loans are authorized to be used to make

authorization that continues to be avallable In the new year.
Restricted revenue camy-forwards include revenues restricted by
law for specified purposes. The largest restricted revenue carry-
forwards in the General Fund are refated to Medicaid Benefits
Trust, $420.9 milion, and local government revenue sharing,
$207.4 millon. Beginning in 1996, encumbrances in multi-year
projects are recorded in the reserve for encumbrances, Similar
amounts in previous years had not been specifically identified,
and were thus included in the broader reserve for multi-year
projects. The $308.1 miflion of mulli-year projects in the Generat
Fund includes $139.1 million of capital outlay and $169.0 million
of work project authorizations. Such amounts are reserved
because the funds are legally segregated for a specific purpose.

Construction and debi service reserves represent amounts which
are resirlcted for State Trunkline Fund's deb! service and Slate
Building Authority projects that are in process.

Reserves for revolving loan programs represent fund balance
which has been apprepriated for the purpose ol making ioans
that will encourage economic development in the State.

new loans.

Funds held as permanent investments represent amounts that
have been legally restricted for the purpose of providing a long-
term source of Investment income. These investments can
include either specific investments held for the fund or portions of
the fund's share of the Common Cash pool.

Reserves are recorded for noncurrent assets if they do not
represent current financial resources available for appropriation,
No reservation 1s recorded for noncurrent assets if doing so
would result in a duplicate reduction of unreserved fund balance.
This oceurs if the noncurrent assets have already been reserved
for some other reason or if they are related to rovenues that have
been deferred because of not being “available.”

Also, no reservations of fund balancas are recorded In single
purpose speclal revenue and debt service funds. From the
overall State perspeclive, the unreserved fund balances.of funds
other than the General Fund are restricted by the nature of the
fund type and they are not available for general State purposes.
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B. Net Asset Designations - Primary Government

The line “Unrestricted nel assets® on the govemment-wide
Statement of Net Assels contains designations as follows:

The State Sponsored Group Insurance Fund, an internal service
fund, described in Note 27, designated $58.3 million for fulure

catastrophic losses.

NOTE 25 - DISAGGREGATION OF PAYABLES

The line “Cuirent Liabilities: Accounts payable and other liabilities,”
as presented on the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and
the applicable Balance Sheets and Statements of Net Assets in the
fund financial statements, consists of the following {(in millions):

Medicaid Programs
Non-Medicaid Health
Programs
Family Independence
Programs
Transponation Programs
School Aid Programs
Merit Award Scholarships
Payroll and Withholdings
Tax Refunds other
than Income Tax
Uneamed Recelpls
Amounts Held for Others
Capital Project Related
Prize Awards
Liquor Purchase
Unsmployment Payments
Intemal Service Fund
Liabilities
Due to Fiduciary Funds®
Miscellansous

Total

of Net Assets.

Non-major Michigan Liguor
School Govarn- State Unemployment Purchase
General Ald mental Other Loltery Compensation Revolving
Fund Fund Funds Funds Fund Funds Fund Total
§ 4515 $ 3 - $ $ - $ - $ - $ 4518
180.1 35 - - 183.6
320.9 - A 321.0
- - - 4514 - 451.1
- 21,1 - - - 12t.4
- - 1014 . - - i01.4
121.0 - 13.3 - 4 b 1352
155.0 4.1 7.2 - - - - 166.4
419 - 1.3 . - . - 432
18.1 - 4.9 - 8 - - 239
- 162.0 - - - - 162.0
- . - 148.4 - - 148.4
- - - - 52.9 52.9
- - - 17.3 - 17.3
B - - 35.1 - 35.1
- - - 15.1 - 15.1
3135 - 102.8 - 5.2 421.5
$ 1,602.0 $ 125.2 $ 8477 § 502 $154.8 $ 17.3 $ 534 S2g850.6
*This amount represenis amounts due to fiduciary funds which were
reclassified as extemal payables on the govemment-wide Statement

N
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NOTE 26 — CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

A. Primary Government

Litigation

In the govemment-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements, the State accrues liabilitles refated to significant
legal proceedings if a loss is probable and reasonably
estimable. In the govemmental fund financial statements,
liabilities are accrued when cases are setiled and the amount Is
due and payabtle.

The State is a party to various legal proceedings seeking
damages, injunclive, or other relief. In addition to routine
litigation, certain of these proceedings could, if unfavorably
reselved from the point of view of the State, substantially affect
State programs or finances. These lawslilts involve programs
generally in the areas of corrections; tax collection; commeice
and budgetary reductions to scheol districts and govemmental
units; and court funding. Relisf sought generally includes
damages in tort cases; improvement of prison medical and
mental health care and refund claims under State taxes. The
Stale Is also a parly to varous legal proceedings that, if
resolved in the State’s faver, would resuft in contingency gains
to the State, but without material effect upon fund balance/net
assets. The ullimate dispositions and consequences of all of
these procesdings are not presently detenminable, but such
uitimate disposilions and consequences of any single
preceeding or all legal proceedings collectively should not
themselves, except as listed below, in the opinion of the
Attomey General of the State and the Office of the State
Budget, have a material adverse effect on the State's financial
position. Those lawsuits pending which may have a significant
impact or substantial effect on State programs or finances, if
resolved in a manner unfavorable to the Stale, include the
following:

10ih Judiclal Circult et at v State of Michigan et al: On August
22, 1094, the Ingham Circult and Probate Courls, together with

the 55th District Count, filed suits in the Courl of Claims and
Ingham County Circuit Court against the State of Michigan and
Ingham County entitled, 20th Judicial Circuit et al v Govemor et
al for declaratory and injunctive relief, and for damages, dus to
the alleged failure of the State Court Adminisirative Office to
properly calculale Ingham County's reimbursement under MCL
600.9947;, MSA 27A.8947, the court funding statute. The 30th
Judicial Circuit et al v Governor et al case has been dismissed
by stipulation of the parties because the plaintiffs are raising the
same claims as members of a class action captioned as 10th
Judicial Circuit et al v State_of Michigan et a] (Saginaw Circuit
Court No. 94-2936-AA-1/Court of Claims No. 94-15534-CM).
Piaintitis assert that the amount in controversy exceeds $5
miflion. The case Is currently pending final class cerification.

Durant et al v State of Michigan: On November 15, 2000, more
than 365 Michigan school districts and individuals tiled two suils
in the Michigan Court of Appeals. The first suit, Durant ot al v
State et al, (“Durant #I") asseris that the current State School
Ald appropriation act, P.A. 297 of 2000, violates Michigan
Constitution, Article 9, §§ 25-34 (the “Headlee Amendment”),
because it allegedly transfers per pupil revenue guaranteed to
school districts under the Constitution of 1963, Article 9, § 11,
for unrestricied school operating purposes, in order to salisly
the State’s independent funding obligation to those school
districts under Article 9, § 29. The plaintiffs in Durant Ili are
seeking a monelary remedy, including approximately $1.7
bilHon for the 1999-2000 through 2002-2003 school years for
the State’s alleged underfunding of speciat education programs
and services, inclusive of special education transporiation
services. The Durant Il plainliffs are also requesting a
declaratory judgment that the State, through P.A. 297 of 2000,
Is violating Article 9, § 11, and Article 9, § 29. The Durant M}

plaintiffs further seek orders declaring that the State has failed,
through P.A, 297 of 2000, to meal its constitutional duty to fund
services and activities provided by the plaintiff school districts
during school years 1989-2000 through 2002-2003 in the same
proportion by which they were funded when the Headlee
Amendment became effective, and that the State has reduced
the State-financed proportion of necessary costs incurred by the
plaintitt school districts for speciat education services for the
1999-2000 through 2002-2003 school years below that
provided by the Stale when the Headlee Amendment became
effective. The Durant Il plaintiffs also seek an injunction
permanently enjoining the State from making any future
reductions below the levels of funding provided when the
Headlee Amendment became effective to pay for the cost of the
activities and services required of them by State faw. They also
seek attorneys’ fees and costs of itigation.

The second suit, Adair et al v State et al (“Adair”), asserts that
the State has, by operation of law, increased the level of
various specified activilies and services beyond that which was
required by State law as of December 23, 1978 and,
subsequent to December 23, 1978, added varicus specified
new aclivilies or services by Slate law, including mandatory
increases in student Instruction time, without providing funding
for these new activities and services, all in violation of the
Headlee Amendment. In the original complaint, the Adair
plaintils sought an unspecified money judgment equal to the
reduction in the Slale financed proportion of necessary costs
incurred by the plaintiff school districts for each school year
from 1997-1998 through the date of any judgment and for
attomeys' fees and litigation costs. The Adalr plaintifis also
sought a declaratory judgment that the State has failed to meet
its funding responsibility under the Headlee Amendment to
provide the plalntiff school districts with revenues sufficient to
pay for the necessary increased costs for activities and services
first required by State law after December 23, 1978, and to pay
for increases in the level of required activities and services
beyond thal which was required by State law as of December
23, 1978.

On January 2, 2001, plaintilfs filed a first amended complaint in
both Durant )ll and Adair increasing the number of school
district plaintifis to 443. On February 22, 2001, plaintiffs filed a
second amended complain! in Durant HI increasing the number
of schoot district plaintitfs to 457. On April 16, 2001, plaintiffs
filed a second amended complaint in Adair Increasing the
number of school district plaintifis to 463. The second amended
complaint includes a request for declaratory relief, attomays’
fees and litigation costs bul does not Include a request for
monsy judgment. -

Jefferson Smurfit Corporation v State of Michigan: On

November 24, 1499, the Michigan Courl of Claims in Jefferson
Smurfit Corporation v State of Michigan, File No. 98-17140-CM,
ruled that the site-based capital acquisition deduction in
Michigan's single business tax act is unconstitutional,
According to the Michigan Depariment of Treasury, the potential
financial impact of this decision is -approximately $261 million,
The State has appealed the decislon. On November 13, 2001,
the Michigan Court of Appeals issued its opinion reversing the
declsion of the lower court and holding that the capital
acquisition deduction did not violate constitutional provistons. It
is anticipated that the taxpayers will seek reconsideration or will
file their application for leave to appeal with the -Michigan
Supreme Court,
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Federal Grants

The Stale receives significant financial assistance from lhe
tfederal govemment in the form of grants and enlittements. The
receipt of federal grants is generally conditioned upon
compliance with terms and condilions of the grant agresments
and applicable federal regulations. Substantially all federal
grants are subject to either federal single audits or financial and
compliance audits by grantor agencles. Questioned cosls as a
result of these audils may become disallowances after the
appropriate review of federal agencies. Materia! disallowances
are recognized as fund liabilities in the govemment-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements when the loss becomes
probable and reasonably estimable. As of Seplember 30, 2001,
the State estimates that additional disallowances of recognized
revenue will not be material to the general purpose financiat
statements.

The Department of Community Health (DCH) administers the
School Based Outreach Services Program to provide certain
health services to school-aged children. A dispute arose
between DCH and the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services (HHS) regarding costs which had been submitted to
HHS for reimbursement. The dispute involved cosis covering
several years. In January 2002 the Stale and HHS negotiated
an agreement to resglve the dispute. Aflhough the U.S.
Department of Justice must approve the settiement, the State
viaws that action as a formality and has adjusted the accounting
records at September 30, 2001, to reflect the impact of the
settlement. In the event that the agreement is set aside, the
State would again assert its claim for reimbursement for costs
disallowed by HHS.

Federal sanctions that may result in a foss to the State Include
$47.5 million for the Food Stamp Program and $55.2 million for
the Child Support Enforcement System.

Galn Contingencies

Certain contingent receivables relaled to the Family
Independence Agency are not recorded as assels in these
stalements. Amounts recoverable from Family Independence
Agency grant recipients for grant overpayments or from
responsible third parties are recorded as receivables only if the
amount is reasonably measurable, expected lo be recelved
within 12 months, and not contingent upon future grants or the
completion of major collection efforts by the State. If recoveries
are accrued and the program involves federal participation, a
lability for the federal share of the recovery is also accrued.
The unrecorded amount of potential recoveries, which are
ultimately coltectible, cannot be reasonably delermined.

in November 1998, the Attomey General joined 45 other states
and five temitories in a settlement with the nation's largest
tobacco manufacturers.  The seftlement includes base
payments to stales tolaling $220.6 biliion over the next 25
years, and continues in perpeluity. Michigan's share of the
settlement Is axpected to be $8.5 billion over the next 25 years
starting in 1898 and $348.3 million thereafter, adjusted for
inflation and other factors. The State also received $2.2 million,
representing costs incurmed to litigate the case. While
Michigan's share of the base payments will not change over
time, the amount of the annual payment is subject to a number
of modifications including adjustments for Inflation and usage
volumes. Some of the adjustments may result In increases in
the payments (inflation, for exampte), while other adjustments
will likely cause dscreases In the payments (volume
adjustments, for example). The net effect of these adjustments
on future paymenis is unclear, therefore the financial
statements only reflect amounts which can be reasonably
estimated.,

Construction Projects

As of September 30, 2001, several construction projects were in
progress, with several others in the planning stages. A more
detalled discussion of construction commitments Is included In
the construction in progress disclosures (Note 10).

The Depariment of Transportation has entered into construction
contracts that will be paid with tfransportation related funds. As
of September 30, 2001, the balances remaining in these
contracts equated $583.2 miflion,

Contingent Liability for Local School District Bonds

Public Act 108 of 1961, as amended, resulted in a contingen!
Kability for the bonds of any school district which are “qualified”
by the Superintendent of Public Instruction. Every qualified
school district Is required to borrow and the State Is required to
lend to it any amount necessary for the school district to avold a
default on ils qualified bonds. In the event that funds are not
available in the School Bond Loan Fund in adequate amounts
to make such a loan, the State is required to make such loans
from the General Fund. As of December 31, 2001, the principal
amount of qualified bonds outstanding was $11.1 billion. Total
debl service requirements on these bonds including Interest wili
approximate $972.0 million in 2002. The amount of loans by
the State (related to local schoo! district bonds qualified under
this program), oulstanding to local schoo! disticts as of
September 30, 2001, is $410,0 million. Interest dus on thess
loans as of September 30, 2001, Is $78.8 million.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Student Loan Guarantees

The Michigan Higher Education Assistance Authority (MHEAA)
is contingently liable for loans made to students by financlal
institutions that qualify for guaranty, The State, other than
MHEAA, is not liable for these loans. MHEAA's default ratio is
currently below 5% for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2001. As a result, the federal government’s reinsurance rate for
defaults for the fiscal year ended Seplember 30, 2001, Is 100%
for joans made prior to October 1, 1993, and 98% for loans
made on or after October 1, 1993 to September 30, 1998. In
the svent of future adverse defaull experience, MHEAA could
be liable for up to 25% ol defaulted foans. Management doss
not expect that all guaranteed loans could default in one year.
At the beginning of each fiscal year, MHEAA’s reinsurance rate
retums to 98%, In the event of fulure adverse default
experience, MHEAA could be llable for up to 25% of such
defaulted loans. Accordingly, MHEAA's expected maximum
contingent Hability is less than 25% of outstanding guaranteed
loans; however, the maximum contingent llabllity at September
30, 2001, is $639.8 million.

MHEAA entered into commitment agreements with ali tenders
that provide, among other things, that MHEAA will mainiain
cash and marketable securities. MHEAA was in compliance
wilh this requirement as of Seplember 30, 2001, al an amount
sufficient to guarantee loans in accordance with the Higher
Education Act of 1965, as amended.

Multi-Famlly Mortgage Loans

As of June 30, 2001, the Michigan Slate Housing Davelopment
Authority (MSHDA) has commitments to Issue muldli-family
rmontgage loans in the amount of $77.5 million and single-famity
morigage loans in the amount of $21.0 million,

MSHDA has committed up to approximately $1.1 mhlion per
year for up to 30 years from the date of completion of the
respective developments {subject to three years advance nolice
of termination) from its accumulated reserves and future income
1o subsidize operations or rents for certain tenants oceupying
units in certain devslopments funded under MSHDA’s muiti-
famlly program.
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NOTE 27 — RISK MANAGEMENT

A.

Primary Government

General

The State has elected not to puichase commercial insurance for
many of the risks of fosses to which it is exposed. The State is
self-insured for most general liability and property losses,
portions of its employee insurance benefit and employee
bonding programs, automobile liability, and workers'
compensation and unemployment compensation claims. Areas
of risk where some levei of insurance coverage Is purchased
include: aircraft liability, property and loss rental insurance that
may be required by bond or fease agreements, portions of the
State employee Insurance benefils program, certain State
arifacts, buliders risk coverage, boiler and machinery
coverage, and employee bonding. Sefiled claims hava not
exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past nine fiscal
years.

The State has established two Internal service funds, which are
described below, to account for certain aspects of the risk
management pregram. Fund expendilures (expenses) are
recognized in the paying funds in a manner similar to purchased
commerclal insurance. For other uninsured losses not covered
by an internal service fund program, the State recognizes fund
liabilities in the fund incuring the loss as follows: govemmental
funds record an expenditure when a loss is due and payable;
proprielary funds record an expense when it is probable that a
foss has occurred and the amount can be reasonably
estimated. As explained more fully in Note 14, losses for
workers' compensation and certain types of litigation losses
have been recognized as liabilites in the govemment-wide
financial statements,

For unemployment claims, the Unemployment Agency (UA)} bills
the State for the actual amount of claims pald to former State
employees. The Stale accrues llabifities In the govemmental
fund financial statements for unemployment compensation, only
to the extent paid by UA through September 30. During the
2000-2001 fiscal year, expsnditures for payments to former
State employaes {not including university employees) totaled
§5.4 million. The potential liability for fulure payments cannot
be estimated.

The State's two internal service funds, which account for certain
areas of ssk management, follow accounting standards
established by the GASB, This results in a reporting which is
very similar to that used In the private insurance industry. The
various component programs within the two funds may Incur
deficits during a given year, but each program’s suiplus and
unrestricled net asset balance Is considered in calculating
tuture charges or benefit lavals.

Risk Management Fund

This fund was established during fiscal year 1989-1990 to
account for insurance management aclivities implemented
within the Deparment of Management and Budget. The
automotive liability and administrative functions are accounted
for as operating activities of this fund. Expenses and liabilities
for claims, including incurred but not reporied or not processed
claims, have been recorded in the amount of $6.5 million. This
includes a long-term portion, which is recorded at $4.3 million.

Changes In the Risk Management Fund's claims for autorobile
liability for the fiscal years ending September 30, 2001 and
2000 are as follows (in millions):

2001 2000
Balance - beginning $ 8.0 $ 6.9
Cuirent year claims and

changes in estimates 1.2 1.8
Claim payments {2.6) {.8)
Balance - ending 8 6.5 $ 8.0

State Sponsored Group Insurance Fund

The Department of Management and Budget uses this fund to
account for employse and retiree insurance benefit programs,
which are largely self-funded. Expenses and labilities for
clalms, which include incurred bul not reported or not processed
bengfit claims, based on preliminary estimates from the plan
administrators, have been recorded as liabilities in the amount
of $183.7 million. This Includes a long-terrn portion which is
recorded at a discounted present value of $84.0 million using a
discount rate of 10.5% (first 10 years of disability), 9.0% (next
10 years), and 6.0% thereafter for claims incuired prior to
January 1, 1992, Claims incurred in past years were
discounted using rates as follows in the calculation of incurred
but not reported claims: 1993 and 1994 used a rate of 6.0%,
1995 used a rate of 6.25%, 1996 and 1997 used a rate of
5.75%, and 1998 through 2001 used a rate of 5.25%.

Payments to the State Sponsored Group Insurance Fund are
based on estimates of amounts needed 1o pay prior and current
year claims. In addition, a portion of the fund’s net assets has
baen designated for catastrophic losses. The risk management
deslgnation represents the level of reserves that should be
maintalned {o ease large fluctuations in premium levels In years
of unexpected excessive claims. That designation was $58.3
million at Seplember 30, 2001. Unrestricted net assets tolaled
$60.0 million at September 30, 2001.

Changes in the State Sponsored Group Insurance Fund's
claims llability for employee and retlres insurance benafit
programs for the fiscal years ending Seplember 30, 2001 and
2000 are as follows (in millions):

2001 2000
$ 1840 $ 173.7

Balance - beglnning
Current year claims and

changes In estimates 516.9 494.6
Clalm payments {517.2) {484.3)
Balance - ending $ 1837 3 184.0
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B. Discretely Presented Component Units

State Unlversities

The State university component units parlicipate with the other
Michigan public universities in the Michigan Universities Self-
Insurance Corporation (MUSIC}, which provides indemnity to its
members against comprehensive general Hability, errors and
omissions losses, and property damage commenly covered by
insurance. Loss coverages for comprehensive general liability
and property are struclured on a three-layer basis with each
member relaining a portien of its losses, MUSIC covering the
second layer, and commercial camiers covering the third layer.
For all policy years through June 30, 1993, emors and
omissions coverage was structured on a two-layer basis with no
excoss insurance provided. Effective July 1, 1983, MUSIC
obtained excess insurance coverage from commercial carriers
covering the third layer. For automebile liability there is no

M

member retention, Comprehensive general liability, property
and automobile liability coverage is provided on an occurrence
basis; errors and omissions coverage is provided on a claims
made basis.

The universities made initial capital contributions and make
premiurn payments to cover administrative costs, the cost of
obtainlng excess insurance coverage, and claims for risk
retained by the facllity. Premiums to facility participants are
adjusted based on the difference batween aclual claims and the
amount of claims originally eslimated for a year. Liabilities for
estimated losses retained by the universities under MUSIC
have been established In the operating funds of the universities.

NOTE 28 —- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

A. Long-Term Borrowing

In October 2001, the State issued school ioan bonds totaling
$47.1 milllon to finance loans to school districts.

In Oclober 2001, the State issued Clean Michigan Initiative
bonds lotaling $56.8 milllon. The bonds were part of the $675
milion general obligation bond package authorized by the
voters in 1998, The funds will be used primarly for
environmental cleanup, water enhancement and protection, and
infrastructure improvements at State parks.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Thousands)

GENERAL FUND
ORIGINAL FINAL VARIANMCE WITH
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FiINAL BUDGET
Beginning budgelary
fund balance S 1,739,887 $ 1,739,887 $ 1,739,887 S -
Resources {inflows);
General purpose revenues:
Taxes 9,408,000 8,687,550 8,687,550 -
Federal 50,000 24,633 24,633 -
Locat 1,000 1,767 1,767 -
Licenses and permits 24,000 23,8502 23,602 -
Services 9,000 4,770 4,770 -
Miscellaneous 89,000 143,221 143,221 -
Translers in 143,000 529,029 529,029 -
Restricted revenues:
Taxes 1,804,919 2,325,513 2,325,513 -
Federal 8,377,749 8,286,131 8,286,131 -
Local 1,054,974 1,260,283 1,260,283 -
Licenses and pesmits 230,467 196,230 196,230 -
Sewvices 169,338 108,875 109,875 -
Miscellaneous 748,311 368,691 368,691 -
Transfers in . 86,932 98,019 98,019 -
Total revenue inflows 22,194,680 22,059,213 22,059,213 -
Amounts available for appropriation 23,934,576 23,788,101 23,799,101 -
Chaiges to appropriations (outflows):
Legistative Branch 186,172 168,865 168,971 895
Judiciat Branch 249,384 243,585 236,329 7,257
Executive Branch:
Agricuiture 118,040 97,067 986,799 268
Attorney General 61,402 56,299 55,600 899
Career Development 531,316 446,978 446,825 52
Civil Rights 16,463 15,541 15,289 252
Civil Sewvice 32,310 31,679 31,679 -
Colleges and Universities Granis 2,105,059 2,102,765 2,102,073 693
Community Heallth 8,497,159 8,985,614 8,981,468 4,148
Consumer and Induslty Services 269,829 248,147 246,617 1,530
Corrections 1,735,059 1,689,812 1,692,214 7,598
Education 1,317,202 1,217,029 1,216,005 1,024
Environmental Quality 260,781 210,814 210,725 89
Execulive Office 5,880 5,71t 5,674 37
Family Independance Agency 3,844,929 3,660,366 3,657,224 3,142
Management and Budget 967,762 600,496 586,261 14,235
Military and Veterans Affairs 99,256 98,850 96,952 1,898
Matural Resources 134,457 115,503 114,551 . 4,952
Siate 196,743 188,986 185,850 3,145
State Police 423,085 439,257 430,227 .8,030
Transporiation 32,663 17,160 17,160 . -
Treasury 1,989,351 2474912 2,468,914 5,988
ntrafuryd expenditure reimbursements - {873,758) {673,758) -
Total charges to appropriations 22,974,191 22,456,688 22,389,647 _ 67,041
Reconciling ltems:
Encumbrances at Seplember 30 - 137,626 137,626 -
Changs in noncurrent assels: - {61,680} {61,680) -
Net Reconciling Hems B 75,945 75,945 -
Ending budgetary
{fund balance $ 960,385 $ 1418358 $_1,485399 $ 67,041
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COUNTER-CYCLICAL BUDGET

AND ECONOMIC STABILIZATION FUND SCHOOL AID FUND
CRIGINAL FINAL VARIANGE WITH ORIGINAL FINAL VARIANCE WITH
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FINAL BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FINAL BUDGET
$ 1264434 S 1264434 5 1264434 § - $ 983802 § 083809 §  UR380  § -
- - - - 9,749,200 9,407,071 9,407,071 -
77,700 66,736 66,736 - - 117,380 117,380 -
- - - - 856,903 839,551 839,651 -
- - - . 145,000 148,627 148,627 -
- - - - 172,697 164,686 164,586 -
77,700 6,736 66,736 - 10,923,800 10,677,315 10,677,215 -
1,342,134 1,331,170 1,331,170 - 11,907,699 11,861,214 11,661,214 -
. . - - 11,052,915 11,011,404 10,959,167 $2,327
67,000 236,083 336,983 - - - .
67,000 336,083 336,983 - 11,052,915 11,011,494 10,959,167 52,327
- - - - - 480 480 -
- - - - - 814 814 -
$ 1275134 $  g94d87 0§ 994187 § - $ 854784 § 650 $ 702861 $ 52,327
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET-TO-GAAP RECONCILIATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

(in Thousands)

COUNTER -
CYCLICAL
BUDGET AND
ECONCMIC SCHOOL
GENERAL STABILIZATION AID
FUND FUND FUND

Sourcesfinflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available tor appropriation™
from the budgetary comparison schedule $ 23,799,101 $ 1,331,170 $ 11,861,214
Differences - budget o GAAP:
Budgsiary fund balance at the beginning of the yearis a
budgetary resource but is not a current-year revenue for

financial reporling purposes. (1,739,887) {1.264,434) (983,890)
Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources
but are not revenues for financial reporting purposes. {627,049) - (1,004,237)

Total revenues as reporied on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Govarnmental
Funds. $ 21,432,165 § 66,736 $ 9,673,078

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “tolal charges to
appropriations” from the budgetary comparison schedule, $ 22,389,647 b 336983 $ 10,959,167
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not
received are reportad in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are

received for financial reporiing purposes. {137,626} - {334}
Transfers 1o other funds are outflows of budgetary resources
but are not expendilures for financial reporting purposes. {736,981) (336,983) (2,889)

Capital lease acquisitions are not outflows of budgetary
resources but are recorded as current expenditures
and other financing sources under GAAP. 23,014 - -
Total expendilures as reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental
Funds, $ 21538055 % - § 10,955,944
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Required Supplementary Information

' Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Budgetary Reporting

Statutory/Budgetary Presentation

The various funds and programs within funds ulilize a number of different budgstary control processes. Annual legislative appropriations and
revenue estimates ara provided for most “operating” funds. (Note 2 of the basic financial staternents identilies the annually budgeted operating
funds.}

The original executive budget and original legisiative appropriations provide general purpose {unresiricted) revenue estimates Iin order to
demonstrate compliance with constitutional provisions. Revenuss restricted by law or ocutside grantors to a specific program are estimated at a
level of detalt consistent with controlling refated expenditure accounts.

For programs financed from restricted revenues, spending aulhorization is generally contingent upon recognition of the related revenue.
Reductions of spending authority occur if revenues fall short of estimates. If revenues exceed the estimate, supplemental appropriations are
required before the additional resources can be spent,

‘The budgetary comparison schedule presented for the General Fund, the Budget Stabilization Fund, and the School Aid Fund presenis both the
original and final appropriated budgets for fiscat year 2000-2001, as well as the actual resource inflows, oulflows and fund balance stated on the
budgetary basis. The supplementary portion of this report includes a Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expendilures, and Changes in Fund
Balances — Budget and Actual, by fund type, for non-major special revenue and permanent funds with annual budgets. Those schedulgs only
include the final appropriated budget.

The original budget and related estimated revenues represent the spending authority enacted inlo law by the appropriation bills as of October 1,
2000, and includes encumbrance and multi-year projects budgetary carry-forwards from the prior fiscal year.

The budgetary fund balance represents total fund balance, net of reserves for noncurrent assets. Reserves for noncurrent assels do not
represent current financlal resources available for appropriation and are removed for budgetary purposes.

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require that the final legal budget be reflected in the “final budget” column, therefore updated
revenue estimates available for appropriations as of November 30, rather than the amounts shown in the original budget, are reported. The
MNovember 30 date is used because P.A. 431 of 1984, as amended, permits budget adjustments by the Legislature through 60 days after year-
and,

The final appropriations budget represents original and supplemental appropriations, cary-forwards, carry-backs (i.e., current year
appropriations for prior year overdrafts), approved Iransfers, executive order reductions, and timing differences. Expenditures, transfers out,
other financing uses, and encumbrances are combined and classifled by department rather than being reported by character and function as
shown in the GAAP statements. This departmental classitication is used to better reflect organizational responsibility and to be more consistent
with the budget process. Appropriations include Interagency expenditure reimbursement, in which one agency provides funding to another
agency within the same fund. The final budget and aclual amounts are adjusted o eliminate the duplicalion.

The liming differences resutt from unspent authorizations for mulli-year projects, such as caplital outlay and work projects, and {rom restricted
ravenues that had not been appropriated for expenditure in the current year. Such authorization balances remaining at year-end are removed
from the final budgat column 1o provide an “annualized™ budget.

Positive “variances” rellect restricted revenues thal were appropriated and available for expendilure fn the current year and unused generat
purpose spending authority (lapses); negative “variances™ reflect budgetary overdrafts. If both positive and negalive variances exist for a
paricular line, the amount shown is the net variance.

Statutory/Budgetary Reconciliation
The statutory/budgetary basis presentation differs from GAAP in ways that do not affect ending fund balance.

For budgetary reporting purposes, expandilures and transfers out in the “Actual” column include recorded encumbrances, because they are
considered uses of spending authority in the year the State incurs an obligation. The “Original”™ and °Final Budget” columns include
encumbrance authorization balances carried over from the prior fiscal year, because they provided spending authority in the current year. In the
GAAP basis statemenls, expenditures do not include encumbrances. The effect of this diference is reflected as a reconciting tem on the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the major funds and the Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
— Budget and Actual for the non-major special revenus funds and permanent funds. The encumbrance of spending authority Is recorded as a
reservation of fund balance under both bases of accounting.

For budgetary purposes, caplializable lease expenditures are recognized when payments are due, rather than upon lease inception as required
by GAAP. This difference does not affect fund batance because the “other financing sources” recorded under GAAP at lease inception are not
recorded on the siatutory/budgetary basis.
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Information About Infrastructure Assels Reported Using the Modified Approach

As allowed by GASB Statement No. 34, Baslc Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis- for State and Local
Governments, the State has adopted an alternalive process for recording depreciation expense on selected infrastructure assels. Under this
alternative method, referred to as the modified approach, the State expenses certain maintenance and preservation costs and does not report
depreciation expense. Assels accounted for under the modified approach include approximately 27,300 lane miles of roads and approximately
5,700 bridges that the State is responsible tc maintain,

In order to ulilize the modified approach, the State Is required to:
+  Maintain an asset management system that includes an up-to-date inventory of eligible infrastruciure assets.
+  Perform condition assessments of eligible assets and summarize the resulls using a measurement scale.
=  Esltimate each year the annual amount to maintain and preserve the assets at the condition fevel established and disclosed by the
State.
+  Document that the assets are being preserved approximately at, or above, the eslablished condition level.

Roads

Measurement Scale

The Michigan Depariment of Transportation (MDOT) uses numerous methods to delermine the condition of roadway pavements; howsver, the
Stufficiency Rating serves as the Slale’s primary melhod to measure and monitor pavement conditions. In use since 1961, the Sufficiency
Raling is a visual analysis conducted by an engineer and includes a 5-point scale, as follows:

Rating Bituminous Surface Concrete Surface

1.0 = Excellent Pavement shows no visible deterioration. Distresses Same
are non-existent.

2.0 = Good Soma indication of initial deterioration, but not yet Some indication of initial detaricration, but not yet
requiring appreciable amounts of maintenance. requiring appreciable amounts of maintenance.
Distress items include the start of small iransverse Distress items may include the start of small
and/or longitudinal cracks. Slight rutting may be transverse andfor longitudinal cracks, or slight seam
apparent in the wheel path, and joint separation. Joints may show very small

amounts of deterioration,

3.0 = Fair Average deterioration requiring occasional routine Average deterioration requiring occasional routine
maintenance. Distrasses may include minor maintenance. Distresses may include minor
transverse and longitudinal ¢racking becoming transverse and iongitudinal cracking becoming
continuous throughout the segment. Severe cracking conlinuous throughout the segment. Severe cracking
is patched effectively. Rutting may be a little more is patched effectively. Through lanes and shoulders
severe and hold small amounts of water. may begin to show separation from falling tie bars.

4.0 = Poor Excessive deterioration requiring frequent Excessive deterioration requiring frequent
malntenance and warrants resurfacing soon. Distress | maintenance and warrants resurfacing soon.
may be evident in wide transverse and longitudinal Distress may be evident in wide transverse and

cracks. Severe “shallow cracking” could be evident if longitudinal cracks. if the segment has been
the pavement is composite. [f the segment has been patched, cracks may be showing through. Joint
patched, the cracks may be showing through. Rutting | repairs could begin to fail. Shoulder and/or through-

Is severe and may effect driving. lane separation may be apparent. Popouts or
spalling could also be present in the section.

5.0 = Very Poor Extreme deterioration requiring continuous Extreme deterioration requiring continuous

IFaited maintenance and warrants resurfacing or total cross- maintenance and warrants resurfacing or total cross-
section replacement. Distress items may include section replacemsnt, Distress items may Include
severe transverse and longitudinal cracking or severs severe transverse and longitudinal cracking, joints are
alligator cracking. Shadow cracking in composite failed, and the patching Is no longer beneficial to
pavement is wider than 17, Rutling in whee! pathmay | pavernent condition. Spalling and edge cracking
be severe and patching Is no longer beneficial to could also be severe.
pavement condition.

Established Condition Leve!
No more than 30% of the pavements shall be 7ated as “poor” or *very poor.”

Assessed Conditions
The Stale assesses condition on a calendar year basis. The following table reports the percentage of pavemeants meeting ratings of "Good” or
*Poor”, for the past five years. "Good" represents ratings of 1.0 through 3.0 above and “Poor” represents ratings of 4.0 and 5.0.

Rating 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
Good 78% 75% 73% 69% 64%
Poor 22% 25% 27% 31% 36%

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
90



Michigan

Bridges

Measurement Scale
MDOT utilizes the Natlonal Bridge Inventory to monitor the condition of the 5,678 bridges under its jurisdiction. The Inventery rates bridges,
including the deck, superstructure and substructure, using a t0-point scale:

Rating Descripfion

Excellent (no specific definition)

Very good.

Good. Some minor problems.

Satisfactory. Structural elements show sorme minor deterioration,

Fair. All primary structural elements are sound but may have minor section loss,
cracking, spalling or scour,

Poor, Advanced section loss, detericration, spalling, or scour.

Serious. Loss of section, deterioration, spalling, or scour have serously affected
primary structural components. Local failures are possible. Fatigue cracks in steel
or shear ¢racks in concrete may be present.

2 Critical. Advanced delerioration or primary structural elements. Faligug cracks in
staal or shear cracks in concrete may be present or scour may have removed
substructure support. Unless closely monitored it may be necessary to close the
bridge until corrective action is taken.

1 Imminent failure. Major deterioration or section loss present in critical structural
components or obvious vertical or horizental movement affecting structure stability.
Bridge is closed to traffic, but corrective aclion may put it back in light service.

0 Failure. Out of service; beyond corrective action.

DD~

[~1E-1

Established Condition Level
No more than 35% of the bridges shall be rated as “structurally deficient.”

Assessed Conditlons

“Struclurally deficlent” results when a condition of 4 or worse is assessed to at ieast one of the major structural elements (e.g. the deck,
superstructure, or substructure). The following table reporis the percentage of bridges whosae condition was assessed as “structurally deficient”,
in the stated year:

Calendar Structurally

Year Deficient
2000 22.5%
1999 18.9%
1998 19.2%
1997 16.7%
1996 17.4%

Budgsted and Estimated Costs to Maintain
The following lable presents the State’s estimate of spending necessary to pressive and maintain the roads and bridges at, or above, the
*Established Condition Levels” cited above, and the actual amount spent during the pasl five fiscal years (in milllons):

Fiscal Estimated Actual

Year Spending Spending
2001-2002 $093.3 -
2000-2001 $984.3 $915.2
1999-2000 $817.4 $895.3
1998-1999 $831.8 $822.0
1097-1898 $688.1 $693.5
1996-1997 $634.0 $630.4

The budgeting process utilized by the Department of Transportation results in spending in one fiscal year from amounts that were budgeted ina
previous year(s). Therefore, this iming difference does not allow a true comparison of amounts budgeted and spent within a glven year. The
table demonstrates that over the past five ysars, the State spending has been in line with the budgeted amounts and the other tables contalned
within this narrative demonstrate that the State has met its desired condition levels,

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
o1







Michigan

II FINANCIAL SECTION

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS
AND SCHEDULES - NON-MAJOR FUNDS

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

95



Michigan

BALANCE SHEET

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - BY FUND TYPE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Thousands}

TOTALS
SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL PERMANENT SEPTEMBER 30,
REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS FUNDS 2001
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash $ 716 $ 4,611 $ - % -8 5,327
Equity in common cash 1,934,673 5,786 2,265 77,259 2,019,983
Taxes, interest, and penalties recelvable 120,856 - - - 120,856
Amounts due from other funds 65,374 102 126,685 - 192,161
Amounts due from component units 1,318 - 14,381 - 15,699
Amounts due from federal agencies 201,180 - 2,363 - 203,633
Amcunts due from local units 40,678 - 11,957 114 52,649
inventories 8,165 - - - 8,155
Investmenis - 265,316 30,995 - 296,311
Other current assels 110,011 833 6,793 13,202 130,838
Total Current Assetls 2,482,860 276,648 195,430 90,575 3,045,512
Taxes, interest, and penaliies receivable 6,347 - - - 6,347
Advances to other funds 26,442 - - - 26,442
Amounts due from local units 44,767 - - - 44,767
Investmenis 83,212 48,089 - 352,609 523,320
Other noncurrent assets 8,603 - - - 8,693
Total Assets $ 2,652,321 $ 324,747 $ 185,430 $ 482,583 $ 3,655,081
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Cuirent Liabilitles:
Warrants oulstanding $ 18,555 3 - % 4,268 $ 939 $ 23,762
Accounts payable and other liabilities 670,220 . 4,700 162,882 9,812 847,715
Amounis due to other funds 74,410 1,326 300,166 13 375,916
Amounis due to component unils - - - 159 159
Interest payable - - 478 - 478
Deferred revenue 128,342 - - - 126,342
Total Current Liabilities 889,627 6,027 467,895 10,923 1,374,371
Ltong-Term Liabilities:
Advances from other funds 26,442 - - - 26,442
Deferred revenue 25,169 - - - 25,169
Totai Liabilities 941,138 6,027 467,885 10,923 1,425,982
Fund Balances:
Reserved fund balance 938,133 - 15,494 430,579 1,384,205
Unreserved fund balance {deficit) 773,050 318,721 (287,958} 41,082 844,894
Total Fund Balances 1,711,183 318,721 {272,484) 471,660 2,229,100
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 2,852,321 $ 324,747 $ 195430 $ 482583 $ 3,655,081
] e . p———————] T — P ——
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - BY FUND TYPE

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Thousands)

REVENUES

Taxes

From federal agencies
From local agencies

From services

From licenses and permits
Miscetlaneous

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES

Current:
General government
Education
Family independence services
Public safety and corrections
Conservation, environment,

recreation, and agriculture

Labor, commerce, and regulatory
Health servicas
Transporiation

Capital oullay

Debt service:
Bond principat retirement
Bond Interest and fiscal charges
Capital lease payments

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues over {under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Bonds and notes issued

Premium on bond Issuance

Refunding bonds issued

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Extinguishment of commercial paper
Transfers from other funds

Transfors to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)

Excess of Revenuegs and Other Sources

over (under) Expenditures
Other Uses

Fund Batances - Beginning of
fiscal year - restated

Fund Balances - End of fiscal year

. TOTALS
SPEGIAL DEBT CAPITAL PERMANENT SEPTEMBER 30,
REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS FUNDS 2001

$ 1984880 -8 - 0% - $ 1,984,890
1,106,963 . 5,763 781 1,113,507
121.320 ; . - 121,320
700 - . . 700
§71,923 - . - 171,923
585,254 20,764 10,426 99,158 715,601
3,971,050 20,764 16,189 99,940 4,107,942
144,302 1,054 6,404 . 161,760
88,408 2.244 198,569 . 289,222
. - ; 2,590 2,590
24 ; . 3,866 3,890
956,167 . . 18,576 273,733
196,905 ; . - 196,905
47.268 ; . - 47,268
2,058,191 293 . . 2,058,484
1,199,012 ; 245,361 10,626 1,463,898
. 219,552 - 219,552
2,219 199,761 . 201,980
1,057 - . - 1,057
3,092,543 422,905 .- 450834 v 44,658 4910,440
{21,493 (402,141) {434,145) 55,282 (802,498)
849,999 - 373,550 - 1,223,549
4,203 27,716 12,454 - 44,373
a7 630,775 - - 630,812
. (698.723) . - (698,723)
. - {40,680) - {40,680)
1,052,798 473,555 18,224 10,053 1,654,629
{1.272,209) {4.283) (47,635) (10,124) (1,334,338)
634,739 429,039 315,943 (69) 1,370,623
613,246 26,898 (118,232) 55,213 577,125
1,007,937 294,822 (154,232) 416,447 1,651,976
$ 1711183 § Bi8721 8 (272.464) § 471660 S 2,220,100
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BALANCE SHEET

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - BY CLASSIFICATION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

(In Thousands)

98

CONSERVATION,
ENVIRONMENT, REGULATORY
AND AND
TRANSPORTATION RECREATION ADMINISTRATIVE
RELATED RELATED RELATED
ASSETS
Current Assels:
Cash $ 394 % 319 3 3
Equity in common cash 1,181,848 348,746 78,052
Taxes, interest, and penallies receivable 114,943 5,013 -
Amounts due from other funds 64,374 1,000 -
Amounis due {from component units 1318 - -
Amounts due from federal agencies 188,973 928 11,279
Amounts due from local units 39,285 1,286 -
inventories 8,079 76 -
Other current assels 11,676 11,728 1,333
Total Current Assels 1,610,791 369,997 90,666
Taxes, interest, and penalties recaivable 6,347 - -
Advances to other funds 28,442 - -
Amcunis due from local units 40,301 4,467 -
Investments - 83,212 -
Other noncurrent assets 6,870 674 -
Total Assels $ 1,690,750 $ 458,342 $ 90,666
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Current Liabilities:
Warrants oulstanding $ 12,882 $ 2,618 $ 2317
Accounts payable and other liabilities 468,968 75,976 16,001
Amounts due to other funds 66,299 6,632 1,478
Deferred revenue 28,212 1,330 11,464
Totat Current Liabilities 576,461 86,656 31,260
Long-Term Liabilities:
Advances from other funds 26,442 - -
Deferred revenue 24,486 674 -
Totat Liabilities 627,389 87,230 31,260
Fund Balances:
Reserves {or:
Budgetary carry-forwards:
Encumbrances 70,267 18,464 174
Restricted revenuss 216,691 131,705 9,766
Multi-year projects 136,990 82,211 645
Construction and debt service 35,902 - -
Revolving loan programs 38,146 5,456 -
Funds held as parmanent invesiments - 109,483 -
Noncurrent assets 25,085 - -
Totat Reserved 523,082 347,318 10,585
Unreserved 639,379 23,801 48,821
Total Fund Balances 1,063,361 371,119 59,407
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 1,690,750 $ 458,349 $ 90,666




TOTALS

OTHER
STATE SEPTEMBER 30,
FUNDS 2001
- $ 716
326,026 1,934,673
- 120,856
. 65,374
. 1,318
. 201,180
6 40,578
. 8,156
85,373 110,011
411,406 2,482,860
- 6,347
- 26,442
. 44,767
- 83,212
1,160 8,693
412,556 $ 2,652,321
638 $ 18,555
109,276 670,220
1 74,410
85,336 126,342
195,251 889,527
. 25,442
9 25,169
195,260 941,138
23,356 112,261
- 358,162
31,741 951,687
. 35,902
- 43,602
- 109,483
1,150 27,136
56,048 938,133
161,049 773,050
217,297 1,711,183
412,656 $ 2,652,321
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - BY CLASSIFICATION
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{in Thousands)

100

REVENUES

Taxes

From federat agencies
From local agencies

From seivices

From licenses and permits
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES

Current:
General government
Education
Public safety and corrections
Conservation, environment,

recreation, and agriculture

Labor, commerce, and regulatory
Heaith services
Transportation

Capital outlay

Debi servica:
Bond interest and fiscal charges
Capita! iease payments

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues over (under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bonds and notes Issued
Premium on bond issuance
Refunding bonds issued
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Excess of Revenues and Other Scurces
over (under) Expenditures and
Other Uses
Fund Batances - Beginning of fiscal year - restated

Fund Balances - End of fiscal year

CONSERVATION,
ENVIRONMENT, REGULATORY
AND AND
TRANSPORTATION RECREATION ADMINISTRATIVE
RELATED RELATED RELATED

$ 1,825,948 $ 58,942 § -
988,275 3,150 115,538
121,320 - -

697 - 4

74,141 86,159 11,823

67,722 98,285 77,520
3,178,102 246,637 204,684

- 477 13,185

- 255,157 -

- 171,904

- 1,391 -

2,058,191 - -
1,190,103 8,909 -

463 - 594

3,248,757 265,934 185,684
{70,655} {19,397} 19,001

708,200 60,499 -

3,801 - -

994,682 47,408 10,808
(1,091,740} {90,532} (4,216)
614,943 17,376 6,591
544,288 (2,022) 25,592
518,072 373,141 33,815

g 1,063,361 $ 371,119 $ 69,407




TOTALS

OTHER
STATE SEPTEMBER 30,
FUNDS 2001
. $ 1,984,890
- 1,105,963
- 121,320
- 700
- 171,023
341,726 585,254
341,796 3,971,050
130,639 144,302
88,408 88,408
24 24
. 255,167
25,001 195,905
45,876 47,268
- 2,058,191
. 1,199,012
2,219 2,219
- 1,057
202,167 3,992,543
49,559 (21,493)
81,300 849,999
301 4,203
37 a7
- 1,062,798
(85,810) (1,272,299)
{4,172) 634,739
45,387 613,246
171,909 1,097,937
217,297 $ 1,711,183
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - BY CLASSIFICATION

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

(In Thousands)

CONSERVATION, ENVIRONMENT,

TRANSPORTATION RELATED AND RECREATION RELATED
Slalutory/iBudgelary Basis BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
REVENUES AND OTHER SCURCES
Taxes $ 1925948 § 1,925,948 447 8§ 447 5 -
From federat agencies 773,730 773,730 3,150 3,150 -
From local agencies 57,711 57,711 - - -
From services 697 697 - . -
From ticenses and permils 74,141 74,141 86,159 86,159 -
Miscelfanecus 62,497 62,497 30,795 30,795 -
Transfers in 988,262 988,252 26,806 26,806 -
Total Revenues and Other Sources 3,882,976 3,482,976 147,358 147,358 -
EXPENDITURES, TRANSFERS QUT,
AND ENCUMBRANCES - BY BRANCH,
DEPARTMENT/AGENCY
Career Development - - - - -
Colleges and Universities Granis - - - - -
Communily Health - - - - -
Consumer and Industry Services - - - B -
Management and Budge! . - - - -
Natural Resources - - 177,584 160,844 16,740
Transporiation 4,071,008 3,904,012 - . B
Treasury - -+ - - -
Total Expenditures, Transfers
O, and Encumbrances 4,071,008 3,904,012 177,584 160,844 16,740
Revenues and Other Sources over {under)
Expenditures, Encumbrances, and
Other Uses (Statutorybudgetary basis) $ (188,032 {(21,036) 5  (30,225) {13485) § 16,740
Reconciling llemns:
Encumbrances at Seplember 30 70,267 14,138
Funds nol annually budgeted 485,057 (2,674)
Net Reconciling items 565,325 11,464
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources over
{under) Expenditures and Other Uses
(GAAP Basis) 544,288 (2,022)
FUND BALANCES (GAAF BASIS)
Beginning balances - restated 519,072 373,141
Ending balances (GAAFP Basis) $ 1,063,381 § 371,119
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REGULATORY AND
ADMINISTRATIVE RELATED OTHER STATE FUNDS TOTALS

BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
$ - 8 -8 - -8 - s - § 1925395 § 1,926,395 S -
115,538 115,538 - . - - 892,418 892,418 -
- . - - - - 57,711 67,711 -
4 4 - - - - 700 700 -
11,623 11,623 . - - 171,923 171,923 -
35,167 35,167 . 280,737 280,737 - 409,196 409,196 .
10,303 10,303 - - . - 1,025,361 1,025,361 -
172,634 172,634 - 280,737 280,737 - 4,483,705 4,483,705 -
. . - 34,213 34,213 - 24,213 34,213 .
. . - 127,853 88,408 39,445 127,853 68,408 39,445
- - . 94,269 59,916 34,373 94,289 59,916 34,373
144,513 143,503 1,010 - - - 144,513 143,503 1,010
. ; 50,000 §0,000 - 50,000 50,000 -
- - - - . - 177,584 160,844 16,740
- - - - - - 4,071,008 3,004,012 166,996
16,804 14,965 1,029 49,866 49,310 9,556 66,760 55,275 11,485
161,406 158,467 2,939 356,221 272,848 3,373 4,766,218 4,496,171 270,047
$ 11,228 14,167 §$ 2,039 75,484} 7889 $ 83373 § (282513 (12,468) & 270,047

174 23,356 107,935

11,251 14,142 517,777

11,425 37,498 625,712

26,502 45,387 §13,246

33,815 171,809 1,097,937

$ 59,407 $ 217,207 $ 1,711,183
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Michigan

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - TRANSPORTATION RELATED

STATE AERONAUTICS FUND

Established pursuant o P.A. 327 of 1945, as amended, this fund
accounts for airport improvement projects. Financing consists
primariiy of aviation fue! taxes and federal and local contributions.
Alithough subject to change in the fulure, annual appropriation
acts have allowed any unobligated and unexpended balance al
fiscal year-end to lapse and revert lo the fund for appropriation in
the following year.

STATE TRUNKLINE FUND

Established purswant to Section 11 of P.,A. 51 of 1951, as
amended, this fund accounts for highway conslruction and
maintenance. Its annual budget is subject to legislative review
and appropriation, but ihe Transporatlon Commission has
significant discretion in delermining the funding of individual
projects.  Financing consists primarily of federal aid, local
participation, and transfers from the Michigan Transportation
Fund. Expendilures and transfers are for adminisiration, highway
mainlenance and construction, debt service, and varous
contractual obligations. Although subject to change in the future,
annual appropriation acts have allowed for any fund batance not
otherwise reserved al fiscat year-end to be reserved for road and
bridge construction.

This fund alse is used to record loans made to local units of
government for reconstructing and resurdacing roadways.
Activities of the Blug Waler Bridge program, segregaled as a
separate fund within the accounting system, ate also reported
within the Stale Trunkline Fund. A portion of the receivables and
payables batween the Slate Trunkline Fund and the Blue Water
Bridge Fund are classified as current and are presenled- as
“Amounts due from other funds” and “Amounts due to other
funds". The remainder is ctassified as long-term “Advances from
other funds™ and “Advances to other funds” because repayment
witl not occur within the next 12 months.

MICHIGAN TRANSPORTATION FUND

Established pursuant to Section 10 of P.A. 51 of 1951, as
amended, this fund accounts for the receipt and distribution of
several tax revenues dedicated for highway purposes. Transfers
are made to the General Fund, State Trunkline Fund, and the
Comprehensive Transportation Fund.  Expenditures include
grants to counties, cities, and villages for highway purposes.

COMPREHENSIVE TRANSPORTATION FUND

This fund operates under Section 10(h) of P.A. 51 of 1951, as
amended, and accounts for the planning and development of
public transporiation systems within the State. Federal and focal
revenuss, vehicle-related sales tax, and transfers from the
Michigan Transportation Fund provide financing for expendilures.
in accordance with statulory provisions, any unencumbered
balance at fiscal year-end lapses and reverts o the fund for
appropriation in the tollowing year.

CS&A[?INED STATE TRUNKLINE BOND PROCEEDS
F

Established pursuant to Section 18(b} of P.A. 51 of 1951, as
amended, this fund accounts for the proceeds of Siate trunkline
revenue dedicated bonds. These bonds are used in par io
finance the costs of road and bridge construction.

COMBINED COMPREHENSIVE TRANSPORTATION
BOND PROCEEDS FUND

Established pursuant fo Section 18(b) of P.A. 51 of 1951, as
amendad, this fund accounts for the proceeds of comprehensive
transporiation revenus dedicated bonds. These bonds are used
to finance part of the construction and acquisition of
comprehensive transportation projecis.

TRANSPORTATION RELATED TRUST FUNDS

The transporiation related trust funds reflects the activities of five
sub-funds: the Specfal Federal Bridge Replacement Fund, the
Federal County Road Fund, the Federal Urban Transporiation
System Fund, the Highway Topics and Safety Program Fund,
and the Mstropolitan Planning Fund. The Michigan Department
of Transportation is recognized as the legal representative of the
State, including afl govermnmental subdivisions, in the
administration of these programs. The financing accounted for in
these funds consists primarily of loca! and federal matching funds
with very lille State funds. Financing provided prior to
expenditures belng incurred is recorded as deferred revenue and
revenue Is recognized as expendilures arg made. As a resuli,
the fund balances of these funds are usually zero.

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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Michigan

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - TRANSPORTATION RELATED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

(In Thousands)

STATE STATE MICHIGAN COMPREHENSIVE
AERONAUTICS TRUNKLINE TRANSPORTATION TRANSPORTATION
FUND FUND FUND FUND
ASSETS
Current Assels:
Cash $ 5 3 328 $ - 8 1
Equity in common cash 11,082 387,287 181,976 69,653
Taxes, interest, and penallies receivable 535 - 114,409 -
Amounts due from other funds - 47,544 - 12,080
Amounts due from component units - 1,318 . -
Amounts due from fedaral agencies 21,797 99,224 - 12,754
Amounts due from locat unils 3,751 20,754 - 344
Inventories - 8,079 - -
Other current assets 40 6,465 4,614 133
Total Current Assets B 37,211 580,997 300,999 94,975
Taxes, interest, and penallies receivable - - 6,347 -
Advances to other funds - 26,442 - -
Amounts due from local units 974 37,173 - 2,154
Other noncurent assets - 3,935 - 2,935
Total Assels $ 38,184 % 648,547 $ 307,345 $ 100,064
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Current Liabilities:
Warranis outstanding $ 891 % 6,790 $ 1,430 $ 876
Accounts payable and other liabifities 14,274 143,165 232,969 22,011
Amotnis due to other funds 26 6,330 54,634 41
Deferred revenue 5,092 3,621 11,966 -
Total Current Liabllities 20,283 159,907 300,999 22,927
Long-Temm Liabilities:
Advances from other funds - 26,442 - -
Deferred revenue - 15,205 6,347 2,935
Total Liabliities 20,283 201,553 307,345 25,862
Fund Balances:
Reserves for:
Budgetary canry-forwards:
Encumbrances 2,940 28,948 - 38,379
Restricted revenues 154 209,164 - 7373
Multi-year projects 11,742 125,248 - -
Construction and debt service - 35,902 - .
Revolving loan programs 2,200 21,748 - © 14,200
MNoncurrent assets - 25,985 - -
Total Reserved 17,036 446,993 - 59,952
Unreserved 865 - - 14,250
Total Fund Balances 17,901 446,993 - 74,202
Total Liabilitles and Fund Balances $ 38,184 $ 648,647 $ 307,345 $ 100,064
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COMBINED
COMBINED COMPREHENSIVE TOTALS
STATE TRUNKLINE TRANSPORTATION TRANSPORTATION
BOND PROCEEDS BOND PROCEEDS RELATED SEPTEMBER 30,
FUND FUND TRUST FUNDS 2001
$ - $ . $ 62 $ 394
514,108 7,742 - 1,181,848
- . - 114,943
4,740 - - 64,374
- - - 1,318
23,078 . 32,119 188,973
1,874 - 12,562 39,285
- . . 8,079
4 - 319 11,576
543,805 7,742 45,062 1,610,791
- - 6,347
. . . 26,442
) . 40,301
. - . 6,870
$ 543,805 $ 7,742 $ 45,062 $ 1,690,750
$ 1,490 $ 2 $ 1,494 $ 12,982
24,200 612 31,735 468,968
. - 5,268 66,299
969 . 6,565 28,212
26,669 614 45,062 576,461
. - - 26,442
. . - 24,486
26,669 614 45,062 627,389
- . - 70,267
. - - 216,691
- - 136,990
- . - 35,902
. . . 38,146
- . - 25,985
- ! 523,982
517,136 7,128 - 539,379
517,136 7,128 - 1,063,361
$ 543,805 $ 7,742 $ 45,062 $ 1,690,750
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Michigan

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - TRANSPORTATION RELATED

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{in Thousands)

STATE STATE MICHIGAN COMPREHENSIVE
AERONAUTICS TRUNKLINE TRANSPORTATION TRANSPORTATION
FUND FUND FUND FUND
REVENUES
Taxes $ 6,706 $ - 5 1,845,514 % 73,728
From federal agencies 86,647 655,086 - 31,687
From local agencies 21,440 36,205 - 65
From services 697 - - -
From licenses and permils 314 18,898 54,671 258
Miscellaneous 847 45,967 11,366 4317
Total Revenues 116,651 756,167 1,911,650 110,356
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation 131,634 504,645 914,782 257,340
Capital outlay - 938,164 - -
Debt service:
Capilal lease paymenis - 463 - -
Total Expenditures 131,634 1,443,272 914,782 257,340
Excess of Revenues over (under)
Expenditures {14,984) {687,105) 996,768 (146,984)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bonds and notes issued - - - -
Premium on bond issuance - . . .
Transfers from other funds 17,160 808,802 1,890 160,300
Transfers to other funds (265) {63,913} {988,758} {23,781)
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) 16,895 744,889 {996,768) 136,519
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
over {under) Expenditures and
Other Uses 1,912 57,784 - {10,465)
Fund Balances - Beginning of liscal year - restated 15,980 389,209 - 84,667
Fund Balances - End of fiscal year $ 17,901 $ 446,993 $ - 8 74,202
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COMBINED
COMBINED COMPREHENSIVE TOTALS
STATE TRUNKLINE TRANSPORTATION TRANSPORTATION
BOND PROCEEDS BOND PROGEEDS RELATED SEPTEMBER 30,
FUND FUND TRUST FUNDS 2001
- - $ - $ 1,925,948
31,312 - 183,232 988,275
8,516 . 55,003 121,320
- - - 697
. - 74,141
4,615 609 - 67,722
44,444 609 238,325 3,178,102
. 5,173 244,617 2,058,191
251,939 . - 1,190,103
] ; 463
251,939 5173 244,617 3,248,757
(207,496) (4,563) (6,201) (70,655)
708,200 - - 708,200
3,901 - . 3,901
31 - 6,300 994,582
{6.013) ) @) {1,091,740)
707,119 (3) 6,201 614,943
499,624 {4,566) - 544,208
17,512 11,694 . 519,072
$ 617,136 7,128 $ . $ 1,063,361
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Michigan

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - TRANSPORTATION RELATED
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Thousands)

Statulery/Budgetary Basis
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES

Taxes

From federal agencies
From local agencies

From services

From licenses and permits
Miscellaneous

Transfers in

Total Revenues and Other Sources
EXPENDITURES, TRANSFERS OUT,
AND ENCUMBRANCES - 8Y BRANCH,
DEPARTMENT/AGENCY
Transporation

Total Expenditures, Transiers
Out, and Encumbrances

Revenues and Olher Sources
over {(under) Expenditures,

Encumbrances, and Other Uses
(Statutory/budgetary basis)

Reconciling Hems:
Encumbrances at September 30
Funds not annually budgeted
Net Reconciling items
Excess of Revenues and Other
Sources over (under) Expenditures
and Other Uses (GAAP Basis)
FUND BALANCES (GAAP BASIS)
Beginning balances - restated

Ending balances {GAAFP Basls)

110

STATE AERONAUTICS FUND

BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE

6,706 $ 6,708 $ -
86,647 86,647 -
21,440 21,440 -
697 697 -
314 314 -
847 847 -
17,160 17,160 -
133,811 133,811 -
136,847 134,839 2,008
136,847 134,839 2,008
(3,037) (1,029) $ 2,008

2,940

2,940

1,912

15,930

3 17,801




Michigan

STATE TRUNKLINE FUND

MICHIGAN TRANSPORTATION FUND

BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
S - - $ . S 1,845,514 $ 1,845,514 -
655,096 655,096 . B - -
36,205 36,205 - - - -
18,898 18,898 . 54,671 54,671 -
45,967 45,967 . 11,366 11,366 -
508,802 808,802 - 1,980 1,980
1,564,969 1,564,969 - 1,913,540 1,913,640 -
1,664,046 1,536,133 127,913 1,935,747 1,913,640 22,207
1,664,046 1,536,133 127,913 1,935,747 1,913,540 22,207
$ {89,077} 28,836 $ 127,813 $ {22,207) - 22,207
28,948 -
28,948 R —
57,784 -
389,209 —_——
446,993 S -

This schedule continued on next page.

|
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Michigan

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL. -
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - TRANSPORTATION RELATED (Continued)
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2061

{In Thousands}

COMPREHENSIVE TRANSPORTATION FUND

Statulory/Budgetary Basis BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
REVENUES AND OTHER SQURCES
Taxes $ 73,728 S 73,728 $ -
From tederal agencies 31,987 31,987 -
From local agencies 865 65 -
From services - - -
From licenses and permits 258 258 .
Miscellaneous 4,317 4317 -
Transters in 160,300 160,300 -
Tolal Revenues and Other Sources 270,656 270,656 -
EXPENDITURES, TRANSFERS OUT,
AND ENCUMBRANCES - BY BRANCH,
DEPARTMENT/AGENCY
Transportation 334,368 319,500 14,868
Total Expenditures, Transfers
O, and Encumbrances 334,368 319,500 14,868
Revenues and Other Sources
over {under) Expendilures,
Encumbrances, and Cther Uses
{Statutory/budgetary basis) $ (63,712) {48,844) S 14,868
Reconciling llems:
Encumbrances at Seplember 30 38,379
Funds not annually budgeled -
Nel Reconciling ltems 38,379
Excess of Revenues and Other
Seurces over {under} Expenditures
and Other Uses (QAAP Basis) {10,465)
FUND BALANCES {GAAP BASIS)
Beginning balances - restated 84,667
Ending balances {GAAP Basls) 3 74,202
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FUNDS NOT ANNUALLY BUDGETED

COMBINED
COMBINED COMPREHENSIVE
STATE TRUNKLINE ~ TRANSPORTATION  TRANSPORTATION
BOND PROCEEDS  BOND PROCEEDS RELATED
FUND FUND TRUST FUNDS TOTALS
AGTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANGE
$ - 5 - $ - $ 1,925,948 $ 1,026,948 $ -
- - - 773,730 773,730 -
- - - 57,711 57,711 -
- - - 697 697 -
. ; . 74,141 74,141 -
] ) . 62,497 62,497 .
- - 988,252 988,252 -
- - - 3,882,976 3,882,976 -
- - - 4,071,008 3,904,012 166,996
- - - 4,071,008 3,004,012 166,996
- - - $ (188,032) (21036 $ 166,996
; - ; 70,267
499,624 {4,566) - 495,057
499,624 {4,566) - 565,325
499,624 {4,566) - 544,288
17,512 11,604 - 519,072
$ 517,136 S 7,128 3 - $ 1,063,361
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Michigan

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS ~ CONSERVATION, ENVIRONMENT, AND

RECREATION RELATED

GAME AND FISH PROTECTION FUND

Established in 1921, this fund currenily operates under Part 435
of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended, and s financed principally by
the sale of hunting and fishing licenses. The license fees are set
by statute and their purpose is to support the conservation
program for preservation and control of fish and wildlife, The fund
also receives funding from the Game and Fish Protection Trust
Fund. The fund provides financial support for statewide hunting
and lishing programs, Including resource management, research,
enforcement of hunting and fishing laws, and acquisition of lands
to be used for hunting and fishing purposes,

MICHIGAN STATE WATERWAYS FUND

Established in 1947, this fund currently operates under Part 781
of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended. The fund receives portions of
watercraft registration fees and gasoline taxes, some of which are
collected by other Stale agencies and transferred 1o this fund.
The fund provides for improvement of lake harbors and inland
walerways; construction, operation, and maintenance of
recreational boating {acilities; properly acquisition; and
administration.

MARINE SAFETY FUND

Established in 1967, this fund currently operates under Part 801
of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended. The fund Is financed
principally by 49% of watercralt registration fees imposed by this
act. The fund provides for water safety education programs, law
enforcement, and regulation of watercraft on the waters of this
State.

GAME AND FISH PROTECTION TRUST FUND

This fund was established in 1986 and presently operates under
Part 437 of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended, {0 restrict certain
assets for the purpose of generating interest and eamings for
transfer to the Game and Fish Protection Fund. In addition, the
Legislature may appropriate up to $6 million annually for use by
the Game and Fish Protection Fund. Mineral royalties from lands
acqulred by the Game and Fish Profection Fund; direct sale
proceeds; and other revenues, which, by statute, are retained for
psrmanent investment, provide additional investment funding.

STATE PARK IMPROVEMENT FUND

Established in 1960, this fund currently operates under Part 741
of P.A, 451 of 1994, as amended. The fund is primarily financed
by State park use and concession fess and motor vehicle permit
fees necessary for entry by motor vehicles into designated Stale
parks. These fees are the primary funding source for the
operation, maintenance, and improvements of the State Park
system.

COMBINED RECREATION BOND FUND - LOCAL
PROJECTS

Established in 1988, this fund presently operates under Parls 196
and 715 of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended, The resldual balances
in this fund refiect proceeds and investmenl eamings remaining
from two bond packages: $70 million of general obligation bonds
approved by voters in November 1988, as part of a $140 million
bond package for financing state and local public recreation
projects, and $50 million of general obligation bonds approved by
voters in November of 1998, as part of a $675 million bond
package known as the “Clean Michigan initiative.” Proceeds from
the 1988 bond package provide grants and loans o local units of
govemment In the amounts of $65 million for local recreation
projects and $5 million to discourage developiment of opsn space
and underdeveloped lands. Proceeds from the 1998 bond
package also provide grants to local units of government for local
recreation projects pursuant to Part 716 of P.A. 451 of 1904,

CSI{YIBINED ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION BOND
FUND

Established by P.A. 328 of 1988, this fund accounis for the
proceeds of $660 miflion of general obligation bonds approved by
Michigan voters in November 1988 to finance environmental
protection programs. This approval was obtained under the
general authority of Aricle 9, Section 15, of the 1963 State
Conslitution. Public Act 328 of 1988 specifies that nol more than
$426 million of the bond proceeds be avaitable to clean up sites
of toxic and other environmenial contamination; not more than
$150 milllon be avaitable for solid waste projects; not more than
$60 million be available to capilalize the State Water Pollution
Control Loan Fund; and not more than $25 million be available to
fund Michigan's participation in a regional Great Lakes Protection
Fund.

Public Act 284 of 1998 expanded this fund to account for the
proceeds of $570 million of general obligation bonds approved by
Michigan voters In November 1898, Public Act 288 of 1898
directs that not more than $335 million be used for environmental
response activitles; not more than $50 million for waterfront
improvements; not more than $25 milllon for remediation of
contaminated lake and river sediments; not more than $50 million
for nonpoint source poliution prevention and control projects or
wellhead protection projects; not more than $90 million for water
quality moenitoring and water resources protection and pollution
control activities; and not more than $20 milllon for pollution
prevention programs.

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annua! Financial Report
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}I

MICHIGAN NONGAME FISH AND WILDLIFE FUND

Established in 1983, the fund currently opsrates under Part 439
of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended. Fund revenues are used to
finance research and management of nongame fish and wildlife,
designated endangered species, and designated ptant species of
this State. During fiscal year 1989-2000, the fund received an
operating transter from the General Fund of $2.4 million for the
purpose of reaching the $6 million level for funds held for
investment, As a resuit, statutory authority for the State income
tax check-off, which provided revenue for this fund in pasl years,
expired and is no longer available. The fund may receive
transfers from other funds, donations, investment income, and
revenue from speciaity license plate sales, beginning in calendar
year 2001.

FOREST DEVELOPMENT FUND

This fund was established in 1993, along with the Michigan Forest
Finance Authority, and presently operates under Part 505 of P.A.
451 of 1994, as amended. The Authority Is authorized to acquire:
standing timber, limber cutting rights, and the Stale’s interest in
contracts granting culting rights on State tax reverted lands and
on other lands in the State forest system. Revenues are derived
from the sale of forest products, and are pledged to provide debt
service on any bonds or notes that might be issued by the
authority. Revenuss nol used for debt service are major funding
sources for the Forest Management Division and are used for
forest management oparations and practices. The Authority may,
but thus far has not Issued bonds.

MICHIGAN  UNDERGROUND  STORAGE

FINANCIAL ASSURANCE FUND

TANK

The Michigan Underground Storage Tank Financial Assurance
Fund (MUSTFA) was established in P.A. 518 of 1988 to assist
certain owners and operators of underground storage tank
systems In meeting thelr financlal respensibility requirements
provided for in the Solid Waste Disposal Act. The Department of
Environmental Quality and an eleven-member advisory board
administer the fund.

The primary source of revenues is an environmental protection
regulatory fee of 7/8 cent per gallon impesed on all refined
petrolsum products sold for resale. Expenditures are primarily
amounis spent to assist in environmental cleanup. Public Acls
252 and 269 of 1995 limit the fund’s liability fo claims received by
June 29, 1995, The State's liability for environmental cleanup
claims Is further limiled by law to the amount of avallable
resources. Llabllities for unpaid eligible environmental cleanup
clalms In excess of avaliable funds will be paid from future years'
revenuss, and are recorded as a liability In the government-wide
financial statements.

BOTTLE BEPOSITS FUND

This fund was created in P.A. 384 of 1996 to provide for the
disposition of unredeemed bottle deposits. The Depariment of
Treasury and the Department of Environmental Quality joinily
administer the fund. The law mandates that an annual
distribution of the funds be made as follows: 26% retumned lo the
dealers and 75% to fund several sub-funds,

The 75% diskribution io the Department of Environmental Guality
is initially deposited into the Cleanup and Redevelopment Trust
Sub-Fund (CRTF), and if not further distributed, remains there
until the principal amount reaches $200 million. Of funds
received annually by the CRTF, 80% is allocated to the Cleanup
and Redevelopment Sub-Fund (CRF) and 10% to the Community
Pollution Prevention Sub-Fund (CPPF).

Public Act 380 of 1996 moved the former Environmental
Response Fund (ERF) to a sub-fund of the CRF. The law
mandates that proceeds of all cost recovery actions taken and
solilements entered inlo purstiant to the ERF (excluding natural
resource damages) by the department or the Attorney General, or
both, shall be credited to the ERF.

MICHIGAN  UNDERGROUND  STORAGE  TANK

FINANCIAL ASSURANCE FINANCE AUTHORITY

The Michigan Underground Storage Tank Financial Assurance
Finance Authority was established in 1993 and operates under
Part 215 of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended to provide financing
for the activities of the Michigan Underground Storage Tank
Financial Assurance Fund, including short or long-term debt
instruments. A five-member board of directors governs the
Authority.

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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Michigan

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CONSERVATION, ENVIRONMENT, AND RECREATION RELATED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Thousands)

GAME MICHIGAN GAME AND
AND FiSH STATE MARINE FiSH
PROTECTION WATERWAYS SAFETY PROTECTION
FUND FUND FUND TRUST FUND
ASSETS
Current Assels:

Cash 8 5 $ 9 $ - % -
Equity in common cash 30,188 66,359 6,338 9,988
Taxes, interest, and penalties receivable - 219 - -
Amounts due from other funds - - - -
Amounts due from federal agencies 327 84 516 -
Amounts due from local units - - - -
Inventories - 76 - -
Qther ctirrent assets 3,822 5 - 2,228
Total Current Assets 34,342 66,752 6,854 12,216

Amounts due from local units - - - -
Investments 251 - - 82,209
Other noncurrent assets - - - -

Total Assais $ 34,693 $ 66,752 $ 6,854 $ 94,424

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Current Liabllities:

Warranis oulstanding $ 420 $ 314 $ 835 3 -
Accounts payable and other liabilities 5,157 2,852 1,945 -
Amounts due to other funds 294 45 1 -
Deferred revenue - - - -

Total Current Liabilities 5,871 3,212 2,782 -

Long-Term Liabilities:
Deterred revenue - - - .

Total Liabilities 5,871 3,212 2,782 -

Fund Batances:
Reserves for:

Budgetary carry-forwards:
Encumbrances 2,083 10,374 86 -
Restricted revenues 12,714 3,728 - -
Multi-year projects - 23,686 - -
Revolving ioan pregrams - - - -
Funds held as permanent investments 1,828 - - 88,424
Tolal Reserved 16,625 37,689 86 88,424
Unreserved 12,097 25,852 3,987 " 6,000
Totat Fund Balances 28,722 63,541 4,073 ' 94,424
Total Liabilities and Eund Balances % 34,593 3 66,752 $ 6,854 $ 94,424
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Michigan

MICHIGAN
UNDERGROUND
COMBINED COMBINED MICHIGAN STORAGE
RECREATION  ENVIRONMENTAL NONGAME TANK
STATE PARK BOND FUND- PROTECTION FISH AND FOREST FINANCIAL
IMPROVEMENT LOCAL BOND WILDLIFE DEVELOPMENT ASSURANCE
FUND PROJECTS FUND FUND FUND FUND

$ 228 $ - 8 - -8 40 % -
14,385 2,853 48,101 5,992 11,022 2,078
- - - . - 5,603
- - - . . 1,000
- - - - 1 -
. - 720 - - -
871 - 34 36 11 4
15,484 2,853 48,855 6,029 11,074 8,775
- - 752 - -
$ 15484  § 2853  § 48,855 8,781 $ 11,074 $ 8,775
$ 2 % 8 $ 763 14 3 126§ 4
2,387 10,159 36,830 78 2,608 372
27 6,136 1 5 74 37
1,012 - - - - -
3,518 16,302 37,594 97 2,808 413
3,518 16,302 37,594 97 2,808 413
772 . - 137 885 2
- - - - 1,953
5,803 - - - - 41,780
- - - 6,002 . -
6,665 - - 6,140 685 43,735
5,301 {13,450) 11,261 545 7,581 (35,372)
11,966 (13,450) 11,261 6,684 8,266 8,363
$ 15,484  § 2,853  $ 48,855 6,781 $ 11074 § 8,775

This statement continued on next page.



Michigan

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CONSERVATION, ENVIRONMENT, AND RECREATION RELATED (Continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
{in Thousands)

118

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash
Equity in common cash
Taxes, interest, and penalties receivable
Amounts due from other funds
Amounts due from federai agencies
Amounts due from local units
Inventories
Other current assels

Totat Current Assets

Amcunts due frem locatl units
investments
Other noncurrent assets

Total Assefs
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Cthrent Liabiilties:
Warrants outstanding
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Amounts due to other funds
Deferred revenue

TFotal Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:
Deferred rovenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Resarves for:
Budgstary carry-forwards:
Encumbrances
Restricted revenues
Multi-year projects
Revolving loan programs

Funds held as perrnanent invesiments

Total Reserved
Unreserved
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

MIGHIGAN
UNDERGROUND
STORAGE
TANK
FINANGIAL TOTALS
BOTTLE ASSURANCE
DEPOSITS FINANCE SEPTEMBER 30,
FUND AUTHORITY 2001
$ a7 $ 319
151,442 348,746
. 5,913
- 1,000
- 928
566 1,286
. 76
4,718 11,729
156,762 360,997
4,467 4,467
- 83,212
674 674
$ 161,903 $ 458,349
$ 42 $ 2,618
13,586 75,976
13 - 6,632
318 1,330
13,959 86,556
674 674
14,633 87,230
4,324 18,464
113,310 131,705
10,953 82,211
5,456 5,456
13,228 109,483
147,270 347,318
. 23,801
147,270 371,119
$ 161,903 $ 458,349
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Michigan

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CONSERVATION, ENVIRONMENT, AND RECREATION RELATED
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Thousands}

GAME MICHIGAN GAME AND
AND FISH STATE MARINE FiSH
PROTECTION WATERWAYS SAFETY PROTECTION
FUND FUND FUND TRUST FUND
REVENUES
Taxes $ - % 447 $ - $ -
From federal agencies 2,068 612 470 -
From ficenses and permils 48,008 6,265 4,733 -
Miscellaneous 2,202 4,262 360 21,533
Total Revenues 52,280 11,685 5,562 21,633
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government - - - -
Conservalion, environment,
recreation, and agriculture 55,769 21,777 4,908 -
Health services - - - -
Capital cutlay 2,257 4,181 - -
Total Expenditures 58,026 25,957 4,908 -
Excess of Revenues over (under)
Expendiiures ] (5,748) (14,372) 655 21,533
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bonds and notes issuad - . - -
Transfers from other funds 12,021 14,785 - -
Transfers to other funds {1,415) {373) (1,081) {12,032)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 10,607 14,412 {1,081) (12,032)
Excess of Reventes and Other Sources
over (under) Expenditures and
Other Uses 4,860 40 (436) 9,500
Fund Balances - Beginning of fiscal year - reslated 23,861 63,501 4,508 84,924
Fund Balances - End of fiscal year $ 28,722 $ 63,541 $ 4,073 $ 94,424
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MICHIGAN
UNDERGROUND
COMBINED COMBINED MICHIGAN STORAGE
RECREATION  ENVIRONMENTAL NONGAME TANK
STATE PARK BOND FUND- PROTECTION FISH AND FOREST FINANGIAL
IMPROVEMENT LOCAL BOND WILDLIFE DEVELOPMENT  ASSURANCE
FUND PROJECTS FUND FUND FUND FUND

$ -8 - $ - - $ - $ 58,495
. - - - 1 .

27,151 - . - 1 -

683 210 8,961 548 22,741 59

27,834 210 8,961 548 22,742 58,564

. - - . . 477

27,798 15,122 78,052 763 23,562 4,126

- - 1,391 - - -

2,207 - . . 174

30,095 15,122 79,444 763 23,736 4,604

(2,261) {14,913) (70,483) (215) (993) 53,951

. 60,499 . - .

) . i . . 4,000
{205) 3) (16,607) (5) (132) {68,160)
(205) (3) 43,892 {5) (132) (54,160}
(2,467) (14,916} (26,591) (220) {1,125) {209)

14,432 1,466 37,851 6,904 9,301 8,572

$ 11,966 % (13.450) ¢ 11,261 6,684 $ 8,266 $ 8,363

This statement continued on next page.
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Michigan

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CONSERVATION, ENVIRONMENT, AND RECREATION RELATED (Continued)
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Thousands)

MICHIGAN
UNDERGROUND
STORAGE
TANK
FINANGIAL TOTALS
BOTTLE ASSURANCE
DEPOSITS FINANCE SEPTEMBER 30,
FUND AUTHORITY 2001
REVENUES
Taxes $ - % - $ 58,942
From federal agencies - - 3,150
From licenses and permits - - 86,159
Miscellaneous 36,554 173 98,285
Total Revenues 36,554 173 246,537
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government - - 477
Conservation, environment,
recreation, and agriculture 23,280 - 255,157
Health services - - 1,391
Capitat outlay - - 8,909
TFotal Expenditures 23,280 - 265,934
Excess of Revenues over (under)
Expenditures 13,274 173 (19,397)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bonds and notes Issued - - 60,499
Translers from other funds 16,602 - 47,408
Transfers to other funds {509) - {80,532)
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) 16,093 - 17,376
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
over (under) Expenditures and
s Other Uses 29,368 173 (2,022)
Fund Balances - Beginning of fiscal yaar - restated 117,902 (173) 373,141
Fund Balances - End of liscal year $ 147,270 $ - $ 371,119
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Michigan

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CONSERVATION, ENVIRONMENT, AND RECREATION RELATED

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
{In Thousands)

GAME AND FISH PROTECTION FUND

MICHIGAN STATE WATERWAYS FUND

Statulory/Budgetary Basis BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUBGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
Taxes $ - 5 - $ 447 $ 447 $ -
From federal agencies 2,068 2,068 - 812 612 -
From licenses and parmits 48,009 48,009 - 6,265 6,265 -
Miscelianeous 2,202 2,202 - 4,262 4,262 -
Transfers in 12,021 12,021 - 14,785 14,785 -
Total Revenues and Other Sources 64,301 64,301 - 26,370 26,370 -
EXPENDITURES, TRANSFERS QUT,
AND ENCUMBRANCES - BY BRANCH,
DEPARTMENT/AGENCY
Natural Resources 70,984 61,524 9,460 43,012 36,705 6,307
Tolal Expenditures, Transfers Out
and Encumbrances 70,984 61,624 9,450 43,012 36,705 5,307
Revenuas and Cther Sources
over {under} Expenditures,
Encumbrances, and Olher Uses
{Stalutorybudgetary basis) 5 6,682 2,778 $ 9,460 {16,641) {10,335} $ 6,307
Recongciling Hems:
Encumbrances at September 30 2,083 10,374
Funds not annually budgeted - -
Net Reconciling ltemns 2,083 10,374
Excess of Ravenues and Other Sources
over (under) Expenditures and Other
Uses {GAAP Basis) 4,860 40
FUND BALANCES (GAAP BASIS)
Beginning balances - restaled 23,861 63,601
Ending balances {(GAAP Basis) $ 28,722 $ 63,641
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MARINE SAFETY FUND STATE PARK IMPROVEMENT FUND
BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE

$ - - - s - s . -

470 470 - - - -

4,733 4,733 - 27,151 27,151 -
360 360 - 683 683

5,562 5,562 - 27,834 27,834 -

6,031 6,085 6 31,128 31,073 55

6,091 6,085 6 31,128 31,073 55

S {529} {522) 3] 5 (3,294) {3,239) 56
86 772
86 772
{436) 2,467
4,509 14,432
3 4,073 $ 11,966

This schedule conlinued on next page.
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Michigan

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CONSERVATION, ENVIRONMENT, AND RECREATION RELATED (Continued)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
(In Thousands)

MICHIGAN NONGAME

FISH AND WILDLIFE FUND

FOREST DEVELOPMENT FUND

Statytory/Budgstary Basis BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANGE
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
Taxes ) $ - - $ - S - -
From federal agencies - - 1 1 -
From licenses and permits - - - 1 i B
Miscellaneous 548 548 - 22,741 22,741 -
Transters in - - - - - -
Tolal Revenues and Other Sources 548 548 - 22,742 22,742 -
EXPENDITURES, TRANSFERS OUT,
AND ENCUMBRANCES - BY BRANCH,
DEPARTMENT/AGENCY
Natural Resources 921 905 i6 25,448 24,552 896
Totat Expenditures, Transfers Out
and Encumbrances G219 505 16 25,448 24,552 895
Revenues and Other Sources
over {under) Expenditures,
Encumbirances, and Other Uses
{Statuterybudgelary basis) 3 (374) (357) 16 5 {2,708) {1.810) 896
Reconciling ltems:
Encumbrances al Seplember 30 137 685
Fundgs not annually budgeted - -
Net Recongiling ltems 137 585
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
over {under) Expenditures and Olher
Uses (GAAP Basis) (220} {1,125)
FUND BALANCES (GAAP BASIS)
Beginning balances - restated 6,904 9,391
Ending balances (GAAP Bagls) 3 6,684 $ B,266
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FUNDS NOT ANNUALLY BUDGETED

MICHIGAN
MICHIGAN UNDERGROUND
UNDERGROUND STORAGE
COMBINED COMBINED STORAGE TANK
AECREATION ENVIRONMENTAL TANK FINANCIAL
GAME ANDFISH BOND FUND-  PROTECTION FINANCIAL BOTTLE ASSURANCE
PROTECTION LOCAL BOND ASSURANGCE DEPOSITS FINANCE
TRUST FUND _PROJECTS FUND FUND FUND AUTHORITY
ACTUAL AGTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL
] -8 -8 - 8 -8 -8 -
9,500 {14,916) {26,591) {209) 29,368 173
9,500 {14,916) (26,591) {209) 29,368 173
9,500 (14,916} (26,591) {200} 29,368 173
84,924 1,466 37,851 8,572 117,902 {173)
s -

S 94,424 $ (13450, 8 11,261 $ 8,383 $ 147,270

This schedule continued on next page.
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Michigan

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CONSERVATION, ENVIRONMENT, AND RECREATION RELATED (Continued)
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Thousands)

TOTALS
Statutory/Budgetary Basis BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
Taxes $ 447 $ 447 $
From lederal agencies 3,150 . 3,150 -
From licenses and permits 86,159 86,169 -
Miscellaneous 30,795 30,785 -
Transfers in 26,806 26,806 -
Total Revenues arkf Other Sources 147,358 147,358 -
EXPENDITURES, TRANSFERS QUT,
AND ENCUMBRANCES - BY BRANCH,
DEPARTMENT/AGENCY
Natural Resources 177,584 160,844 16,740
Total Expenditures, Transfers Out
and Encumbrances 177,584 160,844 16,740
Revenues and Other Scurces
over {under} Expenditures,
Encumbrances, and Cther Uses
{Stalulory/budgetary basis) $ (30,225} (13.485) S 16,740
Reconciling items:;
Encumbrances at September 30 14,138
Funds not annually budgsted {2.674)
Net Reconciling items 11,464
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
over (under) Expenditures and Other
Uses {GAAP Basls) 2,022
FUND BALANCES (GAAP BASIS)
Beginning balances - reslated 373141
Ending balances (GAAP Basis) 3 371,119
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS — REGULATORY AND ADMINISTRATIVE

RELATED

MICHIGAN  EMPLOYMENT  SECURITY ACT -
ADMINISTRATION FUND

Public Act 1 of 1936 (Exlra Sessfon) created this fund to account
for administrative costs of the Unemployment Agency, which is
administered by the Deparmen! of Consumer and Industry
Services. The fund derives most of ils revenue from federal
grants. It also receives transfers from the Michigan Employment
Security Act Contingent Fund {reported as parl of the Michigan
Unemploymeni Compensalion Funds, an enterprise  fund).
Expendilures for administralion are subject lo legistative
appropriation.

Unemployment benefit payments to individuals are made directly
from funds accumulated from employer premiums. These
aclivities are reported In the Michigan Unemployment
Compensation Funds.

SAFETY EDUCATION AND TRAINING FUND

Public Act 154 of 1974, as amended, imposes an annual levy on
each insurance carrier licensed to write workers' disability
compensation business in the State and on each self-insured
employer.  Public Act 24 of 1977 established the Safely
Education and Training Fund to receive these assessments for
support of the Department of Consumer and Industry Service's
Safety Education and Training Divisfon.

UNINSURED EMPLOYERS' SECURITY FUND

Under P.A. 198 of 1993, this fund succeeded the former
Workplace Health and Safety Fund. This fund provided workers'
compensation benefits to employees injured on or after June 29,
1990 (and for related claims administration), whare their employer
failed to provide coverage for them. This fund was closed in
accordance with P.A. 357 of 1896. Sufficient equity in common
cash was retained to cover the remaining liabilities.

STATE CONSTRUCTION CODE FUND

Public Acl 230 of 1972, as amended, crealed the Slate
Construgtion Code Fund. Fees received for building permit
applications and other funds collected under this acl are
appropriated by the Leglslature for the operation of the
Department of Consumer and Industry Service’s Bureau of
Construction Codes and related indirect overhead expenditures.

?SIIGIIEOWNER CONSTRUCTION LIEN RECOVERY
D

Established by P.A. 497 of 1980, the Homeowner Construction
Lien Recovery Fund alflows contraclors, subcontractors,
suppliers, and laborers to collect payments for work done if they
have not been paid, despite filing a residential lien. The fund is
self-suslaining and is financed by fees assessed on builders,
electricat and plumbing contractors, and laborers.

STATE CASINO GAMING FUND

Created by P.A, 69 of 1997, this fund provides the licensing,
regulation and control of casino gaming activities in Michigan.
The five-member gaming control board is vested wilh the
authority for licensing, regulating, and confrolling casino gaming
operations; manufacturers and distributors of gaming equipment
and supplies; and persons who participate in gaming. Activities
financed by casino gaming revenue are legally resticted for
specific purposes.

SECOND INJURY FUND

Public Act 317 of 1969, as amended, created the Second Injury
Fund to Insure carriers and seli-insured employers against certain
workers' compensation losses. The administrator, appointed by
the fund's Board of Trustees, supervises the fund, The fund's
revenue consists of assessments, calculated under provisions of
the act, which are assessed to insurance carriers and self-insured
employers licensed or authorized in Michigan.

SILICOSIS, DUST DISEASE, AND LOGGING INDUSTRY
COMPENSATION FUND

Established by P.A, 317 of 1969, as amended, the Silicosis, Dust
Disease, and Logging Industry Compensation Fund reimburses
insurance carriers who pay benefits to employees injured from
certain dust diseases, and employees who have sustained
personal Injury or death while being employed in the logging
industry. Revenues are generated through annual assessments
of insurance carslers.

SELF-INSURERS’ SECURITY FUND

Established by P.A. 317 of 1969, as amended, the Sell-Insurers’
Secusity Fund pays workers' compensation benefits to injured
employses of Insolvent, private self-insured employers.
Revenues are generated through annual assessments of
Insurance carriers,

UTILITY CONSUMER REPRESENTATION FUND

Establisched by P.A. 304 of 1982, as amended, the Utility
Consumer Representation Fund provides funding, on behalf of
residential gas, fuel, and electric customers, for energy cost
recovery hearings before the Michigan Public Senvice
Commisslon. Revenues are generated through annual
assessments of regulated utility companies.

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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Michigan

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - REGULATORY AND ADMINISTRATIVE RELATED

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
{In Thousands)

ASSETS

Current Assels;
Cash
Equity in commeon cash
Amotnts due from federal agencles
Other current assels

Total Current Assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Current Liabilities:
Warrants outstanding

Accounts payable and other liabilities

Amotnts due to other funds
Defarred revenus

Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserves for:

Budgetary carry-fonvards:
Encumbrances
Restrcted revenues
Multi-year projects

Total Reserved
Unreserved

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabllities and Fund Balances

130

MICHIGAN HOMEOWNER
EMPLOYMENT SAFETY CONSTRUCTION
SECURITY ACT - EDUCATION UNINSURED STATE LIEN
ADMINISTRATION AND TRAINING EMPLOYERS'  CONSTRUGTION RECOVERY
FUND FUND SECURITY FUND CODE FUND FUND
$ 3 3 - 5 - 3 - 3 .
- 3.824 479 14,494 2,756
11,279 - - - -
359 9 - 82 -
11,641 3,833 479 14,577 2,756
5 11,6841 $ 3,833 $ 479 $ 14,677 $ 2,756
$ 1,424 3 46 $ - 5 12 $ 12
8,809 258 479 260 210
1,408 1 - 35 1
- . - 1 -
11,641 305 479 311 223
11,641 305 479 311 223
163 - 5 -
- - - 33 -
- 163 - 38 -
- 3,365 - 14,228 2,633
- 3,528 - 14,266 2,533
$ 11,641 3 3,833 $ 479 $ 14,577 $ 2,756




Michigan

SILICOSIS, DUST

BISEASE, AND
LOGGING TOTALS
SECOND INDUSTRY SELF-INSURERS' UTILITY CONSUMER
STATE CASINO INJURY COMPENSATION SECURITY REPRESENTATION SEPTEMBER 30,
GAMING FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND 2001
-8 - s -8 - $ - 3
11,376 34,243 5,126 3,833 1,921 78,052
- - - - - 11,279
342 142 3 15 381 1,333
11,718 34,384 5,128 3,848 2,302 90,666
3 11,718 $ 34,384 $ 5,128 $ 3,848 $ 2,302 90,666
$ 140 $ 537 $ 124 $ 22 $ - 2,317
965 3,132 1,370 412 104 16,001
18 7 5 : . 1,478
8 10,378 698 379 - 11,464
1,131 14,054 2,197 814 104 31,260
1,131 14,054 2,197 814 104 31,260
¢ - - - - 174
9,734 - - - . 9,766
645 - - - - 645
10,384 - - - - 10,585
202 20,331 2,931 3,034 2,198 48,821
10,686 20,331 2,931 3,034 2,198 59,407
$ 11,718 $ 34,384 $ 5,128 $ 3,848 $ 2,302 90,666
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Michigan

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - REGULATORY AND ADMINISTRATIVE RELATED

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Thousands}

MICHIGAN HOMEQOWNER
EMPLOYMENT SAFETY CONSTRUCTION
SECURITY ACT - EDUCATION UNINSURED STATE LIEN
ADMINISTRATION  AND TRAINING EMPLOYERS' GCONSTRUCTION RECOVERY
FUND FUND SECURITY FUND CODE FUND FUND
REVENUES
From federal agencies $ 115,538 $ - % - $ - $ -
From services - - - 2 -
From licenses and permits - - - 11,473 -
Miscellaneous 97 6,637 - 692 625
Totat Revenuss 115,634 6,637 - 12,168 625
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government - - . - -
Labor, commerce, and regulatory 123,441 6,149 - 9,994 1,108
Debt Service:
Capilal lease paymenis 594 - - - -
Total Expenditures 124,035 6,149 - 9,004 1,108
Excess of Revenues over {under}
Expenditures {8,400) 488 - 2174 (483)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds 10,303 - - - -
Transfers to other funds (1,902) {46) - (86) {14)
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) 8,400 (46) - (86) {14)
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
over (under} Expenditures and
Other Uses - 442 - 2,088 (497)
Fund Balances - Beginning of fiscal year - restated - 3,086 - 12,178 3,030
Fund Balances - End of fiscal year $ - $ 3,528 $ - $ 14,266 $ 2,633
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SILICOSIS, DUST

DISEASE, AND
STATE LOGGING TOTALS
CASINO SECOND INDUSTRY SELF-INSURERS' UTILITY CONSUMER
GAMING INJURY COMPENSATION SECURITY REPRESENTATION SEPTEMBER 30,
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND 2001

s _ - 3 - 3 - $ 115,538
1 - - - 4

150 - - - - 11,623
27,116 34,898 2,51 3,843 1,000 77,520
27,267 34,998 2,511 3,843 1,000 204,684
12,824 - - - 362 13,185

- 23,667 4,045 3,274 226 171,904

- - - - 594

12,824 23,667 4,045 3,274 587 185,684
14,443 11,331 {1,534) 569 413 19,001

- - - 505 - 10,808
{2,135} 20) ) (5) {) (4,216)
(2,135) (20) {7} 500 (1) 6,5
12,308 11,312 (1,541) 1,069 413 25,592
{1,722) 9,019 4,472 1,966 1,785 33,816

$ 10,586 20,331 $ 2,931 $ 3,034 2,198 $ 69,407
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Michigan

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - REGULATORY AND ADMINISTRATIVE RELATED

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
{In Thousands)

MICHIGAN EMPLOYMENT

Statutery/Budgetary Basis

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES

From federal agancies s
From services

From licenses and permils

Miscellanecus

Transfers in

Total Bevenues and Other Sources

EXPENDITURES, TRANSFERS QUT,
AND ENCUMBRANCES - BY BRANCH,
DEPARTMENT/AGENCY

Consumer and industry Services
Treasury

Total Expenditures, Transfers Out,
and Encumbrances

Revenues and Other Sources over {under)
Expenrditures, Encumbrances, and Olher
Uses {Statutoryfudgetary basis) $
Reconciling Iltems:
Encumbrances at September 30
Funds not annuaily budgeted
Net Reconciting ltems

Excess of Revenues and Olher Sources over (under}
Expenditures and Other Uses (GAAP Basis)

FUND BALANCES {(GAAP BASIS)
Beginning balances - restated

Ending balances {GAAP Basis)

134

SECURITY ACT - ADMINISTRATICN FUND SAFETY EDUCATION AND TRAINING FUND

BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
115538 § 115538 § - - 8 - 8 -
a7 o7 - 6,637 6,637 -
10,303 10,303 - - - -
125,937 125,937 - 6,637 6,637 -
125,937 125,937 - 6,616 8,358 259
125,937 125,037 - 6,616 6,358 259
- -8 -8 21 279 8§ 259

- 163

- 163

. 442

. 3,086

s S ___ 3608
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HOMEOWNER
STATE CONSTRUCTION CODE FUND CONSTRUCTION LIEN RECOVERY FUND
BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
$ -3 - $ - s - -
2 2 . - -
11,473 11473 - . -
692 692 - 625 825 -
12,168 12,168 - 625 625 -
10,428 10,085 343 1,631 1,122 408
10,428 10,085 343 1,531 1,122 408
$ 1,740 2,002 343 3 !906) {497) 408
5 -
5 -
2,088 497
12,178 3,030
S 14,266 $ 2,533

This schedule conlinued on next page.
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Michigan

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - REGULATORY AND ADMINISTRATIVE RELATED (Continued)
FISCAL YEAR ENDEBD SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Theusands})
FUNDS NOT ANNUALLY BUDGETED

UNINSURED SECOND
EMPLOYERS! INJURY
STATE CASINC GAMING FUND SECURITY FUND FUND
Statutorv/Budgetary Basis BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE ACTUAL ACTUAL
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
From federal agencies $ - 8 - 8 - 8 - S -
From services 1 1 - - -
From licenses and permits 150 150 . - .
Miscellaneous 27,116 27,116 - - -
Transters in . . . . .
Total Revenues and Other Sources 27,267 27,267 - - -
EXPENDITURES, TRANSFERS OUT,
AND ENCUMBRANCES - BY BRANCH,
DEPARTMENT/AGENCY
Consumer and Industry Seivices - - - - -
Treasury 16,824 14,965 1,929 - -
Tolal Expenditures, Transters Out,
and Encumbrances 16,894 14,965 1,929 - -
Revenues and Cther Sources over {under}
Expendilures, Encumbtances, and Other
Uses (Stalutery/budgetary basis) 3 10,373 12,303 3 1,929 - -
Reconciling llems:
Encumbrances at September 30 6 - -
Funs not annually budgeted - - 11,312
Net Reconciling ltems ] - 11,312
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources over {under)
Expenditures and Other Uses (GAAP Basis) 12,308 - 11,312
FUND BALANCES (GAAP BASIS)
Baginning balances - reslated 1,722 - 9,013
Ending balances {GAAP Basis) S 10,5856 $ - g 20,331
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FUNDS NOT ANNUALLY BUDGETED

SILICOS1S, DUST
DISEASE, AND
LOGGING
INDUSTRY SELF-INSURERS' UTILITY CONSUMER
COMPENSATION SECURITY REPRESENTATION

FUND FUND FUND TOTALS
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
$ - 3 - $ - S 115538 $ 115538 5 -
- - - 4 4 -
- - - 11,623 11,6223 -
. - - 45,167 35,167 -
. - - 10,303 10,303 -
. - 172,634 172,634 -
- - . 144,513 143,503 1,010
- - . 16,894 14,965 1,629
. - - 161,406 158,467 2,939
- - . S 1,228 14,167 § 2,939
. , . 174
{1,541} 1,069 413 11,251
{1,541) 1,069 413 11,426
{1,541} 1,069 413 25,592
4,472 1,968 1,785 33,815
$ 2,931 $ 3,034 S 2,198 $ 59,407
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Michigan

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS — OTHER STATE FUNDS

SCHOOL BOND LOAN FUND

Article 9, Section 16, of the Slate Constitution, P.A. 74 of 1955,
and P.A. 112 of 1961 authorized the issuance of Stale general
obligation bonds lo provide funds for loans to school districts.
Loans are madse for the payment of principal and interest on
schoo! district bonds under prescribed ciroumslances. State
bond proceeds are credited to the fund as an "Other Financing
Source.” When loans are made, transfers are recorded to the
General Fund, which receives loan payments and provides
financing for debt service. In the General Fund, loans receivable
are recorded as assets,

TOBAGCO SETTLEMENT TRUST FUND

Public Act 489 of 2000 created this fund to account for a portion
of the revenue from the master sefllement agreement between
tobacco manufacturers and the State. The settlement reimbuises
the State for health care costs, which result from the use of
tobacco products. Fund expenditures are used for a variely of
programs as determined by the Legislature.

MICHIGAN MERIT AWARD TRUST FUND

This fund was created by P.A. 94 of 1999 to account for a portion
of the revenue from the master settiement agreement between
tobacco manufaclurers and the State. The setilement reimburses
the State for health care costs, which result from the use of
tobacco products. The fund also consists of interest and
eamings from trust fund investments and donations. Fund
expenditures are primarily used for the Michigan Merit Award
Scholarship Program.

ASSIGNED CLAIMS FACILITY AND PLAN FUND

Michigan Compiled Laws Section 500.3171 requires the
Secretary of State to organize and maintain the Assigned Claims
Facility and Plan Fund to provide personal protection insurance
benefits fo persons injured by uninsured motorists, when
coverago Is not available from other sources. The Facility
administers the Plan through servicing insurers. Assessments to
seli-insurers and no-fault insurers cover the costs incurred by the
Facility and Plan,

MISCELLANEOUS SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The miscellaneous special revenuse funds column reflects the
activities of the following funds: Vielnam Veterans' Memorial
Monument, Children’s Institute Trust, Special Assessment
Delermant, and Agricultural College Fund — Morrilt Act.

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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Michigan

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - OTHER STATE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 20, 2001

(In Thousands)

SCHOOL TOBACCO MICHIGAN
BOND LOAN SETTLEMENT MERIT AWARD
FUND TRUST FUND TRUST FUND
ASSETS
Current Assets;
Equity in common cash % 1,050 3 179,487 $ 143,690
Amounts due from local units - 6 -
Other current assels - 21,150 63,449
Total Gurrent Assets 1,050 200,643 207,039
Other noncurrant assets - - -
Total Assets $ 1,050 $ 200,643 % 207,039
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Current Liabilities:
Warrants ouistanding $ - 3 465 $ 172
Accounts payable and other liabilities - 7,895 101,372
Amounts due to other funds - - 3
Deaferred revenue - 21,150 63,449
Total Gurrent Liabilities - 29,510 164,995
Long-Term Liabilities:
Deferred revenug - - -
Total Liabilities - 29,510 164,995
Fund Balances:
Reserves for:
Budgetary carry-forwards:
Encumbrances - 23,252 105
Multi-year projects - 29,678 2,063
Noncurrent assels : ' -
Tota! Reserved - 52,929 2,168
Unreserved 1,050 118,204 39,876
Total Fund Balances 1,050 171,134 42,044
Tolal Liabilities and Fund Batances $ 1,050 $ 200,643 $ 207,039
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TOTALS
ASSIGNED CLAIMS  MISCELLANEQUS
FACILITY AND SPECIAL REVENUE  SEPTEMBER 30,

PLAN FUND FUNDS 2001
$ 134 % 1765  § 326,026
- - 6

604 171 85,373

738 1,936 411,408

- 1,150 1,150

$ 738 $ 3086  § 412558
$ 1 $ -8 638
. g 109,276

- - 1

737 - 85,336

738 9 195,261

- 9 9

738 17 195,260

. - 23,356

. . 31,741

- 1,150 1,150

- 1,150 56,248

. 1,918 161,049

- 3,069 217,297

$ 738 $ 3086 § 412,556
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Michigan

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - OTHER STATE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{ln Thousands)

142

REVENUES
Miscellaneous
Total Revenuses
EXPENDITURES

Current:
Generat government
Education
Public safety and corrections
Labor, cormmerce, and regulatory
Healith services
Debt Service:
Bond interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues over {undear)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bonds and notes issued
Premium on bond issuance
Refunding bonds issued
Transfers to other funds
Total Cther Financing Sources {Uses)
Excess of Revenuas and Other
Sources over (under) Expenditures
and Other Uses
Fund Balances - Beglnning of fiscal year - restated

Fund Balances - End of fiscal year

SCHOOL TOBACCO MICHIGAN

BOND LOAN SETTLEMENT MERIT AWARD
FUND TRUST FUND TRUST FUND

- $ 141,608 $ 139,128

- 141,608 139,128

422 51,371 18,834

. 764 87,644

- 25,001 -

- 45,876 -

2,219 . -

2,641 123,013 106,478

(2,641) 18,506 32,650
81,300 .

301 . -

37 . .

(64,008) (20,000} .
17,631 {20,000) .
14,950 (1,404) 32,650
(13,940) 172,538 9,395
1,050 $ 171,134 $ 42,044
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TOTALS
ASSIGNED CLAIMS  MISCELLANEOUS
FACILITY AND SPECIAL REVENUE  SEPTEMBER 30,

PLAN FUND FUNDS 2001
$ 80,755 $ 235 341,726
60,755 235 341,726
60,012 - 130,639
- - 88,408
. 24 24
- 25,004
- 45,876
. 2,219
60,012 24 292,167
743 211 49,559
. - 81,300
- 301
. . 37
{743) {1,060) (85,810)
(743) {1,060) 4,172)
) (848) 45,387
. 3,917 171,909
$ $ 3,069 217,207
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Michigan

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - OTHER STATE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
(in Thousands})

TOBACCO SETTLEMENT TRUST FUND

MICHIGAN MERIT AWARD TRUST FUND

Statulory/Budgetary Basis BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
Miscellangous $ 141,608 $ 141,608 S - S 139,128 3 139,128 S -
Tolat Revenues and Other Sources 141,608 141,608 - 139,128 139,128 -
EXPENDITURES, TRANSFERS OUT,
AND ENCUMBRANCES - BY BRANCH,
DEPARTMENT/AGENCY
Career Development 34,213 34,213 - - - -
Colleges and Universities Granls 10,000 764 9,236 117,853 87,644 30,209
Community Health 94,289 59,916 34,373 - . -
Management and Budget 50,000 50,000 - - - -
Treasury 30,917 21,371 9,545 18,949 18,939 10
Total Expenditures, Transfers Out,
and Encumbrances 219,419 166,264 53,154 136,802 106,583 30,219
Revenuas and Other Sources over (under)
Expendilures, Encumbrances, and Other
Uses (Statutory/budgetary basis) $  (77,810) (24,656) § 53,164 & 2,326 az2545  § 30,219
Recondiling ltema:
Encumbrances at September 30 23,252 105
Funds noi annually budgeted - -
Net Reconciling items 23,252 165
Excess of Revenues and Oliver Sources over (under)
Expenditures and Other Uses (GAAP Basis) (1,404) 32,650
FUND BALANCES (GAAP BASIS)
Beginning balances - restated 172,538 9,305
Ending balances (GAAP Basis) $ 171,124 $ 42,044
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FUNDS NOT ANNUALLY BUDGETED

SCHOOL ASSIGNED CLAIMS  MISCELLANECUS

BOND LOAN FACILITY AND  SPECIAL REVENUE
FUND PLAN FUND FUNDS TOTALS
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
$ - $ - $ - $ 280,737 $ 280,737 $ .
. . - 280,737 280,757 -
- - . 24,213 34,213 -
- - - 127,853 88,408 39,445
- - - 94,289 59,916 34,373
- - . 50,000 50,000 -
- - - 49,866 40,310 9,656
- - - 356,221 272,848 83,373
: - - S (76,484) 7,889 $ 83,373
. . - 23,356
14,990 - {848) 14,142
14,980 - {848) 37,498
14,990 - {848) 45,387
{13.940) - 3917 171,009
$ 1,050 $ - $ 3,069 $ 217,207
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Michigan

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINED STATE TRUNKLINE BOND AND INTEREST
SEDEMPTION FUND

This fund was established pursuant to P.A. 51 of 1951, as
amended, to account for debt service on all State Trunkiine Fund-
related bond Issues. The bonds are not general obligations of the
State. The bonds are payable solely out of funds restricted for
transportation purposes by Article 9, Section @, of the Michigan
Siate Constitution and irrevocably pledged by law for deposit in
the State Trunkiine Fund. Debt service requirements are funded
by annual appropriations In the State Trunkiine Fund.

COMBINED COMPREHENSIVE TRANSPORTATION
BOND AND INTEREST REDEMPTION FUND

This fund was established pursuant to P.A. 51 of 1951, as
amended, to account for debt service on all Comprehensive
Transportation Fund-related bond issues, The bonds are not
general obligations of the State. The bonds are payable solely
out of funds restricted for comprehensive transponation purposes
by Adicle 9, Section 8, of the Michigan State Constitution and
irrevocably pledged by law for deposit in the Comprehensive
Transportation Fund. Debt service requirements are funded by
annual appropriations in the Comprehensive Transportation Fund,

RECREATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
BOND REDEMPTION FUND

Public Acls 326 and 327 of 1988 established this fund to service
bond issues of the Recreation Bond Fund-Local Projects,
Recreation Bond Fund-State Projects, and the Environmental
Proteciion Bond Fund. Also pursuant to P.A. 284 of 1998 and
Part 196 of P.A. 451 of 1994, the fund services bond issues of
the Clean Michigan Initiative Bond Fund-Local Projects, Clean
Michigan Initiative Bond Fund-State Projects, and Clean Michigan
Initiative Bond Fund-Environmental Projects. Financing of debt
retirement, interest expense, and paying agent fees is provided
by annuat legislative appropriation from the General Fund.

SCHOOL LOAN BOND REDEMPTION FUND

Public Acl 74 of 1955 and P. A. 112 of 1961 created this fund to
account for debt service on general obligation bonds issued to
finance loans to local school districts. The School Bond Loan
Fund, a special revenue fund, receives the State bond proceeds
and makes the loans. Financing of debi retirement, interest
expense, and paying agent fees is provided by annual legisiative
appropriation from the General Fund.

STATE BUILDING AUTHORITY

The State Building Authority was created pursuant to P.A. 183 of
1964, as amended, to issue bonds to finance the acquisition or
renovation of buildings for use by the State or public instilutions of
higher education. Public Act 248 of 1988 also permils Authorily
bonding of state equipment.

The Authority’s projects are financed by revenue bonds, the
proceeds of which can only be used for construction and debt
service on projects related to particular bond issues. During
construction, debt service requirements are financed by a portion
of the bond proceeds that are dedicaied for that purpose. For
completed projects, the resources to. finance bond interest and
redemption are provided by transfers from the General Fund and
from Investment eamings of this fund. When a project is
completed, the remaining net assets are transferred to this fund
where they are invested and used for debt service. Excess
batances related to a parficular bond series remaining in the fund
after the final payment on the bond series are transferred to the
Generat Fund.

MICHIGAN UNDERGROUND  STORAGE = TANK
FINANCIAL ASSURANCE FINANCE AUTHORITY

The Michigan Underground Storage Tank Financial Assurance
Finance Authorily was eslablished in 1993 and operates under
Part 215 of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended, to provide financing
for the activities of the Michigan Underground Storage Tank
Financial Assurance Fund. A five-member board of directors
govems the Authority.

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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Michigan

COMEBINING BALANCE SHEET
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{(In Thousands)

COMBINED COMBINED RECREATION
STATE COMPREHENSIVE AND
TRUNKLINE TRANSPORTATION ENVIRONMENTAL
BOND AND BOND AND PROTECTION
INTEREST INTEREST BOND
REDEMPTION REDEMPTION REDEMPTION
FUND FUND FUND
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash % - $ - $ -
Equity in common cash - - 1
Amounis due from other funds - - -
Investments - R .
Other current assets - - -
Total Current Assets - - 1
invesiments - - -
Total Assels $ - $ - $ 1
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilittes  $ - $ - $ 1
Amounts due to other funds - - - i,
Total Current Liabilities - - 1
Tolal Liabilities - - 1
Fund Balances:
Unreserved - - -
Totat Fund Balances - - -
Totat Liabilities and Fund Balances  $ - $ - $ 1
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MICHIGAN
UNDERGROUND
STORAGE
TANK
SCHOOL FINANCIAL TOTALS
LOAN BOND STATE ASSURANGE
REDEMPTION BUILDING FINANCE SEPTEMBER 30,
FUND AUTHORITY AUTHORITY 2001

$ - $ - $ 4,61 $ 4,611

- - 5,785 5,786

- 102 - 102

- 178,255 87,060 265,316

833 - 833

- 179,190 97,457 276,648

. 48,099 - 48,099

$ - $ 227,290 $ 97,457 $ 324,747

$ $ 58 $ 4,642 $ 4,700

326 1,000 1,326

- 384 5,642 6,027

- 384 5,642 6,027

- 226,906 94,815 318,721

- 226,906 91,815 318,721

$ - $ 227,290 $ 97,457 $ 324,747
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Michigan

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
{In Thousands)

REVENUES
Miscellaneous
Totat Revenues
EXPENDITURES

Current:
General govemment
Education
Transportation
Debt Service:
Bend principal retirement
Bond interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues over (under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Premium on bond issuance
Refunding bonds Issued
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
over {under) Expenditures and
Other Uses
Fund Balances - Beginning of fiscal year

Fund Balances - End of fiscal year

150

COMBINED COMBINED RECREATION
STATE COMPREHENSIVE AND
TRUNKLINE TRANSPORTATION ENVIRONMENTAL
BOND AND BOND AND PROTECTION
INTEREST INTEREST BOND
REDEMPTION REDEMPTION REDEMPTION
FUND FUND FUND
$ 5 1 $ -
. 1 -
- - 534
- 293 .
18,670 10,465 29,902
29,626 11,233 34,779
48,196 21,991 65,216
{48,195) {21,990 {65,216)
. 600 7,069
- 27,765 97,985
- (28,072) (104,520)
48,196 21,698 64,682
- (1) .
48,195 21,990 65,216
- 8 - $
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MICHIGAN
UNDERGROUND
STORAGE
TANK
SCHOOL FINANCIAL TOTALS
LOAN BOND STATE ASSURANCE
REDEMPTION BUILDING FINANGE SEPTEMBER 30,
EUND AUTHORITY AUTHORITY 2001

$ - $ 17,260 $ 3,502 s 20,764

- 17,260 3,502 20,764

472 - 48 1,054

- 2,244 - 2,244

- - - 293

12,490 133,675 14,350 219,652

14,273 100,466 9,485 199,761

27,238 236,385 23,882 422,905
(27,236) {219,125) {20,380) (402,141)

6,488 13,559 - 27,716

85,295 419,730 - 630,775
{91,311) {474,820) - (698,723)

26,763 254,304 57,942 473,555
- {(281) (4,000} (4,283)

27,236 212,491 53,912 429,039

- {6,634} 33,532 26,808

. 233,540 58,283 201,822

$ - $ 226,906 % 91,815 $ 318,721
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINED RECREATION BOND FUND - STATE
PROJECTS

Established in 1988, this fund currently operates under Parts 196
and 715 of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended. The balances
remalning in the fund reflect proceeds and investment eamings
remaining from two bond packages: $70 mition of general
obligation bonds approved by voters in November 1988 as part of
a $140 million bond package for financing Stale and locat public
recreation projects, and $50 million of general obligation bonds
approved by voters in November 1998 as part of a $675 millicn
bond package known as the “Clean Michigan Infliative.” The
proceeds from the 1988 bond package are used to construct,
expand, and develop recreational facilities at State parks. The
proceeds from the 1898 bond package are used for infrastructure
improvements at State parks with the instaltation or upgrads of
drinking water systems or rest room facilities as a first priority.

ADVANGE FINANCING FUNDS

The Advance Financing Funds reffects the activities of two sub-
funds: the State Building Authority Advance Financing Fund and
the Site Preparation Economic Development Fund.

The Siate Building Authority Advance Financing Fund was
administratively established to account for expenditures incurred
for equipment, higher education, and State projects prior to the
issuance of State Building Authority bonds. Appropriation acts
and concuirent resolutions provide temporary financing of such
expendiiures for legislatively authorized projects. Expendilures
on behalf of the State Building Authority are recorded when
incurred. At year-end, any deficit in the common cash pool is
reclassified as a payable to the General Fund. In addilion to
advance expenditures, expenditures financed by the General
Fund or other sources related to State Building Authorily projects
are recorded in this fund.

The State Building Awthority, in its separalely issued statements,
doss not recognize liabiliiies for these projects untd bonds or
commercial paper are issued; therefore, no receivable from the
Authority is recognized in this fund prior to bond or commercial
paper issuance. This resulls in the fund showing a year-end fund
balance deficit. The Authority will reimburse this fund by
recording a transfer and the deficit attribulable to the bonded
projects will be eliminated when the Authority issues bonds or
obtains commercial paper.

The Site Preparation Economic Development Fund was created
by P.A. 265 of 1999 to account for expenditures Incurred to
prepare and sell Slate owned sites declared as surplus that would
provide economic bensfil lo the area or State, Expendilures are
recorded when incurred. Sale proceeds of fund properlies are
depasited into the fund.

STATE BUILDING AUTHORITY

The State Building Authority was crealed pursuant to P.A, 183 of
1964, as amended, o issue bonds 1o finance the acquisition or
renovation of buildings for use by the State or public Institutions of
higher education. Public Act 248 of 1988 also permits Authority
bonding of State equipment. The Aulhority’s five board members
are appointed by the Govemnor.

This capital projects fund, accounts for the construction of State
projects, cerfain equipment financing, and higher education
related projects. Transfers out reflect transfers to the debt
sovice fund of proceeds dedicated for debi service during
conslruction, relmbursements of expenditures to the State
Building Authority Advance Financing Fund, and the transfer of
nel assets remaining afler the completion of a project to the debt
service fund. In the Siate’s Govemment-wide Financial
Statements, accumulaled expenditures for incomplete projects
are reflected as *construclion in progress” and completed projects
are recorded as "buildings.®

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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Michigan

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 20, 2001

{In Thousands)

COMBINED
RECREATION TOTALS
BOND FUND- ADVANGCE STATE
STATE FINANCING BUILDING SEPTEMBER 34,
PROJECTS FUNDS AUTHORITY 2001
ASSETS
Current Asssis:
Equity in common cash $ 2,265 - - $ 2,265
Amounts due from other funds 534 125,832 318 126,685
Amounts due from component units - 14,381 - 14,381
Amounts due from federal agencies 2,353 - 2,353
Amounts due from local units - 11,957 - 11,957
Investments - - 30,995 30,995
Other current assets - 6,602 191 6,793
Total Current Assets 2,800 161,126 31,505 195,430
TFotal Assets 3 2,800 161,126 31,605 $ 195,430
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Current Liabilities:
Warrants outstanding 17 4,252 - 8 4,268
Accounts payable and other liabilities 3,845 158,636 501 162,982
Amounts due to other funds 534 173,697 125,934 300,166
Interest payable - - 478 478
Totat Current Liabilities 4,398 336,685 126,413 467,895
Total Liabilities 4,396 336,585 126,913 467,895
Fund Balances:
Reservas for:
Construction and debt senvice - - 15,494 15,494
Total Reserved - - 15,494 15,494
Unreserved {1,5986) {175,460) (110,902) (287,958)
Total Fund Balances (1,596) {175,460} (95,409) {272,464)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 2,800 161,126 31,605 $ 195,430
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Michigan

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{in Thousands}

REVENUES

From lederal agencies
Miscellaneous

Totat Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Education
Capital outlay
Totat Expenditures

Excess of Revenues over
{under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Bonds and notes issued
Premium on bond issuance

Extinguishment of commerclal paper

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and

Other Sources over (under)
Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balances - Beginning
of fiscal year - restated

Fund Balances - End of fiscal year

COMBINED
RECREATION TOTALS
BOND FUND- ADVANCE STATE
STATE FINANCING BUILDING SEPTEMBER 30,
PROJECTS FUNDS AUTHORITY 2001

$ - 5,763 $ - $ 5,763
801 1,357 8,268 10,426

801 7,120 8,268 16,189

- 6,404 - 6,404

. 9,428 189,142 198,569

17,017 110,692 117,651 245,361

17,017 126,524 306,793 450,334
{18,216) (119,404) {298,525) {434,145)

- - 373,550 373,650

. B 12,454 12,454

- - {40,680) (40,680)

- 18,224 - 18,224

2) (15,198) (32,436) (47,635)

@ 3,026 312,889 315,913

(16,218) (116,378) 14,364 (118,232)
14,622 (59,082) (109,773) (154,232)

$ (1,596) {175,460) $ (95,409) $ (272,464)
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Michigan

.4
|

PERMANENT FUNDS

MICHIGAN NATURAL RESOURCES TRUST FUND

The State Conslitulion was amended in 1984 1o provide for the
Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund. The fund, established in
1985, operates under Part 19 of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended.
Most fentals, royalties, and other revenues derived from mineral,
coal, oll, and gas interesls on State-owned land are credited to
the fund. Public Act 451 of 1994 directs a porlion (50%, up to
$10 miillion per year) of these revenues to the Michigan State
Parks Endowment Fund.

In accordance with statutory provisions, this fund Is to accumulate
up to $400 million in reserves for permanent Investments. The
amount accumulated toward this cap Is shown as a reservation of
fund balance. Investment earnings and one-third of royalty
samings are available for appropration. Two-thirds of royalty
gamings, less the portion transferred to the Michigan Slate Park
Endowment Fund, are added to amounts held for permanent
Invesiments until the investment reserve reaches $200 million.
After that time, all royalties, less the porlion transferred to the
Michigan State Park Endowment Fund, are restricted for
investment and only interest Is avallable for appropriation.
Appropriations are used to fund grants to local units of
govermment as welt as Stale agencies lo acquire or develop
public recreation facllities.

MICHIGAN STATE PARKS ENDOWMENT FUND

Established In 1994, this fund operates under Part 741 of P.A.
451 of 1994, as amended, to finance operations, maintenance,
and capital improvements at Michigan State parks. The fund was
gstablished with a $40 million transfer from the sale of the
Accident Fund of Michigan to provide funds for permanent
investmant, By statute, up 1o $10 million per year of revenues
from oft and gas bonuses, renlals, and royalties from State-owned
land are deposited into this fund unlil the Michigan Natural
Resourcas Trust Fund reaches an accumulated principal of $400
million after which ime all revenue previously going to that fund
will go to this fund. The fund's investment reserve will be capped
at $800 million. The legislature Is limited to appropiiating no
mora than $5 milflon, adjusted for inflation since 1994, each year
from the fund until the cap is attained. When the fund's reserve
reaches $800 million, only the Interest and eamings In excess of
the amount needed to maintain the $800 million principal limit
may be expended.

MICHIGAN  CIVILIAN  CONSERVATION  CORPS
ENDOWMENT FUND

Public Act 394 of 1994, as amended, established this fund for the
purpose of conserving, improving, and developing the State’s
nalural resources, and for enhancing, preserving, and maintaining
public fands and waters through the employment of residents of
this State in work tralning programs.

Twenty million dollars earmarked from the sale of the Accident
Fund of Michigan provided the fund's permanent investment
reserve. Only the Interest and eamings of the fund can be
expended.

MICHIGAN VETERANS' TRUST FUND

Public Act @ of 1946 (First Extra Session) created this fund to
finance programs to assist veterans and their beneficiaries. A
seven-member board of trustees governs the fund., Resouices
ara provided by investment and common cash eamings and by
Wransfers from the General Fund. Expenditures and transfers out
reflect grants to veterans and their widows or dependents, and
administrative costs at both the State and local lavel, The fund is
administered within the Depariment of Military and Veterans
Affairs.

CHILDREN'S TRUST FUND

Public Act 249 of 1982 establishad the Children's Trust Fund to
support the State Child Abuse and Neglect Prevention Board.
The Board was established under £.A. 250 of 1982 1o coordinate
and fund activities for the prevention of child abuse and neglect in
the State. :

Public Act 291 of 2000 provided for a transfer of $13.1 million
from the General Fund during fiscal year 1999-2000 to bring the
fund's total assetls to an amount exceeding $20 million. Only the
earnings credited to the fund are available for disbursement once
tha total assets of the fund exceed $20 million corpus. Revenues
are derived primarily from grants from the federal govermment,
gifts and donations, and Interest on investments.
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Michigan

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
PERMANENT FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Thousands)

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Equity in common cash
Amounts dus from local units
Other curront assels

Total Current Assets
Investments
Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Cuirent Liabiiities:
Warranis outstanding
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Amounts due o other funds
Amounts due to component units

Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilitias

Fund Balances:
Reserves for;
Budgetary carry-forwards:
Encumbrances
Multi-year projecls

Funds held as permanent investmenls

Total Reserved
Unreserved
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

158

MICHIGAN
CIVILIAN
MICHIGAN MICHIGAN CONSERVATION
NATURAL STATE PARKS CORPS
RESOURCES ENDOWMENT ENDOWMENT
TRUST FUND FUND FUND

$ 33,202 $ 12,251 $ 19,127
10,755 1,704 1
44,047 13,956 19,128
235,633 95,495 2,006
$ 279,680 $ 109,450 $ 21,134
$ 861 $ 44 $ 8
8,741 477 200
5 3 -
9,607 524 208
8,607 524 208
16,192 545 66
29,509 1,262 -
191,682 101,067 20,006
237,383 102,874 20,072
32,690 6,053 854
270,073 108,927 20,827
$ 279,680 % 109,450 $ 21,134




TOTALS

MICHIGAN
VETERANS' CHILOREN'S  SEPTEMBER 30,
TRUST FUND TRUST FUND 2001
3 6,323 $ 6,265 $ 77,259
114 - 114
419 322 13,202
6,857 6,587 90,675
43,670 15,205 392,009
3 50,5627 $ 21,792 $ 482,583
$ 2 $ 24 $ 939
298 96 9,812
6 - 13
159 - 159
464 120 10,923
464 120 10,923
72 16,876
- - 30,771
49,000 21,177 382,932
49,000 21,249 430,679
1,062 423 41,082
50,062 21,672 471,660
$ 50,527 $ 21,792 $ 482,583
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Michigan

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

PERMANENT FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
{In Thousands}

MICHIGAN

CIVILIAN
MICHIGAN MICHIGAN CONSERVATION
NATURAL STATE PARKS CORPS
RESOURCES ENDOWMENT ENDOWMENT
TRUST FUND FUND FUND
REVENUES
From federal agencies $ - $ - $ -
Miscellanecus 78,304 11,733 1,187
Total Revenues 78,304 11,733 1,187
EXPENDITURES
Cuarrent:
Family independence services - - -
Public safety and corrections - - -
Conservation, environment,
recreation, and agriculture 11,027 5,289 2,260
Capital outlay 18,451 1,175 -
Total Expenditures 29,478 6,464 2,260
Excess of Revenues over (under}
Expanditures 48,826 5,268 {1,073)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds - 10,000 -
Transfers to other funds {10,044) {30) {7)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (10,044} 9,970 {7}
Excess of Revenues and QOther
Sources over (under) Expenditures
and Oiher Uses 38,781 15,239 {1,080}
Fund Balances - Beginning
of fiscal year - restated 231,202 93,688 22,006
Fund Balances - Endg of fiscal year $ 270,073 $ 108,827 $ 20,927
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Michigan

TOTALS
MICHIGAN
VETERANS' CHILDREN'S  SEPTEMBER 30,
TRUST FUND TRUST FUND 2001
$ - $ 781 $ 781
5,128 2,807 99,158
5,128 3,588 99,940
- 2,590 2,590
3,866 - 3,866
- - 18,576
- - 19,626
3,866 2,590 44,658
1,261 099 55,282
- 53 10,053
{28) (11} (10,121)
(28) 41 (69)
1,233 1,040 55,213
48,830 20,632 416,447
$ 50,062 $ 21,672 $ 471,660
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Michigan

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

PERMANENT FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
{In Thousands)

MICHIGAN NATURAL MICHIGAN STATE
RESOURCES TRUST FUND PARKS ENDOWMENT FUND
Statutory/Budgetary Basis BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET AGTUAL VARIANCE
REVENUES AND OTHER SOQOURCES
From federal agencies $ - 8 -8 - 8 - 8 - 5 -
Miscellaneous 78,304 78,304 - 11,733 11,733 -
Transters in - - - 10,000 10,000 -
Total Revenues and Other Sources 78,304 78,304 - 21,733 21,733 -
EXPENBITURES, TRANSFERS OUT,
AND ENCUMBRANCES - BY BRANCH,
DEPARTMENT/AGENCY
Family independence Agency - - - - . -
Military and Veterans Affairs B - - - - -
Natural Resources 61,771 55,714 6,057 7,056 7,039 16
Total Expenditures, Transfers Cal,
and Encumbrances 61,771 55,714 6,057 7.056 7,039 16
Revenues and Cther Sources over {under)
Expendilures, Encumbrances, and Other
Uses {Statutory/budgetary basis) $ 16,533 22590 & 6,057 & 14,677 14,693 3§ 16
Reconciting ltems:
Encumbrances at September 30 16,192 545
Nel Reconciling [tems 16,192 545
Excess of Revanues and Other Sources
over (under} Expenditures and
Other Uses {GAAP Basis) 38,781 15,239
FUND BALANCES (GAAP BASIS)
Beginning balances - restated 231,292 93,688

Ending balances (GAAP Basis)
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Michigan

MICHIGAN CIVILIAN CONSERVATION

CORPS ENDOWMENT FUND MICHIGAN VETERANS' TRUST FUND
BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANGE
s - § - $ - ] -8 - $ -
1,187 1,187 - 5,128 5,128 -
1,187 1,187 - 5,128 5,128 -
. - . 4,737 3,895 842
2,333 2,333 . - . .
2,333 2,333 - 4,737 3,895 B42
$ {1,148) (1,148) 8 - % 391 1233 § 842
66 -
86 -
(1,080) 1,233
22,008 48,830
S 20927 $ 50,062

This schedule conlinued on next page.
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Michigan

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

PERMANENT FUNDS
FiISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
(In Thousands}

CHILDREN'S TRUST FUND TOTALS
Statutory/Budgetary Basis BUBGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
From federal agencies $ 781 S 781 $ - $ 781 $ 781 -
Miscelfanequs 2807 2,807 - 99,158 99,158 -
Transters in 53 53 - 10,053 10,063 -
Tolal Revenues and Other Sourcas 3,641 3,641 109,992 109,892 -
EXPENDITURES, TRANSFERS OUT,
AND ENCUMBRANCES - BY BRANCH,
DEPARTMENT/AGENCY
Family Independence Agency 2,903 2,673 230 2,903 2,673 230
Military and Veterans Affairs - - - 4,137 3,805 842
Natural Resources - - - 71,160 65,087 5,073
Total Expenditures, Transfers Qut,
and Encumbrances 2,903 2,673 230 78,800 71,655 7,145
Revenues and Other Sources over (under}
Expenditures, Encumbrances, and Other
Uses {Statutorybudgetary basis) $ 738 o968 s 230 $ 31,193 38,337 7,145
Reconciling ltems:
Encumbrances at September 30 72 16,876
Net Reconciling ltems 72 16,876
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
over {under} Expanditures and
Other Uses (GAAP Basis) 1,040 55,213
FUND BALANCES (GAAP BASIS)
Beginning balances - restated 20,632 416,447
Ending balances {GAAP Basis) 3 21,672
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Michigan

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

CORRECTIONAL INDUSTRIES REVOLVING FUND

Greated by P.A. 210 of 1935 and continued by P.A. 15 of 1968,
this fund accounts for the financial transactions of a
manufacturing and processing industry, employing inmates
incarcerated in Michigans correctional institutfons.  Public Act
245 of 1980 expanded the fund's sales market to include
institutions of this or any other slate or pelitical subdivision
thereof, the federal government or its agencies, and certain tax-
exempt arganizations,

Public Act 205 of 1986 stipulates that the fund repay the General
Fund for the cost of building and equipping prison faclories
included as part of new prison consiruction.  The costs of
buildings and equipment are to be repaid over 30 years and 10
years respectively. The repayment provisions, as stiputated in
Executive Order 1992-13, resulted in no required payment in
fiscal year 2000-2001, however $1 million was pald against the
principal because sufficlent cash was available.

MOTOR TRANSPORT FUND

This fund was created by P.A, 260 of 1947 and continued by P.A,
431 of 1984 to provide vehicle and travel services for Slate
agencies. Aclivities include lease, purchase, replacement, and
rnaintenance of automotive equipment. Vehicles are available to
agencies on a permanently assigned basis or through the motor
pool for short-lerm usage and are furnished 10 agencles at a rate
sufficient to cover all costs of operation and maintenance.
Agencies are billed on a monihly basis for services tendered.

OFFICE SERVICES REVOLVING FUND

Created by P.A. 262 of 1952, ihis fund provides services in the
following areas: printing, reproduction, microfim, maiting,
distribution of federal and slate surpius property, and materials
management. The cost of the services or supplles Is charged to
user depariments and agencies. Resultant revenue is credited
to the revolving fund and is used for administration and
operation of the program, Including purchase of necessary
equipment.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND ENERGY FUND

This fund was created by administrative decision to provide
telecommunication and information technology services for
State agencies. User agencies are billed for the cost of such
services. During fiscal year 1893-2000, the use of the fund was
axpanded 1o account for the purchase of bulk gas used by State
agencies.

RISK MANAGEMENT FUND

Administratively established, thls fund accounts for cerain
centralized risk management functions performed by the
Department of Management and Budget for other State agencies.
Currently, the fund has assumed a degree of risk for the
automotive liability. This activity and administrative functions are
recorded as operating aclivity of the fund. An aclivity of the fund
for which the fund assumes no risk is the centralized processing
of workers' compensation paymenis for Slate agencies.
Workers’ compensation long-term claim liabliities are recorded in
the Government-wide Financial Statemenis and the related
current year workers' compansation expenditures are recerded In
the applicable funds.

STATE SPONSORED GROUP INSURANCE FUND

This fund was administratively established to refiect the financial
transactions of the State sponsored insurance plans that provide
health, long-ferm disability, life, vision, and denlal coverage for
pariicipating employess and retirees. The plans' funding
methods range from those where the State is fully self-insured
to those where an outside carrier assumes partial risk on a
contracted basis. A note to the Government-wide Financial
Slatements entitled “Risk Management’ provides additional
information about this fund.

The amounts reflected as amounts due from other funds include
reclassifications of other funds' negalive balances in the
common cash pool.
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Michigan

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
INTERNAL. SERVICE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

(In Thousands)

166

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash
Equity in common cash
Amounts due from other funds
Inventories
Other current assets

Total Ctirrent Assets

Capital Assets:
Buildings and equipment
Allowance for depreciation

Total capital assets

Other noncurrent assels

Tolal Assetls
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Warrants outstanding
Accounts payable and other iiabilities
Amounts due to other funds
Deferred revenue
Current portion of other long-term obligations

Total Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liablitles:

Advances from other funds
Noncurrent portion of other long-term obligations

Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assels, net of related debt
Restricted for other purposes

Unrestricted

Total Net Assels

OFFICE

CORRECTIONAL
INDUSTRIES MOTOR SERVICES
REVOLVING TRANSPORT REVOLVING

FUND FUND FUND

$ - $ - 17
4,677 - -

15,897 259 2,608

263 18,680 487

20,838 18,840 3,002

43,046 16,943 26,332
(19,470 {12,037) {13,579)

23,576 4,906 12,753

- 955 -

$ 44,414 $ 24,701 15,844
3 571 $ 40 903
2,896 2,840 2,268

88 18,530 6,129

- 38 63

102 21 1,324

3,656 16,469 10,676

7,210 - -

1,044 369 4,471

$ 11,911 $ 16,838 15,147
$ 23,576 $ 4,906 8,986
8,927 2,957 -
- - (8,289)

$ 32,503 $ 7,863 697




Michigan

STATE
INFORMATION SPONSORED TOTALS
TEGHNOLOGY RISK GROUP
AND ENERGY MANAGEMENT INSURANCE SEPTEMBER 30,
FUND FUND FUND 2001
$ . $ - 20 $ 38
- 10,106 122,457 137,241
- - 40,163 40,163
951 - 19,716
233 . 3,587 23,129
1,184 10,106 166,228 220,287
187,509 4 10,253 284,087
(122,553) (@) {2,293) (169,938)
64,956 - 7,960 114,151
- - 88,065 89,020
$ 66,140 $ 10,106 $ 262,253 $ 423,458
$ 4,171 $ 51 $ 870 $ 6,405
15,240 2,084 9,805 35,122
8,672 4 - 26,422
4,851 - 185 5,138
10,221 2,262 99,665 113,586
41,156 4,301 110,325 186,672
) ; . 7,210
17,048 4,349 84,008 111,289
$ 58,204 $ 8,740 $ 194,332 $ 305,172
$ 39,919 $ - $ 7,960 $ 85,347
- . . 11,884
(31,983) 1,366 59,960 21,055
$ 7,936 $ 1,366 $ 67,920 $ 118,286
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Michigan

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
(In Thousands}

OPERATING REVENUES
Operaling revenues

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries, wages, and other administrative

Depreciation

Purchases for resale

Purchases for prison industries

Premiums and ¢laims

Other operating expenses:

L eased vehicles expense
Vehicle maintenance expense

Totat other opsrating expenses

Fotal Operating Expenses
Operating income {Loss)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Other nenoperaling revenues
Interest expense
Other nonoperating expense
Total Nonoperating Revenues {Expenses)
Income (Loss) Before Transfers
TRANSFERS
Transfers to other funds
Total Transfers In (Out)
Change in net assets

Total net assels - Beginning of fiscal year

Total net assets - End of fiscal year

168

CORRECTIONAL OFFICE
INDUSTRIES MOTOR SERVICES
REVOLVING TRANSPORT REVOLVING

FUND FUND FUND

% 40,589 $ 68,181 $ 57,860
40,589 68,181 -
22,430 5,693 27,191
1,544 669 2.829

. - 29,229

15,528 - -

. 2,494 55

36,903 .

24,663 -

51,566 -

39,502 70,421 59,305
1,087 (2,240) {1,445}
(219) - {184)

{74) (11} (2,819)

{293) {11 (3,003

794 (2,251) {4,448)

{(186) (30) {28)

{188) {30) {28)

608 {2,281) (4,478)
31,895 10,144 5,173

$ 32,603 $ 7,863 $ 697




Michigan

STATE
INFORMATION SPONSORED TOTALS
TECHNOLOGY RISK GROUP —_—
AND ENERGY MANAGEMENT INSURANCE SEPTEMBER 30,
FUND FUND FUND 2001

$ 121,390 $ 2,858 $ 786,062 $ 1,076,940

121,390 2,858 786,062 1,076,940

71,992 1,266 39,512 168,084

30,544 - 1,990 37,576

16,956 - - 45,185

- - - 15,5628

- 1,174 700,989 704,712

- - 36,903

- - - 24,663

- - 61,566

119,492 2,440 742,491 1,033,651

1,898 418 43,571 43,289

- - 11,410 11,410

(680) - . (1,083)

(225} - - (3,130

{905) 11,410 7,198

993 418 54,081 50,487
- - - {244)
- - - (244)

993 418 54,981 50,243

6,943 948 12,939 68,043

3 7,936 $ 1,366 $ 67,920 $ 118,286

169



Michigan

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL. SERVICE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Thousands)

170

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers
Ctlaims pald
Other receipls
Cther payments

Net cash provided {used) by operaling activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loans or lean repayments from other funds
Loans or loan repayments to other {unds
Transfers to other funds
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital

financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construclion of capital assets
Principal paid on bond and loan maturities
Interest paid
Capital lease payments (including imputed
interest expense)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Net cash provided (used) by capitat and related

financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interast and dividends on investments

Net cash provided (used} by investing aclivities

Net cash provided (used) - all activities
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (foss)

AdJustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Amortization of pre-paid expense
Other reconciling items
Net changes in assets and labilities:
inventories
Other assats (net)
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

SCHEBULE OF NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL,
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cosl of capital assets acquisitlons financed by capital leases
Capital tease Habdities entered into during the year
Galn (loss) on disposal of capital assels
Total noncash investing, capital, and
financing activities

CORRECTICNAL OFFICE
INDUSTRIES MOTOR SERVICES
REVOLVING TRANSPORT REVOLVING

FUND FUND FUND

$ 40,590 $ 66,888 $ 57,744
{13,136) (3,730 {12,898}
(15,547) {67,038) {44,705)

- 590 -

(9,248) . -

$ 2,660 $ {3,200) 3 140
$ - $ 3,108 $ 1,486
{1,000) - -
{186) {30) (28)

$ {1,186) $ 3,158 $ 1,459
$ {1,841) $ (312) $ (654)
(219) - -
- - {1,543)

- 410 131

$ {2,060) $ 98 $ (2,066)
3 - 3 - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
$ (587) $ (34) $ {468)
4,693 (6} (418)

$ 4,107 $ {40) $ {885)
3 1,087 3 (2,240) $ {1,445)
1,644 669 2,829

- - o3

(303) 28 - (550)

3 {1,675) (144)
329 (72) {644}

3 2,660 3 {3,290) $ 140
$ - $ - 3 1,978
- - .(1,978)

(74 - © (2,819)

$ (74) $ - 3 (2,819)




Michigan

STATE
INFORMATION SPONSORED TOTALS
TECHNOLOGY RISK GROUP
AND ENERGY MANAGEMENT INSURANCE SEPTEMBER 30,
FUND FUND FUND 2001
$ 122874 $ 2,796 $ 783869 $ 1,074,760
{19,415) (747 - {49,926)
{67,252} {458) (180,061) (385,081)
. {2,590} (542,457) {545,048)
- 1,416 . 2,006
{2,083) - (5,151) {16,482)
$ 34,124 $ 417 $ 46,200 $ 80,250
$ (247) $ - $ - $ 4,427
. {4,427) (5,427)
- - (244)
$ (247) $ - $ {4,427) § (1,244)
{23,937) $ $ (4,650} $ (31,394)
{6,881) - . (6,881)
. - - (219)
{6,545) - - (8,089)
- - . 541
$ (37,363) $ - $ {4,650) $ (46,041)
$ -8 $ 11,410 $ 11,410
$ - $ - $ 11,410 $ 11,410
$ (3,487) $ 417 $ 48,532 $ 44,375
{685) 9,638 73,276 86,499
$ (4,171) $ 10,055 $ 121,808 $ 130,873
3 1,898 $ 418 $ 43,571 $ 43,289
30,544 - 1,990 37,576
- . . 93
24 - . 21
477 . . (1,302)
148 - {2,402) (4,070)
1,991 (1)) 3,041 4,644
$ 34,124 3 417 $ 46,200 $ 80,250
$ 17,357 $ . $ $ 19,335
(17,357} - - (19,335)
{225) - - (3,118)
$ (225) $ - $ $ (3,118)
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Michigan

PENSION (AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT) TRUST FUNDS

Noles to the financiat statements, enlited “Deferred
Compensalion Plans® and “Pension Benefits and Other
Postemployment  Benefits,” include additional information
regarding the following funds and plans.

STATE EMPLOYEES' DEFERRED COMPENSATION
FUNDS

The Stale Employess' Deferred Compensation Fund | (457) and
the State Employees’ Deferred Compensation Fund Il {401k) are
combined for reperling purposes. Both funds were
adminisiratively established te account for deferred compensation
plans that permit State employees to defer a porilon of their
income until future years. Executive Order 1999-7 transferred
administralion of the plans from the Department of Treasury to the
Department of Management and Budget. However, the State
Freasurer continues to oversee investment oplions.

LEGISLATIVE RETIREMENT FUND

Public Act 261 of 1957 created the Legislaiive Retirement System
{LRS) to provide retirement and other benefits for members of the
Legislature, the presiding officers, and their surviving spouses or
children. Participants in the system have a deduction from each
salary payment to parlially finance the fund,  Legislalive
appropriations, interest on fund investments, and court fees
complete the financing.

Public Act 486 of 1996 amended LRS’s enabling legislation to
provide that members elected after March 31, 1997, participate in
the State’s defined contribution plan.

STATE POLICE RETIREMENT FUND

This fund was created by P.A. 251 of 1935 and later superseded
by P.A. 182 of 1986. A nine-mamber board, under the direction
of a chairperson elected from the membership, administers the
fund to provide retirement beneafits for State Police officers.
Financing Is provided by investment income and by an annual
legislative appropriation.

STATE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND

This fund was established by P.A. 240 of 1943 and is
administered by a nine-member board under the direction of an
Executive Secretary. Publlc Act 216 of 1974 eliminated the
requirement for member contributions and provided for financing
by legislative appropriation and investment eamings.

Effective March 31, 1897, P.A. 487 of 1886 closed the plan to
new applicants. All new employees become members of the
State’s defined contribution plan. The public act aiso allows
returning employees and members who left state employment on
or before March 31, 1997, to elect the defined bensfit plan
instead of the dsfined contribution plan,

PUBLIC SCHOCL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND

In accordance with P.A. 300 of 1980, on October 1, 1981, the
Public School Employees’ Chapter | Retirement Fund merged
with the Public School Employees' Chapter 1l Retirement Fund to
eslablish the Public School Employees’ Retirement Fund., Public
Acts 136 of 1945 and 259 of 1974, respeclively, created the two
original funds, An eight-member board govems administrative
policy.

Employer contributions and investment earnings provide
financing for the fund. Under P.A. 81 of 1985, employees may
coniribute additional amounts into a "member investment plan.®

JUDGES' RETIREMENT FUND

Public Act 234 of 1992 authorized the merger of the Probate
Judges' Retirement Fund into the Judges' Retirement Fund by
requiring the consolidation of all assets, rights, and obligations
under the former Judges' and Probate Judges' Retirement Funds.
The Judges' Retirement Beard, with the director of the Office of
Retiremen! Systems as the Executive Secretary, administers the
consolidated fund. Financing comes from member contributions,
court filing fees as provided under law, investment eamings, and
legisiative appropriations.

Public Act 523 of 1996, effective March 31, 1997, closed the plan
to new entrants. Judges or state officials newly appointed or
elected on or after March 31, 1997, become members of the
State’s defined contribution plan, ’

STATE EMPLOYEES' DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
RETIREMENT FUND

This fund was established by P.A. 487 of 1996 as a delined
conlribution pension plan for ali state employees hired after
March 31, 1997, and for those members of the State Employees’
Retirement {defined benefit) System, Judges' Retirement System,
and Legislative Retirement System who elected 1o transfer to this
plan, Execulive Order 1999-7 transferred administration of the
fund from the Department of Treasury to the Department of
Management and Budget. However, the Slate Treasursr shall
continue to oversee investment options.

2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

173



Michigan

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
PENSION (AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT) TRUST FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{(in Thousands)

ASSETS

Cash
Equity in common cash
Receivables;
Employee
Employer
Interest and dividends
Due from other funds
Sate of investments
Investments at fair value:
Short-term investments
Bonds, notes, mortgages, and preferred stock
Common stock
Real estate
Alternative investments
International investments
Mutual funds
Poaled investment funds
Money market funds
Securities tending collateral

Capital assets:
Buildings and equipment
Allowance for depreciation
Total capital assets

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Warrants oulslanding
Accounts payable and other labilities

Amounts due to other funds
Obligations under securily iending

Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS

Net assets held in frust for pension, postemployment
health-care, and other employee benefits

Reconciiiation of net assets held in trust:
Pansion benefits
Postemployment health-care bensfits
GCther employee benefits

Total net assets held in trust for bensfits
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STATE
EMPLOYEES’

DEFERRED LEGISLATIVE ~ STATE POLICE
COMPENSATION  RETIREMENT RETIREMENT
FUNDS FUND FUND
$ - s - s -

1,032 4,054 7,020
79,363 - -

213 339 -

- 193 3,781

- - 1,763

- - 16

177,166 - 60,017

. 18,293 213,396

- 63,710 427,071

- - 98,236

- . 160,315

- - 69,019

1,308,934 72,497 -
1,436,530 . -
85,524 -

: 44,764

$ 3088760  $ 159,087  $  1,085397
$ -8 37 % 331
- 855 4,373

- k| -

- - 44,784

$ -3 693 $ 49,468
$ 3083761 $ 158393  § 1035929
$ - $ 152,898 $ 1,038,440
- 5,695 (2,511)

3,088,761 - -

$ 3088761 $ 158393  § 1,035,929
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STATE
EMPLOYEES'
STATE PUBLIC SCHOOL DEFINED TOTALS
EMPLOYEES' EMPLOYEES' JUDGES' CONTRIBUTION
RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT SEPTEMBER 30,
FUND FUND FUND FUND 2001
$ 08 % 457 $ - $ - $ 565
44,692 96,412 4,327 31 157,568
; . . 13,408 92,772
778 355,088 105 14 357,437
35,653 125,682 1,047 . 168,355
13,364 . - - 15,128
340 1,396 3 - 1,555
598,336 2,703,797 20,255 81,710 3,641,279
1,994,246 6,974,547 59,129 . 9,259,610
3,031,888 14,338,965 109,531 18,871,164
938,533 3,172,623 31,777 . 4,241,169
1,495,217 5,217,511 43,243 . 6,905,286
631,404 2,271,316 15,943 - 2,987,682
- - . 144,091 1,525,522
- . - 71,051 1,508,482
- - - 2,737 88,261
408,715 1,483,052 9,731 . 1,046,262
6 18 . 24
(6} (18} - {24)
$ 10,083,272 $ 36,741,544 $ 285,001 $ 313,943 $ 51,767,006
S 3,852 $ 9073 &4 $ . $ 13,357
41,161 226,191 1,070 . 273,451
) - . . 1
408,715 1,483,052 9,734 . 1,946,262
$ 453728 $ 1,718,316 $ 10,866 $ - § 2,233,072
$ 9,630,544 $ 135023228 $ 274,228 $ 313,943 $ 49,534,024
$ 9616517 $ 34810222  § 274,728 $ 313,943 $ 46,206,548
23,027 213,006 (503) . 238,714
. . - - 3,088,761
$ 9,639,544 $ 35023228  § 274,226 $ 313,943 $ 49,534,024




Michigan

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
PENSION (AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT) TRUST FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Thousands)

STATE
EMPLOYEES'
DEFERRED LEGISLATIVE STATE POLICE
COMPENSATION RETIREMENT RETIREMENT
FUNDS FUND FUND
ADDITIONS
Contributions:;
From participants $ 165,962 $ 380 $ 1,463
From employers 4,848 3,348 44,646
From other plans 2,852 - -
Investment income:
Net appreciation (depreciation) In fair value of investments (688,756) (24,579} (167,724)
Interest, dividends, and cther 203,532 5,694 31,457
Securities lending income - - 1,486
L.ess investment expense:
Investment activity expense . 518 1,648
Securities lending expense - - 1,368
Net investment income ({oss) (485,224} {19,402} (137,799)
Miscellaneous income 1,814 1,068 -
TFotal Additions {309,748) (14,606) {91,690}
DEDUCTIONS
Benelits paid to participants or beneficlaries 149,665 6,274 60,407
Medical, dental, and life insurance for retirants - 2,856 23,024
Refunds and transfers o other systems 466 12 -
Administrative expense 6,254 245 299
Total Deductions 156,384 9,487 83,730
Netincrease {decrease) (466,132) {24,093) {175,420}
Net assets held in trust for pension, postemployment health-care,
and other employee benefits - Beginning of fiscal year - restated 3,654,804 182,487 1,211,349
Net assets held in trust for pensfon, postemployment heaith-care,
and other employee hensfits - End of fiscal year $ 3,088,761 % 168,393 $ 1,035,028
Reconclliation of net Increase in assels;
Net increase (decrease) in assets held In frust for pension benefits $ - $ (25,144) $ (174,243)
Net increase (decrease) in assets held in trust for postemployment benelits - 1,050 {1,177)
Net increass (decrease) in assets hald in trust for other employee bensfils (466,132) - -
Total net increase (decrease) 3 (466,132) $ {24,093) % {175,420}
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STATE
EMPLOYEES'
STATE PUBLIC SCHOOL DEFINED TOTALS
EMPLOYEES' EMPLOYEES' JUDGES' CONTRIBUTION

RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT SEPTEMBER 30,

FUND FUND FUND FUND 2001
$ 9,135 $ 410,033 $ 2,650 $ 15,211 $ 604,833
361,926 1,158,197 - 41,278 1,614,243
; . . 21 2,873
{1,847,999) (5,574,288) {40,547) (68,017) (8,111,810)
299,173 1,058,618 9,795 13,352 1,621,621
13,564 49,219 323 - 64,692
15,372 53,350 270 - 71,159
12,488 45,312 297 - 59,465
(1,263,120} (4,665,114) (30,996) (54,666) (6,556,321)
2 138 - 113 3,134
(892,058) (2,096,746) (28,346) 1,956 (4,331,238)
478,525 1,890,812 15,793 22,831 2,624,308
248,246 456,257 505 - 730,990
92 19,008 976 2 21,455
4,147 58,683 500 914 71,041
731,010 2,425,661 17,775 23,747 3,447,794
(1,623,068) {5,422,407) (46,120) (21,791) (7,779,032)
11,262,612 40,445,634 320,346 335,734 57,313,056
$ 9,639,544 $ 35,023,228 $ 274,226  $ 313,943 $ 49,534,024
$ (1,631416) $ (5502,118) § (45961) % (21,791} $  (7,400,673)
8,347 79,712 (160) . 87,773
- - . - (466,132)
$ (1623088 $ (5422407 $ (46,1200  $ {21,791} $  (7,779,032)
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i

PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

ESCHEATS FUND

The Escheats Fund operates under the authority of P.A. 29 of
19895 and is used to account for unclaimed property escheated to
the State, Al property, including any Income or increment derived
from the property, is subject lo the custody of (escheated to) the
State when ceriain criteria contained within the Act are mel.
Proceeds of the fund pay the administrative costs and prompl
claims allowed under the Act. The administrator transfers all
remaining proceeds received under this Act to the General Fund.

GIFI\;I'S, BEQUESTS, AND DEPOSITS [INVESTMENT
FUND

This fund was administratively established to account for gifts,
bequests, and deposits donated or entrusted to the State. Gils
and donations to the State may only be expended when
appropriated by the Legisialure and in accordance with any
applicable exiernatl restrictions, This fund eamns interest quarterly
for its share of the equily in the Slate Treasurer's Common Cash
pool.

HOSPITAL PATIENTS' TRUST FUND

Public Act 258 of 1974 established this fund to account for funds
of palients receiving services In State hospitals. The Department
of Community Heallh, in conjunction with the State Treasury, acts
as the trustee of this fund, This fund eams interest quartery for
its share of the equity in the State Treasurer's Common Cash
pool. The Department of Community Health distributes interest on
a monthly basis to patlents meeting minimum balance
requirements,

FEDERAL HOUSING  ADMINISTRATION  {FHA)
MORTGAGES ESCROW FUND

This fund was administratively created, as required by FHA
regulations, t0 account for escrow deposits held to provide for
payment of taxes, insurance, and property maintenance for
morigage investments held by certain State pension funds.

MICHIGAN EDUCATION SAVINGS PROGRAM

Public Act 161 of 2000 established the Michigan Education
Savings Program {MESP) as an entity within the Department of
Treasury. MESP is a college-tuition savings plan that is designed
to collect and invest deposits made by contributors, for purposes
of financing tuition on behalf of future students. Investment
earnings, heid in trust by MESP, are Federal and State tax-
deferred unlil the student is ready to atlend college. The Federal
government and the Slale both offer tax deductions for
conlributions made each year.

WORKERS' DIiSABILITY COMPENSATION TRUST
FUNDS

This fund was administratively created to comply with court
orders for bankrupt employers 1o pay obligations due under the
Michigan Workers' Disability Compensation Acl.
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
{In Thousands)
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ASSETS

Cash
Equity in commeon cash
Recelvables:
Interest and dividends
Investments at fair value:
Short-term investments
Bonds, notes, mortgages, and preferred stock
Common stock
Mutual funds
Pooled investment funds
Cther current assels

Total Assels
LIABILITIES

Warrants outstanding
Accounts payable and other liabilities

Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS

Net assets held in trust for other purposes

GIFTS, BEQUESTS,

AND DEPOSITS HOSPITAL
ESCHEATS INVESTMENT PATIENTS'

FUND FUND TRUST FUND
% - 8 3 $ 29
21,060 24,030 377
. a73 .
. 14,289 ]

. 85

. 6
1,275 3,516 .
$ 22335  § 42301 § 405
$ 1026  $ 1021 $ 48
274 4573 7
$ 1300 § 5594 & &3
$ 21034  § 36,707  $ a53
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FEDERAL HOUSING  MICHIGAN WORKERS' TOTALS
ADMINISTRATION  EDUCATION DISABILITY —_—
MORTGAGES SAVINGS COMPENSATION  SEPTEMBER 30,
ESCROW FUND PROGRAM TRUST FUNDS 2001

$ - $ 355 $ - s 386

720 - 1,325 47,511

3 - . 376

164 . - 184

- - - 14,289

- . - 85

51,314 - 51,319

4,437 - 4,437

339 . 5,130

$ 887 $ 56,444 $ 1,325 $ 123,697

$ 108 $ - $ - $ 2,202

- 464 - 5,318

$ 108 $ 464 $ - $ 7,519

$ 779 $ 55,980 $ 1,325 $ 116,178

181



Michigan

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Thousands)

GIFTS, BEQUESTS

AND DEPOSITS HOSPITAL
ESCHEATS INVESTMENTS PATIENTS'
FUND FUND TRUST FUND
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
From parlicipants $ - $ - ] -
From clients - 34,430 2,865
From gifts, bequests, and endowmants - 177 -
investment income:
Net appreciation {deprecialion) in fair value of investments - 55 -
Interest, dividends, and other - 1,636 34
Less investment expense:
Invesiment activity expense - -
Net investment income {loss}) - 1,592 34
Escheated property 33,492 - -
Miscellaneous incoms - 1,086
Transfers from other funds 740 -
Total Additions 34,232 37,284 2,899
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits paid to participanis or beneliciaries - - -
Refunds and transfers to other systems - - -
‘Amounts distributed to clients or third parties - 34,038 3,341
Administrative expense - 3 -
Transfers to other funds 34,904 2,176 -
Total Deductions 34,904 36,217 3,341
Net increase {decrease) {672) 1,078 {443)
Net assets held in trust for others - Beginning of fiscal year - restated 21,706 35,629 795
Net asssts held in trust for others - End of fiscal year $ 21,034 8 38,707 353
Reconciliation of net increase in assets:
Net increase (decreass) in asseis held in trust for other purposes  $ (672} $ 1,078 {443)
Total net Increase (decreass) $ {672) $ 1,078 (443)
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FEDERAL HOUSING MICHIGAN WORKERS' TOTALS
ADMINISTRATION EDUCATION DISABILITY i -
MORTGAGES SAVINGS COMPENSATION  SEPTEMBER 30,
ESCROW FUND PROGRAM TRUST FUNDS 20014

$ - $ 62,849 $ - $ 62,849

- - - 37,304

- 177

- {6,704) . (6,649)

7 843 68 2,489

- 119 - 119

7 {5,981) 68 (4,280)

. . - 33,492

58 1 1,145

. - 740

65 56,860 68 131,428

. 888 - 888

- 1 - 1

508 - - 37,887

- - 5 8

- 505 37,585

508 889 510 76,369

(442) 55,980 (442) 55,059

1,221 - 1,767 61,119

% 779 $ 55,980 $ 1,325 $ 116,178

% (442) $ 55,980 $ {442) $ 55,059

5 (442) $ 55,980 $ {442 $ 55,059
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AGENCY FUNDS

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS DEPOSITS FUNDS

This fund was administratively created as of QOctober 1, 1988, to
account for security deposits held by the State Treasurer on
behalf of banks which operates trust depariments. Deposits are
in the form of securities or other acceptable assets. Public Act
482 of 2000 repealed ihe requirement of pledge securities as a
condition to exercising trust powers, Therefore, this fund was
closed in fiscal year 2000-2001.

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY DEPQOSITS FUND

This fund was established to account for deposits for which the
Department of Environmental Quality has legal custody as
provided by various statutes,

INSURANCE CARRIER DEPOSITS FUND

This fund was administratively established to account for deposits
held by the State Treasurer on behalf of insurance carriers who
are licensed or authorized to write Insurance In the State and are
required by P.A. 218 of 1956, as amended, to provide such
deposits, All deposits are in the form of various securities and
other acceptable assets.

SEQTE TREASURER'S ESCROW AND PAYING AGENT
FUND

This fund was administratively created and is used to account for
investments held in escrow by the Slate Treasurer as fiscal agent
for hospitals, which have defeased Michigan State Hospital
Finance Authority (MSHFA) bonds.

CHILD SUPPORT COLLECTION FUND

This fund was administralively established to account for the
activity of the Michigan State Disbursement Unit (MISDU).
MISDU, administered by the Family Independence Agency, was
created lo provide a single location within the State for the receipt
and disbursement of child support payments.
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

AGENCY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
{In Thousands)

ASSETS

Cash

Equity in common cash

Investments at fair value:
Short-tenm investments
Bonds, notes, morigages,

and preferred stock
Other current assels
Other noncurrent assels

Total Assels
LIABILITIES
Warrants ouistanding
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Amounts due to other funds

Other long-term liabilities

Total Liabilities

STATE
ENVIRONMENTAL  INSURANGE TREASURER'S TOTALS
QUALITY CARRIER ESCROW AND  CHILD SUPPORT
DEPOSITS DEPOSITS PAYING AGENT COLLECTION SEPTEMBER 30,
FUND FUND FUND FUND 2001

$ . - 3 1,162 $ 6,773 $ 7,935

3.407 1,018 - - 4,425

17,174 - 17,174

- - 103,421 - 103,421

- - 4,166 172 4,329

- 349,587 - - 349,587

$ 3,407 $ 350,805 $ 125,914 $ 6,946 $ 486,872

$ - 3 145 $ - - $ 145

3,407 590 23,222 6,731 33,850

- - - 215 215

- 349,871 102,691 - 452,662

$ 3,407 $ 350,605 $ 125,914 $ 6,946 $ 486,872
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES - AGENCY FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

(In Thousands}

BALANCE BALANCE
OCTOBER 1, SEPTEMBER 30,
2000 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2001
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
DEPOSITS FUND
ASSETS
Other noncurrent assets 3 1,600 3 - $ 1,500 $ -
Total Assets $ 1,500 $ - 3 1,500 $ -
LIABILITIES
Other long-term Habilities $ 1,500 $ - $ 1,500 $ -
Total Liabilities 3 1,500 $ - $ 1,500 $ -
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
DEPCSITS FUND
ASSETS
Equity in coramon cash $ 2,440 $ 1,469 3 6802 $ 3,407
Total Assets $ 2,440 $ 1,469 $ 502 $ 3,407
LIABILITIES
Accounls payable and other liabilities 3 2,440 $ 1,469 $ 502 $ 3,407
Tolai Liabilities $ 2,440 $ 1,469 $ 502 $ 3,407
INSURANCE CARRIER
DEPOSITS FUND
ASSETS
Equity In common cash $ 2,578 $ 48,665 5 60,225 S 1,018
Other noncurrent assets 357,306 110,390 118,199 349,687
Total Assets $ 359,975 $ 159,055 $ 168,424 $ 350,605
LIABILITIES
Warrants oulstanding $ 4 $ 141 $ - $ 145
Accounts payable and other liabilities 2,291 51,431 53,133 590
Chther long-term liabilities 357,680 110,390 118,199 349,871
Total Liabifities 3 369,975 $ 161,962 $ 171,332 $ 350,605
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BALANCE BALANCE
OCTOBER 1, SEPTEMBER 30,
2000 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2001
STATE TREASURER'S
ESCROW AND PAYING AGENT FUND
ASSETS
Cash § 1,281 30,656 $ 30,775 $ 1,162
Equity in common cash - 44 44 -
Investments at fair vaiue:
Short-term investments 16,628 18,350 18,804 17,174
Bonds, notes, mortgages,
and preferred stock 120,303 3,039 19,921 103,421
Other current assets 4,627 13,067 13,638 4,156
Total Assels $ 141,840 65,155 $ 81,082 $ 125,914
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 22,299 30,353 $ 29,429 $ 23,222
Other long-term liabilities 119,542 19,677 36,528 102,691
Total Liabilities $ 141,840 50,030 $ 85,957 $ 125,914
CHILD SUPPORT
COLLECTION FUND
ASSETS
Cash $ 200 605,789 3 509,216 $ 6,773
Other current assets - 172 - 172
Total Assels $ 200 605,961 $ 599,215 $ 6,946
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other liabllities $ 180 606,027 $ 589,486 $ 6,731
Amounts due o other funds 10 221 17 215
Total Liabilities 5 200 606,248 $ 599,502 $ 6,946
TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash $ 1,481 636,445 % 628,990 $ 7,935
Equity In common cash 5,019 50,177 50,771 4,425
Investments at fair value;
Short-term investments 15,629 18,350 16,804 17,174
Bonds, notes, mortgages,
and prefarred stock 120,303 3,039 18,921 103,421
Other current assets 4,627 13,239 13,638 4,329
Other noncurrent assets 358,896 110,390 119,699 349,587
Total Asgels $ 605,955 831,640 $ 850,723 $ 486,872
LIABILITIES
Warrants outstanding $ 4 141 $ - $ 145
Accounts payable and other liabilities 27.218 689,280 682,548 33,950
Amounts due to other funds 10 221 17 215
Other long-term liabilities 478,721 130,067 156,227 452,562
Totai Liabilities $ 505,955 819,709 $ 838,793 $ 486,872
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COMPONENT UNITS — AUTHORITIES

MICHIGAN HIGHER  EDUCATION  FACILITIES

AUTHORITY

Public Act 285 of 1869, as amended, authorized the creation of
the Michigan Higher Educalion Faciliiies Authority (MBEFA) for
the purpose of assisting private nonprofit institutions of higher
education in financing their facilities. MHEFA consists of an
eleven-member commission, nine are appointed by the Governor
with the advice and consent of the Senate and two are ex officio
{the Superintendent of Public Instruction and Director of the
Departiment of Management and Budget). Financing for capital
improvements is provided by issuance of limiled obligation
revenue bonds, however these bonds do not constitute an
obligation of the State or MHEFA, therefore no liabililies have
been recorded. Annual senvice fees to higher sducation
institutions finance MHEFA’s administrative operations.

MACKINAC BRIDGE AUTHORITY

Public Act 21 of 1950 created the Mackinac Bridge Authority
{MBA). Public Act 214 of 1952, as amended, empowered MBA to
construct and operate a bridge bstween the lower and upper
peninsulas of Michigan. Fares and eamings on invesimenis
finance the operation and malntenance of the bridge. State
statutes require that MBA continue charging bridge tolls and
repay State funds for all the subsidies provided in prior years.

MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND

The Michigan Strategic Fund (MSF) is a public body corporation
and politic created by P.A. 270 of 1984 to help diversily the
economy of the State and to provide for econemic development,
primarily by assisting business enterprises to obtain additional
sources of financing, Executive Order 1999-1, as amended,
translerred all of the eccnomic development functions of the
former Department of Commerce and the Michigan Jobs
Commission to MSF, The order further placed MSF as an
autonomous entity in the Depariment of Management and
Budget. MSF is govemed by a board of nine members,
conslsting of the directors of the State Departments of Consumer
and Industry Services and Treasury plus seven members
appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of the
Senate.

MICHIGAN STATE HOSPITAL FINANCE AUTHORITY

The Michigan State Hospital Finance Authority {(MSHFA} was
organized under P.A. 38 of 1969, as amended, to lend money to
nonprofit, nonpublic hospitals and health-care corporations for
capital improvements or debt refinancing. The Act also
empowers MSHFA to sell bonds and to enter into loan and other
agreements to obtain the necessary funds for such loans.
MSHFA is comprised of seven members including a chairperson
and four public members appointed by the Governor with the
advice and consent of the Senate, and two members ex officio
{the State Treasurer and the Director of the Department of
Community Health). Some of MSHFA's revenue and morigage
bonds have been defeased by the various borrowsrs by placing
preceads of new bonds in an escrow with the State Treasurer or
frustee as escrow agent. Such defeased bonds and related
investments are reporied In the State Treasurer's Escrow and
Paying Agent Fund.

MSHFA no longer peiforms trustee, fiscal agent, registrar, and
paying agent junctions for bonds payable. The bonds and related
assets have been transferred to financial institutions' irust
departments, Since these obligations are, in substance, debis of
other entities, MSHFA does not reflect the liabilitles, assets,
revenues and sxpenditures related to these bonds in its financial
statements.

MICHIGAN HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENT LOAN
AUTHORITY

Public Act 222 of 1975, as amended, sauthorized the
establishment of the Michigan Higher Education Student Loan
Authority {MHESLA) tc make loans to qualified students (or their
parents} attending pariicipating Institutions of higher education.
MHESLA may issue revenue-dedicated debt in principal amounis
necessary to provide funds for achieving its purpose. A board
comprised of the same members as Michigan Highar Education
Assistance Authority govens MHESLA. The Govemor, with the
consent of the Senate, appoints the 15 members. The Slate
Treasurer, an ex officio member, serves as chairman of the
board.
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MICHIGAN HIGHER EDUCATION  ASSISTANCE
AUTHORITY

Public Act 77 of 1960, as amended, created the Michigan Higher
Educalion Assistance Authority (MHEAA). 1t is governed by a 16-
member board, appolnted by the Goveror, with the advice and
consent of the Senate. MHEAA is empowered to guaraniee
100% of principal and interest on loans lo persons (or their
parents) attending eligible post-secondary educalional institulions
in Micihigan and lo administer scholarship and grant programs in
accordance with State laws. The federa! government reimburses
MHEAA for losses on purchased loans at varying percentages
depending upon rates of defaults. Revenues consist of recovery
of loan losses, federal reimbursement, loan guarantee fees, and
investment income.

MACKINAC ISLAND STATE PARK COMMISSION

Public Act 355 of 1927, as amended, established the Mackinac
island State Park Commission. The Govemor, with the advice
and consent of the Senate, appoinls the seven-member
commission. The Commission is responsible for the
management of the Mackinac Island and Michilimackinac State
Parks and has the authority to issue revenue-dedicaled bonds.

STATE BAR OF MIGHIGAN

The State Bar of Michigan is an association of lawyers who are
licensed to practice in Michigan. It is organized as a public body
corporate. Hs financiat support comes solely from member dues
and income from member services, The State Bar's budget is
ihe responsibility of its Board of Commissiongrs, and it is not
subject to State of Michigan appropriation precedures.

MICHIGAN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION

The Michigan Economic Development Corporation {(MEDC},
under Article VI, Section 28 of the Michigan State Constitution of
1963 and P.A. of 1967, is a public body corporation, Created by
a ten-year contract {inter-local agreement) between participating
locat economic development corporations formed under P.A. 338
of 1974 and the Michigan Strategic Fund, MEDC is a separate
legal entity whose purpose is to stimulate, coordinate and
advance economic development in the State. Under the terms of
the agreement, the govemance of MEDC resides in an executive
committee of 17 members appointed lo elght-year, staggered
terms.
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COMBEINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
AUTHORITIES

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Thousands)

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash
Equity in common cash
Amounts due from componsnt units
Amounts due from primary government
Amounts due from federal government
Amounts due from local units
Inventories
Investments
Other current assels

Total Current Assels

Restricted assets;
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Morigages and loans recelvable
Investments
Capital assets:
Land and other non-depreciable assets

Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable assels

Less accumulated depreciation
Infrastructure
Construction in progress

Tolal capilal assets
Cther noncurrent assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Warrants outstanding
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Amounts dug to component units
Amounts due to primary government
Bonds and notes payable
Interest payable
Deferred rovenue
Current portion of other long-term obligations

Total Current Liabilities

Bonds and notes payahble
Noncurrent portion of other long-term obligations

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested In capital assels, net of refated debt
Restricted for:
Construction and debt service
Other purposes
Unrestricted

Total Net Assels
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Michigan

MICHIGAN MICHIGAN
HIGHER HIGHER MACKINAC MICHIGAN TOTALS
EDUCATICN EDUCATION ISLAND STATE ECONOMIC
STUDENT LOAN ASSISTANCE STATE PARK BAR OF DEVELOPMENT  SEPTEMBER 390,
AUTHORITY AUTHORITY COMMISSION MICHIGAN CORPORATION 2004
% - $ 1,822 $ 419 $ 1,414 % 23,656 $ 28,596
- - - - 200,250 200,384
- - - - 5,208 5,208
410 9,752 474 - 11,007
- - - 62 7,361
- - - 2
- . 520 - - 520
- 5,538 - 2,957 3,654 35,362
114,826 1,406 74 526 10,120 133,780
115,236 18,617 1,487 4,897 243,040 422,311
114,058 - 985 - 13,888 128,931
100,200 - 3,026 - - 103,417
743,943 - . - 18,125 762,068
- . - - 77,408 83,982
337 381 - 843
- 8,590 11,745 15,563 43,230
- - {4,752} (4,171 (156) (11,582)
- - - - - 99,564
- - - - - 1,411
- - 4,176 7,954 15,407 133,465
11,150 - . - - 11,150
$ 1,084,587 $ 18,617 $ 9,673 $ 12,851 $ 367,868 $ 1,645,324
$ - $ 182 $ - % - 5 - $ 182
1,455 8,673 169 813 45,563 65,701
- - - - - 5,208
- - 88 - - 1,450
94,803 - 195 204 - 95,293
8,177 - 16 - - B,193
- - - 1,455 51 1,854
2,313 - - - - 2,313
106,839 8,755 467 2,472 45,614 180,283
834,472 - 2,441 4,098 - 841,010
23,958 474 - - 16,142 51,474
$ 975,268 $ 9,229 $ 2,908 $ 8,570 % 61,756 % 1,072,767
$ - $ - $ 1,539 $ 3,652 $ 15,407 $ 126,527
9,039 - 3,147 - - 12,186
- - 1,384 - . 1,384
100,280 9,288 695 2,629 250,705 432,459
$ 109,319 $ 9,288 $ 6,765 $ 6,282 $ 306,112 $ 572,657
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Michigan

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS - AUTHORITIES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

(In Thousands)

PROGRAM REVENUES

OPERATING CAPITAL NET
_ CHARGES FOR GRANTS/ GRANTS/ {EXPENSE)
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS REVENUE
Michigan Higher Education
Facilities Authority $ 04 3 123 $ - $ - $ 20
Mackinac Bridge Authority 16,125 10,443 - - (5,682}
Michigan Strategic Fund 171,522 1,613 41,195 - {128,715)
Michigan State Hospital Finance Autherity 1,232 1,059 . - (173)
Michigan Higher Education
Student Loan Authority 63,566 64,485 11,364 - 12,283
Michigan Higher Education
Assgistance Authority 153,229 24,741 132,138 - 3,650
Mackinac Island State Park Commission 5,653 3,800 a2 - {1,970)
State Bar of Michigan 8,993 8,892 - - (102}
Michigan Economic
Development Corporation 160,179 - 129,965 - {30,214)
Total $ 580,603 $ 114,956 $ 314,743 % - S {150,004)
General revenues:
Interest and investment eamings 6,354
Payments from State of Michigan 117,159
Other 20,186
Tolal general revenues 143,700
Change in net assets {7,205)
Net assets -- beginning - restaled 579,762
Net assets -- ending $ B72557
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COMPONENT UNITS — STATE UNIVERSITIES

The State has thirteen legally separate public universities, ten of
which are included In this report as component units and three of
which are excluded. Included are the ten universities whose
governing boards are appolnled by the Govemor and for which
the State is legally accountabls, as prescribed by GASB
Statement No. 14. Excluded are those three that have goveming
boards whose members are elected by the voters and, therefore,
considered separate special purpose govemments. The three
that are excluded are the largest public universities: Michigan
Slale University, Univarsity of Michigan, and Wayne State
University. Also excluded are the public community colteges, for
which local units of govemment are legally accountable.

The information presented in this report for the ten universities is
based upon their separately issued financial statements for the
fiscal year ended on June 30, 2001, The univarsities include
Central Michigan University and Westemn Michigan Universily
presented as major component units and the folfowing non-major
component units: Eastern Michigan University, Ferris State
University, Grand Valley State University, Lake Superior State
Universily, Michigan Technological University, Northem Michigan
University, Oakland University, and Saginaw Valley Slale
University.
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Michigan

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

STATE UNIVERSITIES

JUNE 30, 2001

{In Thousands)

GRAND LAKE
EASTERN FERRIS VALLEY SUPERICR
MICHIGAN STATE STATE STATE
UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY
ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash $ 19,350 $ 23,298 $ 12,671 $ 5,028

Amounts due from componegnt unils - - 106 -

Amounts due from primary government 20,145 12,426 22,239 2,855

Amounts due from federal government 1,316 192 21 377

Amounts due from local units - - - -

Inventories 6565 1,077 1,795 849

Investments 28,199 21,781 36,987 -

Other current assets 18,737 3,638 14,419 857

Total Current Assets 88,303 62,308 88,238 9,765
Reslricted assels:

Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,016 -
Monrlgages and loans receivable 9,304 16,911 8,044 2,267
Invastments 27 27.241 56,547 17,180
Capital assets;

Land and other non-depreciable assets 10,580 3,389 19,780 7,885

Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable assets 397,728 301,639 313,292 108,911

Less accumulated depreciation (161,503) (123,853} {80,688) {49,900)

Infrastructure 24,241 6,058 - 1,205

Conslructlon in progress 15,129 3,765 36,499 4,318

Total capital assets 286,184 190,998 288,882 72,419
Other noncurrent assets 1,212 2,081 12,131 -
Total Assets $ 385,031 $ 299,540 % 454,858 % 101,632
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and other liabifities $ 23,713 $ 11,630 $ 32,678 $ 4,696

Amounts due to primary govemment 715 619 125 165

Bends and notes payable 4,627 1,905 4,387 659

Interest payable 492 1,471 1,095 207

Deferred revenue 6,090 3,724 7,798 876

Total Current Liabilities 35,638 19,349 46,084 6,604
Deferred revenue 874 826 - -
Bonds and notes payable 85,061 77,591 79,028 32,831
Noncurrent portion of other long-term obligations 6,640 12,083 2,429 2,692
Totat Liabilities $ 138,212 $ 109,849 $ 127,541 8 42,127
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt % 180,379 $ 130,607 3 208,352 $ 49,262
Restricted for:

Education 14,362 32,014 42,175 5,697

Construction and debl service 19,072 16 16,405 1,673

Other purposes - - - 2,598
Unrestricled 23,004 27,080 60,386 274

Total Net Assels $ 246,818 $ 189,691 $ 327,318 $ 59,504
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SAGINAW TOTALS
MICHIGAN NORTHERN VALLEY
TECHNOLOGIGAL MICHIGAN OAKLAND STATE JUNE 30,
UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY 2001

$ . $ 10,073 $ 13,804 $ 22,843 $ 107,966
140 31 49 - 326

10,570 14,663 9,733 12,074 104,704

4,986 358 1,470 332 6,053

- 610 - . 610

1,480 1,368 320 204 7,648

- 744 - - 87,711

5,678 4,870 7,187 2,443 57,329

19,854 33,417 32,563 37.896 372,346

- - - - 1,016

10,254 6,540 . 110 53,429

8,601 18,396 47,360 - 175,362

8,793 3,762 4,325 1,777 60,301

306,597 204,247 275,866 189,620 2,097,899
(143,015) (76,774) (102,373 {69,916) (808,022)

. 14,224 . . 45,728

72 20,589 7,753 31,153 119,277

172,447 166,047 185,571 152,634 1,515,183

- - 2,754 - 18,179

$ 211,156 $ 224,400 $ 268,248 $ 190,640 $  2,135505
$ 15,040 $ 13,986 $ 16,311 $ 10,501 $ 128,554
282 288 261 . 3,166

273 1,460 1,505 955 15,771

17 - - - 3,281

2,627 3,198 7,447 2,739 34,500

18,938 18,931 25524 14,185 185,263

; . . . 1,689

11,675 41,765 43,725 52,045 433,721

941 8,207 4874 1,759 37,516

$ 31,554 $ 66,993 $ 73,023 $ 67,999 $ 658,199
$ 160,499 $ 122,822 $ 136,179 $ 105,706 $ 1,103,807
14,068 10,610 22,230 4,425 145,581

6,476 - - . 43,637

- - - - 2,598

(1,442) 23,975 35,916 12,510 181,683

$ 179,801 $ 157,407 $ 194,325 $ 122,641 $ 1,477,308
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Michigan

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS - STATE UNIVERSITIES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001
{In Thousands)

PROGRAM REVENUES

CPERATING CAPITAL NET

CHARGES FOR GRANTS/ GRANTS/ {(EXPENSE}

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS REVENUE
Eastern Michigan University % 231,120 $ 116,230 $ 27,948 $ 8,550 $ (78,392)
Ferris State University 168,111 82,113 13,725 21,697 {40,575)
Grand Valtey State University 173,335 102,057 14,692 19,079 {37,507}
Lake Superior State University 40,664 17,846 4,264 2,846 {15,708)
Michigan Technological University 161,157 67,358 33,420 3,346 (67,033)
Northem Michigan University 115,387 46,180 13,242 2,263 (53,702)
Oakland University 149,763 77,263 19,944 4,955 (47,591)
Saginaw Vallsy State University 69,966 33,906 8,986 20 {27,044)
Total $ 1,009,492 $ 532,053 3 136,231 $ 62,756 $  (367,552)

Gieneral revenues:

Intgrest and investment eamings 11,130

Payments from Slate of Michigan 455,283

Cther 12,300

Total general revenues 478,713

Change in net assets 111,161

Net assels -- beginning - restated 1,368,144
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Michigan

COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Thousands)

SPECIAL
GENERAL REVENUE
SOURCE TOTAL FUND FUNDS
TAXES
Sales % 6,352,306 3 1,647,193 % 4,705,113
Personal income 7,282,173 5,326,846 1,955,327
Single business 2,022,882 2,022,882 -
Use 1,333,807 889,071 444,536
State education {property} 1,489,662 - 1,489,552
Reatl eslale iransfer 252,894 - 252,894
Tobacco products 596,082 213,019 383,063
Beer and wine 50,357 50,357 -
Liguor 86,234 57,829 28,404
Casino gaming wagering 75,415 - 75415
Horse race wagering 12,620 12,520 -
Intangibles* (334) (334) -
Estaie and inheriance 155,469 . 155,469 -
Telgphone and telegraph company 152,523 152,523 -
Commercial mobite radio service 28,756 28,756 -
Insurance company 200,756 200,756 -
Motor vehicle weight 778,201 297 777,803
Gasaoline 934,399 - 934,399
Aviation fuet 6,706 - 6,706
Diese! fusl 133,658 - 133,658
Gas and oil severance 61,804 61,804 -
industrial facilities 131,261 - 131,261
Convention hotel accommodation 17,477 17,477 -
Airport parking 17,059 17,059 -
Penalties and interest 157,377 157,377 -
Other 75,890 2,160 73,730
22,405,023 11,013,063 11,391,961
FROM FEDERAL AGENCIES .
Department of Health and Human Services 6,284,070 6,284,070 -
Department of Education 836,585 687,958 148,627
Department of Agriculture 955,345 955,345 -
Department of Labor 263,286 147,748 115,538
Department of Housing and Urban Development 5,039 5,039 -
Envirenmental Protection Agency 36,807 38,807 -
Depariment of Energy 11,106 11,106 -
Depariment of Transportation 1,005,561 17,0636 988,526
Department of Intericr 18,176 15,671 2,605
Department of Defense 20,323 20,323 -
Depariment of Justice 81,222 81,222 -
GCther 48,834 48,539 204
9,666,353 8,310,763 1,255,580
FROM LOCAL AGENCIES
Counties 108,031 89,243 18,788
Cities, villages, and townships 16,856 1,123 16,733
Colleges and universities 179 163 17
School districts 1,179 1,179 -
Mutti-leve! governmentat units 1,277 - 1,277
Other : 100,474 14,969 85,505
227,996 106,676 121,320
SPECIAL MEDICAID REIMBURSEMENTS 1,155,374 1,155,374 -
1,155,374 1,165,374 -
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SPEGIAL
GENERAL REVENUE
SOURCE TOTAL FUND FUNDS
FROM SERVICES
Charges for furnishing vehicle driver records 8 29,614 $ 29,614 $ -
Revenue for patient, ward, and inmale care 36,162 36,162 -
Other 49,570 48,869 700
115,346 114,645 700
FROM LICENSES AND PERMITS
Liquor retaiters’, manufacturerss', and wholesalers’
licenses 12,065 12,065 -
Motor vehicle operators' and chauffeurs' licenses 45,892 32,148 13,744
Examination fees - financial inslitutions and
insurance industry 21,842 21,842 -
Concession and privilege fees - State parks 988 - 988
Motor vehicle related 69,429 4,758 54,671
Hunling, fishing, and trapping licenses 48,009 - 48,009
Public utility assessment fees 16,309 16,308 -
Consumer and Industry Services licenses and permits 74,186 62,713 11,473
Aulo repair facilities and mechanics jicenses and fees 4,337 4,337 -
Corporation franchise fees 12,458 12,459 -
Other 96,139 53,101 43,038
391,655 219,732 171,923
MISCELLANEOQUS
Income from investments 217,718 71,634 146,184
Tobacco setilement procesds 261,247 . - 261,247
Various fines, fees, and assessments 71,762 45,292 26,461
Court fines, fees, and assessments 93,924 87,004 6,920
Oil and gas royallies, fees, assignments, and rentals 20,444 11,674 8,770
Environmental pollution setifements 17,570 5,821 11,760
State Fair revenue 5,222 5,222 -
Child support 26,629 26,629 -
Other 566,775 258,737 308,038
1,281,281 511,912 769,369
Total Revenues 35,143,027 21,432,165 13,710,863
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Proceeds from bond Issues and bond anticipation notes 854,240 - 854,240
Capitai lease acquisitions 23,014 23,014 -
Transfers from other funds:
From Liquor Purchase Revolving Fund 127,383 127,393 -
From State Lottery Fund 697,386 10,377 587,009
From Escheats Fund 34,904 34,904 -
From other funds 1,924,401 454,375 1,470,026
Totat Other Financing Sources 3,561,338 650,063 2,911,276
Total Revenue and Other Financing
Sources (GAAP Basls) $ 38,704,365 $ 22,082227 $ 16,622,138

* Negalive amount represents refunds in excess of revenues coltected.
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Michigan

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
GENERAL FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Thousands)

GENERAL RESTRICTED
SOURCE TOTAL PURPOSE REVENUES
TAXES
Sales $ 1,647,193 $ 76,142 3 1,571,051
Personal income 5,326,846 4,766,160 570,687
Single business 2,022,882 2,021,363 1,519
Use 889,071 887,513 1,558
Tobaceo products 213,019 146,201 66,818
Beer and wine 50,357 50,357 -
Liquor 57,829 29,345 28,485
Horse race wagering 12,520 2 12,518
Intangibles* {334) {334) -
Estate and inheritance 165,469 155,466 2
Telephone and lelegraph company 162,523 152,623 -
Commercial mobile radio service 28,756 - 28,756
insurance company 200,756 200,739 17
Motor vehicle weight 297 - 297
Gas and oil severance 61,804 60,139 1,666
Convention hotel accommodation 17,477 - 17,477
Airport parking 17,059 - 17,059
Penalties and interest 167,377 150,150 7.227
Other 2,160 1,784 376
11,013,063 8,687,550 2,325,513
FROM FEDERAL AGENCIES
Department of Health and Human Services 6,284,070 15,166 6,268,914
Depariment of Education 687,958 1,668 686,300
Department of Agriculture 955,345 1,328 954,017
Department of Labor 147,748 846 146,902
Depariment of Housing and Urban Development 5,039 187 4,852
Environmental Protection Agency 36,807 3,622 33,185
Department of Energy 11,106 96 11,010
Dgpartment of Transportation 17,036 369 16,666
Department of Interior 16,571 221 15,360
Department of Defense 20,323 25 20,287
Department of Justice 81,222 127 81,004
Other 48,539 997 47,542
8,310,763 24 633 8,286,131
FROM LOCAL AGENCIES
Counties 89,243 6 89,237
Cities, villages, and townships 1,123 1,059 64
Colleges and universities 163 - 163
School districts 1,179 - 1,179
Other 14,869 702 14,267
106,676 1,767 104,809
SPECIAL MEDICAID REIMBURSEMENTS 1,155,374 - 1,155,374
’ 1,155,374 - 1,155,374
FROM SERVICES
Charges for vehicle driver records 28,614 8 29,606
Revenue for patient, ward, and inmate care 36,162 172 35,880
Other 48,869 4,580 44,279
114,645 4,770 109,875
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Michigan

GENERAL RESTRIGTED
SOURCE TOTAL PURPOSE REVENUES
FROM LICENSES AND PERMITS
Liquor retailers’, manufacturers', and wholesalers'
licenses $ 12,065 $ - 3 12,065
Motor vehicle operators' and chauffeurs’ licenses 32,148 4,244 27,904
Examinalion fees - financial instituiions and
insurance industry 21,842 - 21,842
Motor vehicle related 4,758 571 4,188
Public utility assessment fees 16,309 - 16,308
Consumer and Industry Services licenses and permils 62,713 11,157 51,658
Auto repair facilities and mechanics licenses and fees 4,337 9 4,328
Corporation franchise fees 12,459 6,270 6,189
Other 53,101 1,251 51,850
219,732 23,502 196,230
MISCELLANEOUS
Income from investments 71,534 50,331 21,203
Various fines, fees, and assessments 45,292 1,588 43,693
Court fines, {egs, and assessments 87,004 4,849 82,155
Oil and gas royalties, fees, assignments, and rentals 11,674 (1,654) 13,328
Environmental pollution setilements 5,821 2,070 3,751
State Fair revenue 5,222 - 5,222
Chitd supporl 26,629 139 26,490
Other 258,737 85,886 172,850
511,912 143,221 368,691
Totat Revenues 21,432,165 8,885,441 12,546,723
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Capital lease acquisitions 23,014 - 23,014
Transfers from other funds:
From Liquor Purchase Revolving Fund 127,393 118,832 8,661
From State Lottery Fund 10,377 9,393 o84
From Escheats Fund 34,904 30,360 4,544
From other funds 454,375 370,444 83,931
Total Cther Financing Sources 650,063 529,029 121,033
Total Revenue and Other Financing
Sources (GAAP Basls) 22,082,227 9,414,411 12,667,757
BUDGETARY BASIS ADJUSTMENTS
Capilal lease acqulsitions {23,014) - {23,014)
Total Revenue and Other Financing Sources
{budgetary basis} $ 22,059,213 $ 9,414,471 $ 12,644,742

* Negalive amount represents refunds in excess of revenues collected.

203



Michigan

SOURCE AND DISPOSITION OF GENERAL FUND AUTHORIZATIONS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
(in Thousands}

204

BRANCH AND DEPARTMENT

Legislative Branch

Judicial Branch

Execulive Branch:
Agricullure
Attorney General
Career Development
Civil Rights
Civil Service
Colleges and Universities Granls
Community Health
Consumer and Indusley Services
Corrections
Education
Environmental Quality
Executive Office
Family Independence Agency
Managament and Budget
Military and Veterans Affairs
Natural Resources
State
State Police
Transportation
Treasury

Intrafund expenditure relmbursements

TOTAL

*Unused spending authority which does not Japse has been divided into two categories:

Timing differences are sublracled from Gross Spending Authority in order %o show an annualized Budget
that is comparable 10 the current year's Actual uses. Timing ditferences consist of unused authorizations
tor multi-year projects (capital outlay and work projects) and restricled revenues which were not available
for expendiiure in the current year because they had not been appropriated.

Restricted revenue balances authorized in the Variances category represent reslricted revenue carry-overs

that could have been used In the current period but were not.

** Appropriation revisions of $195.7 million were made in fiscal year 2000-2001 for capital outlay appropriations
that are now funded by the State Building Authoity. This resulted in reductions to "current legistative
approprialion” which totalled $9.8 biltion before the appropiiation revisions were recorded.

NOTE: This schedule was prepared on the Stalutory/Budgstary basls.

LESS: TIMING
DIFFERENCES®

RESTRICTED

CURRENT BUDGETARY UNEXPENDED  RESTRICTED REVENUE

LEGISLATIVE TRANSFERS BUDGETARY FROM REVENUE NOT

APPROPRIATION INAQUT ADJUSTMENT PHRIOR YEAR ADDITIONS AUTHORIZED
$ 153380 -5 245  $ 24988  $ 6,873 $ (47)
175,858 - - 15,940 56,483 {4,061}
51,795 - - 25,629 40,367 (8.940)
35,271 . - 749 20,317 {38)
33,279 . 541 11,236 402,254 (330)
14,267 . - 1,198 824 .
12,374 - . 1,904 20,261 {1.400)
2,007,917 - - 3,243 3,196 -
2,673,556 . 8,344 208,719 6,469,217 (457,084)
83,344 . . 70,590 159,751 {65,537}
1,619,601 - 49,692 57,147 (3,085)
420,769 . - 6,246 794,661 (4,195)
99,407 - 24 90,485 137,126 (95,132
5,651 - - 70 13 23)
1,216,744 - 28,750 57,927 2,399,287 (483)
197,269 - 1,517 463,559 116,332 {39,717)
41,648 . 10 5,749 53,251 {1,808)

53,679 . - 42,756 45,712 {15,826}
66,805 . - 22,937 110,731 16,004)
321,356 - . 47,752 102,302 {29,757)
21,300 - . 11,363 - )
159,974 - . 275,353 2,322,399 (269,121)

$ 9555019 § -8 39,601 $ 1528078 $ 13318500 $  (1.002,679)




Michigan

*BUDGET" *ACTUAL" “VARIANCES®
LESS: TIMING . RESTRICTED
GROSS DIFFERENCES" ENCUMBERED REVENUE
SPENDING MULTEYEAR  AS PRESENTED EXPENDED/ BALANCES BALANCES
AUTHORITY PROJECTS IN STATEMENTS  TRANSFERRED FORWARD AUTHORIZED LAPSES OVEREXPENDED
$ 185416 $  {15551) & 169,865 $ 166,280 $ 2,691 $ 440 $ 455 $ -
244,019 {434} 243,585 232,492 3,837 14 7,242 -
108,851 {11,784) 97,067 93,966 2,833 - 268 -
56,250 - 56,209 55,427 173 - 699 -
447,080 {102) 446,978 445,998 827 - 736 (584)
16,281 {740) 15,541 15,046 243 - 252 -
33,138 {1,480) 31,679 31,444 235 . .
2,104,355 {1,590) 2,102,765 2,102,073 . . 693 -
8,992,751 {7,187) 8,985,614 8,976,960 4,505 2,872 32,583 (31,307}
248,147 - 248,147 241,228 5,389 99 1,431 -
1,723,354 (23,543) 1,699,812 1,662,984 29,230 . 7,598
1,217,482 (452} 1,217,029 1,214,830 1,175 - 1,024 -
231,979 {21,165} 210,814 191,170 19,565 . 89
5711 - 8,741 5,664 10 - 37 .
3,702,224 {41,858} 3,660,366 3,653,092 4,126 - 3,142 .
738,961 (138,465} 600,496 548,403 37,858 - 14,235
98,850 - 98,350 95,685 1,267 675 1,223 -
126,321 (6817) 119,503 112,540 2,01 - 4,952 .
194,378 (6,363 188,996 180,379 5,471 833 2,312 .
441,653 {2,396) 439,257 420,164 10,063 1,157 7.873 .
32,663 (15,503) 17,160 17.160 - . - .
2,488,605 {13,693) 2,474,912 2,462,786 6,128 3,213 2,785 .
- - (673,758) (673,758) - . - -
$ 23,438,519 $  (308073) $ 22456688 $ 22252,022 $ 137,626 $ 9,302 3 89,630 $ (31,891)
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SOURCE AND DISPOSITION OF
GENERAL FUND/GENERAL PURPOSE AUTHORIZATIONS
APPROPRIATION YEAR 2001

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Thousands}

206

Legislative Branch
Judicial Branch
Executive Branch:

Agriculture
Attorney General

Career Development

Civil Rights
Civil Service

BRANCH AND DEPARTMENT

Colleges and Universities Grants

Community Health

Consumer and Industry Services

Corrections
Education

Environmental Quality

Executive Office

Family Independence Agency
Management and Budget
Military and Veterans Affairs

Natural Resources

State

State Police
Transportation
Treasury

TOTAL

CURRENT
LEGISLATIVE
APPROPRIATION

BUDGETARY
TRANSFERS

BUDGETARY
ADJUSTMENT

163,360
175,658

51,795
35,271
33,279
14,267
12,374
2,097,917
2,673,556
83,344
1,618,601
420,769
99,407
5,651
1,216,744
392,479
41,648
63,679
66,805
321,806
21,300
159,974

$ 245

2,750,679

$ 38,601




Michigan

*ACTUAL" "VARIANCES"
MULTI-YEAR
GROSS ENCUMBERED PROJECT
SPENDING EXPENDED/ BALANCES BALANCES
AUTHORITY TRANSFERRED FORWARD FORWARD LAPSES OVEREXPENDED
$ 153649 & 148,144 $ 1204 § 3,972 09§ -
175,658 172,202 2,367 - 1,088 -
51,795 45,227 1,300 5,000 267 -
36,271 34,551 173 - 548 -
33,919 33,221 693 - 589 (584)
14,267 13,809 211 - 247 -
12,374 11,303 171 800 -
2,097,417 2,095,639 . 1,585 692 .
2,681,900 2,677,007 1,962 2,925 30,959 (30,954)
83,344 80,172 2,451 - 720 .
1,619,601 1,587,035 19,810 11,551 1,205 -
420,769 418,238 1,036 452 942 -
99,501 82,473 6,367 10,615 45 -
5,651 5,604 10 - a7 -
1,245,493 1,217,901 3,868 21,195 2,530 -
393,996 352,738 3,564 24,935 12,771 -
41,658 40,645 506 - 508 -
53,679 51,880 1,169 . 630 .
66,805 61,389 1,975 2,020 1,420 -
321,806 315,501 3,800 2,396 19 -
21,300 11,773 - 9,527 - -
159,974 149,442 1,127 8,100 1,306 -
$ 9790324 § 9,605,994 $ 53864  $ 105,174 56,830  $ (31,538)
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REVENUE, BOND PROCEEDS, AND CAPITAL LEASE ACQUISITIONS
GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

LAST TEN YEARS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

(In Thousands})

SOURCE 1991-1992 1992-1993 1993-1894 1994-1985
TAXES:
Sales $ 2,738,147 % 2,805,665 $ 3,775,260 $ 4,884,198
Personal Income (net of tax expenditures) 3,927,931 4,204,772 4,461,416 5,013,472
Amount reported as tax expenditures 964,700 975,200 1,067,700 459,600
Singfe Business 1,685,052 1,791,128 2,035,394 2,130,395
Use 479,979 529,532 725,091 942,885
State Education (Property} - - 446,863 1,155,601
Reat Estate Transfer . - - .
Liquor, Beer, Wine, and Tobacco Products 380,461 358,887 510,312 734,645
Caslno Gaming Wagering - - - -
Telephone and Telegraph Company 145,199 149,613 122,477 127,189
Insurance Company 178,304 188,186 194,442 213,638
Motor Vehicle and Fuel 1,185,774 1,244,816 1,287,765 1,338,692
Other 566,646 518,496 455,788 468,399
TOTAL TAXES 12,232,193 12,866,305 15,082,510 17,468,714
FEDERAL AGENCIES 5,379,072 5,923,406 6,370,178 6,532,050
LOCAL AGENCIES 178,660 148,956 156,267 183,282
SPECIAL MEDICAID REIMBURSEMENTS 454,257 738,026 900,461 490,517
SERVICES 107,939 1 10,5_43 113,757 122,532
LICENSES AND PERMITS 288,764 302,481 328,978 348,873
MISCELLANEQUS 448,480 427,227 478,194 655,578
TOTAL REVENUE 19,089,364 20,516,944 23,430,346 25,801,646
PROCEEDS FROM BOND ISSUES 461,957 14,179 166,036 541,881
CAPITAL LEASE ACQUISITIONS 24,349 18,304 8,778 23,782
TOTAL REVENUE, BOND PROCEEDS, AND
CAPITAL LEASE ACQUISITIONS $ 19,575,671 $ 20,549,427 $ 23,605,160 $ 26,367,209
NOTES: {1} Beginning in fiscal year 1996-97, the Stale began reporting the federal share of child support collections as

federal revenue, rather than as miscellaneous revenue. Prior year amounts have been reclassified to include
the federal revenue which were previously reported on the "Miscellaneous® line.

(2) Beginning In fiscal year 1997-98, the State began reporting real estate transfer tax separatsly from Stale
education {property) tax. Amounts of the real estale transfer tax for years prior to 1997-88 are not available.
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1995-1996 1996-1997 1997-1998 1998-1999 1999-2000 2000-2001
$ 5171598 $ 5380802 $ 5617,331 $ 5901733 $ 6277498  $ 6,352,306
5,438,788 5,930,404 6,316,125 6,907,933 7,144,211 6,749,373
429,618 470,000 477,000 486,160 502,100 532,800
2,187,418 2,224,319 2,349,148 2,360,533 2,324,868 2,022,882
1,034,886 1,092,216 1,169,258 1,283,017 1,355,389 1,333,607
1,272,288 1,348,832 1,256,874 1,273,459 1,381,420 1,489,552

- . 227,852 261,696 257,003 252,894

698,007 662,287 689,451 739,972 736,859 732,673

. - - - - 75,415

135,412 145,805 151,964 150,334 149,206 152,523
205,996 182,389 142,565 199,463 191,946 200,766
1,334,349 1,424,963 1,695,068 1,784,970 1,829,979 1,852,964
611,716 569,300 543,391 609,665 714,899 657,279
18,520,076 19,440,316 20,626,025 21,958,875 22,865,469 22,405,023
7,469,416 7,663,495 7,679,490 7,902,699 8,571,625 9,566,353
197,972 168,247 166,443 183,822 173,882 227,996
598,654 593,402 585,179 690,799 1,059,343 1,166,374
120,415 114,354 107,623 113,415 110,294 115,346
353,266 353,492 376,909 383,778 393,006 391,655
701,004 655,963 700,553 769,236 1,032,248 1,284,281
27,960,804 28,079,270 30,241,222 32,002,624 34,205,867 35,143,027
6,149 54,021 251,454 - 82,099 854,240
71,810 54,157 29,027 57,609 22,330 23,014

$ 28038762 $ 29087448 $ 80,521,703  $ 32,060,233  $ 34,310,205  $ 36,020,281
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Michigan

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION

GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - STATE FUNDS
LAST TEN YEARS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

(in Thousands)

1991 - 1892 1992 - 1993 1993 - 1994 1994 - 1995

Current:

General government $ 935,530 $ 06,287 % 844,698 3 970,101

Education 4,898,612 5,226,198 6,032,718 9,781,080

Family independence services (1) 6,209,410 6,964,193 7,596,169 7,389,722

Public safety and cormrections 1,189,233 1,298,270 1,403,525 1,557,854

Conservation, environment,

recreation, and agriculiure 357,647 367,688 518,336 638,425

Labor, commerce, and regulatory 597,427 590,282 658,148 704,11

Health services {1) 1,304,679 1,370,988 1,428,218 1,471,302

Transportation 1,174,803 1,240,270 1,297,326 1,352,745

Tax expenditures 964,700 975,200 1,067,700 458,600
Capital outlay 517,177 538,647 §23,512 625,380
Intergovernmental - revenus sharing 956,102 1,063,608 1,136,127 1,190,838
Debl service:

Bond interest and fiscal charges - - - -

Capital loase payments 47,515 39,279 36,341 38,523

Total Expenditures $ 19,153,334 % 20,580,911 $ 22,542,815 $ 26,180,861

NOTES: {1) Beginning in fiscal year 1996-97 the Stale consclidated the Medical Services Administration (MSA),
the Departmenis of Public Heallh and Mental Health to form the Depariment of Community Health and
accounted for the combined operations as "Heallh services.” MSA and Public Health expenditures
were previously reported as "Health and welfare,” which was renamed to "Family independence
services.” Prior year amounis have not been restated.
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1995 - 1996 1996 - 1697 1997 - 1998 1998 - 1999 1999 - 2000 2000 - 2001

$ 1,061,865 3 1,060,633 $ 1,003,062 $ 1,072,735 $ 1,071,643 $ 1,270,363

10,219,613 10,568,759 11,462,128 11,827,226 12,436,812 13,975,247
8,619,004 3,496,468 3,262,649 3,228,377 3,336,835 3,596,001
1,683,618 1,738,682 1,720,105 1,908,871 1,983,001 2,165,735

511,458 440,656 446,377 482,901 564,738 617,703
716,571 756,754 763,484 720,070 740,687 881,069
1,601,080 6,563,740 6,781,614 7,100,795 7,692,354 8,525,435
1,392,778 1,469,704 1,656,082 1,645,123 1,663,318 2,058,191
429,618 470,000 477,000 486,100 502,100 532,800
608,159 716,835 898,509 1,144,575 1,198,211 1,267,168
1,281,068 1,301,153 1,381,009 1,410,400 1,494,016 1,565,799
- - - - 2219

44,932 57,562 68,805 58,287 52,027 48,820

$ 28,069,878 $ 28,830,947 $ 29,810,025 $ 31,087,460 $ 32,733,741 $ 36,486,641
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Michigan

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL OBLIGATION

BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS

LAST TEN YEARS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
{In Thousands)

212

RATIO OF

DEBT SERVICE

TOTAL TOTAL EXPENDITURES TO

INTEREST DEBT GENERAL FUND GENERAL FUND

AND FISCAL SERVICE EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

FISCAL YEAR PRINGIPAL CHARGES EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS AND TRANSFERS
1991-1962 § 27,282 $ 8,184 $ 35,466 $ 15,500,936 23 %
1992-1893 19,342 18,341 37,683 17,120,555 22 %
1993-1994 20,795 19,895 40,690 17,989,224 23 %
1994-1995 23,584 19,081 42,685 17,549,649 24 %
1995-1966 21,097 33,150 64,248 18,755,877 29 %
1996-1997 29,857 34,143 64,000 18,571,500 34 %
1997-1998 31,144 32,676 63,817 18,847,724 34 %
1988-1939 34,751 45,055 79,806 20,027,355 40 %
1998-2000 36,035 49,584 85,619 20,942,926 A1 %
2000-2001 42,392 46,053 91,445 22,275,036 A1 %

NOTE: Princlpal and interest on short-term general obligation notes are not included in this bonded debt schedule,



Michigan

NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA

LAST TEN YEARS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
{in Thousands}
NET
GROSS LESS DEBT NET BONDED DEBT
BONDED SERVICE BONDED PER CAPITA
FISCAL YEAR POPULATION* DEBT FUNDS DEBT (N BOLLARS)
19911992 9,470 $ 397,067 $ - $ 397,067 § 4193
1992-1893 9,629 394,950 - 394,850 41.45
1993-1994 9,584 394,278 - 394,278 41.14
1994-1995 9,660 719,222 - 719,222 74.45
1995-1996 9,738 702,486 - 702,486 72.13
1996-1987 9,785 677,277 - 677,277 89.22
1997-1998 9,820 901,103 - 801,103 91.76
1898-1989 9,864 869,788 - 869,788 88.18
1999-2000 9,938 930,279 - 930,279 983.61
2000-2001 9,991 1,031,802 - 1,031,802 103.27

*SCURCE: U. S. Gensus Bureau, Population Division, and Office of the State Budget,
Michigan Information Center,
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Michigan

STATE BUILDING AUTHORITY (SBA) BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA

LAST TEN YEARS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
{In Thousands)

SBA NET

SBA LESS SBA BONDED DEBT
GROSS DEBT SERVICE SBA NET PER CAPITA

FISCAL YEAR POPULATION® BONDED DEBT FUNDS BONDED DEBT {IN DOLLARS)
1991-1992 9,470 $ 1,480,815 5 187,184 $ 1,303,631 § 137.66
1992-1993 9,629 1,453,140 109,494 1,343,647 141.04
1993-1994 9,684 1,494,440 150,972 1,343,468 140.18
1894-1995 9,660 1,453,420 170,478 1,282,042 132.81
1995-1986 9,739 1,478,896 171,244 1,307,662 134.27
1996-1997 9,785 1,616,700 193,219 1,423,481 145.48
1997-1998 9,820 1,996,787 245,050 1,761,737 178.38
1998-199¢ 9,864 1,945,086 220,745 1,724,341 174.81
1999-2000 9,038 1,825,018 233,540 1,592,378 160.23
2000-2001 9,99 2,159,314 226,806 1,932,408 183.41

NOTE: State Building Authority (SBA) bonds are ravenue dedicaled bonds whose debt service requirements

are financed by General Fund appropriations for rent of ieased property, 6xcess bond proceeds, and
investments eamings. The bonds of the Authority are not considered direcl debts or obligations of

the State.

*SOURGCE: U. 8. Census Bureau, Population Dlvision, Olffice of the State Budget, and Michigan Information Genter.

215



Michigan

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE

COMPREHENSIVE TRANSPORTATION FUND RELATED BONDS
LAST TEN YEARS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{In Millions}

1991-1992 1992-1993 1993-1994 1994-1995

Conslitutionally Restricted
Transportation Fund Revenues:

Motor Fuel Taxes $ 686.6 $ 724.9 $ 729.0 3 756.3

Regisiration Taxes 441.8 4625 494.3 52t.2

Miscellaneous Fees 61.8 64.4 70.0 71.8

Tolal 1,190.2 1,251.8 1,283.3 1,349.3

Less Deductions 90.8 96.5 100.2 103.8
Remaining Balance 1,099.4 1,165.3 1,193.1 1,2455
Portion of Balance Credited to Comprehensive

Transportation Fund (excluding interest) 110.0 1158 120.7 125.8
Motor Vehicle Related Sales Tax Revenues $ 639.0 $ 701.9 $ 768.5 $ 747.1
Allocation to Comprehensive Transpartation Fund 32.8 43.9 53.6 55.6
Conslitutionally Restricted Revenues Credited to

Comprehensive Transportation Fund $ 142.8 $ 159.7 $ 174.3 $ 1814
Pius Other Revenues (primarily interest) 1.1 1.3 1.8 15.8
Money Available for Delbt Service 143.9 161.0 176.1 197.2
Actual Annual Debt Service (1) 17.0 201 20,7 20.6
Debt Service Coverage 85 x 8.0 x 85 x g6

{1} The table above does not include debt service on refunded bonds.

Source: Michigan Department of Transportation.
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1995-1996 1996-1997 1997-1998 1998-1999 19589-2000 2000-2001
$ 7617 $ 821.0 $ 1,022.7 $ 1,066.3 3 1,066.5 $ 1,067.6
564.5 596.5 664.8 709.9 755.1 7779
57.4 54.4 59,1 57.0 55.2 54,7
1,383.6 1,471.9 1,746.6 1,833.2 1,876.7 1,900.2
113.4 116.9 117.9 121.2 128.0 132.0
1,270.2 1,355.0 1,628.7 1,712.0 1,748.7 1,768.2
128.0 132.2 145.3 153.0 156.9 i69.2
$ 837.5 $ 843.4 $ 864.7 $ 9086.7 3 999.3 3 1,057.0
58.4 58.8 60.3 83.2 69.7 737
$ 187.4 $ 191.0 L 205.6 $ 216.3 $ 226.6 $ 232.9
7.9 50 6.1 8.6 3.1 35
1953 196.1 211.7 2229 229.7 236.4
23.1 22.5 23.1 219 21.2 21.7
85 x 8.7 x 9.2 x 102 x 10.8 x 109 x
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Michigan

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE

STATE TRUNKLINE FUND RELATED BONDS
LAST TEN YEARS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

{in Millions)

218

Constitutionaliy Restricted

Transportation Fund Revenues:
Motor Fuel Taxas
Registration Taxes
Miscellaneous Fees

Total

Less Deductions:
Crilical Bridge Debt Service
P. A. 51 Dedicaled State Trunkline Fund Debt Service (1)
Coltection Cosis
Waterways/Recreational Improvement Fund
Comprehensive Transporiation Fund (exciuding interest)
Locat Program Fund
Critical Bridge Fund
Economic Development Fund

Total Deductions

Constitutionally Restricted Revenues
Available for Distribution
Plus Other Revenues {primarily interest)

Total Money Available for Distribution

Distributions to:
Cities and Villages
County Road Commissions
State Trunkline Fund

Money Available for Debt Service
State Trunkline Fund
P. A. 51 Dedicaled State Trunkline Fund Debt Service {1)
Economic Development Fund
Local Program Fund
Critical Bridge Fund

Total Available for Debt Service
Actual Annual Debt Service (2}

Debt Service Coverage

1991-1992 1992-1993 1993-1994 1994-1995
$ 686.6 $ 724.9 & 729.0 758.3
441.8 462,56 494.3 521.2
61.8 64.4 70.0 7.8
1,180.2 1,251.8 1,283.3 1,349.3
- - 2.8 1.3
78.4 83.6 84.2 90.2
2.4 13.0 13.2 13.4
110.0 115.8 120.7 125.8

- 20,0 33.0 33.0

5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
36.8 368 36.8 36.8
2426 274.2 295.7 305.5
9476 977.6 997.6 1,043.8
55 11.0 5.5 12.7
953,14 988.6 1,003.1 1,056.5
209.4 217.9 218.6 233.2
371.3 385.0 3922 411.4
372.4 3857 3922 411.9
3724 385.7 3922 411.9
36.8 36.8 38,8 388

- 200 330 33.0

- - 2.8 -
409.2 4425 464.8 481.7
29.4 319 34,5 425
13.9 x 139 x 135 x 113

{1} Beginning fiscal year 1997-98, the formula for the tax distribution was revised to apportion and
appropriate $43 miltion from the Michigan Transportation Fund to the State Trunkiine Fund for
debt service costs on State of Michigan projects. Prior year amounts are not available,

{2) The table above excludes amounts related to refunded bonds.

SOURCE: Michigan Department of Transportation.
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1995-1996 1996-1997 1997-1998 1998-1999 1999-2000 2000-2001
8 761.7 $ 821.0 $ 10227 % 11,0663 $ 1,0885 % 1,067.8
564.5 596.5 664.8 709.9 755.1 777.9
57.4 54.4 59.1 57.0 55.2 54.7
1,383.6 14719 1,746.6 1,833.2 1,876.7 1,900.2
16 1.6 1.6 1.4 2.4 2.4
- - 43.0 430 43.0 43.0
99.8 i01.2 55.4 58.4 64.0 831
13.6 14.1 7.9 18.4 18,6 18.5
129.0 132.2 145.3 163.0 156.9 159.2
3390 33.0 33.0 33.0 33.0 330
50 5.0 5.0 5.0 50 5.0
36.8 36.8 40.3 40.3 40.3 40.3
318.8 a23.9 3415 352.5 3683.2 364.5
1,064.7 1,148 1,405.1 1,480.7 1,513.6 1,5635.7
8.8 59.7 13.8 11.6 15.8 134
4,083.5 1,207.8 1,418.0 1,492.3 1,529.4 1,649.1
2395 270.5 302.7 318.7 326.7 3318
421.4 477.9 534.3 561.0 575.0 582.9
4227 459.3 582.0 612.7 627.7 634.3
422.7 459.3 582.0 6127 627.7 634.3
- - 43.06 43.0 43.0 43.0
36.8 368.8 40.3 40.3 40.3 2.4
330 33.0 330 33.0 33.0 33.0
- - 1.6 1.4 2.4 40.3
4925 528.0 699.9 730.4 746.4 753.0
58.2 59.7 61.3 57.8 47.2 48.2
8.5 8.9 x 1.4 x 126 x 158 x 166 X

219



220



223



Michigan

ii

Economic and Sociaf Data

GENERAL INFORMATION

On January 26, 1837, Michigan was admitted to the Union as the twenty-sixth stala. It is located in the East North Cenlral Census Region and
is bordered by Canada and the states of Chio, indiana, and Wisconsin. Michigan contains 58,110 square miles of land mass (exclusive of 1,305
square miles of infand water and 38,575 square miles of Great Lakes water area) with 3,288 miles of shoreline on four of the five Great Lakes,
A combined water and land area of 97,990 square miles makes it the tenth largest state.

POPULATION

The following table presents population trends for Michigan for the last ten years (in thousands):

1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
Population 9,470 9,529 9,584 9,660 9,739 9,785 9,820 9,864 9,938 9,991
Percent
Change 8% 6% 6% 8% 8% 5% 4% A% .8% 5%
Source;

U.8. Census Bureau, Population Division (estimated at July 1 for 2001, all prior years are actual).

WEALTH
The following table presents per capila income, retail sales, taxable property, and bank deposits data for the last ten years:

State Equalized

Value of Taxable Bank
Per Capita Retail Sales (b) Property (c) Deposits (d)
Income {a) {In Billions) {In Blflions) {In Billions}
YEAR Ml us. us. Mi M
1991 $19,311 $20,039 $1,855.9 $150.9 $109.5
1992 20,263 20,979 1,.951.6 154.3 110.6
1993 21,3686 21,557 2,082.1 167.9 111.8
1994 22,829 22,358 2,248.2 175.6 117.8
1995 23,931 23,272 2,359.0 186.4 117.4
1996 24,394 24,286 2,502.4 200.3 116.9
1997 25,505 25,427 2,610.6 218.7 118.2
1998 26,870 26,909 2,745.6 237.4 123.4
1999 27,886 27,859 2,994.9 261.0 122.3
2000 29,071 29,451 3,082.8 284.4 136.5

Sources:

(a) U.S. Depaniment of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, Oclobar 2001 release.

(b) U.S. Census Bureau, Monthly Retall Surveys Branch.

(c) State of Michigan, Department of Treasury, Property Tax Division,

{d) State of Michigan, Department of Consumer & Industry Services, Office of Financial and Insurance Services, Division of Financlal Institutions,
The amounts shown include state and national banks, state and federal credit unlons, stale and federal savings banks, and saving
and ioan assoclations.

324 2000-2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Michigan

EMPLOYMENT

Economic and Social Data (Continued)

The following table presents employment data (expressed in thousands) for the State of Michigan for the last ten calendar years:

Total Total Unemployment
Year Labor Force Employment Unemployment Rate
1991 4,592 4,165 427 9.3%
1992 4,690 4,274 416 8.9%
1993 4,763 4,418 335 7.0%
1994 4,823 4,539 284 5.9%
1995 4,814 4,556 258 5.4%
1996 4,897 4,659 238 4.9%
1997 4,961 4,752 209 4.2%
1998 5,031 4,837 194 3.9%
1999 5,144 4,950 194 3.8%
2000 5,201 5,016 185 3.6%
Source: Michigan Department of Career Development, Employment Service Agency.
Wage and salary employees for the last five calendar years consisted of the following (in thousands):
Wage and Salary Employment 19986 1997 1608 1999 2000
Goods Producing Industries:
Manufacturing
Durable Goods:
Lumber & Wood Products 17.4 17.1 17.7 18.2 18.1
Fumiture & Fixiures 37.9 38.8 41.7 - 435 44,2
Stone, Clay, and Glass Producls 18.6 191 20.7 20.9 221
Primary Malals 36.9 36.7 373 38.3 38.8
Fabricated Metals 127.5 127.6 128.1 131.2 1313
Industral Machinery & Computer Equipment 133.7 134.9 135.1 133.1 1345
Electrical Equipment except Computer 33.6 34.0 354 35.7 35.8
Transportation Equipment 294.9 289.2 287.8 299.7 298.3
Other Durable Goods 26.9 26.0 25.8 25.5 253
Total Durable Goods 7274 723.4 7296 746.1 7484
Nondurable Goods:
Food & Kindred Products 42.8 41.3 40.1 379 371
Textlles & Apparel 19.6 19.3 19.4 19.6 19.8
Paper & Allied Products 21.4 21.8 20.7 20.2 20.0
Printing & Publishing 43.8 437 43,7 43.1 42.3
Chemicals & Petroleum 45,1 448 454 45.4 44.7
Rubber & Miscellanecus Plastics 67.9 68.0 66.8 65.9 64.5
Other Nendurable Goods 37 4,0 4.0 3.6 3.0
Total Nondurable Goods 244.3 242.9 240.1 2357 2314
Total Manufacturing 9717 966.3 969.7 981.8 979.8
Mining 7.6 7.6 7.8 7.0 17
Construction 168.0 179.8 186.1 196.5 2114
Total Goods Preducing Industiies 1,147.3 1,163.7 1,163.6 1,185.3 1,198.9
Service Producing Industries:
Transportation, Communications, and Utilities 170.4 1735 177.7 178.9 180.7
Whaolesale Trade 219.6 228.6 232.6 234.9 238.8
Retall Trade 805.6 8174 822.8 840.0 855.1
Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate 202.4 205.7 208.5 208.0 205.3
Services 1,171.6 1,221.9 1,249.0 1,267.2 1,316.5
Govemment 643.8 647.4 656.0 667.6 683.9
Total Service Producing Indusiries 3,2134 3,204.4 3,346.6 3,396.6 3,480.3
Total Wage and Salary Employment 4,360.7 4,448.2 4,510.2 4,581.9 4,679.2

Source: Michigan Department of Career Development, Employment Service Agency {(wage and salary benchmark of March 2000).
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INDEX OF FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS

Advance Financing Funds.......c..cne,

Assigned Claims Facllity and Plan Fund

Bottle DEPOSHS FUNG i e ieesincsisinieceacttire i resneseesste s seesmaernesseesnsesanssseraassenassrenessares
Centrat Michigan UnIVEISHY. ..ot ne s et bt e s s esaes b e
Child Support Collelion FUNG..........coo ettt n e s e ane e
Children's TrUSE FUND ... e s cveeeas st st s st s stsse st e sae st s bt esan e s e smeassene
Combined Comprehensive Transportation Bond and Interest Redemption Fund................... 148
Combined Comprehensive Transportation Bond Proceads FUNG ...c..vvvercverereeeerevsnisssinnensns 107
Combined Environmental Protection Bond FUNU ... eccceeicnevomerrerereesrresesesssesesssss vsraess 117
Combined Recreation Bond Fund — Lotal PrOJECIS ,...iviuverrisrerserereveeressessssssnssssesnsssrsssseanes 117
Combined Recrealion Bond Fund — State Projects.........ccevcercceecvecee e e eenrsnen 154
Combined State Trunkline Bond and Interest Redemption FUNg ......co.vcomeeveirreneennncssiians 148
Combined State Trunkiing Bond Procaeds FUNG.........vrerisinneime s rsnssssesemssssnsseans 107
Comprehensive Transportalion FUn ...t itce e es e 106
Correctional Industries RevolvINg FUNA ... et ene e e 166
Counter-Cyglical Budget and Economic Stabilization Fund ... 20
Eastern Michigan URIVEISIEY ... e sss s sisess e st s sese e mras e emseeans 194
Environmental Quality Daposits FUNG ..........ccooovimeriinceiesins s asstesess e et cmseseenes 185
ESChEals FUNM.. ittt sr s sascssvessere s sse s semsssns e se e ressesrssssanassbasssbssnnssssnsesonian 180
Federal Housing Administration Mortgages ESCFOW FUNG ....uvveerierrresrrerermsrerrsrsessesssesees 181
Fermis SIate UNIVEISIY .ot r st e rnr e e rres s e sn s ar s s b ns 194
Financial Institutions Deposils FUN ... ..oy r e evaaevaeers e esssss e sr e 188
Forest Development FUNG...... ..ot sesters s tossesressssssssessessrorassasoss 117
Game and Fish Protection FUNG. ... s inseesstssss e e e essenssaene serennens i16
Game and Fish Protection TIust FUN.....oirecircircinsninss i s sisesssssss conasbesseesmnsnns 116
General FUNG ... enee e srrenrcsrsrenesssens sense v srs s srevansrssrnessressanesstsesssesssessseses 20
Gifts, Bequests, and Deposits InvesiMent FUN .....c.cvicicineerericniinorssnnerresssesiesesssssinsns 180
Grand Valley State UnIVErsity.......viiciiie s vercsrsrsress s st seees s tssssssssssensiarsrssssnes
Homeowner Construction Lien Recovery Fund

Hospital Patients’ Trust FUNd ...t st e eeenssssensserassarar e
Information Technology and ENeIGY FUN.. s iieeereceereceeseeresesreeseemsmeeses e resess s sbeassseees
Insurance Carrier Deposits Fund

Judges' Retirement Fund....... e E e R e e REet L e LSS e S E R TR HREaER SR AR S S SRS T e b b e b aea et desannnnn 175
Lake Superior State University .........u... e RS eSIRSa e e e nrn e r s raeesra 194
Legislative RetremMEnt FUNG............coviermminmmirrs i emsissssnn seensnis s eessssssassssssssssessessnssssense sms 174
Liguor Purchase Revolving FUNG .......ccmmeireniensrinn s s e s seress e sse s se e sessssssesssssssssnsesen 26
Mackinac Bridge AUTNOTIEY . ......ovicirisicicnii e rerasersn e esinsesorsessaresstoressossnsses senssnes sresnsss 190
Mackinac Island State Park Commission... . 191
Marine Salety FUN..........iii e e sce st eten e srme e e e rs e ararermesbenen 116
Michigan Civilian Conservation Corps Endowiment FUR.......ccreriesinseriesiesessssessrores 158
Michigan Economic Development Corporalion .19
Michléan EdUCALION SAVINGS PIOGIBIMN ..eiciierisieriminnisisessessissenssresnssesesssesssssesnsasssorssemsssieae 181
Michigan EQUCAEON TIUSL ... e ers s ise st as e res e e snan s saesessnsbe s
Michigan Employment Security Act — Administration Fund

Michigan Higher Education Assistance AUthOMtY........o.ceuierr e s esrraseresevasaen
Michigan Higher Education Faciliios AUNOMEY ..o siisssese e eresnes
Michigan Higher Education Student Loan Authority....

Michigan Mersit AWArd Trust FUNG.......ociiiinveeresnerrerissieneomssissressissrsssvsssiorsesssssnssesssessnes
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Michigan Municipal Bond Autherity 36
Michigan Natural Resources Trust FUnd i s s 158
Michigan Nongame Fish and Wildlife Fund ..o o 117
Michigan State Hospital Finance Authorily ........... . 180
Michigan State Housing Development AUOTIY ....c..v st 36
Michigan State Parks Endowment FUn.......cocvvmrmimvmnsnii e 158
Michigan State Waterways FUnd........cc.oionnci e 116
Michigan Stralegic FHNG.........vriiiiiiiiis it ne s s as s 1860
tichigan Technological University . 195
Michigan Transporation FURd.....c..ccuoieiviommimmmm e tsscn e s 106
Michigan Underground Storage Tank Financial Assurance Finance Authority ..o 118 & 149
Michlgan Underground Storage Tank Financial Assurance FURd ... 117
Michigan Unemployment Compensalion FUnds ..., 26
Michigan Veterans’ Trust Fund.......ciue. 159
Miscellaneous Speciat Bevenue Funds 141
Motor Transport Fund 166
Northern Michigan UNIVErSItY ... i sersssrs et 195
OaKIANG UNIVEISHEY ... eee et ce et s s s s s s rmr sy n e b ea bbbt e s 195
Office Services RevoIVING FUNU ..o sitmesat s s ssraan s s pmees e sne e 166
Public School Employees’ Retirement FUNG......c.coirvinnnes s, 175
Recreaiion and Envirenmental Protection Bond Redemption Fund ... ... 148
Risk Managemant FUNd ... s et snssss s s s eanssss s e 167
Safety Education and Training Funt ... e 130
Saginaw Valley State University 195
School Aid Fund.......cocvvimemrnrerensrsness eeeeieesibeebeetbasbi bt b eas e e aRaRaebe e aE e eR SaE e s an e saendnne et sen 20
School Bond Loan Fund.....oeennriiesisononme. - 140
School Loan Bond Redemplion Fund...........c.cciiommims s s 149
Second INJUNY FUN ... sesersvrtsrsas s s s rsan s s s rs s e s s s mnnan s r e s 131
Self-Insurers’ Security Fund 131
Silicosis, Dust Disease, and Logging Industry Compensation Fund..........ccccovveiicnvcnnnnenns 131
Stale Aeronautics Fund ... 106
State Bar of MIChIGAN.......ccoverrrcrrnrernirssnrrr e it st st ass s e e ra e s st sy rnsameasssennes 19
State Building Authority
State Casino GAMING FUNG ... s s s sbns s rasssssssnsss i34
State Construclion Code FURG ... s i nsess s corrnises sy ssses it tensessissssisses i30
State Employees’ Deferred Compensation Funds ............. o 174
State Employees’ Defined Contribution Retirement Fund............ e e 175
State Employeas’ Retirement FUNG........cvvsimuniiomenimmmesmiesiimsss o s 175
State Lottery Fund .......... demben vyt eSS4 1A LRSS TS AT AR SRR TS PR TR YA T YAt d s r it bt b et bans 26
State Park Improvement FUNd.........ocvinnienierernens YOO 117
State Police Retirement Fund.... rerrerenenerrerry e e bR eSS A bbb 174
State Sponsored Group Insurance Fund............ R rereetbanare rrere by Se bt r e e e 167
State Treasurer's Escrow and Paylng Agent Fund ... 185
State Trunkding Fund.....ccomienminnmmmoanon, i08
Tobacco Sottlement TRUSE FUNRD .o s s s s s 140
Transportation Related Trust Funds.... 107
Uninsured Employers’ Security Fund ... 130
Utility Consumer Representation Fund............. . 131
Westam Michigan University ... s eiebitbrebastert s ne s e saresaranrrnns 37
Waorkers' Disability Compensation Trust FUNOS .o i ssnne. i81
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